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Ownership model

Describes how we create
value over the longer term.

Financial review

Includes information on financial
performance and the main
trends and factors which have

Page 6 , impacted our financial results.
Risk overview o, M.m:—&:% - Page 69

ménaging rieke and our ‘ but fairer, Key performance
Mww_mwﬂww%wmwmﬂﬂov more _oq._.: _UMMowsﬂmm:om in the year is
Page 65 rewarding. oo maleata e key
Purpose and strategy and for the Page 23

:mummmuxwﬁvﬁ__ﬁﬁmq_mmwﬁm good of Our stakeholders

out our new purpose
and strategy.

Page 26

Listening and engaging
regularly with our stakeholders
is fundamental to the way we
do business.

Page 29

sociely.

Committed to doing the right thing

Being a responsible business is part of our mutual heritage and we remain committed to doing business in a way that
positively impacts our customers, employees and communities.

- Our climate change O + Our Mutual Good Commitments and
disclosures are cn S Environmental, Social and Governance
- pages 53 to 64 (ESG) dis¢losures are on pages 46 to 51

Our nen-financial and
sustainability information
statement is on page 52

For more information on our social vc_.vo.mm and our ESG commitments and disclosures, see our ESG hub on
nationwide.co.uk/about-us/responsible-busines

The Strategic report has been approved by the Board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

Debbie Crosbie
18 May 2023
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No. 1

for customer satisfaction

among our peer group
for the 11th year running’

mﬂ c c million invested

in cost of living support
and supermarket shopping
cashback? .

m w . m million
*commitied Lo charitable
mnms.mnm

2022: £7.1 million

What your Society has achieved this year

Committed 1o a
net-zero carbon
future

by setting sciance-based targets

M in m current account
swilchers came to us?

2022:1in 5

Continued to look
afler almoslt

£1 ineey £10

saved in the UK*

Helped H— in .N

first time buyers

into a home of their own

2022:1in7

E.m:_o.r
Promise

to remain in every town or city
w2 are in todey until at least 2024

hrcmm million

member financial benefit,
from hetter dricing anc incentives
than the ma-ket averagz

2022: £325 million

£2,233 wition

underlying profit
2022: £1,604 million

£2,229 sin

statutory profit
+ 2022: £1,597 million

6.0"

leverage ratio
2(:22: 5.4%

1. Lead at March 2023 3.8%pls, March 2022: 4.€%pts. € Ipsos 2023, Financial Research Survey (FRS), for Lhe 12 months ending 31 March 2013 to 12 months ending 31 March 2023, Fesults bazed on a sample of around
47,06C adulis (aged 16+). “he survey contacts around 51,000 aduits {aged 16+} a year in total across Great Britain. Interviews were face to face, ovar the phone and online, teking irte accolnt {and we ghted to) the
overall profilz of the adult ropulation. The resudts reflect the percentage of extremely satisfied and very satisfied customers minus the percentage of customers who were ex remelv or very o- fai-ly dissatisfied across
those customers with a main current account mortgace or savings. Those in our peer group are providers with more than 3.3% of the main current account market as of April 2022 - Barclays, Halifax, HSBC, Lloyds Bank,
NatWest, Satander 2nd TSB. Prior to April 2C17, thosz in sur peer group were providers with more than 6% of the main current account market — Berclays, Halifax, HSBC, Lioyds Bark (Lloyds TSB prior to April 2015),

NatWest arc Santander.

2. Includes moaey invested ivour 5% cashback >ffer on debit card expenditure in supermarkets and converience stores from February until April 2023 (up to £10 per month), cost of Iiving payents for colleagues, our cost
of living cus*omer helpline and our financial health chacks in branches.

3. Pay.UK mcn-hly CASS data. 12 months to March 2023: 19.2%; 12 months to March 2022: 18.3%.
4. Market sha-e of householc’ deposit balances, tased on Bank of England data, as at 31 March 2023: 9.6% (2022: 9.4%).
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Our difference
is our mutual
ownership

model

We are a building society, not a bank. That means
we are owned by our members - our customers
who have their current account, mortgage or
savings with us.
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Our difference is our mutual ownership model

Our Strategy

Our Purpose Our Business Model

. . . Nati .a:a, ique position in UK financial
Banking - but fairer, services. A the rgest building society, we can
morc rezarding, and o o o oo S ot others cannot.

WCH ﬂ-ﬁ@ WCOA— As a building society, weare owned by our members

Qm. .w.Qh.s.ﬁwNau. - our customers .s_.:o 3m<m their current account,
- mortgage or savings with us.

We aim to return additional value to our members as

As a modern mutuai, we make a positive owners, through our Nationwide Fairer Share products
difference for our members and customers, and payments.

our communities and society as a whole.
We deliver our valuable banking products and services
to ail of our customers by helping them with:

managing everyday finances - one in ten’ of
the UK's current accounts are with us and one
in five current acccunt switchers came to us
last year?

owning a home - we are ﬁ:m UK’s second
largest mortgage _qusamﬁ

saving for the future - we look after almost
£1in every £10'saved in the UK

We also support landlcrds and those who rely on

the private rented sector for tlieir long-term housing

needs through our buy to let business, The Mortgage
Works. This diversifies our income, and helps us give
value back to our customers, through better product

pricing and service.

In total, around 75% of our funding comes from our
customers, and over 85% of our lending is secured on
residential property3.

1. CACI's Current Account and Savings Database, Stock (February 2023).
2. Pay, UK monthly CASS data. 12 menths to March 2023: 19.2%; 12 months to March 2022: 18.3%.

We have four strategic drivers. We focus
our time and money on them, so that we
can fulfil our purpose:

- More rewarding relationships
- Simply brilliant service

- Beacon for mutual good

. Continuous improvement

For more information on:

» Our Blueprint for a modern mutual,
see pade 26

+ Delivery against our strategic drivers,
see pages 15t0 22

« Our Nationwide Fairer Share Payment
and Nationwide Fairer Share Bond,
see The Nationwide Fairer Share,
nationwide.co.uk/fairershare-payment

3. The Building Societies Act requires that at least 75% of our lending is secured on residential property and at least 50% of our funding comes from customers. For more detail, please see page 319.
e} g , please see page 319,



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

. Our difference is our mutual ownership mode!

Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements Other information U (continued)
Our Stakeholders What Makes Us Different - Our Ownership Model
Retail members Buy to fet As a mutual, we are owned by. cur members, which means we think about profit in a different way from our
and customers % customers hanking peers. We do not have to pursue profit to pay shareholders dividends. Instead, we balance our need to
retain sufficient profit to remain financially strong, with rewarding members and our commitment to share our
success through:
o) Colleagues o Mortgage
[aniinn) ) gu o~ intermediaries

Investors and
— J rating agencies

s O
aCm
Suppliers _H_

Communities

Regulators and
policy makers

As a mutual, our members - customers who have their
current account, mortgage or savings with us - are
our owners and are our primary sta<eholders. We also
have other importznt stakeholders who we engage
with and consider in our decision making.

We are committed to maintaining effective
communications and building positive relationships
with all our stakeholders. More information on our
engagement with stakeholders can be found on

page 29.

Product and service propositions that meet the needs Committing at least 1% of our pre-tax profits* each
and expectations of existing and future customers. year to charitable activities.

4. The 1% is calculated based on average pre-tax profits over the previous three years.
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| am pleased to write to you
following my first full year of
service as your Chairman.

When | wrote to you last year,
we were all continuing to
adapt to living within a global
pandemic and the challenges
which that brought us. Last
year saw more change

and new challenges, yet
throughout that Nationwide
has continued to focus on its
members by continuing to
protect its financial strength.

Financially, our pre-tax profit
is 40% higher than last year
at £2.2 billion. This is after
delivering member financial
benefit of £1.1 billion, broadly
representing the amount by
which our members benefit
more than they would if

they banked with a typical
competitor.

In addition, our financial
strength has enabled

the Board to declare our
Nationwide Fairer Share
Payment — with eligible
members to receive a £100
payment into their current
account in June 2023 - and
the Nationwide Fairer Share
Bond. The Fairer Share
Payment will amount to an
estimated £340 million in total.
More details on eligibility can
be found at nationwide.co.uk/
fairershare. Only a mutual can
reward its members in this
way. In the future, the Board
intends to declare annual
distributions provided they
would not be detrimental to
the financial strength of the
Society.

The cost of living, rising Bank
rate and inflation all presented
fresh challenges for us and our

Dear fellow

Chairman’s Letter

member

members amidst uncertainty
in the UK economy, changes
across government, and
extreme volatility from the
‘mini-Budget’ in September
2022, However, throughout
the year Nationwide ,
maintained its strength and
continues to be a well-trusted
brand on the UK high street’.
The Nationwide Board has
faced these challenges head
on and discharged its duties
with due care to ensure that
Naticnwide is set up for
long-term success. You can
read more about the strategic
decisions we have taken,

how we engaged with our
stakeholders, and how our
mutual status is at the heart of
our approach in greater detail
on pages 29 to 39.

On behalf of the Board, | would
like to thank all our colleagues

for their hard work and stand
out customer service during
another challenging year.

The year has seen Nationwide
welcome its first female CEQ,
Debbie Crosbie, who led the
team that extended the Branch
Promise, delivered strong
financial performance and
supported our members and
colleagues through the cost
of living pressures. We have
also continued to progress our
key agendas on inclusion and
diversity and sustainability.
Nationwide has publicly
committed to net-zero and its
intermediate science-based
targets, albeit this remains
subject to broader public
policy in order to achieve

the long-term goals. Further
detail on all this activity can be
found on pages 46 to 64.

The Board engaged with
members, customers and
colleagues during the year
through TalkBack sessions,
both in person, online, or a
combination of both. This
new approach enabled
the Board to engage more
frequently and with more
people than before the
pandemic and will be
continued.

fam pleased to be able to
confirm that two out of four

of our most senicr Board
positions are now held by
women, as recognised in the
FTSE Women Leaders Review
2023, and that our Board is
broadly balanced between
men and women. The Board
continues to oversee progress
against inclusion and diversity
targets and hold executive

1. Joint 18t based on a study conducted by an international market research company commissioned by Nationwide Building Society, based on customer and non-customer respenses for the 12 months ending March 2023,
Financial brands included Nationwide, Ba clays, The Co-operative Bank, First Direct, Halifax, HSBC, Lloyds Bank, NatWest, TSB, Santander, Monzo and Starling Bank.

10
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management to account to
deliver greater divarsity across
the workforce,

Within the organisation, we
continued to focus on the
management of risks and
controls and held executive
management to account to
deliver improvements at pace.
Our new CEC is ccmmitted to
making these improvements
and the Board supports her in
this entirely.

| have set outin the
Governance repor: the key
changes that have been made
to the Board this year on

page 78, but | would like to
extend my thanks to Mai
Fyfield and Gunn Waersted for
their counsel and service. Both
Mai and Gunn will step down
at the AGM and we wish them
well. In turn, | welcome Tracey
Graham as the incoming
Senior Independent Director,
subject to regulatery approval.

The Board continues to
demonstrate its commitment
to diversity of thought in its
appointments.

As | look to the year ahead, |
am confident that Nationwide
will remain resilient in the

face of continued political and
economic uncertainty and that
the mutual model will continue
to serve our members’
interests well. The Board has
approved a new strategy

and purpose for Naticnwide
and we look forward to
overseeing the delivery of
that strategy for the benefit

of Nationwide’s members,
customers, colleagues and the
communities that we serve.

v B
R
Kevin Parry

Chairman

Other information U

—

Chairman’s Letter (continued)
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Reflections o
2022/23

from Debbie
Crosbhie

your Society’s Chief Executive
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Last year, we started our
modern mutual journey.

We are making good progress
on our strategy, despite the
macroeconomic challenges and
market pressures that impacted
our costs and the cost of living
for our customers. Throughout
this, our colleagues kept their
focus on helping our customers
in the best way possible.

Our financial perfarmance

last year was the strongest on
record. We also delivered cur
highest ever level of member
financial benefit, through better
pricing and incentives than the
market average.

Chief Executive Review

My reflections
on 2022/23

As a mutual, we aim to reward
our savings customers with
the highest savings rates

we possibly can, whilst
ensuring we remain financially
sustainable over the longer
term. Qur average deposit
rates over the year were 85%

higher than the market average.

Combined with our attractive
current account switching
incentive during October and
November 2022, this increased
our market share of deposit
balances to 9.6%.

We are here to support our
customers today and for the
long term, which is why it is
important that we maintain our
financial strength. Our leverage
ratio, which measures our

1. The Nationwide Fairer Share, nationwide, zo,uk/fairershare-payment

ability to withstand economic
shocks, continues to bée well
above our minimurn regulatory
threshold.

This strength allowed us to
support our customers and
colleagues in new ways. We
invested £100 million, which
included the zost of providing
cashback to current account
customers on their supermarket
shopping when they made
purchases using their debit
cards between February and
April 2023. It also included
cost of living payments for our
colleagues and support for
customers facing cost of living
challenges, including practical
suppert in our bkranches, a
dedicated telephone helpiine
and an online cost of living hub.

And most notably, our financial
strength has enabled us to
introduce the Nationwide
Fairer Share Payment, which
rewards our members who
have the deepest banking
relationships with us, and the
Nationwide Fairer Share Bond,
with an exclusive interest rate
for members. It is a clear and
positive way of demonstrating
our mutual difference and
aligns with our purpose. You
can find out more information
about it on our website.

Simultaneously, we have
demonstrated our mutual good
in the communities we serve,
committing £9.6 million over
the year to charitable activities.

13
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Looking
ahead to the
future

Chief Executive Review (continued)

We have remained number one for customer satisfaction in our
peer group for eleven years running?, but as our customers’ needs
evolve, we must innovate, adapt and modernise to stay relevant
and distinctive.

We have an exciting journey ahead. We will execute our refreshed
strategy and deliver briliiantly for our customers today as well as
for those of the future.

We will develop new products and services, invest more in
rewarding relationships, make it easier for colleagues to do their
jobs well and demonstrate the real difference that mutuals make in
our society.

Thank you to our customers, who are at the centre of everything
we do. | look forward to another exciting year and to delivering
our new purpose: Banking - but fairer, more rewarding, and for the
good of society.

S A\ Gl

Debbie Crosbie

Chief Executive

For more imformation om:

+ Our Blueprint for a modern mutual, see page 26

+ Our financial review, see page 69

2. ® Ipsos 2622, Financial Research Survey tFRS), for the 12 months ending 31 March 2013 te the 12 months ending 31 March 2023. For mere information, see footnote 1 on page 5.

14
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3

More rexardin
relationships

Deeper, broader, more lifelong

banking relationships that
provide the best value.

1in 103 of the UK’s current accounts are with us and, at the 2023 Moneyfacts
O 4+  Consumer Awa-ds, we won the Current Account Switching Provider of the

e Year award We aim to provide our
2022:1in 108 customers with the best value
, in UK banking. Our mutual
Helped over 15,000 save for the first time with us through our Start to Save model is intrinsically more
Issue 2 account rewarding than our banking
, . peers, as we deliver value
Provided customers with 5% cashback, up to £10 each month, on superriarket to our customers, rather
and convenience store purchases using their debit cards between February and . than paying dividends to
April 2023 : shareholders. We want to

extend this beyond monetary

) i . value and to create lifelong
1in 7 first time buyers into a home of -heir own _, :. - relationships.

ARl I

2022:1in7 ‘
[ . The customers with the
Deposit growih £9.1 billion deepest relationships with us
2022: £7.7 bil on ’ are our committed members:
those with two or mora of our
illi ‘ , roducts?, i
2022: £36.5 & llion : members, For more information,
see page 24.

w

ZACl's Current Account anc Szvings Database, Stock {Febraa-y 2022 and February 2022).

b

Sommitted members had tt 2ir main personat current acco.rt with us, or a mortgage of at teast £5,000, or at least £1,000 in savings accounts, plus at least one other product.

Helping people
into homes

We were fcunded to help
people intc homes of their cwn,
and this re mains important

to our stralegy today. Our
share of totzl gross mortgzge
lending was 10.8% 12022:
11.8%), reflacting lower gross
lending of 233.6 hil ion (2022
£38.5 billion). Strong demand
in the first 1alf of the year was
offset by a szfter market in

the seconc half, when higher
Bank rate znd inflazion affected
customers’ zffordaaility
assessmerts. and increased
their cauticn around borrow'ny
at higher retes.

15
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We continued to price
competitively and e-hanced
our online Mortgage Manager
service, making it easier for
our existing customars to
switch preduct or extend

their mortgage termr to reduce
their mortgage payments. Our
existing mortgage customers
have access to rates that are
at least as good as those for
new customers remortgaging
to us, and we have the
highest retention of mortgage
customers in our peer group®.

We helped over 72,600 first
time buyers into a home of their
own (2022: 87,000), equating
to one in seven (2022: one in
seven) of all first time Luyers,
above our share of the wider
market. Our He ping dand
mortgage has successiully
supported affordabi ity, enablirg
first time buyers to borrow more
{up te 5.5 simes thei- salary)

on 5 and 13-year fixed -ate
mortgages. It a so extends to
95% loan to valJe, reducing the
pressure on first tims buyers of
saving for a larger depusit, and
we offer £500 cashback to help
with moving costs. We continue

5. eBenchmarkers residential retentior at p=zint of maturity, for the top 6 lenders (May to July 2022 maturities, 3 months post-matur ty).

to ensure we lend responsibly,
with robust underwriting
checks, but without relying

on the Government’s 95%
meortga je guarantee scherre.
In recognition of the support
we have provided, we were
awarded the Best First Time
Buyer Mortgage Provider at tha
Moneyfacts Awards 2022,

The buy to let market was
smaller overall, as higher
interest rates in the seconc

half of the year alsc impactad
landlords’ affordability and
profitability, limiting their ability
ta expand portfolios or raisz
capital. The gross lending
market share of our buy to

let subsidiary, The Mortgage
Works (TMW), decreased, to
11.0% (2022: 14.5%), as our
pricing temporarily became [ess
competitive when the Bank rate

rose and the market contrazzed.

We became more competitive
in the fourth quarter of the
financial year and refined our
affordanility tests for buy to
let customers. This enablec
us to offer mortgages to merz
landlords, whilst continuing 12
lend in 2 responsible way.

Supporting those who
save with us

We believe in encouraging gond
savings habits, and the financial
security this can provide
customers in the jong term. We
saw strong growth in customer
deposits over the year. They
increased by £8.1 billion (2022:
£7.7 billicn), despite the cost

of living challenges reducing
the savings market cverall.

Our market share of deposit
balances grew to 9.6% (2022:
9.4%). This strong growth
reflected the competitiveness
of our savings products, in
particular our Fixed Rate Boads.

We also increased our variable
savings rates over the year,

to support and retain existing
savers. Our Start to Save Issue
2 account, for those new to
saving, helped over 15,000
people save at least £100 for
the first time with us in tha past
year, and over 900 people won
£250 in our prize draw.

8. CACI's Current £ccoun® ard Savings Datasase, Stock {February 2023 and Febrazry 2022).
7. Toearn the £202 caslkback, customers must have completed a full switch to Js “rcm & current account held with another provider, Lsing the Current Account Switch Service.

16
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Encouraging more
people to bank with us

Banking is core to our purpose.
At the 2023 Moneyfacts
Consumer Awards, we were
recognised as Current Account
Switching Provider of the

Year. Overall, we opened
679,000 (2022: 604,000} new
current accounts, increasing
our current account market
share 10 10.4% (2022: 10.3%)®.
This was supported by our
market-leading current account
switcher incentive during
October and November 2022,
that offered £200 cashback to
those who switched to us’.

Delivering value back
to our customers

As a mutual, we create value fer
our customers through better
pricing and incentives. Cver the
year, we launched a number of
standout savings products that
rewarded loyalty and supported
our success, including Member
Online Bond and Flex Instant
Saver. We also continued to

provide customers signed up o
our free SavingsWatch service
with norifications when interest
rates ckanged or when new
products were launched.

Our deposits comprise both
savings and current accounts.
Cn average, we offered interest
rates or deposits that were B5%
higher tnan the market averagz,
largely driven by our savings
rates. Our competitive deposit
rates cctributed over 70%

of our total member financial
benefit >f £1,055 million

(2022: £325 million). For more
informaion, see page 71.

To support customers a little
further “hrough the cost of
living challenges, weran a
current account cashbhack offer
from 9 February to 30 April
2023. Customers earned 5%
cashback on thair debit card
purchases at a wide range of
supermarkets and convenience
stores, up to £10 each month,
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Chief Executive Review {continued}

Simply brilliant service

Personalised service you can
trust, at every touchpoint.

No. 1-or customer satisfaction among our peer
group. for the 11th year running?®

Extended our Branch Promise to 2024

Extended our operating hours for online chat to
provide 24/7 availability, 365 cays a year

Handled over 4,000 calls to our cost of living
helplire

Providec a six-month overdraft interest holiday
for 38,000 potentially struggling custamers

R S i b

Active mobile banking app users grew 9%
to 4 & million
2022 1.2 million

8. @ Ips=¢ 2022, Tinancial Research Survey (FRS), ‘or the 12 months ending 31 March 2013 to the 12 months ending 31 March 2022 For more information, see footnote 1 or page 5.

We are aiming for simply
brilliant customer service,
with a great mobile banking
experience and modern
branches with colleagues
at their heart, to offer
personalised and trusted
support.

In 2023, we ranked 1st for
customer satisfaction among
our peer group for the 11th
year running?. We also measure
our position for satisfaction
across all sectors and, in
January 2023, we finished in
joint 28th positicn out of 267
organisations, with a score
that was 4.9pts ahead of the
all-sector average®. For more
information, see pages 24
and 25,

Supporting our
customers through
cost of living pressures

As a mutual, supporting our
customers through cost of
living pressures was a priority.

9. Institute of Custormar Service UK Customer Saticfaction Index (UKCSI) as at January 2623.

We introduced a number of
initiatives to help them. We
encouraged our customers to
come to us if they had concerns
about their current or future
financial position. We launched
a new cost of living helpline

to make it easier for them

to speak with us. So far, we
have handled over 4,000 calls
through our helpline. ‘We have
provided information and help
to access self-service opticns
on our cost of living webpage,
and personalised support
through our specialist support
team. We also make referra s
to support charities, including
Citizens Advice, StepChance

" . and PayPlan, in situations

where customers have deb-s
across several lenders. We -ave
danated to these charities to
support them in their work.

For the 38,000 customers
we have identified as being
potentially more vulnerable

. to cost of living pressures,

based on their overdraft and
credit usage, we applied an

automatic six-month overdratt
interest holiday. This protecied
and supported them to reduz2
borrowing without affecting
their credit score. We also
reduced the interest rate for
those on persistent debt plass.
Our Mortgage Manager toal
allows borrowers to review thz2ir
terms and consider payment
options, with access to suopcrt
if they struggle to meet
repayments.

Qur cost of living webpage also
offers informaticn on managirg
money and budgeting, anc
provides links to help with
existing debt. We held nine
Money Matters webcasts

that provided practical hela
with managing money and.
since April 2022, we have

heid Money Lessons in over
400 schools, supporting over
40,000 students and increasrg
financial inclusion and
knowledge.
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Delivering excellent
customer service

We are improving our mobile
banking experience and
continue to invest in our core
digital services. The number
of customers who actively
used our mobile banking app
grew to 4.6 million (2022:

4.2 million), representing

60% of all our active current
account customers. Payments
and transfers through the
banking app increased by 15%.
This year, we extended the
operating hours of our in-app
and online chat, which is now
available 24 hours a day, every
day of the year. We currently
support arcund 200,000
conversations a month through
this channel.

Developing our branch
network for the future

Our customers rely on our
branches and sometimes prefer
to speak to us face tc face.

We extended our Branch
Promise, and will keep a

branch in every town or city

we are in today, unti! at least
2024 - another example of

the difference that being a
mutual makes. This year we
also invested £3.9 million in our
Bristol, Sheffield and Wembley

18

branches to modernise

them and improve customer
experience. We now have the
second largest single-brand
branch network across the

UK financial services sector
and, at the 2023 Moneyfacts
Consumer Awards, we won tha
Branch Network of the Year
award.

We continue to use colieagues
in branches to serve more

of our customers in different
ways, including face to

face, by phone and through
online messaging. Following
a successful trial, as at

4 April 2023, 50 of our 606
branches are now closed

for one or two days each
week to enable colleagues to
support customers in other
ways. In some exceptional
circumstances that were
beyond our control, and in
some towns and cities where
we had more than one location,
we have closed branches,
However, this is kept to a
minimum and last year only
23 branches were closed.

Protecting our customers in
challenging circumstances

We continue to work to protect our
custorners from fraud. Last year,

our fraud defence systems and
specialist fraud team helped prevent
£115 miliion {(2022: £97 million) of
attempted fraud on card and online
transactions. In addition to this, since
its launch in 2021, our Scam Checker
Service has helped prevent a further
£6.1 million of potential scams.

Meeting the needs of all our
customers, including those in
vulnerable circumstances, is
important to us. Our specialist
teams support our most vuinerable
customers, and we partner with
gambiling, debt, and mental health
charities where customers need
assistance beyond their banking
needs.

Chief Executive Review (continued)
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Having a meaningful impact on
customers, communities and
socicty, by being bigger and
doing better.

Beacon for
multual good

or our own customer base. The
power of mutuality means w2
can do more together thay we
could each do aione.

2022: E73mi

Plecged zn additional
£1 million tc our debt
partners and charities

Cur Mutual Good

Cormmitted to a net- Commitments

z=2ro carbon future,
s2tl ng science-
based targets

< @ s

Ou- current Mutuai Good
Comnmitments seek to impact
positively our customers,
communities and wider saciety.
0u- Mutual Geod Commitments
are to:

« Help to achieve safe and
secure homes for all

+« Protect our customers’
financial wellbeing

19. T1e 1% ic calcdlated based or average pre-tax profits over the previous three yea-s.

«  Champion -hriving
communities

»  Reflect the disersity of
our society

For more informaticr >n how
we have perfornec agzinst our
commitments, see Jaje 46.

Everyone deservas a
place fit to zall home

As voted for by oLr mambers

in 2007, we commit et least 1%
of our pre-tex profis ezch year
to charitable activitie<™, largely
focused on housirc. This

mor ey is split betw221 our own
social investment programmes,
including fundirg 2.ur ong-term

social investment agenda. In
2022/23, this amounted to
£9.6 million (2022: £7.1 million).
I1 addition, we donated a
further £1 million to our debt
partners and charities to help
them support more people
through the cost of living
pressures.

This year, we continued to

facus our charitable giving
eround:

+ Helping pecple into a home

+  Preventing people from
losing thair home

+  Supporting people to thrive
in their home environment

Committed £9.6 We have a bold social ambition «  Support prag-ess towards partnership with Shelter, the Within our social investment
mrillion to charitable and strive to have a positive a greener socCiety Nationwide Foundation and the pregrammes, we provide grants
activities© impact in communities beycne internai costs of managing our to Iz zal housing charities and

projacts across the UK. The
grants are distribut2d through
our Zommunity Boerds under
the di-ection of customer and
col eague volunteers.

As z3-t of our £9.6 million
coruritment, we avarded

£4.Z million (2022: £4.0 million)
to sLpport 96 (2022: 94)

cher table housing projects
throagh our Community Boards.
We hzve therefore met our
five-y3zr target 1o donate

£2Z mrillion in commr unity
grans, that we set when

the Community Beards were
found=c. Over 540 arojects
have benefited and 118,000
pecple in housing nzed have
been susported. In addition, our
Col eague Grants programme
saw over £580,000 awarded to
71 r=y'stered charities.

12
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We partner with the national
housing charity, Shelter. This
year, our colleagues and
customers raised £144,000

to support their vital services,
on top of the £1.1 million we
provided directly. Qur donation
helps to fund several advisers
for their helplines and, last year,
directly enabled the charity to
answer over 6,400 calls. Over
the 22 years of our partnership
our funding has directly
enabled the charity to support
143,000 people in housing
need.

Each year, at least a quarter

of our charitable funding is
awarded to the Nationwide
Foundation, an independent
charity. For more information cr
its work, see page 40.

We also made it simple for our
colleagues and customers

to donate to the British Red
Cross appeals for Ukraine,
Pakistan, and the Turkey-
Syria earthquake. In total, they
donated over £867,000.

Reducing our
environmental impact

We are playing our part to
address the impact of climate
change and support the UK in
its progress towards a net-zero
carbon emissions future by
2050. We joined the Net-Zero
Banking Alliance and Glasgow
Financial Alliance for Net Zero
in 2021 and, in 2022, set highly
challenging intermediate (b
2030) science-based targets™
to work towards.

We offer a range of green
propesitions and initiatives

to support our customers te
reduce their carbon footprint
and make homes more energy
efficient. However, we have
very limited control over
practical measures to reduce
emissions frem properties
owned by our borrowers,

and we recognise that we

will not be able to achieve

the reduction in emissions to
deliver our net-zero target
without broader government
policy changes, significant
cross-industry collaboration,
further government support for
UK housing, and homeowners
retrofitting their properties.
Our Green Homes action group

11, Available on our Investor Relations pa:e, nationwide.co.ukfinvestor-relations

12. We achieved carbon neutrality by a cc mbination of eliminating our emissions and funding equivalent carhon savings through renewable or offsetting projects.

20

campaigns for a National
Retrofit Strategy to support
greening homes.

We are proud of the progress
we have made to reduce

the emissions of our own
operations. Since 2018, ali our
electricity has been supplied
from renewable sources, and
we have remained carbon
neutral {no net release of
carbon dioxide into the
atmosphere™) for all energy
use and our internal operations
since 2020. Our intermediate
(by 2030) science-based
targets aiso cover our supply
chain and we have built climate
change considerations into our
third-party processes. For mo-e
information on our approach
and progress, see pages 53 t¢
64 and our full climate-related
financial disclosures™.

Chief Executive Review (centinued)
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Continuous
improvement

Being focused, fit and fast,
and delivering at pace.

Making our business operations
more productive, simplifying
our processes and continuously
managing risk and imprcving
controls helps us to deliver
services safely and efficiently
for our customers,

Strong financial performance
delivered underlying profit of
£2 233 million {2022: £1,604
million) and statutory prafit of
£2.229 million (2022: £1597
million).

As a result, our leverage

rat 0 and Common Equity
Ter 1 (CET1) ratio, which
demonstrate our financial
strength by measuring our
ability to withstand economic
shiocks, increaset 1o 6.0%
{2€22: 5.4%) and 26.5% (2022:
24.1%) respectively. Qur

lev 2rage ratio is one of our key
performance indicators and
mote information is included
on sage 25. Our financial
strength means we can invest
in —eeting customers’ needs
and expectations now, and into
the future.

Modernising our
technrology

We are investing in digital
capabil ty and innovation,
inchadir g imnproving our 1T
platforris and simplifyihg
processes, _

We hava improved our
processes for customers
opening new savings and
current accounts, and we are
moderrising our payments
systems by moving themto a
sec Jre, cloud-based platform.
This will result in a more

resi ien: service, capable of

=)

il

Invested £100 million to modernise aur
payments systems to provide customers
with a more stable and resilient service

Reduced our card reader requirements
to improve customer exgerience whilst

keeping them safe

. _ Simplified our processes to improve and
increase support for customers

Making our workspaces “it for the future
and investing in our branches and
customer support

mak 'ng a higher vclume of
payrents safely, quickly and
s2zLrely.

This year we started to remove
the requirement fo- customers
1o uste the card reacer 1o
aJticrise some on ine and
mob le banking transactions,
p-ov ding more convenience
a1z “aster transaczlions. To
hzlp protect custorr ers, we are
dzveloping a new verification
p-oz2ss for authent cating

h ¢h-risk transac-io1s

b crretrically via our mobile
baaking app, usirg a 'selfie’
pazta.

We have also strengthened

our fraud de:ection syster for
payments a~d improved scam
warnings, rak’ng them simpler
and highligh=irg social media
scams.

We are explzring the latest
developmens in artificial
intelligence, waich could
improve aur n-app and ordine
chat capabiities, and enable
cur colleagues to access
infermation mcre efficient v.
We are mind“u that any future
implementat on of this wo .Id
need to be dore ethically and
responsibly, in a way that
recognises vulerability, ad
focuses on good customer
outcomes.

21
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Developing our
workspaces to make
them fit for the future

We are makirg sure that

the size ani location of cur
workplaces reflect the changin:
wavs that cu- co leagues work,
redce our carben footprint,
anc release cost savings that
enable us to invest furthe-in
our branchas and customar
support

We are movirg oJr London
offize iccation back to our
Thrzadneedle St-eet offica

by Autumn 2023 As well

as bringing L s closer to key
stakenolders. the move fallows
our reduced workspace
reg.Jire~1ert in London and will
signif.cantly redLce our related
costs in futu-e years.

22

Improving our
operating and
governance models

We are simplifying
organisational structures and
strengthening controls. This is
reducing complexity, improving
decision making and helping us
to deliver more value at pace.
Some of our non-customer
facing structures have been
streamlined, which will result in
around 370 colleagues leaving
the Society. We appreciate the
contribution they have made to
the Society and wish them well
for the future.

Where approp-iate, we

have redeployed, retrained

and upskilled colleagues,
particularly wizhin our
branches, so t1ey can support
customers at every touchpoint.
We are also increasing the
number of colleagues directly
supporting customers,
particularly to combat fraud.

We are strengihening
performance management, to
improve the cere capabilities
and skills needed to deliver our
business strategy and modern
mutual purpose.

Our committee structures have
alse been updated to provide

a clearer focus on risks and
controls, operatioral resilience,
service availability, managing
conduct risks and closer
oversight of our most important
strategic projects.

We continue to transform and
strengthen our risk and control
processes, with simpler and
clearer Board and management
risk metrics, and improvements
to material controls and
processes, particularly
customer facing ones. These
changes mean we can respond
to customers' needs more
quickly and keep our customers
safer from economic crime.

We are also improving the
quality and use of data across
the Society. This includes
developing data to identify
what matters most to our
customers, and how their
experiences can be improved.
For colleagues, better data
will help them to work more
effectively and inform decision
making. In addition, we plan
to improve the data that
helps the Society runin a
controlled and safe manner,
covering technology, change
programmes, suppliers,
property, and our controls.




Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Strategic report

How we
performed

In 2022/23

against our
strategic key
performance

indicators




ve

'5 aBed ua | 3)ouj00) 285 ‘Lo RWIDLUI FIOW 104 'EZ0T USMEW 1E mc_u_..a SYIOW Z| 03 £10Z UdJe L€ Buipud syuow Z1 auy Joj '(SH4) AaAing y2ueasay |eIoueUl4 '£z0Z 505d| & 'Z
SN UM ‘lonpoud Jaylo aus ised| je snid 'sjunoade sbuiaes ul 0o’ F 15E3] 18 J¢ '00Q'S F 15e3| Je 4o abel1iow & 10 '1un0ooe 1uaNd [euostad wew 12yl Py IaGLUaW PaRILWod ¥ 7|,

€202 A4 Zecoe LZoe 0Z0T

&l

g€

9t

7'e
1obie]  sienioy  sienloy  S|ENIOY  s|emoy

s1dy ‘pea’
Uonaejsi-es sjonpoid alon

.S1d%tr Jo pes| 196.e} o

Mmotag sem Joylsdwod dnoub Jaad 1saleau ino
12A0 51d%8°E 4O pes| Jno 1eaA snoinaid ay) se
Buouis se sem £g/Zz0z Ul 2100s Ino yBnoyyly
‘Bujuuny sieak || Joy dnoib 19ed Ino Buowe
UC|10E.JSI11ES ISWO0]ISNT S0} {"0U UD3Q SARY I

i

€202 €207 ZZ0Z  120T 0207

§50'L
1obiel sienloy  slenidy  S[endy  sjemay

L _ uolpw 3z
‘ 12U |BIURULY 3G WBN
"slaquiaw sbuiaes 1no
0} anjeA tdylny uo ssed o} sajjuniloddo aiow sn
aaeb 1eY) a1el yuey Ul s8sebioul aul Ag pajloddns
‘'sajes sBujnaes aaladwon no Ag Ajiewld
UDALIP SeMm siy | "A13100S 3yl 10} pi03al B pue
‘uolw 0o 3 1se9| 1e jo 18biey ano saoqe 1 euaq
[BIOUEUL J2QUIAW 4O UO||IW §G0'LTF Paplaold ap

4

£20¢ £e0e 2z0¢ L2oz 020¢

- GSge AR
Ak
SLE

1eBle| sjen)oy  s|enloy  S|enioy  s|enioy

89°¢

uoljiw
[Slagquiswl papIwiwo)

‘aAEs 0} AlljIge Siaquisul

U0 salnssasd BUIAl| JO 1502 ay] JO S108}}8 3y}

Ag paoedu seam ‘1gah ay) JBA0 'aINSEIW SIY)

Ul YImoas "£zZ/Zg0z 10) 186.4e] Uol|iw G/'¢ Ino
MO[9q 'slagqwall PaIIIWIWOD UOIHIW 89'C IARY 3

(E2/z20Z 19n0 s1abie) Ino 1suiebe wiogiad em pIp Moy

“(suneooe Jalno pue sbuaes ‘sabebliow)
paulquoo s1onpold 2102 sauy} ine 10 dnolb
133d INo U] UOIIDBLSIIES 18.U0ISND SaINSea

(SH4d) Aomung yoiessay je1ouBUlLY 3y

¥

. sponpoud Bupjueq

pue mmc..;mm mmmmtoE ino ssoloe ‘abelane
19ytew ayy ueyl saaiuadul pue bBuioid 1a1aq
WOy SIagUIaW 10} apiaoid am anjea _m_ocmc;
|EUCIIIPRE 9y1 sanseaw 113U9Q |BJOUBUL JagWay

SN UM ploy

A3y1 18y} S10npoid 2102 Jo Jaquinu ay) ubnouyl
‘slaquiawl ino uum diysuone|as ano 4o yidap
QU] $109],21 2INSeaW SJaquiall pajlwwod g

;9INSEall am Op 1BUM

uonoeysies syonpoid 2109

}jouaq [e1ouBUl) JISGUWBN

Slaquiall pajliuwo)

87 0} 9z sobed uo N0 195 2. $Z/EZ07Z 10} SBINSEIW MU INQ "SIBALP J1621e41S UN0 Jo AJSAIIEP oY) Loddns AlgAa10ay49

210W 0] siojeoipu] asueuw. ofiad Aey 1no pajepdn am ‘ysalyal ABalens no Guimo|jod 'sabed BUIMO||0f Byl UQ 1IN0 13S 848 £2/ZZ0Z 10} Sainseaw aduewlonad Asy aat) Jno

si0j1edipul soueuloliad Aay o1bsiens
Inosuiebe £2/zz0z Ul pawiopied am moH

m ueneuwl ol Er_uo.

SIURWILEIS [RIDUEUI nodal ysiy

aJuLUIRACY yodali oi1Bajelis

£Z0z SIUNe22y ¥ 1oday [enuuy



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements -Other information  }

UK Customer Satisfaction Index Leverage ratio

What do we measure?

Our leverage ratio demonstrates our financial
strength, and our ability to withstand
economic shocks. L

The UK Customer Satisfaction Index (UKCSI)
measures customer satisfaction across all
sectors, on a consistent set of measures.

How did we perform against our targets over 2022237

In January 2023, we ranked joint 28th across

all sectors for customer satisfaction, out of 267
organisations®, This was below cr target of
being among the top five. However, our score of
82.6 was 4.9pts ahead of the all-sector average.

Our leverage ratio of 6.0% exceeded both
regulatory requirements and our own internal
target of at least 4.5% .

UKCSI? Leverage ratio
Rank 9,

Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Target Actuals Actuals Actuals Actuals Target

4th
5th 6.0
= 5.4
13th= 47
22nd=
2Eth=
2020 2021 2022 2023 2023 2020 2021 2022 2023 2023

3. Institute of Customer Service UK Custcmer Satisfaction Index (UKCSI) as at January in each year. Our score of 82.6 is based on an index out of 100.

!

How we performed in 2022/23 against our
strategic key performance indicators (continued)

25
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In 2022/23, Nationwide approved a new strategy and business purpose. Our new approach is centred around our purpose:
Banking - but fairer, more rewarding, and for the good of society, and our four strategic drivers.

More rewarding Beacon for
relationships

We will create deeper, lifelong re ationships with our customers, that
provide the best value in banking. We will increase value and reward loyalty
for those customers who do mor= with us, including through targeted and
competitive mortgage, savings a1d current account products. And we will
continue to focus on helping first time buyers into homes.

In 2022/23, we helped one in seven (2021/22: one in seven) first time
buyers, provided cashback on supermarket shopping', and held one in ten
(2021/22: one in ten)? of the UK's current accounts.

Simply
brilliant service

The value we provide will be beyond rates, with distinctive, perscnalised
service that stands out for ease, accessibility, security and trust, at every
touchpeint. We will differentiate our mobile banking experience and,
combine this with modern branches that offer personal support when
customers need it most.

In 2022/23, we were number one for customer satisfaction among our
peer group?, we extended our Branch Promise to 2024 and extended our
operating hours for online chat tc provide 24/7 availability, 365 days a year.

1. For more information, see pages 15 to 18.
2, CACI's Current Account and Savings Detabase, Stock {February 2023 and February 2022).

multual good

As we go about our business, we will be recognised as a beacon

for mutual good. We want to be famous for the meaningful impact we have
across customers, communities and society as a whole. We will use our
voice to drive positive change and fairer banking practices, and support
charitable activities that align with our purpose and ambitions.

In 2022/23, we committed £9.6 million (2021/22: £7.1 million) to charitable

activities, plus an additional £1 million to our debt partners and charities,
and committed to a net-zero carbon future, setting science-based targets.

Continuous
improvement

We will be focused, fit and fast and simplify our processes and ways of
working so that we deliver at pace, for the benefit of our customers, while
retaining resilient controls that protect our customers and their money.

in 2022/23, we modernised our payments systems, reduced our card reader
requirements, and simplified our processes to improve and increase support
for customers,

in 2023/24 we will measure our performance on those things we consider

to be core to these strategic drivers, as set out on page 28.

3. @ Ipsos 2023, Financial Research Survey (FRS), for the 12 months ending 31 March 2013 tc the 12 months ending 31 March 2023, For more information, see footnote 1 on page 5.
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Our Biueprint for a modern mutual {continued)

Our strategic key performance :::%S-.m for 2023/24

We have updated our key performance indicators for 2023/24 to those that most effectivaly track
the progress of our refreshed strategy. They align to our four strategic drivers as follows:

More rewarding relationships - creating deeper, lifelong relationships with our customers that
provide the best value in banking

» Measure: Engaged customers — where a customer has a main personal current account with
us, plus either a savings balance of at least £100 or a mortgage of at least £100.

Simply brilliant service - serv ce that stands out for ease, accessibility, security and trust at
every touch point

« Measure: Customer experienze score — based on the feedback customers provide when
they complete our survey after they interact with us, across our branches, telephone and
digital channels.

Beacon for mutual good — we want to be famous for the meaningful impact we have across
customers, comnunities and society as a whole

+ Measure: Heard good things about Nationwide - the propertion of consumers who have
heard good things about Naticnwide, ranked against peer brands as part of our brand
tracking survey.

Continuous improvement - ensuring our financial strength through efficient and effective
processes and risk management

« Measure: Leverage ratio - wh ch demonstrates our financial strength, as we progress the
delivery of our refreshed stratzgy.

In addition, our current Mutual Good Commitments support our Beacon for mutual good strategic
driver. More information on them can be found on page 46.

A number of these key performace indicateors are also linked to the way we pay our colleagues,
including at executive management level. For more information, please see the Report of the
directors on remuneration, within the Governance report.

The targets for these measures will be finalised during the first half of the year and will be
reported against in the Annual Report and Accounts 2024.

28
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Section 172(1) statement

This section describes how the directors considered
matters set out in section 172(1) of the Companies Act
2006 (the ‘Act’). This also forms the directors’ statement
required under section 414CZA of the Act. Although
Nationwide, as a building society, is not required to
follow the Act, we seek to apply its requirements where
appropriate.

Our stakeholders

Listening to and engaging regularly with our stakeholders
is fundamental to the way we do business, and it ensures
we operate in a balanced and responsible way, both in
the short and longer term. Their views are important to
us and they help to guide our decision making.

In this section, we summarise how we have engaged
with, and responded to, feedback from each of cur

key stakeholder groups during the year, both at a
broader Society level and at Board evel. In addition, key
decisions taken by the Board in the year and its related
consideration of relevant stakeholders are set out on
pages 36 to 39,

Retail members and customers

As a mutual, we are here to suppori our customers,
inctuding our members (who are our customers with

a current account, mortgage or savings with us), it is
therefore important we understanc their needs, now and
in the future. More information on how we have delivered
value and excellent service for them can be found on
pages 12 to 22,

Our engagement

At our Annual General Meeting {(AGM), our members can
have their say and vote on impoertant issues. In July 2022,
our AGM was held as a hybrid meeiing so that members
could choose tc join in person, at our Head Office in
Swindcn, or online. For the first time, members were

able to vote online during the meeting, and could ask live
questions directly to the Board via an online platform.
The 2022 AGM was attended by 287 members online and
32 attended in person.

30

We held three TalkBack events durirlg the year, where
customers could hear from, and engage with, Board
directors and senjor management. Two were held virtually
and we also invited custoimers in Southampton to our
first face-to-face TalkBack since the Covid-19 pandemic
began.

We also held 30 online education events. These events
included educationon how to recognise scams, and

how to use our internet bank and bankiihg app safely. We
provided investment education sessions and ran events
to support first time buyers through the home buying
process. Together, we engaged with over 5,400 attendees
through our TalkBack and education events,

Our branches also ran 78 local Tea and Tech sessions,
held face to face and streamed online, to help customers
manage their money online, safely and securely.

In addition, we engaged with members through our
Member Connect online forum, which provides a platform
for members to share their views with us on a range of
subjects.

The themes of the topics raised by members and
customers at our AGM and TalkBacks, and via
Member Connect, included:

Cost of living pressures ;

«  Protection from fraud and ¢cams

«  Benefits of membership (including procuct rates
and offers) " ' :

» Maintaining access to branches and access to cash
«  Inclusion and diversity
«  Executive remuneration

»  Acting responsibly, including our approach to climate
change and net-zero commitments

Engaging with our stakeholders

We responded to this by:

»  Supporting our customers impacted by the
cost of living pressures (see page 17)

+  Protecting our customers from fraud
{see page 18)

+  Supporting our vulnerable customers
(see page 18)

»  Delivering value back to our customers
(see page 18)

«  Extending our Branch Promise (see page 18}

+« Supporting easy access to cash with our 1,200
free ATMs

Board engagement

During the year, we held a number of virtual and in-
person events, giving our customers the opportunity to
meet Board directors and senior management.

Our members were able to engage with our Board
directors at our AGM and Talkbacks. All three of our
TalkBack events had a non-executive director present on
the panel. Board members also visited branches to hear
members' views,

The 2023 AGM will be hosted entirely online for the first
time. Members will be invited to participate online, where
they can submit live questions, and vote online during
the meeting.

The Board reviewed customer service and satisfaction
data at all its meetings and was engaged on, and
approved, the extension of the Branch Promise.

The Board and the Board Risk Committee reviewed and
challenged the approach and activity being undertaken
by the Society to ensure it was fully prepared for the
implementation of the FCAs Consumer Duty. More
information on this can be found on page 39.
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Buy to let customers

We support jandiords and those wha rely on the private
rented sector for their long-term housing needs. We

do this through our buy to let mortgage business, The
Mortgage Works, and we aim to be the most trusted
partner fof landlords.

Our engagement

We provided education and features through our landlord
website 1@ support {andlords’ understanding of their
responsibilities and the provision of better homes for
renters. This benefits all types of landlords, including
thase running their portfolios as a limited company. We
actively monitor changes in the buy 10 let seclor through
research organisations and develop content accordingly.
This includes working with our research provider to

gain guarterly feedback from jandiords and respond
mvvav:mﬂmz where possible.

Our engagement with landlords included the
following key topics:

,  Cost of living pressures and the rise I Bank rate

. Interpreting the implications of the Government's
Levelling Up the United Kingdom white paper

. Landlords’ relationships with their tenants

We responded to this by:

. Supporting landiords facing higner interest rates
by pricing products for existing landlard custamers
with the same rates as new Jandlord customers and
extending the periog for {andlords to switch product
ahead of their mortgage product maturing from &
weeks 1013 weeks, enabling them to secure a new
rate earlier.

. Sending a monthiy email to out jandiord subscribers
with legislation changes and houging market news
affecting landiords and their tenants. We also
pubtished blogs on ouf jandiord website covering
topics relevant to elements of landlard tife. These
included changes in smoke and carbon monoxide
regulations during 2022, the Government’s white
paperona fairer private rented sector, and tips for
improving relationships between jandlords
and tenants.

Einancial mdmﬁ:,_m%m

" Other information

Board engagement RERRY

White the Board has not gngaged directly with buy 10

let customers, it received regular reports on buy to let
lending and engagement and discussed the pressures
facing landlords and tenants as part of these updates.
Qur Landlord Strategy was reviewed and noted by the
Board during the year.

]

L]
il . ' ¥

Colleagues

Our colleagues are at the heart of serving our customers
ang delivering our strategy. We are committed to building
a supportive and inciusive environment for our colleagues.
We want to help them to ke at their best and to thrive by
building a culture whete they feel supported and valued,
and can grow {heir careers. On page 42, you can read
more about how we support our colleagues. )

Our engagement

We invite all collaagues to share their views on working
at Nationwide, the challenges they face and what works
well, through monthly surveys. On average, 43% of
colleagues respond each rmonth, providing important
insight for rmanagers to use.dn their decision making.

We also gathered colleague insights afd ﬂm,mm.annx
through other surveys, including the MIND Wellbeing
tndex, and through engagement with Employee Network
Groups and the Nationwide Group Staff Union (NGSU). I
addition, we mzmémﬂma.ncmmzozm and 'sought feedback
during webcasts that discussed important and fimely
topics, such as out refreshed strategy, sanior leadership
introductions and organisational m:.d:o.ES changes.
When we made organisational changes impacting
colleaglies, we engaged with 1hose mpacted and the
NGSU. _ .

(R i Lo ! i !
Key topics raised by colleagues included:
..003 o:wﬁ:mmcvvo: mo_.ocwaoamqm mq_a colleagues)

v

. Changes to our workpiaces b

i

. Leadership, strategy and o_‘mm:._mmﬁ._o:m_ changes

. Pay, honuses and pensions

Engaging with our stakeholders (continued)

e

. Resourcing, training and developing muiti-channel
skills {in branches}

«  Improving our sacial mobility
« Products and propositions
. Inclusion, diversity and wellbeing

« Speaking up

We respondet 10 this by:

. Supporting our colleagues impacted by the cest of
living pressures

. Launching our social mohility network

. Launching our new Resolution Framework, 10
support speaking up and helping to resolve
grievances by encouraging collaboration and
appreciating diverse views. This reduced resolution
timeframes by 40% {on a sample taken 3 months
post ma_u_mam:,azoa.

More information on our support for our colleagues is set
out on the next page.

Board engagement

The Board engaged with colleagues throughout the year
as the Society transitioned through leadership changes.

The Chairman led two noh-executive director Towanall
events, face to face and virtually, where colieagues were
able to guestion and engage with our Board.

To furtner promote engagement between the Board
and colleagues, the Board appoints one director to
have specific responsibility for the Emplayee Vaice in
{he Boardroom. The Board also appoints one director
with responsibility for overseeing the integrity and
eftectiveness of our employee whistleblowing policies
and procedures.

The Board received updates on the results of employee
engagement surveys and welcomed the General
gecretary of the NGSU to a Board meeting duting the
year to discuss tne afignment of interests petween the
NGSU and the Society.
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A focus on our Colleagues

We are o mitted to building a supportive and inclusiva
environ M2rt for our colleagues. In doing so, we will
create a hich-performance, purpose-driven culture
where they can thrive and devzlop rewarding careers.

Supporting our colleagues’ financial wellbeing

We wan: o support our colleagues, including their
financia wellbeing, through th2 cost of living pressures.
Our cos” of living initiatives that we offer to customers
are also available to any of our colleagues who are
customars. In addition, in August 2022, we made a
one-off £1,200 cost of living payment to support over
11,000 cf our colleagues earning less than £35,000.

We also introduced a new pay package, effective from .
1 April 2223, increasing pay th-ee months earlier than
normal. Tis delivered significant increases in pay for
colleagues, particularly for those on lower salaries, with
the majority of colleagues receiving a 6.5% increase on
existing kase pay.

Our Employee Zare helpline is available to all Nationwide
employees and dependants’ and provides a free
counselling, health and welise ng, legal information, and
debt suoport service.

Refreshinc our hybrid working commitments

In Novenoer, we refreshed our commitment to hybrid
working While some elements remain unchanged,

for exariple the requirement to work within the UK
and our ommitment to flexibility, we also set clearer
expecte:ions on coeming together in person to maintain
relationztips, support our culture and to collaborate.

We have develapad initiatives and guidelines to support
collzagues anc leaders working in a hybrid environmen:,
including netwarking events tc encourage new joiners
and colleagues to meet across our office locations, as
well as role-spzcific guidance.

Building our inclusive cuiture

We are working to build an inclusive culture and we want
our Society to reflect the diversity of the communities
we serve. We need a diverse range of backgrounds,
skills and experiences to help us continue to serve our
customers in the best way and offer the services and
products that aré most relevant to them. '

Our inclusion measures help us monitor how inclusive
our culture is. In April 2023, 84% (2022: 81%) of our
colleagues, includihg 79% {2022: 73%) of our ethnically
diverse colleagues, felt everyone had an equal
opportunity to thrive, regardless of background. Our
diversity measures, which underpin our Mutual Good
Commitment to reflect the diversity of wider society, are
reported each month to the Board and the leadership
team.

In 2022, we partnered with Progress Together, a
membership body centred on progression, retention and
socio-economic diversity in financial services. With their
support and input, we began to gather voluntary socio-
economic data from our colleagues in January 2023. This
will enable us to benchmark our socioeconamic diversity
against our peers and inform our future inclusion,
diversity, and wellbeing pyiorities.
Our new social mobility employee network became our
eleventh employee network. The others are: gender;
ethnicity; sexuai orientation; disability; faith and belief:
working carers; working families; veterans and reservists;
mental wellbeing; and sustainability. Our networks
celebrate diversity, such as with an'Asian Experience
Month,Black History Month and Pride Month, and help
colleagues build support networks and drive supportive
changes.For example, they introduced trained workplace
menopause coaches ant built special educational needs
(SENY} inclusion into our volunteering work on Money
Lessons in schools. , §

Engaging with our stakeholders (continued)

In 2022, our Race Together Network was awarded the
Network Group of the year at the Ethnicity Awards. Minds
Matter, our mental wellbeing network, was shortiistad for
Best New Mental Health Initiative in the InsideOut Awards
2023 and our Proud network was shortlisted for B-itish
LGBT Network Group of the year in the British LGBT
Awards.

In the 2023 Financial Times’ Diversity Leaders list,
which surveys more than 100,0C0 employees on their
perceptions of organisations’ inclusivity and efforts to
premote diversity, we were the highest-ranked UK high
street financial services provider for the second year
running®. We were also awarded Gold Employer standard
by Stonewall for our work on LGBTQ+ inclusion.

Understanding our gender and ethnicity pay gaps

At 5 April 2022, our gender pay gap was 30.0% (2021
30.0%). This means we have a higher proportion of
women in lower paid roles than in senior roles. Although
we increased the proportion of women in senior rcles,
the proportion of women in entry-level and less senior
roles also increased, and so our gender pay gap was
unchanged.

We are one of the few organisations to voluntariiy publish
our ethnicity pay gap. At 5 April 2022, our ethnicity pay
gap was 7.4% (2021 11.3%), with more ethnically civerse
employees in lower paid roles than in senior roles. The
reduction ih pay gap was supported by an increase in the
v«wuoqzo: of ethnically diverse colleagues in mid-level
roles.

Pay gaps are different to equal pay. Equal pay loaks at
how colleagues are paid for doing the same or similar
work. We regularly menitor pay to ensure our pay policies
are not biased. For more information, see our Gender and
Ethnicity Pay Gaps report on our website?.

1. Includes imme Jiate family or a pa-tner and dependents who are aged 16 years or oider and living in the same household, including students living at university.
2. The Finencial Times-Statista rank n3 of Europe’s Diversity Leaders 2023, based on independent surveys of more than 100,000 employees across Europe on their perceptions of their organisations’ diversity and irc’'usion

practices.

3. Pay gaps st Netionwide, natior wide.co.uk/about-usfinclusion-avd-diversity/pay-gaps ,
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Mortgage intermediaries

We have around 28,000 mortgage intermediaries who
place business with us, accounting for over 80% of all the
mortgages we provide.

Our engagement

We regularly canvass our mortgage brokers on their
views on our products and service. This includes
through the use of third-party firms to obtain feedback
on applications submitted and perceptions of us as a
mortgage provider.

We also gathered feedback through six-monthly and ad
hoc workshops where brokers provided feedback on
their experiences directly to the colleagues responsible
for formulating products and policy.

Our engagement with mortgage intermediaries
included discussion on the following topics:

= Improving service
» Digital integration
»  Consumer Duty principles

»  Supporting first time buyers

We responded to this by:

«  Enhancing our digital application process to speed
up the mortgage application submission process for
intermediaries.

«  Continuing to engage with various trade bodies and
having representatives in important forums such
as the Intermediary Mortgage Lenders Association
(IMLA). This ensures Nationwide can influence how
the mortgage industry develops.

«  Maintaining a constant presence in the mortgage
market during the uncertain economic times of 2022,
when other lenders withdrew, providing consistency
for both our intermediaries and our borrowers.

Board engagement

The Board has been updated on intermediary
engagement during the year, receiving updates on broker
recommendation scores. ;

Investors and rating agencies

Our wholesale funding investors support us in meeting
our funding and capital requirements. Our investors are
interested in our financial performance and sustainability
practices and use our credit and Environmental,

Sccial and Governance (ESG) ratings to support their
understanding.

Our engagement

We maintain an active dialogue with investors

who support us in meeting our funding and capital
requirements. This inciudes during the due diligence
process ahead of wholesale funding issuances and in
responding to general queries. Our Investor Relations
programme provides existing and potential investors with
the opportunity to meet senior managers and executive
directors of the Society. Ih the year, we updated our
investors on our latest financial performance and
provided information on areas of interest to investors,
such as our ESG activities.

To support investors’ understanding of our performance
and risk management, we engaged with credit and

ESG rating agencies to ensure the Society is rated
appropriately. This led to an upgrade in the Society's ESG
ratings with w:mﬁmm:m_«_:.mm and MSCI. .

Key areas of interest for our investor base included:

= Strategic objectives and leadership changes

» Impacts of an uncertain economic and gecpolitical
outlock

+ Housing market outlook and implications for the
mertgage market

Engaging with our stakeholders (continued)

«  The outlook for asset quality in a rising interest rate
environment

+  Capital strength and expected wholesale funding
requirements

»  Competition within the UK financial services sector

+  Sustainability, in particular the Society's approach to
climate change

We responded to this by:

+  Continuing to provide timely strategic and financial
updates to our investors, As the economic
environment evolved we adapted our disclosures
to meet investors' information needs and areas of
interest.

+  Continuing to enhance our climate-related financial
disclosures as investor demand increased. Ity
December 2022, in keeping with cur commitments
following our sign-up to the Net-Zero Banking
Alliance {NZBA), we published our intermediate
(by 2030) science-based targets, supported by
comprehensive disclosures detailing how we will
progress towards these.

Board engagement

On behalf of the Board, the Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Cfficer provided a comprehensive update
directly to investors following each of our external results
announcements. The Chief Financial Officer also led an
investor roundtable, as well as a series of meetings with
our largest investors in the weeks following our results
announcements, to answer their questions.
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Communities

As a mutual organisation, our focus is not just on
providing better value and service for our customers, but
oh being better for society too. That is why we commit
at least 1% of our pre-tax profits® to good causes. Last
year, these largely focused on housing and our work with
community partners and charities to support our local
communities.

Our engagement

Our Community Grants programme enables charities
across the UK to apply for grants that support people
and communities in housing need. We held 11 Community
Boards, where community grants were distributed under
the direction of member and colleague volunteers.

We also engaged with and supported our communities
through our employee volunteering programme, and our
long-term partnership with charity Shelter.

We worked closely with the local community in the

design and planning of 239 EPC A-rated homes at our
Qakfield housing development in Swindon.

Our engagement with communities included the
following key topics:

+ Awareness of housing issues and emergencies.

» Challenges faced by local charities, particularly as a
result of cost of living pressures.

«  Progress on our Qakfield housing development,

which paused when our previous construction
partner went into administration.

We responded to this through:

«  Qur social investment programme, including our
partnership with Shelter {(see pages 19 to 20}.

«  Our support of crisis appeals led by the British Red
Cross (see page 20).

+  Appointing Lovell as our new construction partner
on Oakfield and putting the first homes on sale in
December 2022.

Board engagement

The Board received updates on the Society’s

social investment strategy and on the work of the

11 Community Beards. This included updates on

the Community Grants programme and Nationwide's
partnership with Shelter. The Board received regular
updates on the Qakfield development.

The Board also received four updates con the Society's
Responsible Business activities, including progress
towards its Mutuaj Good Commitments. For more
information on ocur progress, see pages 46 to 51.

Suppliers

We work with around 1,100 suppliers who help us run and
improve our business and deliver quality service for our
customers.

We engage with our suppliers from initial engagement
to support a smooth process for and prompt payment
of invoices, and we specifically target payment of our
smaller suppliers within 10 working days where possible.

Our engagement

We engaged with our third-party suppliers on key

topics, including operational performance, contract
management, risk and future opportunities, and on
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) matters.
Our business-as-usual engagement covers pre-
onboarding due diligence, inclusion in tenders, and
supplier controls testing. We also meet with key suppliers
once a quarter to review their performance.

We joined the Buy Social Corporate Challenge to engage
with a range of innovative suppliers, and engaged with
the Minority Supplier Development Network, the UK's
leading supplier diversity advocacy organisation.

5. The 1% is calculated based on average pre-tax profits over the previous three years.
6. Available on our Investor Relations page, nationwide.co.uk{investor-relations

34

Engaging with our stakeholders (continued)

We update our suppliers on any material announcements
through email or webeast communications, and we share
our risk and compliance expectations on our Supplier
Portai webpage. We also ran a webcast on EcoVadis,
attended by around 70 suppliers, where we requested
suppliers undertake their sustainability assessment and
explained the process and benefits of doing s0. We have
partnered with EcoVadis since 2021, to provide universal
sustalnability ratings for us and our suppliers, helping us
build a better understanding of our wider impact through
our supply chain.

The Society’s Chief Procurement Officer presented at
events, including the Chartered Institute of Procurement
and Supply’'s Sustainable Procurement Summit in May
2022, on creating a culture for sustainability, and on a
panel at the EcoVadis Annual Conference in October
2022, on the role of procurement in progressing
sustainability.

CGur engagement with suppliers included the
following key topics:

*  The use of EcoVadis ratings, including a request to
upload emissions data to enable us to understand
further the ESG credentials and ratings of our
supply chain

+  Leadership updates, including the appointment of
the Society's new Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer

« Anoverview of the Society's performance in 2021/22

» OQurintermediate {by 2030) science-based targets
and expectations of our key suppliers in supporting
us to decarbonise {for more information, see our full
climate-related financial disclosuress)

=  Operational performance and contract management

+ Outcomes of, and actions from, supplier controls
testing

+  Theresilience of our suppliers through major
geo-political events, such as the war in Ukraine
and Chinese military exercises around Taiwan,
and potential power outages
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We responded to this by:

s Our Procurement for Mutual Good programme, which
helped our supply chain to become greener, more
inclusive and more ethical, by further embedding
ESG considerations into our procurement and
supplier management processes.

+  Monitoring whether our highest carbon-emitting
suppliers had set science-based targets and
requesting sustainability scheduies were
incorporated into agreements.

»  Continuing to work with Carbon Intelligence to
calculate our scope 3 upstream emissions.

- New social enterprise relationships, inciuding Hey
Girls period products, Ethstat Ethical Stationery
for coffee and NEMI teas which are used within our
premises.

Board engagement

The Board Risk Committee received updates on key
supplier relationships during the year and considered the
Society’s management of its key supply chains and the
steps heing taken to avoid undue risk. The Board Risk
Committee, under delegated authority from the Board,
approved the Third-Party Risk Policy.

Regulators and policy makers

Regulators and policy makers oversee our activities and
undertake consultations and policy reform. We aim for
the highest possible standards of ragulatory compliance
to protect and enhance the integrity of the UK financial
system and ensure fair outcomes for our customers.

Our engagement

We engaged effectively with regulztors and policy
makers throughout the year to inflLence them on behalf
of the Society and its customers. Most notably, we
secured reforms to modernise the Building Societies
Act which will provide a more up to date regulatory
environment for Nationwide to ope-ate within.

We engaged through a combination of one-to-one
meetings, roundtable discussions and conferences and
events, which were attended by members of the Board,
the Executive Committee and subject matter experts.
This included cur Chairman attending meetings with the
Chief Secretary to the Treasury, the Economic Secretary
to the Treasury, the Governor of the Bank of England, the
Chief Executive of the PRA and the Director General of
Financial Services at HM Treasury. Our Chief Executive
attended some of these meetings and attended
roundtables with the Chancellor of the Exchequer. Qur
Chief Financial Officer gave evidence to the Treasury
Select Committee, and we aiso hosted a visit by the
Leader of the Opposition to Nationwide House.

At a global fevel, we continued to build links through the
Net-Zero Banking Alliance (NZBA) and Glasgow Financial
Alliance for Net Zero {GFANZ), contributing to reports

on transition planning and public policy frameworks,
Nationwide's work on green homes was included as

a case study in the GFANZ Recommendations and

Guidance on Financial Institution Net-zero Transition
Plans.

During the year, our engagement with regulators and
policy makers included discussion on the following
key topics:

» The Financial Services and Markets Bill

«  Modernisation of the Building Societies Act
» Access to cash and banking hubs

« Cladding and mortgage lending

»  Cost of living support

+  The FCA's Consumer Duty

+  Support for mortgage holders

«  Authorised Push Payment (APP) fraud

- Economic crime

+  Reform of the private rented sector

«  First time buyers

Engaging with our stakeholders {continued)

-

Green homes and climate change

Transition planning

-

Central Bank Digital Currencies

-

Social housing

Ringfencing of UK banks

Open finance

We responded to this through:

«  Answering information requests and Select
Committee inquiries on key issues of interest.

«  Providing input to consultations from government
departments, including HM Treasury, the former
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS), and the Department for Levelling
Up, Housing and Cammunities {DLUHC).

+  MP branch visits, connecting with policy makers
at a local level, engagement with the Shadow
Treasury team on the Financial Services and Markets
Bill, and joining roundtable discussions with senior
Government and Opposition policy makers, including
on the cost of living, green homes and mortgage
support.

Board engagement

The Board received regular reports detailing
Nationwide's regulatory interaction, the changing
regulatory environment and the impacts for Nationwide.
This included the FCA's Consumer Duty, to be
implemented in July 2023,

In addition, Board members attended regular meetings
with representatives from regulatory bodies, and
regulators attended Board meetings to present

key reports.

The Board has been regularly updated on the progress
being made to meet Environmental, Social and
Governance requirements and meetings held with
policymakers and regulators on these subjects.
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Engaging with our stakeholders (continued)

Board decisions

At the heart of our mutual purpose is the need to engage, consult
with and act in the interests of our stakeholders. The Board is
responsible for s2tting a clear strategy and direction, ensuring the
long-term success and sustainability of the Society. When making
decisions, it considers the outcome for all relevant stakeholders,
as well as the nead to maintain a reputation for high standards of
business conduct, the need to act fairly, and the conseguences
of its decisions, "he Board and Board committee terms of
references available at nationwide.co.uk reflect the importance

of cansidering the requirements set out in section 172(1) of the
Act. The template for writing Board and Board committee papers
must include a section for authors to outline how the update or
proposal directly or indirectly impacts our key stakeholder groups.
The Board reviews this as part of its assessment to determine the
relevant stakeholder impacts.

Principal decisions are those decisions taken by the Board,
including decisions taken by or delegated to management which
the Board has ovarsight of, that are of strategic importance,
material to the operations of the business and are significant to
the Society’s key stakeholders. Tais statement describes three
examples of principal decisions taken during the year.

36

Which stakeholders were considered?

Members and Colleagues Communities Suppliers Regulators
customers
investors Mortgage Buy to let

intermediaries  customers

The Board plays a pivotal rele in providing strong governance
and oversight of the Society. Qur goal is not only to fulfil our
statutory obligations as a Board but also to ensure the Society is
managed in line with our mutual values. Among these values is
the strong commitment from the Board to engage directly with
our stakeholders, to listen to their views and to consider their
interests during Board discussions and decision making.

Kevin Parry
Chairman
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Setting a new strategy

What was the
decision-making
process?

Following the appointments
of the Chairman and CEOQ,

a strategy refresh was
discussed by the Board at
its September 2022 meeting
before being considered

at its Strategy Conference
in October 2022. The new
strategy built on the Society’s
reputation for providing
great service and long-term
member value by setting out
the strategic direction for
the delivery of operational
and service excellence, and
the delivery of compelling
banking propositions, whilst
recognising the Society’s
mutual heritage and its
commitment to making a
positive contribution to
society.

At the October 2022 Strategy
Conference, views on the
proposed new strategy

were gathered from Board
members, senior management
and external adviscrs

to ensure that it was an
appropriate step forward.
The Board scrutinised and
challenged the priorities of
the new strategy, particularly
the proposals to enhance
operational and service
delivery and membar value.
The Board also sought to
understand how the strategy
would be delivered over three
harizon timelines.

At its November 2022 meeting
the Board reviewed and
approved the final version of
the strategy and agreed how
it would monitor execution
delivery.

Which stakeholders were considered?

Members and

Colleagues Communities Suppliers Regulators
customers
Investors Mortgage Buy to let
intermediaries  customers
How did the directors also a strong consideration enhancements being planned

fulfil their duties under
section 172 and how
were stakeholders
considered?

Stakeholder considerations
were central to the decision-
making process. The new
strategy was built around
member, colleague and
regulator feedback on how
the Society’s processes

and operations could be
enhanced to deliver service
and apetational excellence.
The Board was played
footage of member and
colleague feedback at the
Strategy Conference where
members spoke of their
interactions with the Society,
their experiences of service
delivery and the role of
branches in meeting customer
and community needs. The
prometion of the long-term
success of the Society was

of the Board when evaluating
the new strategy to ensure
the Society retained credibility
with regulators and investors.

What were the actions
and outcomes?

Foliowing the feedback
provided by the Board, senior
management and other
stakeholders at the October
2022 Strategy Conference,
the new strategy was

refined and subsequently
presented 1o the November
2022 Board meeting where

it was discussed further,
prior to its approval. At this
November 2022 meeting the
Board discussed how it would
monitor strategy execution
and delivery and agreed to
receive updates via regular
reporting from management.
These reports would update
the Board on the continuing
operational and service

and implemented and any
challenges encountered.

Horizon 1 of the new strategy
“Blueprint for a Modern
Mutual” was launched during
April 2023, and colleague
engagement activities were
rooted in the feedback
received from members

and colleagues and how the
renewed focus on enhancing
operational service delivery
would benefit members and
customers.

The Board will continue o
check and challenge the
execution of the strateqy
refresh to ensure that it
remains on track and maets
the needs of members,
customers and wider
stakeholders.
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Agreeing the content
of climate-related financial

disclosures and science-based

targets for publication

What was the
decision-making
process?

in June 2021 the Board
approved the Society
becoming a signatory to the
Glasgow Financial Alliance for
Net-Zero, a global coalition of
leading financial institutions
committed to accelerating
the decarbonisation of the
economy by encouraging
companies to adjust their
business models and develop
credible plans to transition to
a low-carbon, climate resilient
future. The Society’s position
is demonstrated through its
Mutual Good Commitments
and during the year the Board,
the Board Risk Committee and
the Audit Committee have
dedicated and continue to
dedicate considerable time
and focus to climate change,
particularly in scrutinising
climate disclosures prior to
external publication.
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In May 2022, the Audit
Committee, under delegated
authority from the Board,
considered and approved
Nationwide's Climate-related
Financial Disclosures 2022
ahead of publication alongside
the 2021/22 results in May
2022.

As part of the Society’s
Net-Zero Banking Alliance
membership, and to
demonstrate the role the
Society plays in supporting
the UK's net-zero ambition, a
set of intermediate (by 2030)
science-based targets for

the Society's scope 1, 2 and

3 emissions were developed
in accordance with the
methodologies of the Science-
Based Targets Initiative. In
September 2022, the Board
Risk Committee reviewed and
challenged the risks relating
to the Science-Based Targets
Disclosures which were due
to be published by the end of
December 2022. In November

Engaging with our stakeholdets (continued)

Which stakeholders were considered?

2022, both the Audit
Committee and Board Risk
Committee further censidered
the Science-Based Targets
Disclosure and following
scrutiny and challenge by
these Board committees

the Board approved the
publication of the Society's
Science-Based Targets
Disclosure in December 2022,

In March 2023, the Audit
Committee reviewed
Nationwide’s Climate-

related Financial Disclosures
2023 to be published as a
standalone document subject
to final approval alongside the
2022/23 results in May 2023.

Members and
customers

Communities

How did the directors
fulfil their duties under
section 172 and how
were stakeholders
considered?

The Board is aware that
climate change presents a risk
to the Society, its members
and the wider community.

In making climate-related
decisions and disclosures
the Board has been mindful
of and evaluated the likely
long-term consequences and
the impact on communities
and the environment. The
Society has made relevant
disclosures publicly available
so0 that regulators, investors
and suppliers can assess
how the Society is managing
climate risk. The Board has
also considered implications
of decisions to ensure that
risks from climate change
are managed and effectively
incorporated into the Society’s
governance mode!.

Suppliers

Regulators Investors

What were the actions
and outcomes?

In developing the disclosures
and outlining its position

for stakeholders, the Board
recognised these were subject
to key dependencies, for
example that the UK and the
Society would not be able

to reach net-zero carbon
emissions by 2050 without
breader policy changes.

The Seociety has, therefore,
continued to collaborate with
other mortgage providers
and with government to
support the changes needed
to transition the economy to
net-zero.

The Board continues to
moniter progress against
climate-related financial
disclosures and targets via the
regular reports it receives from
management.
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Approach to implementing

the FCA Consumer Duty

What was the
decision-making
process?

The FCA confirmed the final
details of the new Consumer
Duty requirements in July
2022, setting higher and
clearer standards of consumer
protection across financial
services and requiring boards
and management to make
good outcomes Tor consumers
central to their firm’s cuiture,
strategy and business
objectives.

The Board recognised that the
Consumer Duty requirements
aligned strongly with the
Society’s mutual ethos and
values but sought assurance
that the Society was making
the necessary preparations
to meet the specific
requirements of the Duty

by the first implementation
deadline of 31 July 2023.
Updates on progress against
the implementation deadline

were presented regularly to
the Board and the Board Risk
Committee who provided
governance oversight and
challenge.

At its meeting in September
2022, the Board Risk
Committee reviewed

and challenged the
proposed Consumer Duty
Implementation Plan.

At its October 2022 meeting,
the Board approved the
Consumer Duty Implementation
Plan which was subsequently
submitted to the FCA.

How did the directors
fulfil their duties under
section 172 and how
were stakeholders
considered?

The Consumer Duty will set
higher expectations for the
standard of care that financial
services firms provide to

Engaging with our stakeholders {continued)

Members and Coileagues
customers

Mortgage Buy to let
intermediaries customers

customers. Although this
aligns with the Society's

ethic of care, the Board has
scrutinised and challenged the
approach and activity being
undertaken by the Society to
ensure it will be fully prepared
for the implementation and
the ongoing embeadding of
the Consumer Duty in usual
business activity. Management
has attended Board meetings
to explain, for example, how
customer product journeys
have been mapped to ensure
that consumer outcomes meet
the standards required. This
has strong links with the new
Society strategy focused on
enhancing operational and
service excellence based

on feedback from members,
colleagues and regulators.
The Board has considered
customer vulnerability and
how the needs of vuinerable
customers will be met under
the Consumer Duty. The
Board currently receives
regular updates on compiaints
data and how processes are

being challenged in response
to feedback received, but

this complaints data is now
additionally being analysed
through a Consumer Duty lens,
Engagement with the FCA

has been ongoing during the
Consumer Duty planning and
preparation period.

By ensuring that the Society
complies with evolving
regulatory reguirements, the
Board is helping to ensure
that the Society can continue
to attract investors and,
ultimately, fulfill its social
purpose as a mutual.

What were the actions
and outcomes?

The Board and Board Risk
Committee have provided
governance oversight and
challenge of the Society's
Consumer Duty preparations.
The Board has appointed

a Consumer Duty Board
Champion to support the

Suppliers

Which stakeholders were considered?

Regulators Investors

Chair and the CEQ in raising
the matter regularly in all
relevant discussions and
challenging the Board and
senior management on how
they are embedding the
Consumer Duty and focusing
on consumer outcomes,

Specific training sessions

on Consumer Duty have

been held for the Board, and
the Beard Risk Committee
continues to receive specialist
advice on conduct risk and
Consumer Duty implications.
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Nationwide
H Foundation

The Nationwide Foundation is an independent charity set up by the Society
in 1997. Each year, we donate at I2ast 0.25% of Nationwide's pre-tax profits
to the Nationwide Foundation ~ £2,405,000 in 2022/23 - as part of the 1%
of pre-tax profits' we commit to cood causes. The Nationwide Foundation’s
vision is for everyone in the UK tc have access to a decznt home that they
can afford. It uses its funding and influence under three programme areas to
change the housing system for the better.

Nurturing ideas to change

the housing system

This programme supports emerging solutions to create truly
affordable and decent homes for the people most in need. Its work in
2022123 included:

»  Working with the Joseph Rowntree Foundation and FrameWorks
UK to produce a 'How to talk about homes' toolkit. This will help
organisations that are campaigning for changz, by providing
guidance on the best ways to communicate to help the public
understand the need fo- more affordable and decent homes, and
to encourage support for solutions.

»  Supporting and funding work by the Town and Country Planning
Association on potentia new legislation to make sure homes are
built to benefit the health of the peopie who live in them. The aim
is to pass a new set of 'Healthy Homes’ principles into law, such
as adequate space and aatural light, that will apply to all
new-build homes.

« Funding a pioneering project in Bristol that prcvides homes for
people in need, situated on microsites around existing houses
with a large amount of sarrounding space. The Foundation is
working to bring this prcject to more areas. It is a completely new
way of creating decent, affordable homes which has received
strong interest from min sters.

1. The 1% is calculated based on average pre-tax profits over the previods three years.

40



Annuat Report & Accounts 2023

Strategic report Governance Risk report

Financial statements Other informartion v

Nationwide Foundation {continued)

Backing community-led
housing

Community-led housing gives communities the power to create
decent, affordakle homes in the places where they are wanted and
needed. The Nationwide Foundation is a major funder in this sector
andin 2022/23 it:

« Continued to advocate for the importance of government funding
to help the community -led housing sector grow further.

»  Supperted and funded key organisations across the UK that help
community groups to tuild homes.

»  Funded new work to find out about the challenges faced by
people from Black and minority ethnic backgrounds in creating
community-led housing.

Nationwide
- Foundation

Transforming the private
rented sector

The Nationwide Foundation campaigns and funds other organisations
to reform the private rented sector to better provide decent,
affordable homes. In 2022/23, this included:

» Funding research into the impact of tenancy reform in Scotland,
especially on the tenants who are most vulnerable to harm, and
using the findings to influence further reforms across the UX.

+ Funding a programme of work across the UK to support renters
to have their voices heard in local and national decision making.

« Using the findings from its research to influence the upcoming
Renters’ Reform Bill and other legislation to make it as effective
as possible for renters, especially those in need.

Next steps for the
Nationwide Foundation

During 2023/24, the Nationwide Foundation will remain
committed to its Decent Affordable Homes strategy. While
continuing to generate robust influence through funded work,
it is also increasing its own activity, using the knowledge it
has gathered to influence positive change to the UK's housing
system.

E-Y
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Statement from
Debbie Crosbhie,
Chief Executive

We strive to do the right thing in a responsible way for the benefit of our customers,
colleagues, communities and the environment.

In 2019, we committed to the UN Global Compact and | am pleased to reaffirm

our support for the Ten Principles of the United Nations Global Compact, which
includes our commitment to protect and promote Humezn Rights, Labour Rights, the
Environment and Anti-Corruption.

The social, political, economic and envirenmental challenges facing the world today
make it more important than ever that we act to progress activities that support
these Ten Princigles. Our Mutual Good Commitments help us to hold true to our
ethical principles and mutual purpose, with supporting zargets that further reinforce
the UN Sustainakle Development Goals (SDGs).

Lt L Grobe

Committed to doing the right thing

For more information on:

+ our alignment with the UN Sustainable
Development Goals, see page 45

+ our Mutual Goeod Commitments, see page 46

« our Principles for Respensible Banking
disclosures, see nationwide.co.uk.

+ our Climate-related Financial Disclosures 2023,
see nationwide.co.uk.

» ourintermediate {by 2030) science-based
targets, see nationwide.co.uk.
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UN Global Compact: Communication on Progress

We continue to integrate the principles of the UN Global Compact into our business strategy, culture and daily operations. Further information on how we are progressing can
be found on our hroader Responsible Business webpages and where referenced below.

Human Rights: doing the right thing Environment: doing the right thing for

Labour Rights {our colleagues): doing Anti-corruption: doing the right thing

business

for our customers and the way we do

the right thing for our colleagues

the environment and its impact on our

customers

to prevent crime

Qur Mutual Good
Commitments

Page 46

Qur Mutual Good
Commitments

Page 46

Qur Mutual Good
Commitments

Page 46

Our Mutual Good
Commitments

Page 46

human trafficking
statement

nationwide.co.uk

information on:

+ greening our

nationwide.co.uk

; Our Code of . \ Fraud and scams
Mﬁwﬁm%mﬂmjﬂm nationwide.co.uk Conduct hationwide.co.uk Pages 18 and 48
Climate-related
financial D . . .
Modern slavery and Health and safety nationwide.co.uk disclosures, with ata privacy nationwide co.uk

Economic crime

naticnwide.co.uk

inclusion. di . P 32 and operations
Supporting our _ nclusion, diversity ages 32 an . building a greener
customers Pages 12 -22 and wellbeing 50 - 51 supply chain
» greener homes Cyber security nationwide.co.uk
« our partnerships
Supporting our « hiodiversit
! Page 32 Gender and Page 32 versity Modern slavery and
colleagues ethnicity pay gaps S o
Y pay gap d human trafficking nationwice.co.uk
o " 4 Intermediate Net- statement
ommunities an - . Zero Ambitions
social investment Pages 13 - 20 Our suppliers Pages 34-35 2022: Basis nationwide.co.uk Our Code of Honwid "
of Preparation - Conduct hationwide.co.ux
S " disclosure
upporting our Freedom of _ .
; Pages 34 - 35 nationwide.co.uk Speaking up and
suppliers iati natfonwide.co.uk pe gup : .
association whistleblowing nationwide.co.uk
G P 77 ﬂdﬂﬂwﬂw_ﬂm hationwide.co.uk Political
overnance age Discrimination hationwide.co.ux ; i i
hatlonwide.ca.U4 involvement nationwide.co.uk
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UN Sustainable development goals

We want to be a beacon for mutual good. Being a responsible business is part of our mutual
heritage and we remain committed to doing business in a way that positively impacts our
customers, employees and communities.

ND
POVERTY

A

As a signatory to the United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking, we are committed
10 a strategic alignment with the 2015 Paris Climate Agreement and to the UN Sustainable Pt
Development Goals {SDGs). Our Mutual Good Commitments, as set out on the next 4
page, are most closely aligned to the SDGs listed below.

. SDG 1 No poverty
We take positive action against homelessness, and to enhance financial inclusion
and wellbeing, and support and protect our customers’ money. .

@ SDG 5 Gender equality
We promote gender equality and are working towards equal representation
of women in our leadership population by 2028,

SUSTAINABLE
. DEVELOPMENT

ATTION , S,
* %
s

SDG 7 Affordable and clean energy
Since 2018, w2 have continued to source 100% of our electricity for our
own operations from renewable sources.

. SDG 8 Decent work and econsmic growth
We are a real living wage employer, promote positive work practices and
take action to enhance the wellbeing, diversity and inclusion of our peopie.

@ 5DG 10 Reduced inequalities
We are working to reduce economic inequality in our communities and seek
to ensure everyone has access to good and secure housing, finances and
work opportunities.

$DG 11 Sustainable cities and communities
Qur social investment programme helps us give back to our communities. And we

. . . SO WORN AND
work on solutions to create affc-dable, accessible and sustainable homes.

TEONOMIC GROWTH

SDG 12 Responsible consumption and production 5
We divert as much waste as possible from landfill, recycle our office equipment and ! : .— REDUCED
source food locally. Our Procurement for Mutual Goed programme supports a greener, - A INEQUALITIES
more inclusive and more ethical supply chain. HEE o~

. . =)
@ SDG 13 Climate action
We are part of the Net-Zero Banking Alliance, committing to a2 net-zero future by 2050 and have published
intermediate (by 2030) science-based targets in support. Qur green propositions encourage our customers
to improve the energy efficiency of their homes.
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Our Mutual Good

Commitments

M)

Help to
achieve safe
and secure
homes for all

Page 47

SDG 1
No poverty

SDG 8
Decent work and
economic growth

SDG 10
Reduced
inequalities

SDG 11
Sustainable cities
and communities

46

Y
=

Protect our
customers’
financial
wellbeing

Page 48

SDG1
No poverty

Committed to doing the right thing (continued)

We are progressing bold initiatives, represented by five Mutual Good Commitments, that demonstrate

how our business aligns to, and

supports, the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). These are

embedded within our strategy and overseen by the Executive Committee and the Board.

When we refreshed our strategy, we reviewed and, where appropriate, updated the underlying
measures that support our broader Mutual Good Commitments. The measures that underpin our

Mutual Good Commitments are set out over the following pages.

¥

Support
progress
towards a
greener society

Page 49

SDG 7
Affordable and
clean energy

o SDG M
Sustainable cities
and communities

SDG 12
Responsible
consumption
and production

SDG 13
Climate action

e O o
IDI

Champion

thriving
communities

Page 50

SDG 8
Decent work and
economic growth

SDG N
Sustainable cities
and communities

D

Reflect the
diversity of
our society

Page 50

SDG 5
Gender equality

SDG 8
Decent work and
economic growth

SDG 10
Reduced
inequalities
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Help to achieve safe
and secure homes for all

Our measures Our progress

By 2025, we will help 250,000 We continue to focus on helping first time buyers into homes. Actuals Target Target

people to buy their first home'. 250,000
We are working to address the two main challenges that first time Total first time
buyers face - raising a deposit and being able to borrow enough 196,000

b h
to afford a property. Since setting our target in November 2020, uyers helped

we have helped 196,000 people into their first home, ahead of 120,000 into a home
our cumulative target for 2023. Mere information on how we are
supporting first time buyers can be found on pages 15 to 16.
2023 2023 2025
We will ensure 100% of our Over a fifth of the 4.4 million households that rent privately in
new huy to let lending onrental  England endure the poor conditions associated with substandard
properties continues to meet housing® With many of our customers in rented accommodation,
the Decent Homes Standard?2, we seek to enable a private rented sector that works for the mutual
good of both landlords and tenants. We ensure that the buy to let
properties we lend on are compliant with, or exceed, the Decent
Homes Standard?® recommendations, so that tenants can live in
safe and decent homes.
By 2025, we will have Our partner charity, Shelter, is calling on the government to build Actuals Target Target
provided £1 billion of new at least 90,000 social homes a year, to ensure everyone has a safe
lending to support the social place to call homes. Total lending

H 4
housing sector®. 10 the social

Our target demoenstrates our support for the social housing sector, 409 housing sector,

benefiting those in more vulnerable housing situations.

300

2023 2023 2025

1. Set against a baseline of 30 November 2020. 3. A Decent Homes Standard in the private rented sector: consultation - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)
2. We physically inspect the vast majority of the buy te let properties we originate new loans on, to ensure 4. Set against a baseline of 31 March 2022,
they meet or exceed the Standard. For “he remainder, we use data to assess adherence to the Standard. 5. Let’s build a better future: Call on the government to build social housing | Campaigns - Shelter Englanc.
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Protect our 95.2:2%
financial wellbeing

Our measures

Our progress

Committed to doing the right thing (continued)

By 2025, we will protect
750,000 customers with
our Scam Checker Service®.

8. Setagainst a baseline of 31 March 2022.

48

We will continue to strive to protect our customers from fraud.

In 2021, we launched our Scam Checker Service, underpinned

by our Scam Protection Promise. This enables our customers to
check their payments with us, before they make them, if they have
concerns. Our Promise means that, if after checks and a scam
conversation, the payment does not appear suspicious but later
turns out to be a scam, we promise to refund our customers every
penny. Our target demonstrates our commitment to providing
support and reassurance to our customers concerned about

potential scams.

Actuals Target  Target

750,000

Customers protected
by our Scam Checker
Service

505,000
250,000

2023 2023 2025
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Support progress towards

a greener sociely

Our measures

Our progress

We aim to reduce our scope 1 emissions that we control across
our own business operations, in line with our 2030 scope 1
science-based farget, and rema n carbon neutral for these
emissions’.

We aim to continue to source 100% renewable electricity for our
own operations, in line with our 2030 scope 2 science-based
target.

We will aim to reduce our scope 3 emissions for our mortgages,
other secured lending activity, and our supply chain, by

taking steps to raduce those emissions within our control and
encouraging our customers, borrowers and suppliers to do the
same, in line with our 2030 scopz 3 science-based target.

in December 2022, Naticnwide published its intermediate {(by 2030) science-based targets. Our
Mutual Good Commitment measures now reflect these. You can find out more about our science-
based targets in our Intermediate Net-Zero Ambitions 2022: Basis of Preparation, and our Climate-
related Financial Disciosures 2023.

Scope 1and 2 emissions are also included in our directors’ long-term variable pay targets. For more
information on this, please see page 124.

We consider it highly unlikely at present, that our measures for scope 3 investments emissions can

be achieved under current government policies in connection with the UK's housing stock. Emissions
associated with our residentiat mortgage lending account for the majority {more than 80%) of our total
scope 3 emissions and we have very limited control over practical measures to reduce the errissions
from properties which are owned by our borrowers.

7. Carbon neutral refars to no net release >f carbon dioxide inte the at mesphere and is achieved by removing or eliminating emissions, or through funding equivalent carbon savings.

49



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements Other information U Committed to doing the right thing (continued)

Champion thriving communilies

Our measures Qur progress
Our Branch Promise: Every Over the year, we extended our Branch Promise once again, providing reassurance to our customers who rely on our branches, or prefer
town and city which has a to speak to us face to face. We now have the second largest single-brand branch network across the UK financial services sector and

branch today will still have one  won the Branch Network of the Year award at the 2023 Moneyfacts Consumer Awards.

until at least 2024.
In some exceptional circumstances that were beyond our control, and in some towns and cities where we had more than one location, we
have closed branches. However, this is kept to a minimum and last year only 23 branches were closed.

We will commit at least 1% We met our target in 2022/23, committing £8.6 million (2021/22: £7.1 million). More information can be found on page 19.
of our pre-tax profits to
charitable activities each year®,

Reflect the diversily of our society

Our measures Our progress

By 2028, our people willrefiect  We achieved four of our seven measures te meet by 2023, These measures are set out on the next page. However, further focus is

the wider society that we needed to increase representation of Black, Asian, mixed and other ethnically diverse colleagues in senior roles and across our overall

represent. employee population. We are also slightly behind where we planned to be in terms of the proportion of women in our leadership
population. We aim to address this, and further the progress we have made across our other measures, through the delivery of our

This includes seven measures refreshed strategy, which includes activity to improve social mobility.

that span across gender,

ethnicity, disability and sexual We will improve diverse representation and progression through a holistic and embedded inclusion and diversity approach to talent

crientation, as set out on the identification, succession, development and management. This includes ensuring that we have robust data and we put key data into the

next page. hands of decision makers to enable evidence-based decision making and consistently inclusive practices to drive sustainable progress.

For more information on the work we are doing to progress inclusion, diversity and wellbeing, including our gender and ethnicity pay gaps,
see page 32.

Diversity measures are alsc included in our directors’ long-term variable pay targets. For more information on this, please see page 124.

8. The 1% is calculated based on average pre-tax profits over the previous three years.
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Gender® Ethnicity'
Leadership population™ All employees
Actuals™ Target Target® Actuals™”  Target Target®
50.0%
361%  36.2% 15.0%
121% 12.8% S

2023 2023 2028 2023 2023 2028

Disability Sexual Orientation

Leadership population”

Actuals’? Target  Target®™

12.0%
m.mx me

2023 2023 2028

All employees Leadership population™ All employees

Actuals? Target Targe:"™ Actuals™ Target  Target® Actuals™ Target Target®
12.0% g
6.7% 8.0%

2023 2023 202E 2023 2023 2028 2023 2023 2028

We also report or other statutory diversity measures™ ceparately to our Mutual Good Commitments. These are as below:

Leadership popuiation”

Actuals™ Target Target™
4.0%
2.8% 2.4%
1 ]

2023 2023 2028

Gender? Ethnicity'®
All employees 80.7% {11,234 females) 121%
Senior managers® 37.6% (35 females) 4.3%

9. Gender - The figures reflect female reprasentation.

10. Ethnicity - Figures reflect Black, Asian, mixed and other. Excluded frcm the % are white majority and minority.

11. Leadership populat on — A targeted and aroader leadership population comprising around 1,000 of our leaders.

12. All data as at 4 April 2023, and based upon headcount not FTE (full-time equivalent value} of employees directly employed by Nationwide Building Society.
13. We will review our longer-term measures in light of latest census data.

14. Disahility - Figures reflect those identify ng as disabled or as having a long-term health condition.

15. Sexual Crientation - Figures reflect thos« identifying as bi-sexual, gay man, gay woman, lesbian and other. Excluded from the % are those identifying as heterosexual.

16. Statutory measures — We have presented additional measures that are not part of our Mutual Good Commitment targets but are statutory measures based on the Companigs Act. Figures are based upon headcount
and percentage headcount of each population. Senior manager figures reflect the Companies Act definition of an employee who has responsibility for planning, directing or controlling the activities of an entity or a

strategically important part of it, which includes our executive populztion comprising the Executive Committee and their direct reports.
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Non-financial & sustainability information statement

Reporting requirements Section of Annual Report and Accounts Page
This statement provides an overview of topics and related
reporting references as required by Sections 414CA and our dis . wal . 5
414CB of the Companies Act 2006. Non-financial and Business model ur ditterence is our mutual ownership model

. - h . Our Blueprint for a modern mutual 26
sustainability (environmental, social and governance)
information is integrated across the Strategic report and
other publications and we have used cross-referencing in

How we performed in 2022/23 against our

the table on the right to avoid duplication, Key performance indicators strategic key performance indicators 23

Governance Governance 77

For further information on non-financial and sustainability matters,

please see our separate reporting on nationwide.co.uk: Stakeholders Engaging with our stakeholders 29

+ Climate-related financial disclosures Social matters Committed to doing the right thing 42

« Intermediate Net-Zero Ambitions 2022: Basis of Preparation

»  Principles for Responsible Banking report Key risks and their Risk overview 65

» Responsible business webpzges management Managing risk 139
Colleagues

Supporting our colleagues with disabilities

) Our key policies and statements of intent are set out
It is the Society’s policy to afford access to training, career Environmental matters on page 44 and are in place to ensure consistent

development and promotion opportunities equally to all colleagues
regardless of their ethnicity, faith and belief, gender, marital status,
age, physical or mental disability, or socic-economic background.
For colleagues with disabilities and long-term health conditions, the
Society supports them with workplace adjustments. Should colleagues Economic crime and
become disabled while employed, the Society will, wherever possible, anti-corruption
make adjustments to support them in their existing role or re-deploy .
them to a more suitable alternative role. We have made a Board
commitment to disability inclusion and are Valuable500 supporters.
We are also members of the Business Disability Forum and
PurpleSpace, as well as signatories to the Disability Confident Scheme. For more information on how we support our colleagues more generally, see page 32.

governance in respect of our colleagues, environmental
Human rights matters, human rights and economic crime and anti-
corruption. These policies and statements are also
available on nationwide.co.uk
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Nationwide’s full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co.uk

| Ambition
and overview

Climate change presents a risk to Nationwide and its customers, and so managing the risk

from climate change and supporting progress towards a greener society is core to Nationwide
being a responsible business.

We continue to focus on further embedding and improving our
climate-related risk management capabilities, whilst enhancing
our understanding of climate change and the impacts it has on the
Society and its customers.

Since 2020, Nationwide has produced its disclosures in line

with the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures’
(TCFD's) recommendations. Nationwide’s Climate-related Financial
Disclosures 2023 are published alongside its Preliminary results
on nationwide.co.uk as a standalone document. This enables
Nationwide to provide comprehensive climate-related disclosures,
in an easily accessible format, for all interested stakeholders.

Environmental and climate consciousness are aligned to our
mutual purpose of Banking - but fairer, more rewarding, and for
the good of society. Being a beacon for mutual good is a core part

of our strategy, which is centred around our purpose. It compels
us to take meaningful action to limit the environmental impact of
our business operations, help our customers green their homes
{so that they are warmer, more comfortable places to live, and
more cost effective to heat in the long term}, and mariage better
the impacts of a more unpredictable climate. in doing so, we can
demonstrate our mutual difference, that extends beyond our
customer base, and positively impacts our communities and wider
society too.

The table on the next page outlines how we have aligned to

the four categories of the TCFD's recommendations' {Strategy,
Governance, Risk management, and Metrics and targets) and
recommended disclosures, and aligns with the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules (9.8.8R(8)). Across these categories are
11 sub-category headings which we have used to present our
activities for this year, along with ongoing and future activity.
Page number references have been provided to indicate where
additional detail can be found in Nationwide’s fufl Climate-related
Financial Disclosures 2023,

1. Nationwide foliows the TCFD's Annex; Implementing the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (October 2021).
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Sirategic report

Nationwide’s full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at natipnwide.co.uk

€

Strategy Disclosures:
The actual and potertial impacts of climate-related risks and ov_uozcz_cmm on Nationwide, its strategy, and financial planning pages 7-16

The climate-related risks and opportunities Natichwide has identified over the short, medium, and long term Disclosures:

pages 8-13

Activity in 2022/23

» Reccgniced a number of risks and opportunities across the short, medium and long term to support the UK's ambition to achieve net-zero by 2050, and explored
thase as part of our climate strategy and green finance proposition development to procress towards a greener saciety.

» Developed and disclosed our intermediate (by 2030) science-based targets for scope 1, 2, and 3 emissions, aligned to a net-zero pataway. Our disclosure Jetails
tha potential actions across the short to medium term, and the level of contrel and challenges faced.

Qargoing and future activity

« Continue to embed climate change considerat ons into Nationwide’s strategy and proposition development processes, including the identification of addiiicnzi
climate-related risks and opportunities,

+ Develop a net-zero aligned transition plan to h2lp track against Natienwide’s net-zero mB_u_:o: and intermediate {by 2030} science-based targets over th2 shat to
mediurm term,

+ Continue to engage with Environmental, Sacial, and Governance (ESG) rating agenzies to ensure Nationwide’s credentials are fully understood and appropriately
reflected in our ratings.

» Ccntinue to invite third-party suppliers to join the EcoVadis platform and to disclose their carbon emissions and emissions reduction targets.

Tz inpact of climate-related risks and opportunities on Nationwide’s businesses, strategy, and financial planning Disclosures:

pages 9,10, 14-16

Activity in 20222

» =urther embeddec climate change into ou- strategic planning and financial planning processes, including defining a framework for the inclusion of the effects of
zlimate change in our expected credit losses.

» Ccntinued to explote climate-related oppertunities through 2022, launching the first phese of EPC A rated homes in cur Oakfield development and completing our
s0 ar panel piloz w th MakeMyHouseGreen.

» Zcntinued te partizipate in cross-industry forurms, to understand new and emerging risks and opportunities across the financial sector, including continuing to
zampaign for a National Retrofit Strategy to suzport the greening of UK homes as part of our Green Homes Action Group.
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Nationwide’s full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co,uk

Strategy _, : Disclosures:
The actual anc potential impacts of climate-related risks and opportunities on Nation __n.w. its strategy, and financial planning pages 7-16

The impact o zlimate-related risks and oppertunities on Nationwide’s bus nesses, strategy, and firancial planning Disclosures:

pages 9,10, 14-16

Ongoing and f ature activity

+ Continue to explore further green finance opportunities and propositions to suppoert our customars in the greening of their homes and progress towards our
intermediate (by 2030) science-basad targets.

+ Cortinue to convene and participate in cross-industry working groups t2 drive real chznge, inclLding raising awareness of the challenges of greening UK homes
and encourzgirg further government action that supports greener homes.

The resilience of Mationwide's strategy, takirg into consideration different climata-relaed scenariog, including a 2°C or lower scenario Disclosures:

page 15

Activity in 2022/23

« Flarned enhancements to our climate change scenaric analysis approach in readiness for our next scenario analysis exercise, in crder to understand better the
risks, and pctential opportunities, of climate change. This follows our se2nario analysis in 2021 which indiczated that the mnmo”m of climate change posed a limited
threat to our business model. '

« Climate change was considered as part of this year's Internal Capital Ad=quacy Assessment _u_.,.onmmm {ICAAP) and Internai Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process
{ILAAP).

Ongoing and future activity

+ Execute an internal scenario analysis exercise in 2023, with enhancement to p-evious capabilities, including the use of a dynamic balance sheet, to quantify better
the financiz! risks arising from the physica and transitional impacts of climate change. The analyzis willinclude assessing different climate change scenarios,
ircluding a 2°C or lower scenzr 0.

« Implement iearrings from scenario analysis to develop our approach further ard build on our cagabilities.
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Nationwide’s full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co.uk

Governance : Disclosures:
Nationwide's governance over climate-related risks and opportunities pages 17-22

The Board's oversight of climate-relazed risks and opportunities : Disclosures:
: pages 18, 19

Activity in 2022/23
« The Board continues tc have ultimate accountability for all climete-related -isk matters at Natiaonwide.

= Directors’ engagement on climate-re.ated risk management was increased through 2022, witt a partic alar focus on the setting of th= Society’s intermediate {by
2030) science-based targets.

+ Directors approved the Society’s intermediate {by 2030) science-based targets disciosure whizh included targets aiming to reducs e missions across scope 1, 2, and 3.
« Further embedded our climate risk governance model, so that it continues o support the Board’s oversight of climate-related -isk,

Ongoing ad future activity

+ Continue to evolve and optimise the climate risk governance mecdel to ensure even greater focus at Board leve!

« Engage the Board throughout the cevelopment of our net-zero zligned transition plan.

Managemert’s role in assessing and maagi=g climate-related risks and oppo-tunities k Disclosures:

pages 20-22

Activity in 2022/23

» Dwnership for responding to climate charge sits with Nationwid='s Director of Strateg,, Perfermance and Sustainability, whilst Senior Managers Regime
accountailities sit with the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).

» “or 202324, aligned our directors’ long term incentive arrangerr ent with tha Society’s scope 1 and scope 2 carbon emission targets, which will be captured within a
Nider ESG measure, with a defined weigh~ing of 10%.

+ The Executive Committee (ExCo) supported the approval of the Society’s inzermedia-e (by 2030) science-based targets.
Cngoing and future activity

» Assess progress against measures included in the directors’ long¢ term incentive arrangement, which is aligned to the Society's scope 1 and scope 2 carbon
amission :argets.

+ Engage management or the develoament and delivery of our netl-zero alignad transiticn plan.
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Nationwide’s full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can he found at hatiohwide.co.uk

Risk Management . S Disclosures:
How Nationwide identifies, assesses and manages climate-related risks : S pages 23-26

Nationwide's processes for identifying and assessing climate-related risks .- ‘ : Disclosures:

pages 24, 25

Activity in 2022/23

« Assessed the impacts of climate ¢1ange against Mationwide’s principal risks in line with our Enterprise Rick Management Framework (ERMF) and identified potentiz|
impacts over the short, med um ard long term.

» Enhancead the Society’s climate change risk standard, to improve it as a key control of ¢! mate-related risk.

» Continued to leverage physical risk assessment capabilities, through ~he Property Risk Hub?, and internal capabilities contir ue to ne enhanced to assess transition
risk across the Society’s residential and commercial mortgage lendinc portfolios.

+ Updated our Housing Finarce Crecit Sta~dards, which applies to our Registered Social Landlord (RSL) borrowers, to include clear “ecommendations for borrowers
to have an ESG strategy aligned to net-zzro, Also encouraged RSL borrowers to improve the Energy Perfo-mance Certificate {EPC) composition of their portfolio.

Ongoing and future activity
» Consider the inclusion of transition risk factors int> borrower affordability credit assessments.

« Incorporate climate factors into Nazionwide’s business as usual financ al forecasting activity,

Nationwide’s Jrocesses for maraging climatz-relatec risks : ‘ Disclosures:

pages 24, 25

Activity in 2022/23

» Enhanced our internal climzte chang= managemert information (Mi) dashboard, resulting in around 50 climate-related metrics from principal risk areas to support
the management of climate-related risks with key measures shared with the 3oard Risk Commitiee every six months.

« Delivered a refreshed climase-related risk implementation plan based on the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) recommendations.

= Submitted a report to the PRA deta ling how we have embedded the requirements of 553/19, and further evolved the embeddedness of our climate-related risk
management based on feechack reczived from the PRA.

+ Actioned feedback from the Societv's participation in the Bank of England’s Climate Biennial Exploratory Scenario (CBES).
Ongoing and tuture activity

+ Expand anc enhance the maragement of non-financial climate-related risks, including w thin operational risk where it is considered a potential cause of operaticnal
loss events

« Continue tc review lending pclicy tc ensurs new and existing customers are not unduly exposed to physicel and transition ris<.

2. Nationwide’s Prope-ty Risk Hub assesses all mortcage ap2lications fo- several physical risks at the dzcision in principle stage of a mortgage epplication.
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Nationwide’s full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co.uk

Risk Management oy Disclosures:
. How hationwide identifies, assesses, and manages climate-related risks ! pages 23-26

5

How hationwide’s prozesses for Emzﬂ‘.?m:m. assessing, and managing climate-related risks are integrated into the Society’s overall risk

Disclosures:
management

page 26

Activity in 2022/23
« Climate change cortinues to be emsedded zs a cause within our existing ERMF.

+ Enhanced our climate change risk stardard which aids the embedding, monitoring, and ranagement of zlimate-related risk as a cause to the Society's most
significant risks.

Ongoing and future activity

« Furtrer broaden understanding of climate-related risk through continued development o° Nationwide’s scenario analysis approacH.
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Strategic report

Nationwide's full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co.uk

Metrics and Targets

: Disclosures:
The metrics and targets used to assess and manage relevant climate=related risks and opportunities pages 27-43
The metrics used by Nztionw de 1> assess climate-related risks and opportunities in line with our strategy and risk management Disclosures:
process pages 40-43

Activity in 2022/23

« Continued to develop a robust set of metrics to assess climate-related risks and opportunities. These include:
+ Physical risk data, such as floocd exposure of our mortgage book
« Transition risk data, such as ZPC exposure of our mortgage hook
« Waste and water Lsage data
+ Data that shows the take-up of our green finance propositions

» Enhanced internal climate chanje Ml which supports better decision making by management and the Board.
Ongoing and future act vity
» Continue to enhanc= our climate change metrics and data that support our climate-related risk management.

« Continue to review cl mate amb tions and targets, in line with future changes to strategy, propositions, scenario analysis and climate szience.

Disclosures:

Nationwide's scope 1, 2, and 3 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and targets, and the related risks
pages 28-39

Activity in 2022/23
« Developed and disclosed the Scciety’s intermediate (by 2030) science-based targets, for our scope 1, 2, and 3 emissions.
« Enhanced our approazh to calcLlating scope 3 downstream emissions for mortgages, by integrating address matching processes into sur mortgage EPC medel,

+ Enhanced our approazh to calcLlating scope 3 downstream emissions for our RSL portfolio, by leveraging ocur mortgage EPC model to match EPCs better for those
properties that have one, and to estimate where an EPC is not matched.

Ongoing and future activity

« Continue to calculate our scope 1, 2, and 3 emissions aligned to the GHG protocol and industry best practice, disclosing annually within our Climate-related
Financial Disclosures, and meas Jring progress against our science-based targets.

+ Continue to refine and enhance Nationwide's approach to calculating scope 3 emissions, reflecting improvements in data availability, coverage, and industry
understanding.
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Nationwide's full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co.uk

Metrics and .qm_‘umnm o Disclosures:
The metrics and targats used 1o assess and manage relevant climate-related risks and ovvoq ::wzmm pages 27-43

The tarcets used by Nationwide to manage climate-related risks and opportunities, and performance against these targets Disclosures:

pages 31, 33, 37, 38, 40-43

Activity in2022/23
» Evolv=d Nationwide's internal climate change Ml to track better our climate change ambitions and support management decision making.

« Calculated, and cisclosed within cur Climate-related Financial Disclosures, cur scope 1, 2, and 3 emissions aligned to the GHG protocol and industry best practice,
and measured c-ur progress against our science-based targets,

« Continled to track physical risk data, such as flood exposure, and transition risk data, such as EPC composition, of our mortgage book.
« Continued to track the take -up o* our green finance propositions,

Ongoing ard future activity

» Continue to enhence climate metr ¢s and targets, in line with changes to stretegy, propositions, scenario analysis and climate science.

= Enhance our clir ate metrics and cata that support us in measuring our prog-ess towards our updated climate-related Mutual Good Commitment, and our
irtermediate (bv 2030} science-based targets, including developing supporting metrics and leading indicators for inclusion ir our net-zero aligned transition plan.

+ Contin.e to monicr performance against Nationwide’s climate-related targe:s and ambition to support progress towards a greener society, and update our Climate-
related F nancial Disclosures acco-dingly.
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Climate-related financial disclosures (continued)

Nationwide’s carbon emissions

Supporting progress towards a greener society

As a building society, Nationwide’s focus is on providing banking products and
services for our customers. We cnly have very limited corporate lending through
small, closed commercial real es ate and private finance initiative portfolios, and
lending to registered social landlords.

Our business model means that our strategy does not involve lending to, or
investing in, the fossil fuel industry.

Nationwide aspires to be a beacon for mutual good, famous for having a
meaningful impact across society that extends beyond our own customer base.
Helping address the impact of climate change aligns with this, and we aim to
support the UK Government's an-bition to achieve net-zero by 2050.

Our Mutual Good Commitments support our strategy and the UN Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs). Over the year we have updated the targets underlying
our Mutual Good Commitment to support progress towards a greener society, so
that they align to our intermediatz (by 2030) science-based targets.

Nationwide published its Nighly challenging intermediate (by 2020) sclence-based
targets®*in December 2022. This disclosure covers the sectors applicable to our
business model, across scope 1, 2, and 3. Achieving our emissions, and emissions
intensity, reduction targets will require customer, cross-industry, and government
action.

3. Intermediate Net-Zero Ambitions 2022 - Basis of Preparation (nationwide.co.uk).

4. A market-based approach allows fiexiblity to utilise market-based measures such as renewable energy to achieve net-zero.
5. A location-based approach doesn't factor in market-based measures and considers operational absalute emissicns oniy.

G2

Nationwide's scope 1and 2 carbon emissions
(See table on page 64)

We are pleased to have remained carbon neutral for scope 1and 2 emissions since
2020. These emissions are tracked against a set of strategic ambitions that aim

to improve the Society's sustainability. We continue to disclose in line with the
Government’s Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting regulation requirements.

Our scope 1 emissions have continued to decrease in comparison to previous
years. This is due to our ongoing efforts to reduce our operational emissions. We
will continue to reduce our scope 1 emissions to progress towards our science-
based target ambitions.

100% of our scope 2 energy consumption is attributed to renewable sources,
through a solar power purchase agreement (PPA}, which produces emissions-free
energy, and use of green tariff electricity. Our scope 2 emissions are associated
with purchased electricity only, as Nationwide does not purchase any steam, heat
or cooling. This market-based approach?, coupled with purchasing carbon offsets
for scope 1 emissions, ensures Nationwide remains carbon neutral for its business
operations,

We also disclose our absolute {location-based®) scope 2 emissions which
continue to reduce as we embed new hybrid ways of working. Our hybrid working
means colleagues have the flexibility to choose where they work between home
and the office, with an expectation that they come together when it is valuable
and meaningful to do so, to maintain relationships, support our cuiture and
collaborate.

Further information on Nationwide’s scope 1, 2
and 3 carbon emissions can be found in our full

Climate-related Financial Disclosures 2023 at
nationwide.co.uk
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Nationwide's full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co.uk

Nationwide’s scope 3 downstream category 15 Nationwide’s scope 3 upstream (categories 1, 2, and 4)
(investments) carbon emissions - mortgages, registered carbon emissions
social landlords, and commercial real estate {See table on page 64)

(See table on page 64)

Through our partnership with Carbon Intelligence, we have calculated our scope

Nationwide continues to disclose the emissions associated with its mortgage, 3 emissions for upstream activities across our supply chain. Purchased goods and
commercial real estate (CRE) and registered social landlord {RSL) portfolins. We services (category 1), capital goods (category 2) and upstream transportation and
have calculated both the absolute and the financed emissions for our mortgage, distribution (category 4) account for around 91% of our total emissions across
CRE and RSL portfolios. The absolute emissions have been weighted by loan categories 1-8.

to value {LTV) in order to calculate the proportion of emissions financed by
Nationwide. This is in line with Partnership for Carbon Accounting Financials
(PCAF) methodo'ogy.

Our upstream emissions have been calculated using publicly disclosed supplier
emissions data (covering scopes 1-3} from CDP environmental disclosure
responses, and revenue from the most recently published annual reports, where

Our absolute scope 3 mortgage emissions have reduced in comparison to last available. Data gaps were supplemented using industry average emissions
year, due to a reduction In the total number of properties on the book. LTV noam_.:mn_ within the GHG P..oﬂoo_ and Quantis’s Scope w.mcm_:mﬁoﬂ tool.
weighted emissions, and LTV weighted carbon intensity, have increased slightly Emissians data excludes emissions from employees working at home.

compared to last year due to an increase in average LTV. Our absolute and

LTV weighted emissions, LTV weighted carben intensity, and total floor area,

for the RSL portfolio have reduced compared to last year. This is due to the
enhancements made to our EPC mode! to include postcode matching capability.
Our absolute scope 3 CRE emissions, and LTV weighted emissions, have reduced

in comparison to last year, due to a decrease in overall lending. Scope 1, 2, and 3 emissions assurance

Information on how scope 3 emissions for mortgages, CRE and RSL have been

We appointed Ernst and Young LLP (EY) to provide limited independent assurance
calculated is in our Climate-related Financial Disclosures 2023.

over our scope 1, 2, and 3 carbon emission disclosures for the year ended 4 April
2023. This includes scope 1 and 2 emissions for the year ended 4 April 2023 and
scope 3 financed (investment and upstream) emissions for the 12-month period
ended 31 December 2022, Assurance was also provided for the year ended 4 April
2022, as disclosed in our Climate-related Financial Disclosures 2022. Assured
metrics and KPIs are indicated throughout Nationwide's Climate-retated Financial
Disclosures 2023. The assurance engagement was planned and performed in
accordance with the International Standard for Assurance Engagements {ISAE)
{UK) 3000 (July 2020}, Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews

of Historical Financial Informaticn. A limited assurance report was issued and

is available on Natienwide's website®. This report includes details of the scope,
respective responsibilities, work performed, limitations and conclusion.

6. EY emissions assurance report 2023.
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A summary of
Nationwide's
scope 1, 2,

and 3 carbon
emissions data’

The key mcvemen:s inthe
carbon emissions data table
opposite ar2 expla ned on
pages 62 and 63.

Nationwide contirues

to disclose nline with
Streamlinec Energy Cahon
and Repoerting regulaticn
requiremens®,

We recognise certain
limitations in climaze deta
affecting climate rretrics
and targets, and *heir
usefulness in strategic
decision making. Fer more
information on scope 1,

2, and 3 data scorzs and
data limitations, se2 pages
44 and 45 in Naticnwid2’s
Climate-releted Financial
Disclosures 2023.

7. Notes for th2 carber 2missions
data table are detailed in
Mationwide’s Climate-ralated
Financizl Disclosures 2023

8. Detail of the Society < energy
efficiency action car e foLnd
in the Stratedjy sectioyin
Nationwide’s Climate -related
Financial Disclosures 2323.

Climate-related financial disclosures {continued)

Nationwide’s full Climate-related Financial

Disclosures 2023 can be found at nationwide.co.uk

Scope 1and 2 emissions data

Year to 4 April 2023 Year to 4 Aprit 2022

Scope 1-Energy and travel {tCO.e/y) 2,361 3,002

Scope 2 - Electricity (tCO.efy) 12,774 14,972

Total gross scope T and 2 emissions (tCO:efy) 15135 17,974
Absolate carbon outturn (less PPA carbon reduction and green ta-iff electr ciy) (tCO.ely) 2,361 3,002

Total carbon dioxide in tonnes per full time employee [=TE) 017 0.19

Total net scope 1and 2 emissions (tCO.e//) 0 0

Total ene gy usage - Electricity and gas (MWh) 76,781 86,417

Scope 3 emissions data - upstream - purchased goods and services, capital goods,
and transportation and distribution

Total upstream scope 3 carbon dioxide emrissions {1CO,efy}

Scope 3 emissions data - mortgages

Year to 31 Dec 2022

156,000

Year to 31 Dec 2022

Year to 31 Dec 2021

230,000

Year to 31 Dec 2021

Absolute zarbon emissions on whole book using interpalated EPC da:a (tCO.e/y) 6,111,000 6,187,000
LTV waighed carbor emissions using LTV weighted ir ferpolated EPC data (t20.e/fy) 2,801,000 2,795,000
LTV weigh-ed carbor intensity using LTV weighted inf2rpolated EPC data (kgCO,e/m3ly) 19.24 19.03

Scope 3 emissions data - registered social landlords

Absoltte carbon emissions on whole book using interpolzted EPC data (1CO.2/y)

Year to 31 Dec 2022

Year to 31 Dec 2021

£66,000 747,000
LTV weigh1ed carbon emissions using LTV weighted ‘ntaraclated EPC data 1C0.efy) 222,000 346,000
s 20.01 22.36

LTV weighted carbon intensity using LTV weighted irte-pslated EFC data (kg-0.e/m3Yy)

Scope 3 emissions data - commercial real estate

Year to 31 Dec 2022

Year to 31 Dec 2021

Absolute carbon emissicns on whole bock asing proxy EPC data (1CO.e/fy) 138,000 259,000
LTV weigated carbon emissions using LTV ~eighted prexy EPC da-a {:CO.e'yi 45,000 96,000
LTV weignted carbon intensity using LTV weighted proxy =PC data {kgCO.e/m?/y) 31.28 45,39
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Risk overview

The Board recognises that effective risk management is essential to Natichwide's ongoing strength and the delivery of our strategic objectives. As such, we adopt a prudent approach to
risk management. keeping our cusiomers’ money safe and secure by ensuring that the risks we take in support of our strategy are controlled through a robust risk framework. We operate
a relatively simple business mode! and operate in lower risk markets to serve our customers’ interests and keep their money safe and secure by taking risks we understand and can
manage well. ‘

Howr

sk is managed at Mationwide

Nationwide operates a Board-approved Enterprise Risk Management Framework to ensure risks are managed in a consistent and rigorous way. This framework defines how risks are
managed and sets out the risk management responsibilities of all colleagues within an industry standard three lines of defence model. This ensures that all rigks are appropriately and
consistently identified, assessed, managed, monitored, and reported within the first line of defence. Independent oversight and challenge of the Society’s risk management practices are

provided by the Society’s independant Risk function, led by the Chief Risk Officer, whilst the Internal Audit function provides assurance of the effectiveness of our control environmen- for
the Board.

Through the Enterprise Risk Managzment Framework, the Board formally sets its risk appetite, articulating how much risk it is prepared to take in the pursuit of its objectives. A robust
suite of policies and standards translates this appetite into the localised risk management activities and controls that our colleagues operate on a day-to-day basis to protect our
customers and their money. The Board and management committees receive regular reporting on the Society’s risk profile and key risk metrics to support them in monitoring our position
relative to risk appetite. Further infcrmation on the Enterprise Risk Management Framework and its key components is shown in the Managing risk section of the Risk repart on page 139.

Nationwide continJously reviews th2 risks to which it is exposed and strengthens the controls it relies on to mitigate these risks. A programme has been completed to develop
further the organisation’s understanding of the most prominent risks and controls within key customer facing processes, which is driving continued improvements to customer
experiences and increasing the efficiency and effectiveness of key processes and controls.

Risks to Nationwide
The risks which Nztionwide faces cen be divided across two broad categories:

» Principal risks encompass all of the different types of risk to which Nationwide is exposed. These are defined in the Enterprise Risk Management Framework, ensuring the
Society underszands and manages all of its risks in a comprehensive and consistent way. Further information on these risks can be found on page 143 of the Risk report.

« Top and emerging risks are spec fic current or future risks which have the potential to impact materially Nationwide’s financial results and delivery of its strategic objectives, and
often impact across a number of principal risks. The most significant of these are described below, together with key developments, a summary of actions we are taking to
reduce the risk, and the strategic objectives which are most likely to be impacted by each risk.

Top and emerging risks

Risk How we mitigate this risk >an_=o:m_._:qo_§mmo: in
the following sections

Climate change & ¢  We limit the impact our activities have on climate change by investing in

The risks relating to climate change, inciuding both physical risks sustainable business practices and adjusting our lending criteria to Beacon for mutual good -

to UK housing stozk and property and the transitional risks as the minimise risk. Reducing our

country moves lowards zero net emissions, continue to evelve as [« We continue to develop eur processes to reflect potential changes in environmental impact

government policy develops and te zhnelogies mature. macro-economic conditions and the housing market as we transition to a {page 20)

low carbon economy, and complete robust internal and external stress
testing for climate change.
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Risk

How we mitigate this risk

Additional information in
the following sections

Cyber* =

The threat of cyber-attacks remains heightened with cngeing
geopclitical tensions posing a threat to Nationwide, our staff and
our customers.

« We continuously monitor the cyber threat level and invest in our cyber
defenses to ensure we are able to respond appropriately.

Continuous improvement —
Modernising our
technology (page 21)

Data >

Cur customers trust us with their data so that we can deliver the
services and experience which thay need and expect. Given that
expectations, data technologies, end industry practices continue
to evolve at pace, the risk of inappropriate data management
remains elevated.

« We continue to prioritise investment in our data architecture, technology
and capabilities to utilise and protect our customers' personal data within a
constantly evolving operating environment.

o We work proactively with our third-party supgliers to ensure all data they
are entrusted with is robustly controlied.

Continuous improvement —
Improving our operating
and governance models
{page 22)

Economic crime®* 3

The risk environment remains challenging due to the economic
environment and ongoing conflict n Ukraine. These increase the
risk of economic crime, through graater sanctions imposed on
individuals and institutions relating to the conflict, or risks of
custemers falling prey to fraud or scams.

=  We continue to enhance our economic crime capabilities, with a structured
programme underway to improve our operating model and economic crime
control environment, including transaction monitoring.

Simply brilliant service -
Protecting our customers
in challenging
circumstances {page 18)

Macro-economic environment <

The economic envirenment remains challenging with the UK
narrowly avoiding technical recession, increasing living costs and
rising interest rates impacting cus-omer finances and the long-
term impact of ongoing geopolitica! tensions yet to emerge.
Recent bank failures in the US anc Europe have the potential to
cause further economic deteriorat’an or impact consumer
confidence, in particular within the banking sector.

» We maintain strong capital and liquidity levels in excess of regulatory
minima and regularly undertake robust internal and regulatory stress tests
to ensure our financial resources are sufficient under a range of severe but
plausible scenarios.

» We continuously review and adjust our credit policies to ensure they remain
appropriate for the prevailing economic conditions and continue to support
customers who may experience financial difficulty.

+ Nationwide only has exposures to highly rated banking counterparties;
these consist primarily of fully collateralised derivatives and covered bonds
for liguidity management,

Simply brilliant service —
Supporting our customers
throtugh cost of fiving
pressures (page 17}

Credit risk - Treasury
assets (page 177)

People risk =2

With increasing industrial action being seen in the UK, cost of
living pressures combined with competition for talent in a number
of key areas continue to have the potential to impact recruitment
and retention of colleagues with the skills and capabilities
required to support the strategy and serve our customers.

» We continuously review and develop our employee proposition to ensure
we remain competitive and attract the right talent to deliver for our
customers.

«  We pro-actively engage with the Nationwide Group Staff Union on our
remuneration packages and empioyment policies to ensure our employees
are represented and treated fairly.

Engaging with our
stakeholders - Our
Colleagues (pages 31 to
32)

Regulatory change A

The regulatory environment continues to evolve with numerous
material regulatory developments expected over the next year,
including the recently announced ‘Edinburgh Reforms’, changes
to the regulatory capital framework and the implementation of
Consumer Duty.

+ We have structured initiatives in place to deliver relevant regulatory
changes promptly and proportionately.

« We maintain continuous engagement with all cur reguiators to identify and
appropriatelyrespond to regulatory requirements.

Engaging with our
stakeholders - Reguiators
and policy rmakers (page
35)

Technology and resilience A

Our customers rely upon our systems and services being
available when they need them, The risk of outages and system
failures is increased both by the age and complexity of the
Society’s technology estate, and the volume of system changes
to improve it.

+ We have prioritised strategic investment in our systems and technology
capability.

« We continue to strengthen our internal control environment to improve
resilience, proactively balancing continued service provision with the need
to update and develep our systems to meet customers’ current and future
needs.

Continuous improvement —
Modernising our
technology (page 21)

Key (change in underlying risk to Nat onwide in year)
& Increased level of risk =P Stable ‘evel of risk
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Viability statement

The directors have an obligation to confirm that they believe that both the Society and the Group will be able to continue in operation, and to meet their
liabilities as they fall due. This viability statement considers the Group’s current financial and strategic position and the potential impact of its principal
risks, to explain the directors’ assessment of the Group’s prospects over an appropriate period.

Assessment of viability

In addition to taking a 12-month view of whether the Group remains a going concern, the directors have considered the viability of the Group over a three-year period. Whilst it will
always be difficult to predict the fu ure path of the UK or the wider global economy with any degree of precision, this period strikes the right balance between assessing likely
outcomes using the current informztion we have, whilst accepting a degree of uncertainty over a longer period. A three-year period is within the timeframe of the Group’s
profitability projections and stress t=sts which provide a reascnable expectation of centinued operations and ability to meet liabilities as they fall due.

In making their assessment, the directors have considered the Group’s key risks, and the stress testing activity which has been carried out to assess the potential impact of these
risks. This assessment includes corsideration of the Top and emerging risks outiined in Risk overview. While there is an increased ievel of risk associated with regulatory change,
and technology and resilience, the impact of these risks to ongoing viability is low. When reviewed alongside the Group’s strategic plan, and the strength of the Group’s current
financial position, the directors conclude that the Group remains viable over a three-year period.

Consideration of key risks

The directors of Nationwide have censidered for the purposes of viability over the past year the impact on Nationwide’s risk profile of the prevailing macroeconomic and
geopolitical environment, the chang ng needs of our customers and our work to ensure our processes and systems remain robust. While emerging risks on pages 65 to 66 were
not directly modelled, our assessment concluded that the severity and impact of these risks fall within the scenarios used for this analysis. Throughout the year, the Board has
considered the risks which are most relevant to Nationwide's strategy, which include:

o Geopolitical and macroeconomic environment — As a UK-focused business, the Group's performance is naturally aligned to the UK's economic conditions. The economic outlook
remains uncertain, having been ceverely impacted by the conflict in Ukraine and ongoing cost of living pressures. Whilst there remains uncertainty regarding the future profile of
interest rates and macroeconom ¢ variables, the Society maintains strong capital and liquidity levels and regularly undertakes robust internal and regulatory stress tests to
ensure these are sufficient undes a range of severe scenarios.

« Competitive environment and colsumer behaviours — The level of competition and brand relevance remains a key consideration. This could be driven by shifting customer
behaviours, regulatory changes znd continued innovation in the financial services sector, or new participants using price and service advantage to challenge our market share
aspirations and profitability. ,

« Economic crime and cyber secur ty — We continuously monitor the external landscape to identify potential cyber and fraud threats whilst operating and maturing our economic
crime and cyber controls to protect our customers and services, and to meet cur regulatory cbligations.

» Operational reslience — Maintaining resilient systems, infrastructure and processes remains critical as changing consumer behaviours influence member needs in accessing our
products and services and how tiey interact with us. We continue to moniter and strengthen our control environment whilst proactively monitoring the resilience of our services
to reduce disruption to our customers.

+ Climate change — Risks continue -o eveolve as government policies mature, including transition towards greater requirements on energy performance certificates (EPC) which is
likely to play out across a numbes of other risks.
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Planning and stress testing activity during 2022/23

During 2022/23, the Group developed financial forecasts and a range of plausible stressed economic scenarios, which reflect the risks which are most material to our financial
strength. The scenarios considered include:

« A base case economic scenaric, reflecting weaker economic growth in the short term, a softening of momentum within the housing market and an increasing Bark rate. This
scenario has been subject to revision during the year to reflect developments in the macroeconomic outlook, in particular with respect te Bank rate and inflationary expectations.

+ A macroeconcmic ‘downside’ sensitivity explering the impacts of Bank rate falling ragidly back to 1% and greater deterioration in unemployment and house prices relative to the
base case scenario.

« Aninternally generated stress scenario exploring a severe but plausible stress in which an escalation of the conflict in Ukraine causes an economic downturn, with rising
unemploymens, inflation and suzstantial falls in house prices,

« The Bank of England’'s 2022 Annual Cyclical Scenario (ACS), which considered a significant rise in inflation and the associated monetary policy impacts, causing Bank rate to rise.
The scenario znticipated a severe path for the current macroeconomic outlook, inclucing a fall in real household income and a severe UK recession.

« Ourreverse stress test scenaric, which explores the financial impact of Nationwide failing te deliver its strategic goals in a downside economic scenario, causing the loss of
brand, propositional and digital -elevance and a failure te maintain scale.

¢ A severe idiosvncratic liquidity stress scenario exploring the impact of a ransomware attack and resultant failure to maintain member confidence, in addition to the temporary
loss of access to wholesale funding markets, within the context of a macroeconomic stress.

A selection of these scenarios has teen used for expected credit loss modelling during 2022/23, and further detail can be found in note 10 to the financial statements.

Conclusion on viability

In addition to the Group's curreni financial strength, demonstrated through streng capital ratios (CET1 ratic of 26.5% and leverage ratio of 6.0% at 4 April 2023) and liquidity position
(12-month average LCR for the year ended 4 April 2023 of 180%), the directors have assessed the impact of the scenarios described above on the Group's key financial metrics over
the three-year assessment period. _

In our base case economic scenario, key financial performance metrics are projected to remain comfortably above Board Risk Appetite and regulatory buffers. In addition, our recent
external and interral stress testing activity demonstrates how the Group can withstand severe economic and competitive stresses, including those linked to an escalation of the

conflict in Ukraine, heightened inflation and changes to the expected path of Bank rate.

The directors have a reascnable expactation that the Scciety and Group will be able to continue its operations, and to meet its liabilities as they fall due, over the three-year
assessment period.
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Financial review

Chris Rhodes, Chief Financial Officer, Nationwide Building Scciety, said:

“The sustained strength of our finaices has allowed us to support our members through-a highly uncertain period
and significant cost of living increases. It has also enabled the Society to launch the Nationwide Fairer Share
Payment in June 2023, returning £340C million directly to our eligible members, as well as a Fairer Share Bond.

"We have continuad to support cur members’ borrowing and savings needs during the year, and as a result have
delivered growth in our mertgage and deposit balances. We delivered £1,055 million of member financial benefit
through better pricing and incentives than the market average during the year. We also provided £57 million of
cashback to customers who hold a current account with us and £40 millicn of additional cost of living support to
colleagues.

“Due to the highly uncertain economic outlook, it is important that we maintain our financial strength to continue to
support our customers through the chalienges ahead.”

Financial highlights

» Underlying profit for the year increased to = Total administrative expenses increased by
£2,233 million (2022: £1,604 mi lion) and statutory n {2022 £2,234 million},
profit increased to £2,228 million {2022: £1,597 reflecting higher inflation, including £40 million
million). This reflects income growth, partially offset relating to cost of living support to colleagues.

by higher costs and charges for credit impairments.
« The credit impairment charge of £126 million for the

+ Total income increased by £80€ millicn due to rising year (2022: release of £27 million) reflects a
interest rates, with net interest margin (NIM) deterioration in the econemic outlook during the year,
increasing to 1.57% (2022: 1.26%). with expected future increases in arrears due to
affordability pressures. However, the credit quality of
+ Member financial benefit increased to £1,055 million our lending portfclios remains very strong with low
(2022: £325 million), supperted by the strength of cur levels of arrears.
mortgage and savings rates relative to the market
average. +« CET1and leverage ratios increased to 26.5% and

6.0% (2022: 24.1% and 5.4%) respectively.
» Mortgage balances increased to £201.7 billion (2022:
£198.1 billion), resulting in a stock market share of
12.2% {2022: 12.4%). Member deposit balances
increased by £9.1 billion to £187 1 billion (2022:
£178.0 billion) and our market srare of deposits
increased to 9.6% (2022; 9.4%).

Financial review

Underlying profit:

£2,233m

(2022: £1,604m)

Statutory profit:

£2,229m

(2022: £1,597m)

L.everage ratio:

6.0%

{2022: 5.4%)
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The results are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as set out in note 1 to the financial statements. Underlying results are shown below,
together with a reconciliation to thz statutory results.

Net interest margin:

1.57%

(2022: 1.26%)

Income statement

Underlying and statutory results

2023 2022 c:%:ﬁ:ﬂwmw% income

£m £m :

0

Net interest income 4,498 3,562 L.@ .N ku
Net other income 175 305 {2022: 57.8%, note iij)
Total underlying income 4,673 3,867 Statutory cost |
Administrative expenses (2,323) (2,234) J“mzo. Income
Impairment {charge}/release (126) 27 -
Provisions for liadiiities and charges 9 (56) b.wmo\o
Underlying profi: before tax {note i} 2,233 1,604 99- N
Losses from derivatives and hedge accounting {note ii) (4) (7) (2022: 57.9%, note i)
Statutory profit before tax 2,229 1,597 Return on assets
Taxation {(565) (345) O m\_ .x.
Profit after tax 1,664 1,252 nmow.m. 0.46%)
Notes:

i. Underlying prof t represents management's view of underlying performance. Gains or losses from derivatives and hedge accounting (presented separately within total income) and FSCS
costs or refunds from institutional failures (included within provisions for liabilities and charges) are excluded from statutery profit to arrive at underlying profit. There are no FSCS costs or
refunds from institutional failures for the financial years ended 4 April 2023 and 4 April 2022.

ii. Although we on y use derivatives to hedge market risks, income statement volatility can still arise due to hedge accounting ineffectiveness or because hedge accounting is either not applied
or is not achievable. This volatility ‘s largely attributable to accounting rules which do not fully reflect the economic reality of the hedging strategy.

. The underlying cost income ratic rapresents management’s view of underlying performance. Gains or losses from derivatives and hedge accounting are exciuded from the statutory cost
income ratio to arrive at the underlying cost income ratio. .

Total income and net interest marcin (NIM)

Net interest income increased by £336 million to £4,428 millicn (2022: £3,562 million) with the net interest margin increasing to 1.57% (2022: 1.26%}. Increases in the Bank rate have
led to an increase in net interest income, reflecting the timing and the level of pass through of interest rate changes to savings products, partially offset by a decline in mortgage net
interest income. Member financial kenefit has increased, as Nationwide has passed a greater proportion of interest rate rises to savers than the market average.

Net other income "as reduced by £130 million to £175 million (2022: £305 million}, with £57 million cashback provided to members with a personal current account as part of the
Society's cost of living support. We have also observed higher costs of providing travel insurance to packaged current account holders in 2023.
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Member financial benefit

As a building socizty, we seek to maintain Naticnhwide's financial strength whilst providing value to our members through pricing, products and service. Through member financial
benefit, we measure the additional financial value for members from the competitive mortgage, savings and banking products that we offer compared to the market average.
Member financial benefit is calculated by comparing, in aggregate, Nationwide's average interest rates and incentives te the market, predominantly using market data provided by
the Bank of England and CACI, alor gside internal calculations. The value for individual members will depend on their circumstances and product choices.

We guantify member financial benefit as:

Our interest rate differential + incentives and lower fees

Interest rate differential

We measure how our average interast rates across our member balances in total compare against the market over the year.

For our two largest member segments, mortgages and retail deposits, we compare the average member interest rate for these portfolios against Bank of England and CACI industry
data. A market benchmark based uon the data from CACI and internal Nationwide calculations is used for mortgages and a Bank of England benchmark is used for retail deposits,

both adjusted to exclude Nationwice balances. The differentials derived in this way are then applied to member balances for mortgages and deposits.

For unsecured lending, a similar comparison is made. We calculate an interest rate differential based on available market data from the Bank of England and CACI and apply this to
the total interest bearing balances of credit cards and personal leans.

Member incentives and fees

Our member financial benefit measure also includes amounts in relation to incentives and fees that Nationwide offers to members. The calculation includes annual amounts for the
following:

« Mortgages: the differential on incentives for members compared to the market.

»  FlexPlus acccunt: this current ccount is considered market leading against major banking competitors, with a high level of benefits for a relatively smaller fee. The difference
between the monthly account fee of £13 and the market average over the financial year of £20 is incluged in the member financia! benefit measure.

«  Member Prize Draw: eligible members were automatically entered into monthly prize draws with a total prize pot of £1 million. The prize draw was launched in September 2021
and ran until August 2022,

For the year ended 4 April 2023, th's measure shows we provided our members with a financial benefit of £1,055 million (2022: £325 million). The increase is due to our strong
mortgage and savings products wh ch seek to provide good value to BmB_omG As interest rates have risen, we have passed through a higher proportion of the increase to savers
than the market average. The member financial benefit of £1,055 million does not include the Nationwide Fairer Share Payment to be made in June 2023.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses have increased by £89 million to £2,323 million {2022: £2,234 millicn) largely due to inflation. The costs in the year include £40 miilion cost of living support
to employees. Costs also include incremental investment in financial crime controls of £1€ million and in technolegy resilience, particularly £26 million relating to payment systems.
Redundancy and associated costs have increased by £32 miliicn as we create efficiencies within our support functions. These amounts were offset by the non-recurrence of 2022
charges relating to accelerated amcrtisation of specific intangible assets of £53 million and historical fraud cases of £16 million.

71



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements Other information U Financial review (continued)

Impairment charge/(release) on loans and advances to customers

Impairment charge/(release) (note i)

2023 2022

£m £m

Residential lending 94 {128)
Consumer banking 3 93
Retail lending 125 (35)
Commercial 1 8
Impairment charge/(release) on lcans and advances 126 (27

Note:
i. Impairment charge/(release) represents the net amount charged/(credited) through the income statement, rather than amounts written off during the year.

The net impairment charge for the year of £126 million (2022: release of £27 million) includes the impact of higher expected interest rates on mortgage provisions. The prior year
impairment releas2 reflected a decrzase in provisions during a year where the economic outlook had improved. The underlying arrears performance of our residential mortgage
portfolio has improved slightly, with consumer lending arrears marginally deteriorating. An increase in arrears from current levels is expected due to affordability pressures. More
information regarding critical accounting judgements, and the forward-looking economic information used in impairment calculations, is included in note 10 to the financial
statements.

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions are held to cover the costs of remediation and redress in relation to historical guality control procedures, past sales and administration of customer accounts, and other
regulatory matters. The release of £3 million {2022: £56 million charge) is due te updates to judgements and estimates used in determining provisions relating to historical quality
control procedures, More information is included In note 27 to the financial statements.

Taxation

The tax charge for the year of £565 million {2022: £345 million) represents an effective tax rate of 25.4% (2022: 21.634) which is higher than the statutory UK corporation tax rate of
19% (2022: 19%). The effective tax rate is higher primarily due to the banking surcharge of £145 million (2022: £72 million). The effective tax rate in 2022 was also reduced by tre
impact of £23 million of non-recurring tax adjustments in respect of prior years. Further informztion is provided in note 11 to the financial statements.
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Balance sheet

Total assets have decreased to £271.9 billion at 4 April 2023 {2022: £272.4 billien). This is predominantly due to reguced holdings of cash and liquid assets.

Mortgage lending has been robust, with residential mortgage balances increasing to £201.7 billion (2022: £198.1 n). Member deposit balances have increased by £9.1 billior to
£187.1 billion (2022: £178.0 billion) &s a resuit of increases i1 savings balances following the launch of competitive new products.

Assets : 12-month average
2023 2022 Liquidity Coverage Ratio
£m % £m % {note ii):
Cash 25,635 30,221 0
Residential mortgages (note i) 201,662 85 198,120 g5 \_ mo &
Commercial 5,477 3 6,054 3 (2022: 183%)
Consumer bkanking 4,408 2 4638 2
211,547 100 208,812 100
Impairment provisions {765) {746)
Loans and advances to customers 210,782 208,066
Other financial assets 32,387 30,816
Other non-financial assets (note iii) 3,089 3,251
Total assets 271,893 272,354
Asset quality % %
Residential mortgages (note i);
Proportion of residential mortgage accounts more than 3 months in 0.32 034
arrears
Average indexed Isan to value {by \alue) 55 52
Consumer banking:
Proportion of customer balances wizh amounts past due more than 1.21 113

3 menths {excluding charged off balances)
Notes:
i. Residential mortgages include prime, buy to let and fegacy lending.

il. This represents a simple average of the Liguidity Coverage Ratic {LCR) for the last 12 month ends. The LCR ensures that sufficient high-guality liquid assets are held to survive a short-term
severe but plausible fiquidity stress.
iii. Included within other non-financial essets at 4 April 2023 is £24 milli

n (2022: £18 million} of inventory in relation to the construction of houses at the Qakfield development in Swinden.

Cash

Cash is liquidity held by our Treasury function, with the £4.6 billion decrease predominantly due to a £4.5 billion repayment of the Bank of England's Term Funding Scheme with
additional incentives for SMEs (TFSE).

The average Liguidity Coverage Ratio over the 12 months ended 4 April 2023 was 180% (12 months ended 4 April 2022: 183%). Liquidity continues to be managed against internal
risk appetite, which is more prudent than regulatory requirements and, under the most severe internal 30 calendar day stress test, the average liquid asset buffer remains robust,

Nationwide's Tiguidity and funding ris< framework also ensures that a stable and diverse funding base is maintained. Further details are included in the Liguidity and funding risk
section of the Risk report.
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Residential mortgages

Total gross mortgage lending was Icwer than in the prior year at £33.6 billion (2022: £36.5 billien) and our market share of gross advances decreased to 10.8% (2022: 11.8%). Net
lending in the year was supported by our continued focus on retention through highly competitive products provided to existing members, whilst also continuing to fecus on first
time buyers. Prime mortgage balances increased to £157.6 billion (2022: £154.4 billicn) and buy to let and jegacy mortgage balances increased to £44.1 billion {2022: £43.7 billion).

Arrears remain low and have improvad slightly during the year, with cases more than three months in arrears representing 0.32% (2022: 0.34%) of the total portfolic. However, an
increase in arrears from current levels is expected, due to rising inflation and increasing interest rates neqatively impacting household finances. Impairment provision balances have
increased to £280 million (2022: £1£7 million} primarily due to higher interest rate expectations. This has resulted in an increase in the provisions held to reflect mortgage
affordability risks, as well as increaszd expected credit losses in the severe downside economic scenario.

Consumer banking

Consumer banking kbalances have decreased to £4.4 billion (2022: £4.8 billion). Consumer banking comprises personal loan balances of £2.6 billion (2022: £2.9 billion), credit card
balances of £1.5 billion (2022: £1.5 tillion) and overdrawn current account balances of £0.3 billion (2022: £0.3 billion).

Arrears performance has deteriorated slightly during the year, with balances more than three months in arrears (excluding charged off accounts} representing 1.21% (2022: 1.13%) of
the total portfolio. Provision balances were £469 million (2022: £529 million), primarily due to revised impacts of affordability pressures on future credit performance.

Commercial lending
During the year, commercial lending balances decreasad to £5.5 billion (2022: £6.1 billion). The oversll portfolio includes registered social landiords with balances of £4.1 billion

(2022: £4.3 n), project finance with balances of £0.5 billion (2022; £0.6 billion) and commercial real estate balances of £0.4 billion (2022: £0.6 billion}. Both project finance and
commercial reat estate books are clcsed to new lending.

Impairment provision balances decreased to £16 million (2022: £30 million) due to updates to a small number of individual loans.
Other financial assets

Other financial assets of £32.4 billion (2022: £30.8 bilion} comprise investment assets held by Nationwide’s Treasury function of £27.6 billion {2022: £25.5 billion}, loans and
advances 10 banks and similar institLtions of £2.9 billion (2022: £3.0 billion), derivatives with positive fair values of £6.9 billion (2022: £4.7 billion) and fair value adjustments for
portfolio hedged risk of £(5.0} billion (2022: £{2.4) billion). Derivatives largely comprise interest rate and foreign exchange contracts which economically hedge financial risks
inherent in Nationwide's lending and funding activities.

Members' interests, equity and liabilities Wholesale funding

2023 ‘ 2022 ratio:

ém - 25.0%

{2022: 28.8%)

Member depesits 187,143

Debt securities in issue 27,626

Other financial liabilities 38,701

Other liabilities 1,517

Total liabilities 254,987 56,655
Members' interests and equity 16,906 15,69
Total members’ interests, equity and liabilities 271,893 , 272,354

74



Annuat Report & Accounts 2023

Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements Other information u Financial review {continued)

Member deposits

Member deposit balances grew by £9.1 billion (2022: £7.7 billion) to £187.1 billion {2022: £178.0 billion). Nationwide's market share of deposit balances increased to 8.6% (4 April
2022: 9.4%). This increase is due o growth in savings balances of £11.7 billion (2022: £4.7 billien) supported by competitive fixed rate online bond products, Qur market share of
accounts increased to 10.4% (2022: 10.3%)". Credit balances on current accounts recuced by £2.0 biliion (2022: £3.0 billion growth).

Debt securities in ssue and other financial liabilities

Debt securities in issue relate to wholesale funding, excluding subordinated debt which is included within other financial liabilities. Balances increased to £27.6 billion (2022: £25.6
billion) reflecting securad and unsecurad wholesale funding issuances. Other financial liabilities decreased to £38.7 billion {2022: £51.5 billion) primarily due to a reduction in funding
from sale and repurchase agreements and a repayment of some of our drawings from the Bank of England’s Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for SMEs (TFSME).
Naticnwide’s wholesale funding ratio decreased to 25.0% (2022: 28.8%). Further details are included in the Liquidity and furding risk section of the Risk report.

Members' interests and equity

Members' intereste and equity have increased to £16.9 billion {2022: £15.7 billion) largely as a result of retained profits.

Statement of comprehensive income

Statement of comprehensive income (note i)

2023 2022

£m fm

Profit after tax 1,664 1,252
Net remeasurement of pension obligations (56) 543
Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve (8) 1m
Net movement in other hedging reserve {4) 3
Net movement in fair value through other comprehensive income reserve (103) (20)
Net movement in revaluation reserve 1 5
Total comprehensive income 1,494 1,772

Note:
i. Movements are snown net of related taxation. Gross movements are set out in the financial statements on page 235.

" CACFKs Current Account and Savings Database Stock (February 2023 and February 2022).
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Capital structure

Nationwide’'s capital position remains strong, with both the Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) ratio and leverage ratio comfortably above regulatory capital requirements of 11.5% and
4.0% respectively. The CET1 ratio inzreased to 26.5% (2022: 24.1%) and the leverage ratio increased to 6.0% (2022: 5.4%). The capital disclosures Included in this report arg in I ne
with UK Capital Requirements Directive V (UK CRD V) with I7RS 9 transitional arrangements included.

Capital structure

2023 2022
£m £m
Capital resources
CET1 capital 13,733 12,471
Total Tier 1 capital 156,069 13,807
Total regulatory capital 16,908 16,466
Capital requirements
Risk weighted assets (RWAS) 51,731 51,823
Leverage exposure 249,299 255,407
UK CRD V capital ratics % %
CET1 ratio 26.5 241
Leverage ratio 6.0 5.4

The CET1 ratio increased to 26.5% (2022: 24.1%) as a result of an increase in CET1 capital of £1.3 billion, in conjunction with a reduction in RWAs of £0.1 billion. The CET1 capital
resources increase was driven by £17 billion profit after tax, partially offset by £0.2 billion of capital distributicns, a £0.1 billion CET1 deduction following the repurchase of Core
Capital Deferred Shares (CCDS) in February 2023, and a £0.1 billion reduction in the fair value through other comprehensive income reserve. RWAs reduced, with an increase in
residential mertgage lending being more than offset by a reduction in off-balance sheet commitments.

The leverage ratio increased to 6.0% (2022: 5.4%), with Tier 1 capital increasing by £1.3 billion as a resuit of the CET1 capital movements referenced above. In addition, there was a
decrease in leverace exposure of £68.1 billion, driven by the same moverments as described above for RWAs. Leverage requirements continue to be Nationwide's binding Tier 1
capital constraint, as the combination of minimum and regulatory buffer requirements are in excess of the risk-based equivalent.

Further details of the capital position and future regulatory developments are described in the Capital risk section of the Risk report.
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A letter from your Chairman

For the year ended 4 April 2323

Dear fellow member,

| am pleased to present the Governance eport for the financial
year ended 4 April 2023.

As a mutual, Natienwide is driven by a sccial purpose to take
decisions in the interest of its members. This starts with good
governance to ensure that decisions taken continue to support
the long-term resitience of the Society and deliver value for
present and future mambers. The Board is respansible for
governance, setting & clear strategy, and ensuring that, as well as
fulfilling our statutory duties, the Society is managed in line with
its mutual values,

The Board is committed to maintaining t1e highest standards
in the way Nationwide is directed, govern=d and managed, and
chose to adopt the ethos and principles cf the UK Corperate
Governance Code (the Code) which sets “he governance
standards for public listed companies. Wz aim to comply with
the Code in line with 1he Building Secieties Association
guidance to ensure alignment with goed practice and our
mutual status.

Further information 01 our governance structure and how we
have applied the provisions of the Code is set cut in this report.
Set out below are sorre of the Board’s key governance activities
during the year.

Member engagement

As a mutual, members continue to be at the heart of what we do
at Nationwide, and we continue to listen to members’ needs and
recognise the importance of considering our members in every
decision we make. More information is fcund on page 29.

78

We have continued to host Member TalkBacks, erabling members
to connect directly with senior managers of the Society and share
their views. More information on these sessions can be found on
our website at nationwide.co.uk. We have zlso engaged with
members through the Member Connect service, giving us up to
date feedback and member insights.

The Society's 2022 AGM was particularly successful due to the
large number of members able te join and participate online, both
by voting and asking questions. As in-person attendance at our
AGMs is declining and our online participation is incraasing, we
will build on the success of 2022, by hosting our 2023 AGM wholly
online. All Board members will be available at the AGM to answer
your questicns and to listen to your feedback.

Inclusion, diversity and culture

To ensure we continue to serve our members and their diverse
needs effectively, we remain committed to maintaining a diversity
of perspectives, experience and backgrounds within seniar
management and the Roard. The composifion of the Boasd s outlined
on page 95; it exceeds the Listing Rules gender diversity
requirement and meets the ethnic diversity requirement. We
rermain committed to our inclusive culture which reflects the
diversity of our membership and colleagues and supports our
mutual principles. Further information about our oversight of the
Society’s culture can be found on page 85.

Climate change

The Board is conscious of the impact of climate change and is
committed to ensuring that the Society scrutinises its carbon
footprint and reduces its energy consumption.

Report of the directors on corporate governance

Chairman'’s introduction to the Corporate Governance report

In December 2022 we published our intermediate science-hased
targets, supported by comprehensive disclosures which can be
found on pages 53 to 64 and within our Climate Related Financial
Disclosures publication on nationwide.co.uk.

Board changes

it is important that the Board has the right blend of experience,
skills and diversity to provide the appropriate level of oversight and
challenge of the business. This year there have been a number of
changes to the Board. We welcomed Debbie Crosbie as the
Society's Chief Executive in June 2022, and Tracey Graham as a
nen-executive directo- in September 2022. Mai Fyfield and Gunn
Waersted will retire from the Board at the AGM in July 2023 and, on
behalf of the Board, I thank Mai and Gunn for their service nd
contribution to the Society. Tracey Graham will assume the role of
Senior independent Director, subject to regulatory approval,
following Gunn’s retirement from the Board, Full details of all
changes are on page 83.

The year ahead

The refreshec Society Strategy was determined by the Board at its
Strazegy Conference in October 2022 and the Board looks forward
to working with management and colleagues on its effective
implementation. To ensure it remains fit for the future, the Society
continues to strengthen its processes to deliver control
improvements, particularly around member facing processes. More
information on this can be found in the section on operational ard
conduct risk on pages 211 to 216.

Kevin Parry
Society Chairman



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

mmﬁmﬁmmmoﬂmnoﬂ E Risk report

Report of the directors on corporate governance (cotinued)
Your Board

Financial statements Other information U

Your Board

Kevin Parry OBE Ang g

Society Chairman

Date of appointment

Society Chairman - 1 February 2022
Independent non-executive director - 23 May 2016

Skills and experience

Kevin Parry is a chartered accountant and brings to the
Board expertise in audit, regulation, risk management, ard
finance. As a forme- C1airman of the Homes and Commun ties
Agency, his perspective on housing is a valuable asset tc the
Society.

He has a wealth of experience across a broad range of
organisations. He has served as Chairman of Intermedizte
Capital Group plc and 3enior Independent Director of Standard
Life Aberdeen plc as well as having been the Chief Finar cial
Officer of Schroders plc and the Chief Executive Officer cf
Management Consulting Group plc. In addition, he isa
former trustee and Ctairman of the Royal National Child-2n"s
Springboard Foundation.

Current external apgointments

Chairman of Royal London Mutual Insurance Society Limized
Non-executive director and Chairman of the Audit and R'sk
Committee of Daily Maif and General Trust plc

Gunn Waersted . ng]

Senior Independent Director until July 2023
Date of appointment -

Senior Independent Director -1 February 2022
Independent non-executive director -1 June 2017

Skills and experience

Gunn Waersted's distinguished international career has
included senior leadership positions in financial services,
telecommunications and petrochemicals. She previously
served as Group Executive Vice President at Nordea Bank
Group and Global Head of Wealth Manzgement, and was CEQ
of Nordea Bank Norway. In addition, she was CEOQ at
SpareBank Group and Vital Forsikring and a non-executive
director of Statkraft, Stateil. She brings to the Board vast
experience of driving large-scale operetionai change,
cultural change and digital transfermetion programmes to
improve customer experienca. She is a strong advocate of
the need for a strong peaple cultue and creating genuinely
diverse organisations.

Current external appointments

Chair of Telenor ASA, Petoro AS and Obton AS (which
develops and operates solar PV parks and administers
investments in solar energy and properties)
Non-executive director of Fidelity International

Debhie Crosbie

Chief Executive Officer

Date of appointment
2 June 2022
Skills and experience

Debbie Crosbie joined Nationwide as CEQ in June 2022. She
has over 25 years of experience in financial services
leadership. She was previously CEO at TSB where she led its
successful turnaround by delivering a strategy to transform
customer experience, made the bank more competidive,
improved its reputation and increased colleague
engagement — delivering the three-year growth strat>qy a
year early. Prior to TSB, she had extensive experience cf
leading turnaround strategies and, while Acting CEC of
Clydesdale Bank, led preparations for its successfu
demerger and subsequent Initial Public Offering. Sme has
overseen the execution of several major transformation
projects.

Current external appointments

Non-executive director of SSE plc (a leading renewatle
energy generating and distribution business)

Member of the FCA’s Practitioner Panel

Director of UK Finance

Key: [EBAudit Ccmmittee [ Nomination ard Governance Committee  [f Remuneration Committee ([ Board Risk Committee il Indicates Chair of Committee
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Mai Fyfield ]s)

Independent non-executive director
Date of appointment

2 lune 2015

Skills and experience

Mai Fyfield combines her experiece as an economist and
strategist with consid2rasle commercial experience to guide
the Board's strategic -hirking and assessment of new
opportunities a1q in tiati /es. She was Chief Strategy and
Commercial Officer at Sk, until October 2018, where she led
strategy and commerzial partnerships across the Sky Group
plc. During her nearly 20 years at Sky she was a key player in
the growth and diversification ¢f the bus ness.

She is a champion of diversity and helpirg women succeed in
senior management znd Baard pasitions.

Current external appcintments

Non-executive directzr 2 Roku Inc

Non-executive directer o BBC Commercial Limited
Non-executive directcr o7 ASOS ple

Non-executive director of The Football Association
Premier League Limitec

{1

Tracey Graham
Independent non-executive directar

Senior Independent Director from July 2023,
subject to regulatory anproval.

Date of appointment
28 Septemtber 2022
Skills and experience

Tracey Graham is an expe-ienced non-axecLtive divector
having served on several listed companies ard mutual boards
across a range of sectors, ‘ncluding financial services. She Fas
extensive experience as a remuneration committee chair and
as a senior independent d'ractor.

She was Chief Executive Officer of Tala is Limited, an
internaticnal cash managerent business. Bafore that she helc

a number of senior roles in De La Rue plc, HSBC and at AXA
Insurance. .

Current external appointments

Non-executive director of Close Brothers G-cup plc
Non-executive and Senior independent director of Ciscover'E
plc

Non-executive director of LINK Scheme Limiz=d where she is
Chair of the LINK Consumer Council.

Non-executive and Senior i1dependent director of lhstock ele
(She stepped down from tris role in April 2023}

Report of the directors on corperate governance ‘continued)

Your Board -continued)

Albert Hitchcock

Independent non-exeautive cirector

Date of appointment
2December2018
Skills and experience

Albert Hitcheock is a leadzr in information technology with
over 30 years in the technoloay irdustry. His experience is of
huge value to the Society as we continue our ambiticus
transformation programre to rreet the expectations of oLr
members today and in te future.

He was previously a technology advisor to the Board of the
Royal Bank of Scotland pl= and has held executive pesitions as
a Group Chief Infermatior Officer at Vodafone plc and Nortel
Networks. He was previousiy Chisf Technology and Cperat'ons
Officer of Pearson glc.

Current external appo ntments

Non-executive director cf Pu-eprofile Ltd

Key: E§Audit Committee [ Nomination and Governance Committee [ Remunerat on Commrittee ([ Board R sk Committee i Indicaz2s Chair of Committee
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Alan Keir )i (2 [ng

Independent non-executiva director
Date of appeintment
1March2C2

Skills and experience

Alan Keir is an experienced banker whe began Fis non-
executive czreer when he rezired as a Grol.p Managing
Director and CEQ of EMEA a7 HSRC in 201€, where he had
been eadi- 3 the operations i1 3C countries, inz uding the
UK home market. He has extencive experiencein a full range
of barking activity, including rezai branches and investment
banking. Hiz expertise in the rezai and cor marcial banking
sector, anc his proven track recard of delivering a successful
commercia banking strategy whi st redefining the culture
and values < a large organicztion, assists the Ecard in
setting and Jelivering strateq ¢ performance. e was
previcusly 21 the Board of HSBC Bank plc as a 1>7-executive
directar between 2018 and 2021,

Current ext=mal appointments

Chair of th2 Sumitomao Mitsui Earking Corpcrazion Bank
Internatiorz! plc
Non-executive director of Maj ¢ A Futtaim

Key: Y Audit Committee {Nom nasion and Governance Comrrittee [l Remuneration Committee

Debbie Klein G

Independent non-executive director
Date of appointment -
1March 2021

Skills and experience

Debbie Kiein has extesive experience in commercial brand
and marketing rolas. she is Group Chief Marketing,
Corporate Affairs and People Officer at Sky, where her remit
includes responsibilit+ for overall brand 2nd marketing
development, as well as leading corporate communications,
public affzirs, inte-nal cornmunications, and human
resources. She is also responsible for Sky s corperate social
responsib lity (CSR) p-ogramme, leading Sky’s challenge to
meet its 2030 net zera goals approved by the Science
Based Targets Initiative. Her expertise i sustainability and
CSR matters assis=s ir building Natichwide's future
Environmentaf, Sccial and Corporate Govarnance (ESG)
agenda.

She was previously Clief Exacutive Eurore and Asia Pacific
at The Engine Group, an integrated marketing services
business, and helt va-ious leadership roles in her 20 years
at the firm. Earlier in her career she workad in Strategy and
Insight at Saatchi & Saatchi and Nielsen.

Current external appaintments

Group Chisf Marketing, Corporate Affairs and Peopla
Officer of Sky
Non-executive directcr of Xyon Health Inc

Your Board {continuzd)

Tamara Rajah MBE

independent non-ex2:utive director
Date of appointment
1Septemoer 2020

Skills and experience

Tamara Fajah has ext2ns:ve experiencs in entrepreneur al
ventures and technolegy 2nd -an araward-winning, venture
capital backed global censumzr hez!thcare plaform. She 1as
publisted widely on h ch jrowth ertrenreneurship and was
formerly 3 non-executive director of the ScaleUp Institut2
Limited and Entrepreeur Firs: Opzrations Limited. Prio-t>
launching her own coripaty Tamarz was one of the youncest
partners at strategy firt & cKiqsey where she spent a decad=
in the nealthcare praciice and led MeKinsey's knowledge and
client wok on entrepreneursn p and technolegy clusters. in
life sciences, digital arc techrclogy. She brings to the Basrd
vast experience of dig tal zrar sformation, entrepreneursaip
and innovation.

Current extermal appontmenis

Chief Business and Sc ence Officer, MD Wellness Futures cf
Holland and Barrett Limited

Non-executive directe- of Lor con & Partners Limited

i) Board Risk Committee i ndicazes Chair of Committe=
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Chris Rhodes

Chief Financial Officer
Date of appointment
20 April 2009

Skills and experience

Chris Rhodes was zppointed Chief Financial Officer in October
2019, having been 3 Board membzr s nce 2009. He isa
chartered accountant with over 30 years' experience in retail
and commercial banking, holding sen or leadership roles
across finance, treasury, cperatior s, rtail distribution and
risk managemen. Fis previous pasitions include Group
Finance Director of Alliance anid Leicester Group, Board
Director at Visa Europe and De suty Managing Director for
Girobank.

He has been a Directcr of the Lending Standards Board and
a Trustee of National Numeracy. Fis troad background
means he has a deep understa1ding of the Society and the
mutual business mzdel, and he is ideally placed to oversze
the lang-term financial stability of the Society, ensuring the
Society continues -o invest for the future on behalf ¢f its
members.

Current external appointmen:s

Director of Silverstorie Securitisation Holdings Limited
Director of Arkose =unding Lim'tez

Gillian Riley

Independent nor-executive director
Date of appointrent

1April 2022

Skills and experience

Gillian Riley is a senior banker with an accomplished track
record in consumer and comme-cial banking at Bank of
Nova Scotia, whizh is Cana3a’s taird largest bank. Since
2018, she has be=n President and CEQ of its subsidiary,
Tangerine Bank, which she evolved from being a digital
deposits bank to a1 everyday digital bank that is profitable
and has a full suite of bank ng sclutions which consistently
wins awards for its client setisfaction. She also previcusly
founded The Scotiabank Wamen Initiative to strengthen
equality and supaort for wemen entrepre-eurs. She'is a
champion for divarsity and “ommunity val.es, contributing
in areas such as 1ealth, youth issues and Jender equa ity.

Current external appointments

Non-executive director and Zhair of Roynat Capiial
Incorporation :

Non-executive director of St Michael's Hospital Foundation
in Canada.

Phil Rivett

Independent non-executive director

Date of appointmeni
1Septembzar 2019
Skills and experience

Phil Rivett is a charter=d accountant with over foty years'
experience of professional accountancy and aucis, with a
focus on banks and i1surance companies. ke Fas a wealth
of experience advisir¢ major finanzial serv.ces providers in
the UK and on z glokzl basis; he hzs held various senior
positions at PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP and wes Chair of
its Global Financial S2-vices Group prior to ratirirg from the
firm. He has an excezional leadersnip track rezord,
advocating a collabo-ative and inclusiv2 apg roach.

Current external appointments

Non-executive directer of Starcarc Chartered plc.

Key: ERAudi: Committee ([ Nomination and Governance Committee [ Remuneration Committee i Board Risk Committee iy Indicates Chair of Committee
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WOﬁm 0._”< Secreta ry Board and Committee composition and attendance at scheJuled meetings in 2022/23
m: ﬁ v O —\.H— : m Board member Audit Board Risk Remuneration Nomination Board IT and

, . Committee Committee Committee and Goversance | Resilience
.H : m w om W.Q . . Committee Committee

Kevin Parry w . - 8/8 5/5 & -

Mai Fyfield! 10/11 Coef7 - : 8/8 33 -

Tracey Graham? 77 - 212 33 w22 -

Albert Hitcheock nm - 7/8 7/8 - 373

Alan Keir? mm 6/7 8/8 & - 474 .

Debbie Klein nm - - 8/8 - -

Tamara Rajah4 i - - .- - 11

Gillian wm - " 33 - 3/3
JasonWrigt ~ PhiRwer A i i os - 5/5 3/3
Society Secretary Tim Tookey® 4/4 33 3/3 - 11 2/
Date of appointment funn Waersted 10711 - - - 5/5 373 -

Joe Garner? 272 - - - - N

17 March 2021

B a8 _ N _ - - ‘ -
Skills and experience Debbie Crosbie 8/ .

Jason Wright is responsible for delivering a Chris Rhedes mm . - - - . ;
comprehensive sec “etariat service to the Board, o
Board committees and senior management. He
advises the Chairman and the Board on governance
related matters and helps the Board fnction
effectively by ensuring it has the polic es, processes,
information, time and resources it needs.

' Indicates Chair

1 Resigned from Nomination and Gevernance Committee on 31 Decemaar 2022 Stepped down as Chair of Remunerat an Zommittee on
31 December 2022.

2 Joined the Board on 28 September 2022. Joined Remuneration Comm ttee on 1 November 2022. Appcinted Remunerat on Committee
Chair, member of Nomination & Governar ce Committee and memter of Boarc Risk Commiztee on 1 amuary 2023.

He joined Nationw:de in December 2018 to lead the

. . . 3 Joi inati dG Committee )
Secretariat function and became Socisty Secretary Jeinad Nemination and Governance Committee on 34 July 2022

in March 2021. He is a qualified chartered company 4.0n maternity leave from 19 May 2022 to 14 November 2022.
secretary with over 25 years’ experierce working as 5 Joined the Rermuneration Commitiee on 28 September 2022. Joined the Boarc Risk Commiitee on 1 Ma-ch 2023.
a governance U_.O%mmw,.O;mm within finanzial services. € Resigned from the Society on 14 July 2022,

Prior to joining the Society, he was Ccmpany
Secretary at Barclays Bank pic and previously Head
of Board Support at Santander UK plc Heisa
Fellow of the Chartered Governance Ir:stitute.

7 Stepped down from the Board on 1June 2022,
¢ Joined the Society on 2 June 2022,
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Governance at Nationwide

The Board has established a set of internal standards and principles by which Nationwide is governed to ensure sound and prudent
control of the Saciety, and to keep members’ money and interests safe. Everyone in Nationwide has a role to play in governance.

UK Corporate Governance Code - statement of compliance

Nationwide is committed to high stendards of corporate governance and has continued to adopt the relevant parts of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the Code), which is available at
www.frc.org.uk The Board believes that throughout the year ended 4 April 2023 Nationwide has complied with the principles of the Code in line with the Building Societies Association
guidance of July 2018. Details of the principles, including where you can read more about how Nationwide complied with them, are set out below:

1. Board leadersnip and company pu-pose

" Code Principles’

Governance at Nationwide

Where to read about how Nationwide has complied

A An entrepreneurial board with the role to promote the long-term sustainable success of the Pages 3-76 and 85-86

Society and generate value for members

B. Purpose, values and culture Pages 3-76 and 85-86

C. Performance measures, risks and controls framework Pages 23-25, 107-109 and 143 )

D. Stakeholder engagement Pages 29-35 T

E. Workforce policies and practices

Pages 32 and 85-86

2. Division of responsibilities

F. Leadership of Board and Board operations ) ‘

G. Board composition, Board reles and m:n_m,nmjam:wm

Pages 10-11, 86, 91-93 and 110-113

Pages 91-93 and 9596

H. Directors’ responsibilities and time commitment

Pages 83, 86 and 92

. Board support, information and advice ' Pages 92-93 .
3. Composition, succession and evaluation J. Board appointments and succession u_ma!aﬂ Beard m&.m.m:_oﬂ menagement Pages 110-113 '
K. Board skills, experience and knowledge Pages 79-93 and 95
L. Annual Board evaluation Page 97
4. Audit, risk and internal nosﬁmr_ M. Effectiveness of external auditor and internal audit Pages 100-106
N. Fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the company's uom:? and prospects Page 137
0. Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Pages 100106
m. _.ﬂm_.m:._._.ml:‘o_‘.‘ ‘ P. Remuneration and Seciety purpose, strategy and values . Pages 114-134
Q. Executive and senior management remuneraticn Pages 114-134 ’
R. Authorisation of remuneration outcomes Pages 114134

1The LUK Corporate Governarice Code uses the terminologies of ‘company’ and ‘shareholder’ but for the purpose of Nationwide and this Corparate Governance report, these terms shouid be read as ‘Society' and ‘members’ respactively.
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Board leadership and Society purpose (continued)

Financial statements Other information u

Report of the directors on corporate governance (continued)

Governance at Nationwide (continued)

The following pages set out a non-exhaustive list of the key matters that the Board has considered during the year in line with the Society’s strategic drivers, together with stakehoiders impacted and
principal risks. Further information an how the Board has engaged with key stakeholder groups is outlined on pages 29 to 39.

Board activity - Strategic development and perfarmance

Discussed regular updates from the CEO on progress against the Society’s strategy, including provision of external insights
on key factors affecting the business, As part of this, the Board reviewed regular data to assess progress made in the
implementation of the Society's strategy.

Debated and considered the opportunities and challenges facing Nationwide due to the changing macroenvironment,
including cost of living challenges and the conflict in Ukraine. This included agreeing the propositional, financial, and
strategic response.

Discussed and approved recommendations regarding the future strategic growth of Nationwide. This included strategic
discussions ¢centred on organisational vision, customer outcomes, proposition, strategic investment spend, sustainability,
responsible business, brand, and delivering operational and service excellence.

Received updates on the progress made on the Society’s social investment strategy and Community Board activities, and
Nationwide's key charitable partnerships, including the Nationwide Foundation.

Reviewed the impact of the Society’s brand in relation to market conditions and its competitors.

Board activity - Finance . ( IS

The Board reviewed the Society's five-year Plan for 2023-28 against a backdrop of continued economic uncertainty, bank
rate increases, market competition and cost of living challenges. The Board undertook a thorough review ahead of finalising
and approving the Society’s Financial Plan for 2023-28.

Regularly assessed financial performance and the capital and liquidity position of the Society via business performance
reports from the Chief Financial Officer.

Reviewed and approved the Society's interim and full year financial results and Annual Report and Accounts prior to
publication, with consideration given te business viability and the preparation of the accounts on a going concern basis.

Key: e More rewarding relationships Q Simply brilliant service e Beacon for mutual geod

Strategic Driver

0000

0000

0O 0
LC

o m»_,rﬁmmmnvu_#mwi ,

o Continuous improvement

Stakeholder

Members and customers
Colleagues

Suppliers

Communities

Regulators

Investors

Members and customers
Suppliers

Communities

Regulators

Members and customers
Colleagues

Suppliers

Communities

Regulators
Intermediaries

Members and customers
Communities

Colleagues

Members and customers
Investors

Colleagues
Intermediaries

Stakeholder

Members and customers
Colleagues

Regulators

Investors

Members and customers
Regulators

Investors

Members and customers
Regulators

Investors

Principal risk

0006

0o
e

Principal risk

0006

0O O
o O

o Prudential risks (including credit, model, liquidity and funding, market, capital and pension risk) e Operationat and conduct risks o Enterprise risk {inciuding business risk)
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Governance at Nationwide (continued)

Board leadership and Society purpose (continued)

Board activity - Finance ,

Reviewed the Society’s cost performanze and outlook and discussed the opportunities to reduce costs over the five-year
Financial Plan.

-Strategic Driver

Board activity - Governance Strategic Driver

Received and considered reqular reports from the General Counsel, Society Secretary, and Chief Risk Officer on emerging
changes to legislation and regulation impacting the Society's business.

mmsmémamsamuuaéan:masmmau_mzﬂo:_._mNoum>mz_mamvu_.o<3Smzoﬁ_nmo::mmomwb,mzmsammmoamﬂma
documentation. o

Carried out and received the report of 3 review into the effectiveness of the Board and its committees, including developing
an action plan designed to remedy areas needing improvement.

Approved the Bank of England’s Resohability Assessment Framework prior to its publication on 10 June 2022,

Approved the Society's Modern Slavery Statement for 2022.

M)

mmnmzmam:aasmima%am;mmo:m:fo_._am:nm_,monmm_m:nmo%_._._m:nimmﬂ_._._m:m_.m,._zn_:&_._mzwmoziam.m
commitment to Net Zero and approved the Society’s intermediate science-based targets prior to publication. e o

Key: e More rewarding relationsh ps o Simply brilliant service e Beacon for mutuat good 0 Continuous improvement

° Prudential risks (including credit, model, liquidity and funding, market, capital and pension risk) e Operational and conduct risks
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Stakeholder . Principal risk
Members and customers

Regulators
Colleagues ° o °

Suppliers

Stakeholder Principal risk
Requlators

Investors

Suppliers ° o
Colleagues

Members and customers

Regulaters ° o
Investors

Regulators

[nvestors °
Members and customers

Regulators

000
Members and customers

Regulators

Ve 000
Members and customers

Suppliers

investors

Members and customers ° o o
Communities

o Enterprise risk (inclucing business risk)



Annual Report & Accounts 2023 Report of the directors on corporate governance (continued)
m Strategic report E Risk report Financial statements Other information u Governance at Nationwide (continued)

Board leadership and Society purpose (continued)

Board activity - People, culture and remuneration _ , , Strategic Driver Stakeholder Principal risk
Reviewed and discussed the people strategy and reviewed the Society's remuneration strategy and how this is aligned with e Colleagues o °
achieving the Society's overall strategit aims. Members and customers

Engaged with the wider workforce via the designated non-executive director for Employee Voice anc received updates Colleagues

from management on topics which provided insight on key matters impacting colleagues and customers. Through o e Members and customers o
Townhall events hosted by the Chairmzn, colleagues from the acress the Society were able to ask questions directly of the

non-executive directors.

Considered the Society’s Gender and Ethnicity Pay Gap reporting for 2022, including Natisnwide’s approach to closing the Colleagues
gap. e o Regulators o
Investors
Communities
Reviewed the progress made on the development of Nationwide’s culture and how colleague sentiment was monitored e o Colleagues
through various intarnal engagement surveys and sentiment trackers. e o
Reviewed the Annual Whistleblowing Report and the Society’s whistleblowing arrangements, e o Colleagues
Regulators °
Board activity - Risk and regulatory matters, including external outlook Strategic Driver Stakeholder Principal risk
Assessed the Society's overall risk profile and emerging risk themes, including consideration of correspondence between o Members and customers
Nationwide and its regulators and related action, receiving direct reports from the Chief Risk Officer and Chair of the Regulators o e °

Board Risk Committee, and approved ravisions to the Board Risk Appetite metrics including triggers and limits.
Assessed the economic and market conditions affecting the Society’s business and, as part of this, reviewed in detail and o Members and customers °

and mitigation. Appointed Alan Keir as the Board's Champion for Consumer Duty. Regulators

approved the Society's stress testing activity for 2023. Regulators
Received regular updates on the Society’s preparation for the implementation of the Financial Conduct Authority's Members and customers
Consumer Duty requirements, approved the Implementation Plan, and received reguiar updates on complaints insights o o e Colleagues e o

Key: e More rewarding relationships Q Simply brilliant service 9 Beacon for mutual good o Centinuous improvement

e Prudential risks {including cr=dit, modei, liquidity and funding, market, capital and pension risk) ° Operational and conduct risks o Enterprise risk {including business risk}
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Tracey Graham joined the Board in
September 2022 and shares her insights

Tracey Graham will be seeking election as a non-executive director at our AGM in July 2023 and will become the Senior
independent Directar, subject to regulatory approval, following Gunn Waersted's retirement from the Board.

What are your first impressions of Nationwide?

So overwhelmingly pasitive! Netionwide is a pre-eminent trusted brand and is owned by and run for the benefit of members. This mutual status ensures it has a strategic focus on its members and
other customers, Every single Nationwide colleague that | have met is focused on delivering market leading customer service. People are rightly proud to work for Nationwide, with its unigue
heritage and ability to be a force for mutual good and making a positive contribution to wider society.

What do you bring to Nationwide, its Board and its members?

i have first-hand experience of serving on a mutual hoard, having served nine years (the maximum term) on the board of the UK's largest mutual insurance company, standing down just before
joined Nationwide. | also have broad financial services experience having undertaken senior banking and instirance executive roles and have experience of listed company and mutual boards, across
a range of secters, including financial and business sectors which is very relevant to Nationwide. | am a former CEQ, and bring commercial, eperational and customer services experience. | also have
extensive experience as a Remuneration Committee Chair in listed and regulated companies and have served on all types of board committees, this experienze being incredibly valuable as | chair
Nationwide's Remuneration Committee. | have also been a member of Nationwide for more than 20 years, so have personally valued its commitment to customer service and to the mutual model.

5

What do you think are Nationwide’s main challenges and opportunities?

| have already referred to Nationwide's pre-eminent respected and trusted brand, meaning Nationwide nperates from a position of significant strength. The Society has a streng capital position, and
leading market positian, with 8 committed membership. These foundaticns mean we build from a position of strength. Of course, there will be oppertunities and challenges ahead with potential
new market entrants, technological enhancements and developments, or disruption to traditional business models. However, Nationwide's relentless commitment to operational excellence and
customer service are the foundations for its future success.
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Division of responsibilities

Leadership structure

Financial statements

Other information U

An overview of the Beard composition and its committee structure as at 4 April 2023 is set out below:

Report of the directors on corporate governance (continued)
Governance at Nationwide (continued)

The Nationwide Board

Ensures that the Society delivers lang-term value for its members and customers by setting its strategy through which value is created for the mutual benefit of members, colleagues, suppliars, the
environment and the wider community. The Board holds management to account for how the strategy is implemented and ensures effective governance, controls and risk management,

Roles and responsibifities within the Board

Non-executive

Chairman
Leads the Board to ensure it
operates effectively in setting
the strategic direction of the
Society, includirg shaping
the culture in the
boardrocm.
Epitomises the Society’s
culture by fostering open
and honest debates in the
boardroom and ensures
valuable contribution from all
non-executive directors.

Senior Independent Director
Stpports the Chairman in his
role and with the delivery of
his objectives, and acts as his
sounding board.

Available to the Board
di-ectors as an intermediary.

Non-gxecutive directors
Use their skills, experience and
knowledge 1o hold
management to account - by
constructively challenging the
Society's performance, culture
and controls,

Society Secretary
Advises the Board through the Chairman on afl governance-related matters. Provides support to the Board in managing good information flows between the Board and the rest of the Society.

The Board delegates certain matters to its principal committees

Audit Committee

Oversees finar cial reporting, financial crime,
internal and external audit, and the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management systems.

See the report on page 100.

Board Risk Commiitee
Overseas current and potential future risk
exposures, considers future risk strategy

and determines risk appetite.

See the report on page 107.

Nomination and Govemnance Committee
Reviews the Board’s governance
arrangements and succession planning.
Oversees the implementation of the Society's
Inclusion and Diversity Strategy.

See the report on page 10.

Remuneration Committee
Oversees the remuneration strategy and
policy of directors, senior management,
Material Risk Takers and all colleagues.

See the report on bage 114.

Executive Committee

Supports the CEQ in the day-to-day management of the Society.

See their details on page 94.

N
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Time commitment

To discharge thair responsibilities effectively, non-
executive directors must commit sufficient time te their
role. The time the non-executive directors are expected
to commit to their role at Nationwide is agreed
individually, as part of the appointment process, and
depends upon their responsibilities. For example,
additional time commitment will often be required of
the Senior Independent Director and Ccmmittee Chairs
to fulfil their extra responsibilities. The Chairman and
non-executive directors are expected to allocate
sufficient time to understand the business, through
meetings with management and undergcing training to
ensure ongoing development. The Chairman and non-
executive directors a-e also expected to attend meetings
with the Society’s requlaters to foster and maintain an
open and transparent working relationship. This time is
in addition to that spant preparing for, and attending,
Board and Board corimittee meetings. Time
commitments are reviewed annually, or more regularly if
needed, as Nationwide recognises the reed to take
account of changes in best practice. No+-executive
directors are expected to commit a minimum of 30 days
per year for care activities and membership of Board
committees. The Senior Independent Director and
Committee Chairs are expected to commit @ minimum
of 50-60 days per year. The Chairman will, on average,
spend a minimum of 2 days per week on Nationwide
business. The Chairrran has confirmed with each non-
executive director that they have been able to allocate
sufficient time to fulfilling their duties this year.

Externally, there has aeen no increase in the Chairman’s
other significant commitments during the year which
would impact his time commitment to fu ‘il his duties.

During the vear, and an the recommencation of the
Nomination and Governance Committee, the Board
approved the additional external appointment of Albert
Hitchcock as a non-esecutive director of Pureprofile
Limited as the appeiniment was not considered to impair
his ability to serve as a director of Nationwide.

92

Director independence

The Nomination and Governance Committee considers
the independence of each non-executive director on an
annual basis. In reaching its determination of
independence, the Committee considers factors such as
length of tenure and relaticnships or circumstances
which are likely to affect or appear to affect the director’s
judgement. On the recommendation of the Committee,
all non-executive directors have been assessed by the
Board to be independent as to character and judgement
and tc be free of relaticnships and other circumstances
which could materially affect the exercise of their
judgement.

Pricr to his appointment to the Board, Alan Xeir was a
member of senior management and then served as a
non-executive director of HSBC UK. The Scociety has an
agency banking contract with BSBC and all incoming
and outgcing international and dornestic CHAPs
payments are routed threugh HSBC. The Committee
continues to be satisfied that his previous business
relationship with HSBC deces not impact his
independence or ability to carry out his role as a rion-
executive director of the Society.

All eligible directors (save for Mai Fyfield and Gunn
Waersted who will be retiring from the Board) will be
recommended to members for election or re-election at
the AGM in July 2023,

Information and advice

The Board has full and timely access to all relevant
information to enable it to perform its duties effectively.
The Society Secretary ensures appropriate and timeiy
information flows between the Board, its committees and
senior management, enabling the Board to exercise its
judgement and make fully informed decisions when
discharging its duties.

Report of the directors on corporate governance {continued)

Governance at Nationwide (continued)

The Society Secretary supports the Chairman in setting
the Board agenda. Board papers are distributed to all
directars in advance of Board meetings via & secure
electronic system ailowing directors to access
information in a timely manner. Regular managerment
updates are sent to directors to keep them informed of
events between formal board meetings and to ensure
that they are advised of the latest issues affecting the
Society.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Society Secretary, whe is responsibie for advising the
Board through the Society Chairman on all governance
matters and for ensuring that Board procedures are
followed and compliance with applicable rules and
regulations is observed. The directors may, if required,
take independent professional advice at the Society’s
expense,

Induction, training, and development

Following appointment, directors receive a full and
formal bespoke induction to familiarise them with their
duties and the Society’s business operations, and risk
and governance arrangements. Inductions are tzilored to
each director’s individual experience, background and
areas of focus and are set alongside their broader
individual development plan. The induction programme
includes meetings with senicr management,

The Chairman, with support from the Society Secretary,
has overall responsibility for ensuring that the directors
receive suitable training to enable them to carry out their
duties. The directors are provided with the opportunity
for ongoing training and professional development to
ensure they have the necessary knowledge and
understanding of the Society's business. Training can be
provided through meetings, presentations, and briefings
by internal and external advisers.
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Directors are encouraged to update thei- professional skills
and knowledge of the business continua ly, and to identify
any additional training requirements thet would assist
them in carrying cut their role. Where irdividual directors
have requested, individual training sessions have been
held with subject matter experts,

The Chairman has conversations with eazh non-executive
director on a regular basis during the year and at the end
of the year to review performance anc davelopment needs.
The Senior Independent Director is responsible for the
evaluation of the Chairman’s performance and
development needs. Executive directors undertake
performance reviews as part of the Society's annual
performance management cycle.

Report of the directors on corporate governance {continued)
Governance at Nationwide {continued)
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Executive Committee

There is a clear division of respansibilities between the Chairman. as leader of the Board, and the Chief Executive Cfficer, who is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Society.
To the extent that matters are not reserved to the Board, responsibility is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, who is assisted by the Executive Committee

The Executive Comrrittee is responsible for directing and cocrdinating the executive rnanagement of the Society within the strategy, risk appetite, operational plans, policies, objectives
frameworks, budget and authority appreved by the Board.

The membership comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the leaders of business functions. Biographies of the executive directars can be found on pages 79 and 82

H

and details of other Executive Committe2 members can be found at nationwide.co.uk. In addition to Executive Committee members, the Chief Internal Auditor and Society Secretary attend
every meeting in full.

Mandy Beech Mark Chapman Catherine Kehoe Lynn McManus Stephen Noakes
Director of Retail Services General Counsel Chief Customner, Brand and Chief People Officer Director of Retail
Engagement Officer

Tom Riley Rachael Sinclair Gavin Smyth Suresh Viswanathan

Director of Retail Products Director of Morigages Chief Risk Officer Chief Operating Officer
and Financial Wellbeing
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Composition, succession, and evaluation

Board composition

The Noemination and Governance Committee is responsible for
reviewing Board composition, considering succession plans
for both the Board and senior executives, selecting and
appointing new directors and considering the results of the
Board effectiveness review, More information on the work of this
Committee can be found on pages 110 tc 113.

To maintain a balancad Board, the skills and experience of
individual Board members are regularly reviewed. Ensuring the
right mix of director cempetencies is vital for constructive
discussion and, ultimztely, effective Board decisions. The individual
biographies of the directors, which include their relevant skills
and experience, can oe found on pages 79 to 82.

Board composition as at 4 April 2023

Ethnicity

Executive and non-executive directors

All directors are subject to conduct rules iaid down by reguiators
and must satisfy requirements relating to their fitness and propriety.
In addition, the Chairman, the Senicr Independent Director and
Committee Chairs are subject to all aspects of the Senior
Managers Regime.

Executive directors’ service contracts and the letters of appointment
for the Chairman and non-executive directors are available for
inspection at the Society’s principal office and will be avaliable
at the AGM.

Board tenure

The Society's Memorandum and Rules require that Board directors
must be re-elected by the Society’s membership every three years,

Gender/Sex

E5G, including climate

Retad / Commercial banking

Customer, brand and marketing

B Executh
aﬂﬂnnﬂcﬂm u Nen-ethnically m Men
diverse
B Non-executive =
directors # Ethnically diverse Women
Age of Board members Non-executive director's tenure
m35-45
24655 /{13 years
W3- years
u56-60
8 €+ years
B G

UK Financial regulation
and comphance

Note:

Strategy and competitian
People leadership and talent

Financial Services

Risk management

Digital and technology
restlence and transformation

Financial accourting and audit

Report of the directors on corporate governance {continued)

Governance at Nationwide {continued)

However, in compliance with the UX Corporate Governance Code
(the Code), all directors of Naticnwide are subject to election or
re-election by the members annuzlly. Before re-electior, a
non-executive director will be subject to a review of that director's
continued effectiveness and independence.

Member nominations

Members of Nationwide have the right to nominate candidates
for election to the Board, subject to the Society's Memorandum
and Rules and compliance with PRA and FCA requirements.
No such nominations had been received by 4 April 2023, this
being the deadline for election to the Board at the 2023 AGM.,

Non-executive director's skills and experience - number with
considerable experience and knowledge

= Ingividual directors may fall into one or mare calegories.
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Composition, succession, and evaluation (continued)

The information below is provided in compliance with new reporting requirements under the Listing Rules, which apply to accounting periods starting cn or after 1 April 2022. These requirements,
require the Society to disclose in its Annual Report certain diversity metrics relating to the compesition of its Board and executive management, as well as its performance against three diversity
targets that have been set by the FCA.

The information below is provided as at 4 April 2023 anc confirms that the Society has met all of the following targets on board diversity: (1) at least 40% of its board of directors are women; (2) at
least one of its most senior positions on the Board is held by a woman; and (3} at least one individual on the Board is from a minority ethnic background. In the case of the first and second targets,
these have been exceeded, with women representing 58% of the Society's Board and both the roles of Chief Executive and the Senier Independent Director (SID) being held by women. informasion
on gender/sex and ethnicity is collectec from executive management at the application stage of their recruitment. Information on gender/sex is collected from Board members at the onboarding
stage of their recruitment. Information o Board members’ ethnicity is collected post appointment by the Seciety Secretary.

The Board's Diversity Statement is set out in the Board Composition and Succession Policy which can be found on the Society's website: nationwide.co.uk and provides quidance on the
identification and selection of suitable candidates for appointrment to the Board and its committees. The Board is committed to ensuring that it comprises a membership which is diverse and
reflects the Nationwide members that it represents. It aims to achieve this by ensuring representztion within the Beard cf race, age, gender, disability and sexuality in addition to appropriate socio-
economic educational and professional backgrounds. Selecting the best candidate is paramount and all appointments are based on merit and objective criteria with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. This benefits the effectiveness of the Board by creating diversity of thought and breadth of perspective among our directors. The Nomination and Governance Committee
Report on pages 110 te 113 sets out the zelection process for new non-executive directors appointed during the year and states how the Board plans to maintain its effectiveness by ensuring tha: it
has a diverse membership going forward.

Gender/sex representation as at 4 April 2023 .

Number of Board vmqnm_zmam ofthe  Number of senior positions on the Number in executive ~ Percentage of executive
members Board Board (CEQ, CFO, SID and Chair) management (note i) management {note i)
Men 5 42 2 7 58
Women 7 58 2 5 42
Not specified / prefer not to say - - - - -
Ethnicity representation as at 4 April 2023
Number of Board Percentage of the  Number of senior positions on the Number in executive  Percentage of executive
members Board Board (CEOQ, CF0, SID and Chair) management {note i) management (note i)
White British or other White {including
minarity-white groups) 1 92 4 n 92
Mixed/Muttiple Ethnic Groups - - - - -
Asian/Asian British 1 8 - 1 8

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British - - N
Other ethnic group, including Arab - - .
Not specified/prefer not to say - - -

Note:
i.  Executive management is defined as the Executive Committee, including the CEO, the CFC and the Society Secretary.
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Composition, succession, and evaluation (continued)

Chairman performance

The Society Chairman's performance review was led by the
Senior Independent Director on behalf o™ the Board in May
2022, This review included peer feedback from the non-
executive and executive directors. The review concluded that
the Society Chairmar continued to perform effectively,
remained fit and proper to perform the rale, upheld his
regulatory responsibilities, and demenstrated commitment to
his role. In light of this conclusicon, the elzction of Kevin Parry
as Society Chairman was put to members at the 2022 AGM in
July 2022, where he was elected.

Individual director performance

A review of the perfarmance and contribution of each director
was conducted by the Society Chairmar: to ensure that all
directors contributed effectively to the good governance of
Nationwide. This is one of the factors considered when
deciding whether individual directors wi'l offer themselves for
election cr re-election at the Society's AGM. The reviews
conciuded that each director continued ¢ perform effectively
and demonstrated ccmmitment to the role. During the year,
the Society Chairman met each director individually to discuss
their personal performance and establish whether each
director continued to contribute effectively to the long-term
success of the Societv.

Board performance

The Board conducts an annual review of ts performance which
is a key mechanism for ensuring that it continues to operate
effectively and for setting objectives and Jevelopment areas for
the farthcoming year. This annual review is conducted through
a formal evaluation and censiders the work of individual
directors, the Board and its committees.

2022 Board performance review

The UK Corporate Governance Cede and the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC} Guidance on Board Effectiveness require boards
undergo an externally facilitated review at least every three
years. Lintstock Limited was engaged by the Society for a three-
year programme to support the Board performance reviews in
2027 to 2023, the process for which is outlined below.

The scope of the 2022 Board evaluation was determined at the
November 2021 Nomination and Governance Committee with
approval given by the Board. The scope was determined
following review of the 2021 effectiveness responses and
agreeing which areas required focus, It covered genaral areas of
effectiveness including: the strengths and capabilities of the
Board and each of its principal committees; evaluation of
individual Board members; Board compaesition and succession
planning; Boardroom dynamics; and the effectiveness of the
Board's relationship with principal executive stakeholders.

The 2022 Board performance review provided the Board with the
opportunity to assess the effectiveness of the collective Board, as
well as each Board committee. The process allowed the Board to
receive input from key stakeholders with direct involvement and
reporting to the Board, including members of the Executive
Committee.

The review consisted of guestionnaires sent to all Board
members, the General Counsel, the Society Secretary and other
relevant key senior stakeholders for each of the Board’s principal
committees, The questionnaire coverad general areas of
effectiveness, as well as considering the Board's decision-making
processes and stakeholder oversight. Individual committee
questicnnaires were also completed by the relevant committee
members and other key stakeholders where appropriate.

Report of the directors on corporate governance (continued)

Governance at Nationwide (continued)

The key findings were captured in a review document that was
submitted and presented to the Board by Lintstock Limited in
May 2022.

The outcomes of the review are reported below, highlighting
further areas of focus and development that were identified
during the process, as well as identifying the strengths that
could continue to be optimised. Qverall, the findings endorsed
the belief that the Board and its committees are performing and
operating effectively, with directors satisfied with the
performance and effectiveness of the Board and its committees.
The Board will continue to make progress against the key
findings of the review, challenge management cn execution and
delivery, and ensure that time is devoted to Board compositior
and succession planning.

In November 2022, the Nomination and

Governance Committee received updates to monitor the
progress taken against the key areas of facus and
recommendations. A summary of the 2022 Board performance
review's key recommendations is presented below along with
the actions taken.
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Composition, succession, and evaluation (continued)
Summary of the 2022 Board performance review recommendations

The Board adopted the recommendztio1s from the findings and developed a plan to implement tie actions. The menitoring of progress was delegated to the Nomination and Governance Committee,
and an update on action taken is described below.

Area of focus and recommendation Action taken

The Board should maintain focus on tha Society’s The Board's strategic focus has continued to evolve since the recommendations from the 2021 Board performance review.

strategy, including its long-term strategy, and ensure | Following the October 2022 Strategy Conference, the Board receives updates on the progress of the Scciety’s strategy and its execution at every
its effective execution meeting.

The Board should ethance focus on Inclusion and The Board receives regular updates on Inclusion and Diversity activity. Board members have engaged with the various employee networks,
Diversity throughout the organisation. including the new Social Mobility network, to encourage greater diversity and inclusion across the organisation to help it meet the needs of
members and customers and enable colleagues to reach their full potential.

The Beard should consider its oversigh: of The Board now receives four specific Respensible Business upcates per year, as well as considering aspects of ESG in all its decisions.
Environmental, Social and Governance ‘ESG) matters.

2023 Board performance review

The 2023 performance review is being externally supported by
Lintstock Limited as part of the three-year Board review
programme that began in 2021,

The results of the rev ew were presentec to the Board for
discussion at its May 2023 meeting and will form the basis of
an action olan for corpletion during 2023. A similar process
will be followed for Baard committees.

Further information an the evaluation pracess,

cutcomes and actions identified will be presented ,
in the Annual Report and Accounts 2024,
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Audit, risk and internal control

The Board is respons ble for determining the nature and extent
of the risks the Society is willing to take to achieve its long-term
strategic objectives. This is detailed in th2 Society’s Risk Appetite
Staternent. The Board is respensible for ensuring that
management maintains an effective systam of risk management
and internal control znd for assessing its effectiveness.

Nationwide has a robust Enterprise Risk Management
Framework {ERMF) in place for identifyirg, evaluating and
managing principal and emerging risks i1 accordance with the
‘Guidance on Risk Mznagement, fnternal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting’, published by the FRC.

The ERMF is supported by a system of inernai controls and
processes. These systems and processes are designed to
manage, not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can o1ly provide reasonasle and net absolute
assurance against material misstaternen: or loss.

The Board monitors the Society’s risk me nagement and internal
control systems and carries out an annual review of their

Remuneration

effectiveness. On the basis of this year's review, the Board is
satisfied that the ERMF is appropriate, whilst recognising that
some internal controls could be matured.

Internal control aver financial reporting

The Society’s financial reporting process has been designed tc
provide assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and preparaticn of financial statemenis, as well as consolidated
financial statements, in accordance with Internadonal Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Internal contrels and risk management systems are in place to
provide assurance over the preparation of the financial
statements, These include independent testing of the critical
financial reporting processes and controls, from data origination
to reporting, to an agreed level aligned to the Society’s Board
Risk Appetite. The result of this assurance work is reported to
control owners and the Chief Financial Officer, with a summary
report presented to the Audi: Committee. Financial information
submitted for inclusion in the financial statements is attested by
individuals with appropriate knowledge and experience.

Report of the directors on corporate governance {(continued)

Governance at Nationwide (continued)

The Annual Report and Acceunts are scrutinised throughout the
financial reporting process by relevant senior stakehoiders before
being submitted to the Audit Committee, which provide
challenge, before recommending to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee aiso discusses control conclusions and
recommendations arising from the audit with the externa
auditor.

Aspects of internal control over financial reporting have also been
reviewed by Internal Audit. Based on the various reviews and
reports provided to the Audit Committee, it was concluded that
the controls over financial reporting are effective.

More information on the Society's risk management and internal
control systems can be found on pages 65 to 66 of the
Governance repert and on pages 139 tc 143 of the Risk report.

The Board is respons ble for determining the Society's remuneration policies and practices, including executive and senior management remuneration. Information on the work of the Board’s
Remuneration Comirittee and the Report of the directors cn remuneration can be found cn pages 114 to 134,
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Audit Committee
report

Dear fellow member,
| am pleased to report on the work of the Audit Committee during the financial year ended 4 April 2023,

Throughout another husy year, the Committee has continued to play a key role on behalf of the Board to challenge and monitor the
integrity of the Society's financial reporting and to oversee its finar cial controls. The Committee has scrutinised the Society's half and
full year results ang has reviewed the significant financial reporting judgements made therein, as well as the accounting pelicies
adopted. In addition, the Committee reviswed and provided challe 1ge to the Seciety’s climate-related disclosures and ensured that the
Society challenged itself appropriately in respect of its science-based emissions targets.

The Committee oversees and reviews the Society's internal financial controls and internal controls systems. Such controls are designed
to ensure that the Society mitigates its risks and keeps its custemers’ money safe. The Committee oversees and challenges the work
undertaken by Internal Audit to ensure that the Society’s controls end processes have appropriate oversight, with particular focus
having been given to the prompt and effective resolution of issues -aised by Internal Audit.

The Committee continues to monitor extarnal factors to ensure thet the Society’s reporting and controls take into consideration, and
appropriately respond to, emerging developments and external ris<s. During the year, this has included consideration of the proposed
reforms to the UK's corporate governanc2 and audit regimes, commonly referred to as ‘UK SOX', and the impact of the higher cost of
living on our members’ personal and hot sehold budgets.

During the year, the Committee has overseen the work undertaker by the Society's external auditors, Ernst & Young (EY), which
included reviewing E¥'s effectiveness, independence and chiectivity. This review took into consideration all relevant UK
professional and regLlatory requirements. As Chair of the Audit Committee, | support the re-election of EY by members at our
AGM in July 2023 anc direct members tc further information on the work of EY that can 2e found on pages 220 to 233

Phil Rivett Chair - Audit Committee
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Audit Committee report

Key activities of the Committee:

» Scrutinised the half and full year results and
reviewed the Society's accounting policies and
significant judgements and estimates, including
the judgements and estimates withi
impairment provisions, to confirm that they wer
appropriate to be used in preparing the financial
statements.

Reviewed the content of the Annual Report and
Accounts and the Preliminary Results Announcement
and advised the Board on whether, taken as a whole,
the documents were fair, balanced and
understandable.

Reviewed the going concern basis of preparation
of the financial statements and the statement of
business viability for recommendation to the
Board for approval.

Oversaw the work of Internal Audit, ensuring t
effective resolution of any issues raised.

Oversaw the relationship with the Society's external
auditor, EY, and the effectiveness of the external
audit process.

How the Committee spent its time in the year

= Financial Reporting

1 Internal controls and risk management
(including Internal Audit)

w [xternal Audit

w Lconomic Crime

m Statutory and governance duties

® Other (including meeting administration)
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How the Committee works

The membership of the Committee corr prises at least three
independent non-executive directors who bring a diverse
range of experience in business, finance. auditing, risk and
contrals, with particular depth of experiznce in the financial
services sector. The qualifications and experience of each
member of the Committee are included in their biographies
on pages 79 to 82.

in addition to Committee members, regular attendees of
Committee meetings included the Society Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Risk Officer and representatives of the Society's external
auditors, EY.

The Board is satisfied that the Committee possesses recent
and relevant financial experience and accounting competence,
and that the Committee as a whole is appropriately competent
in the sector in which the Society operazes. The Committee
also draws on the expertise of key adviszrs and control
functions, including the internal and extzrnal auditors.

Subject matter experts are invited to meetings to present on
particular topics. The Committee provides oversight and
advice to the Board on the matters listed in its terms of
reference (available at nationwide.co.uk) and reports to the
Board on those matters after each meeting.

The Committee held seven scheduled meetings during the
year, and additicnally held two joint meetings with the Board
Risk Committee to consider matters of common irterest. The
attendance record of Committee members is set out on page
83.

During the year, the Committee met privately with the Chief
Internal Auditor, the Society's external auditors and the Chief
Risk Officer, without management present. Additionally, a
private meeting was held with the Head of Ecoriomic Crime.
The Chair of the Committee also attended meetings with the
PRA, including a tripartite meeting with EY. The effectiveness
of the Committee is reviewed annually, along with the
Committee's terms of reference and its activities over the
previous year.

Audit Committee report {continued)

The purpose of this review is ta confirm that the terms of
reference align with the Committee's remit and purpose, and
continue te reflect all applicable governance codes, guidelines,
legislation and best practice. In 2022, the effectiveness review
was undertaken by the Society’s Secretariat function with the
assistance of Lintstock Limited, as part of the three-year Board
and committee effectiveness review process agreed in 2021.
Feedback on the Committee’s performance and effectiveness
was provided 1o both the Committee and the Beard. The results
of the review indicate that Committee members are satisfied
with the performance and effectiveness of the Committee. The
2022 effectiveness review, including actions and next steps, is
described on pages 97 to 98.

The Committee provides input to the Remuneration Committee
to assist that committee in its assessment of possible impacts
on variable remuneration. This input is provided in conjunction
with the Board Risk Committee.

101



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

m Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements Other information J Audit Committee report (continued)

R

What the Committee did in the year

Financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements

The Committee scrutinised the Annual Report and Accounts, Prel minary Results Announcement and the Interim Results and was satisfled that the reporting, including the disclosures in the notes
to the accounts, fairly represented the Society's resulis and business performance. it considered these documents against “fair, balanced and understandable’ principles and whether the reporting
reflected the Society's strategy. It furthe- considered whether the impacts of the increases to the cost of living, the cenflict in Ukraine and recent banking events were properly assessed, in particular
within impairment provisions, and apprapriately recognised and disclosed.

The Committee discussed and challenged management's analyses, the external auditor’s work, and conclusions on the main areas of judgement presented in the Annual Report and Accounts. The
Committee was satisfied that internal ccntrols over financial repo ting systems are in place to provide assurance over the preparation of the Annual Report and Accounts, and that financial
information submitted for inclusion in the financial statements is attested by individuals with appropriate knowledge and experience. Key internal controls used to process transactions are subject
to regular testing, the results of which a-e reported to the Committee,

The significant judgements in relation tc the preparation of the Arnual Report and Accounts for 2022/23 are noted below as areas of focus and were discussed with management and the external
auditor during the year.

Going concern and viability staterent

The going concern statement is included in the Directors’ report on page 137 and the viability statement is included in the Strategic report on pages 67 to 68.

The Committee reviewed the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements and the viability statement for recommendation to the Board for approval. It assessed, together with the
Board Risk Committee, the levels of cap tal and availability of funding and liquidity, together with outputs of stress tests and reverse stress tests. The Committee also considered risks from business
activities, technology change and econonic factors such as the continued impacts of rising interest rates, inflation and the Ukraine conflict, which may affect the Society's future development,
performance and financial position, together with the implications of principal risks including operational resilience and cyber security. In addition, the Committee considered whether a period
langer than three years should be coverac in the viability statement, concluding that, as in the prior year, a period of three years was appropriate, particularly when taking into account changes in
the economic, technological, and regulatory environment.

Based on its review, the Committee con-luded that the apptication of the going concern basis for the preparation of the financial statements remained appropriate and recommended the approval of the
viability statement to the Board.
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Accounting policies and judgements

The Committee reviewed the Society’s aczounting policies and
pracesses and confirmed they were appropriate to be used in
the financial statements. Areas of key judgement made in
preparation of the financial statements considered by the
Committee are set out within this report.

The Committee noted that there were no new accounting
standards, or amendments to standards, effective for the
reporting period which had a significant impact for the
Group.

Alternative performance measures and disclosure

of member finaricial benefit

The Committee continues to consider that certain non-GAAP
measures, such as underlying profit, aid an understanding of
the Society’s results. The Committee considered the
disclosure of, and prominence given to, underlying profit to
be appropriate.

The other perfermance measure considered carefully by the
Committee was the value for member finaricial benefit presented
in Nationwide's financial reporting. This metric estimates the
benefit provided to members in the form of differentiated pricing
and incentives, representing Nationwide’s interest rate
differential, iower fees and higher member incentives compared
with market averages and was considered a key performance
indicator during the year. The Commrittee was satisfied with the
approach to the measurement of member financial benefit and
the associated disclosure. Details of member financial benefit
are shown on page 71.

Climate change risk and related disclosures

Disclosures are set out on pages 53 to 64 of the Strategic
report. The Committee discussed with management the
continued development of disclosures regarding climate
change risks and impacts.

Audit Committee report {continued)

The Committee reviewed the Report on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures which is published on the Society's
wiehsite nationwide.co.uk and the summary of those
disclosures presented in the Annual Report and Accounts. A
particular focus during the year was on the transnarency of
disclosure of the chalienges in working towards net-zero and
ensuring that the Society challenged itself appropriately with
regard to the establishment of its science-based emissions
targets. The Committee also considered management'’s
evaluation of the potential impact of climate change on the
financial statements, concurring with management's
conclusion that the main area of future risk was impairment
provisions on prime and buy-to-let martgages, although
ongoing monitering would be required of areas such as
property valuation and pension scheme investments, and that
there was no material impact at 4 April 2023.

Significant financial reporting issues and accounting judgements considered by the Committee during the year

In compiling a set of financial statements, it is necessary to make estimates and judgements about outcormes that are typically dependent on future events. Significant matters are set out below.

Area of focus Committee response

Impairment
provisions for loan
portfolios and
related disclosures

The selection of, and probab
Information on crecit
risk and assumptions
relating to expected
credit fosses is
includedin note 10 to
the financial

statements scenario 15%.

Given the significance of Nationwide's loan portfolios, understanding the Society’s exposure to ¢redit risk and ensuring that impairment provisions are appropriate
remain key pr orities for the Committee, Significant judgements were made during the year, in particular in respect of the continuing uncertainty in the economic
outlook and the impacts of increasing inflation and rising interest rates on affordability.

es applied 1o, a range of economic scenarios for the purpose of modelling expected credit losses continue to have a material impact en
loan loss provisions. The Committee challenged management to demonstrate that provisions appropriately reflected economic conditions, taking into account increases
in interest rates and inflation, and the outlock for unemployment and house prices, as well as the ongoing uncertainty in refation to the global economic consequences of
the conflict in Ukraine. Discussions tock into account contemporary economic data and management’s forward-looking view of the economy. Following detailed review
and discussion, assumptions for base case, upside and downside scenarios, as well as for a severe econemic downturn, were agreed. The Committee concurred with
management that the scenarios used reflected an appropriate range of assumptions. Following discussion, scenario probability weights were updated to reflect the
changing economic outlook such that at the year end the upside scenario weight was 10%, base case scenario 45%, downside scenario 30% and the severe downside
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Audit Committee report (continued)

Significant financial reporting issues and accounting judgements considered by the Committee during the year (continued)

Area of focus

Committee response

impairment
provisions for loan
portfolios and
related disclosures
(continued)

At the year end, the level of estimation uncertainty continued to be heightened by the continued level of uncertainty in the economic outlook. The Commiittee challenged
management to demonstrate that all relevant risks had been taken into account in the expected credit loss models, and that model adjustments that rely on expert
judgement were recognised where appropriate, including for tail risks which could not be rnodelied due to an absence of historical data. A key area of focus was the
increased credit risk associated with affordability pressures on borrowers generally due to rising interest rates and increased inflation. This included reviewing
management’s assessment of the impacts of the payment shock that would be experienced by residential mortgage borrowers whose fixed rates would expire in the near
term. The methodolegy used assessed the impact of increased interest rates and inflation on members' disposable monthly income. In addition, the Committee considered
the potential for ongoing temporary improvement in credit performance in the loan portfolios following the period of government support and reduced consumer
spending, and specific areas of risk such as the valuation of buildings with cladding requiring remediation work. The Committee was satisfied that available evidence,
including the use of sensitivity analysis to determine the materiality of changes to assumptions, supported the level of provisioning and it was satisfied that the disclosures
and sensitivities set out in the accounts were sufficiently comprehensive to allow readers 1o understand the level of judgement associated with the provisions at the year
end.

The Commitize considered management's assessment of the impact of climate change which concluded that it is not yet possible to estimate the credit risk impacts of
climate change to the standards required to justify an impairment provision under IFRS 9. This position will continue to be menitored and management will consider how
best to deveiop the Society's climate risk provisioning capa s, including a process to determine and govern its own climate change scenario assumptions.

Disclosures in respect of credit risk and provisions were considered carefully to ensure that they were transparent and gave insight into Nationwide's credit risk profile,
taking inta account evolving industry best practice and the aims of the PRA to improve consistency. Overall, the Committee was satisfied with the level of provisioning and
related disclosures. The Committee also considered management's development of capabilities in line with the PRA's guidance on goed practices in impairment
provisioning and was satisfied with progress made.

Provisions for
liabilities and
charges
Information is
included in notes 27
and 29 fo the
financial statements

The Committee received updates on a number of matters during the year and considered whether provisions established were appropriate. This included in relation to
conduct issues which may require redress, as well as legal and other regulatory matters. ludgement is required in assessing the likelihood that these matters result in a
liability, to evzluate whether a provision, or alternatively disclosure of a contingent liability, is required. For customer redress provisions, judgement is required in relation
to the number of cases in scope, the associated cost of processing cases for review and the value of redress required. The level of customer redress provisions and the
related judgements reduced over the year.

The Committee reviewed judgements and estimates for a number of matters, discussing with management the criteria for recognition of new provisions or provision
releases, as well as the estimation of liabilities. The Committee concluded that the provisions held, and contingent liability disclosures made, by the Society were
appropriate.

Capitalisation,
expected useful
lives and
impairment of

intangible assets

Nationwide’s significant investment in technology, together with fast-moving technology development and change, increases the importance of a detailed assessment of
the useful lives of assets, and the implications of new investment, for the existing technology estate. The Committee considered management's work to review the value
of assets held on the balance sheet and expected useful lives attributed to those assets, and any consequent impairments or changes to useful lives. The Committee
concurred wiz1 management’s conclusions that, after impairments and changes to useful lives, carrying values were appropriate and that asset lives were reasonable.

Pension scheme
accounting

Nationwide’s defined benefit pension scheme assets and liabilities are material to the financial statements, and the valuation of liabilities involves making a number of
assumptions. During the vear, the Committee scrutinised assumptions made by management in calculating the surplus relating to the scheme, including reviewing
benchmarkin: information to ensure that assumptions were appropriate in comparison with market trends. Pension asset valuations were also considered in light of

current market conditions, particularly the increased market velatility experienced during the year. The Committee was satisfied with the assumptions and judgements
made.
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Control environment

The Committee continued to manitor th2 overall effectiveness
of the Society's internal control environrient. This included
oversight of the work undertaken by management to
strengthen and enhance controls throuch the Society's Process
and Control Improvement Programme. “he Committee was
updated regularly on the status of important work to
streamline the approach to control ownership, including
updates from the Chief Controls Officer ¢CCO). During the year
the Committee continued to focus on th= steps being taken by
management to respond on a timely basis to internal audit
findings.

Financiat controls

The Committee reviewed reporting by i anagement on the
effectiveness of the financial control framework, which
focused on strengthening the control environment. A key area
of focus for the Committee during the ye ar continued to be
the changes proposed by the UX government consultation on
restoring trust in audit and corparate gcvernance, published in
2027, These changes, which are expectec to apply from the
2024/25 financial year, will include the irtreducticn of
enhanced internal control requirements tirough amendments
to the Code {commaonly referred to as ‘UK SOX'), as well as
requirements for an Audit and Assurance Policy and a
Resilience and Fraud Statement.

Security, IT controls and operational resilience

Tne Committee is respensible for oversicht of the Society's IT
controls. During the year, it received upcates from EY
regarding the testing undertaken of those controls. In
addition, the Committee continued to m onitor closely ongeing
work to strengthen aspects of IT security management.
Internal Audit completed several refated audits during the
year, and the Committee discussed with the external auditors
their view on controls over privileged access to IT systems and
data management.

Economic crime

Economic crime is a broad term that includes brihery and
corruption, money laundering, fraud (inciuding fraud scams),
theft from customers’ accounts, card-related thefts and
Authorised Push Payment scams.

The Committee received reports on each of these areas during
the year from the Head of Economic Crime.

Capital and distributions

The Committee is responsible for advising the Board on the
affordability of making distributions to holders of core capital
deferred shares (CCDS) and AT1 securities and recommended
te the Board that the payments proposed by management
during the financial year be approved.

Tax

The Committee reviewed the management of Nationwide's tax
affairs and discussed the management of tax risk in business
activities. The Committee also reviewed tax-related
judgements in the financial statements.

Internal Audit

The Committee works closely with the Chief Internal Auditor
who reports directly to the Chair of the Committee.
Throughout the year, the Committee continued te menitor the
progress of the internal Audit function.

The Commiittee reviewed reports from the Chief Internal
Auditor on a guarterly basis. internal Audit's strategic themes
for the year took a holistic view of the Society, rather than
focus on & particular area of the business. This year's strategic
themes included: regulatory compliance; remediation and
conduct; cyber and security; operational resilience and
technology controls; fraud and financial crime; strategy and
change; cloud and material cutsourcing; data and automation;
credit risk and capital; pecple; climate change and
sustainability.

Audit Committee report (continued)

The Committee met jointly with the Board Risk Committee on
two occasions during the year to make recommendations to
the Remuneration Committee relating to risk adjustments on
performance pay plans and other matters of common interest,
such as Internal Audit and Risk Oversight Plans.

The Committee continued to focus on the prompt and effective
resolution of issues raised by Internal Audit; whilst progress
was made during the year, this remains an area of focus,
particularly in respect of complex issues which require
extended time to resolve,

The Committee reviewed the resourcing of the Internal Audit
function each quarter and was satisfied that the resources
remained appropriate. The guality of Internal Audit's wark was
monitored by & quality control function which reported
findings directly to the Committee Chair; no major issues were
reported.

External Audit

One of the Committee’s key responsibilities is cverseeing the
relationship with the external auditor, and the effectiveness of
the audit process. EY has acted as the Society's external audit
firm since appointment at the Annual General Meeting ir July
2019. Nationwide's policy for auditor rotation and audit tender
follows requlatory requirements, and the audit firm will be
required to be rotated after no more than 20 years, with an
audit tender to be held after no more than 10 years. EY's report
can be found on pages 220 to 233.

Audit quality and materiality

The Committee has responsibility for reviewing the quality and
effectiveness of the external audit. The Committee approved
the scope of the audit plan and materiality level in advance of
the annual audit. Materiality is the level at which the auditor
considers that a misstatement would compromise the truth er
fairness of the financial statements, For 2022/23, overall audit
materiality was set at £50 million (2021/22; £50 million).
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Senior statutory auditor

The Committee acknowledges the provisions contained in the
Code in respect of audit tendering and the UK legisletion on
mandatory audit rotation and audit tendering. Javier Faiz of EY
became Nationwide's senior statutory auditer for the financial
year 2019/20 following EY's appointmer- as Nationwide's
external auditor at the Annual General Meeting in July 2019.

Under regulation, Javier Faiz’s term as senicr statutory auditor
should not normally exceed a maximum duration of five years.

Auditor independence

EY has confirmed that it has complied with relevant requlatory
and professional requirements and its objectivity is not impaired,
The Committee is satisfied that EY rema:ned independent
throughout the year.

The Board has an established policy setting out the non-audit
services that can be provided by the external auditor. The aim of
the policy, which is reviewed annually, is to safequard the
independence and objectivity of the externat auditors and
comply with the ethical standards of the Financial Reporting
Council {(FRC).

The policy specifies non-audit services provided hy the external
auditor that are either permitted er prohibited and requires all
nen-audit work to be approved by the Cammittee following a
detailed assessment of the nature of the work, availability of
alternative suppliers and implications for auditor independence.
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Audit and non-audit fees

During the year, the Committee reviewed and approved EY's terms
of engagement for the statutory audit and the audit fee. In
addition, the Committee approves any fees for non-audit services
in accordance with the Society’s policy.

in line with the Society’s non-audit fees policy, all non-audit work is
approved by the Committee where the fee is over £50,000, or by
the Committee Chair and the Chief Financial Officer with
ratification at the next Audit Committee meeting where the fee is
below £50,000. Where aggregate non-audit fees reach 50% of the
statutory audit fee in any given year, all non-audit work must be
approved by the Audit Committee in advance.

During the year, the Committee considered a number of
proposals from management to use the external auditors for non-
audit services, ensuring that management had considered
aiternative suppliers and scrutinising analysis of any potential threats to
auditor independence.

The annual value of Nationwide's non-audit fees is subject to a
regulatory cap. This cap is the amount equal to 70% of the
average cf the audit fees paid by Nationwide in the precading
three financial years. During the year, the Committee reviewed
the cumulative value of nen-audit work guarterly to ensure that
Nationwide was compliznt with this regulatory requirement.

The fees paid to EY in total for the year ended 4 April 2023 were
£7.1 million (2022: £6.2 millicn), of which £1.7 million (2022: £1.2
million) were for non-audit services. Non-audit services which fali
within scope of the 70% regulatory cap represented 15% (2022:
14%) of the average statutory audit fee for the previous three
years.

Audit Committee report {continued)

During the financial year 2022/23, approval was granted for the
external auditors tc undertake one significant engagemert which
related to the verification of Nationwide's scope 1, 2 and 3 €02
emissions. The Committee was satisfied that the engagement did
not impact EY's independence. In addition, EY completed an
engagement, which commenced in 2021/22, relating to a review
of the Society's regulatory reporting for the PRA. The remainder
of non-audit services provided by EY related mainly to treasury
funding activity.

The value of audit and non-audit fees in respect of the finzncial
year are disclosed in note 8 te the financial statements.

Having reviewed both the quantum of the non-audit fees and the
nature of the work carried out, the Committee is satisfied that the
non-audit work does not detract from EY's audit independence.

Effectiveness of the external audit

The Committee reviews the effectiveness of the external audit
process annually. The Committee received a report on audit
effectiveness based on a questionnaire to Committee members
and those members of management who interact with the
auditors, regarding the EY audit of the 2021/22 financiai
statements. It showed that the external auditor was performing
its duties in an independent and effective manner.
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Board Risk
Committee repo

Dear fellow member,

| am pleased to present this report for th= financiat year ended 4 April 2023, my first as Board Risk Committee Chair following my % ’ .
appointment in July 2022. Prior te my ag pointment, | spent time as a Committee member and shadowing my predecesscr, Tim ._._am ﬂﬁ> S ﬁO:m:—.—._m—. U_.,_._"< IS

Tookey, who provided me with his criticel insight and support. an m-.:_uo_,.ﬁm_._._n ﬂ.mﬁm O._"

During the year, we have continued tc give detailed consideration 1o the current and emergent risks facing Nationwide, and also __.mm:_m._”_o_._ that m:ﬁ—uO—-ﬁm our

taken the apportunity to simplify how we manage risks, enabling us to continue to monitor, manage and mitigate risk proactively <m_=mm as an Q—.Qm—._mmm_ﬂmoz .—..O
using the Society's risk management framework to ensure that members continue to receive the level of service and financial &m_m<mﬂ QOOQ ._”
customer

stabiiity they expect f-om Nationwide.

]
In readiness for the implementation of tre FCA's Consumer Duty, which supports the delivery of geod customer cutcomes, the O:._”ﬁo_ﬁmm.
Board appointed me as its Consumer Duty Champion. As part of discharging that role | have ensured that the implementation
pianning and reporting is being reviewed regularly by the Committee.

The Committee retaing overall responsibilit for providing oversight and advice te the Board on all risk matters and has established its How the Committze spent its time this year
moritoring of economic crime and fraud related risks, which were previously overseen by the Audit Committee. During the year, the

Committee has streng-hened oversight and enhanced investment to further improve the Society's economic crime and fraud controls, ® Prudentizl Risk

The Committee continued its critical revizw of the Society's financial stress testing, medeiling and its recovery and resolution
frameworks, and has supported the Board’s examination of climate change and the related risks. An area of particular focus for
the Commitiee during the year has been to continue its close mon toring of the Society's credit risks, particularly in the context of
the current macroecanomic environmen:. We will continue to work closely with the Audit Committee on subjects of common interest.

= Operational & Conduct
Risk

= Enterprise Risk

The Committee is also responsible for T -esilience and related technology risks which were previously overseen by the Board [T
and Resilience Committee. This approach has been taken to ensure consistency of challenge and scrutiny. As a result of this
change, the Committee ensured that suficient meeting time was given to enable consistent review and monitoring of materiat
operational and conduct risks. This year, the Committee has focused on mitigating technology risks associated with steps being
taken by the Society to upgrade a number of its major IT systems.

® Governance

& Other (including meeting
administration)

The year ahead will continue to focus on the implementation of the Consumer Duty and how the Committee will then review and
oversee the delivery of good customer oLtcomes. In addition, the ever changing macro ecenomic envirenment and its impact on the
Society, its members and other key stakeholders and how that influences the risk landscape, will determine the Committes’s focus.

Alan Keir Chair - Board Risk Comimittee
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How the Committee works

The Committee comprises at least three independent non-
executive directers. Alan Keir assumed the rote of Committee
Chair in July 2022, following Tim Tookey's retirement from the
Board. Details of the skills and experience of the Committee
members can be found in their biographies on pages 79 to 82.

Regular attendees inzlude the Society Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer,
Chief internal Auditor, and representatives of the Society's
external auditor, EY. The Committee cortinues to receive
specialist advice from Alison Hewitt on conduct risk. Other
specialist advisors are invited to attend Committee meetings
as and when required.

At each meeting, the Chief Risk Officer snares the Society's
current and emerging risk profile. The Committee invites

subject matter experts to meetings tc present on a variety of
topics. Following each meeting, updates are provided to the

What the Committee did in the year

The principal purpose of the Committee is to provide
oversight on behalf of, and advice to, the Beard in relation to
risk-related matters. It fulfils this role by sroviding advice,
oversight and challenge to enable management to promote,
embed and maintain a strong risk awareness culture
throughout the Society. Mare detail on the Society’s approach
to the management of risk can be found in the Risk Report on
pages 139 to 142,

In addition to reviewing the Society's current and emerging
risk exposures, the Committee considered issues which may
present risks to the Society's strategy as well as issues which
may crystallise into future risk events.

The Board considers the appropriateness of the Society's
strategic plan inthe context of its risk appe” te. During the year, the
Committee endersed the Society’s Board Risk Appetite to the
Board and monitored performance against it, including
undertaking appropriate reviews of material risks.
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Board, which are supplemented by regular reports from the
Chief Risk Officer.

The Committee oversees the Executive Risk Committee, which
is the management committee responsible for ensuring a co-
ordinated risk management anproach across al! the Society’s
risks. The oversight and challenge of the day-to-day IT and
resilience risk, control and oversight arrangements of the
Society is now overseen by the Board Risk Committee. This had
previously been delegated to the Board IT and Resilience
Committee, which has since been dishanded. More detait on
the duties and responsibilities of the Committee can be found
within its terms of reference on the Society’s website:
nationwide.co.uk

The Committee held eight scheduled meetings during the
year, and additienally held two joint meetings with the Audit
Committee. The attendance record of Committee members is

The Committee provides, in conjunction with the Audit
Committee, input to the Remuneration Committee to assist in
its assessment of possible impacts on variable remuneration.

An outline of the key topics considered by the Committee
during the year is broken down by risk category and set
out below.

Prudential risk (includes cradit, model, liquidity and
funding, market, capital and pension risks)

The Society lends in a respeonsible, affordable and
sustainable way to ensure we safeguard members’
interests and maintain financial strength through the
credit cycle. The Committee reviewed and challenged the
plans to ensure that the Society maintains sufficient
capital and liquidity resources to support current
business activity and to remain resilient to significant
stress.

During the year, the Committee reviewed a number of

Board Risk Committee report {continued)

set out on page 83.

The Committee’s effectiveness is reviewed annually, along w th
its terms of reference and activities over the previous year to
confirm that these activities align with its remit and purpose
and continue 1o reflect all applicable gavernance codes,
guidelines, legislation and best practice. In 2022, the
effectiveness review was undertaken by Secretariat with the
assistance of Lintstock Limited, as part of the three-year Board
and committee effectiveness review process agreed in 2021,
Feedback on the Committee’s performance and effectiveness
was provided to both the Committee and the Board. The
results of the review indicate that Committee members are
satisfied with the performance and effectiveness of the
Committee. The 2022 effectiveness review, including actions
and next steps, is described on pages 97 to 98.

aspects of prudential risk as required by the Bank of England and
the PRA. This included scrutiny of the Society’s reselution
framework, capital and liquidity adequacy (as reported in the
ICAAP and ILAAP respectively), the Pillar 3 risk disclosures, the
recovery plan and the 2023 Reverse Stress Test results.

The Committee monitored the impact of the current
macroeconomic and political environment including the
November 2022 Budget, cost of living challenges, the ongoing
conflict in Ukraine, rising inflation and interest rates.

The Committee approved updates to the Society’s risk strategy on
the management of capital risk and enhancements to controls
around management capability,

Operational and conduct risk
The Society seeks to minimise customer disruption, financial loss

and reputationai damage by providing sustainable services and
resilient systems.
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During the year, the Committee reviewed and challenged the
following key areas of operational and cenduct risk:

* the Society’s response and readiness for the FCA's Consumer
Duty;

s the improvements to financial crime aperations;

« the annual Money Laundering Reporting Officer’s report;

» the attributes of a robust risk culture;

o the role of Collections and Recoveries;

e the implemenrtation of Basel Commitzee on Banking
Supervision (BCBS) 239 reporting principles around risk data
capabilities; and

e the maintenance of robust controls.

The Committee received the arnual Data Protection Officer’s
report, detailing the adequacy of data protection policies,
procedures and governance arrangements to mitigate data
protection risks and comply with data protection legislation,
including the General Data Protection Regulatien. It alse
discussed the Society’s approach to maraging the emerging
risks relating to data ethics and the ways in which the Society
uses customers’ data, including consent and marketing
requirements in the context of the FCA’s Consumer Duty.

In Iine with the transition of responsibilities, the Committee
received a detailed analysis of IT and res lience related risks and
controls from the newly appeinted Chief Operating Officer, as
well as being appraised of external and internal fraud and cyber
risks.

The Committee continued to champicn “he Scciely's approach
to customer service; =nsuring that customers are treated fairly,
before, during and after the sales process by offering products
and services which meet their needs and expectaticns, perform
as represented and provide value for meney.

Enterprise risk (includes business risk)

The Committee has challenged the Society's business model to
ensure it is sustainable and remains within the constraints of
the Building Sccieties Act 1986. Below are examples of how it
has done this:

¢ The Cormittee considered and endorsed the Board's risk
appetite which establishes the amount and type of risk that
the Board is comfortable with the Society taking. This is to
ensure that the Seciety remains sustainable in the long term
for the benefit of its members. The Committ=e regularty
reviewed the Society’s risk performance against Board Risk
Appetite to ensure that zppropriate action was being taken.

¢ [t contributed to the Remuneration Committee’s consideration
of any potential risk adjustments to executive variable
remuneration.

o |t approved the results of the review of the Society’s Enterprise
Risk Management Framework - the systern of risk
management and internai controls which the Society operates
within. The review concluded that the Society’s system of risk
management and internal controls were adeguate when
assessed against the Board's risk appetite.

+ The Committee encouraged a risk culture that considers both
risk and reward in decision-making. The Committee reviewed
the risk culture in the context of the newly set strategy.

» The Commitiee received quarterly updates on progress made
in managing the Society's climate-related risks, considered
climate change risk reporting and reviewed the feedback
received from the PRA ¢ the Society's performance in the
2021-22 Climate Bienniai Exploratory Scenarios (CBES)
submissions. The Committee reviewed and challenged the
associated risks with climate disclosures, including the
publication of Nationwide’s Science Based Targets, More
information on the Society's climate related disclosures can be
found on pages 53 to 64.

» [t considered the potential propositional, operational and
margin implications of interest rate and inflation rate changes
on the Society.

Board Risk Committee report {continued)

During the year, the Committee received regular updates from the
Society’s second line oversight functions. The Commiittee is confident
that the Society’s division of duties between the first, second and
third fines of defence is sufficiently robust to ensure that the
Society's operational decisions receive timely and appropriate
challenge. The Economic Crime team was restructured during the
2021/22 financial year into separate first- and second-line teams
and the Committee has been kept closely informed of those
changes and the enhanced operating model. The Committee also
approved changes to the Executive RiskCommittee's Terms of
Reference.
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Nomination and
Governance
Committee Report

“This is the first year in which the
Society is required to disclose its
performance against three diversity
targets set by the FCA relating to the

composition of its Board and
executive management. | am pleased
to report that all three targets have
Dear fellow member. been met, two of which have been

”
| am pieased to report on the work of the Momination and Governangs Committee during the financial year ended 4 April 2023. exceeded.

The Committee contitues to play a critical role in promoting the long-term sustainable success of the Society for the benefit of its
members and other stakeholders by ensuring that the Society is led by a Board and executive management that possess the

Looki
appropriate combination of skills and experience. ooking forward to 2023/24

The Committee wik continue to focus on Board and senior
management composition and skills, succession planning, driving
inclusion and diversity across the Society and overseeing Board

Ensuring that the Board is well batanced in terms of its structure, <kills, knowledge, experience and diversity, forms a key part in
enabling the Saciety to achieve its objectives and successfully purs e its fong-term strategy. The Committee maintains and
mau_mamqm an effect've m:nnm.mno: plan to ensure Em_; the Board B:q:.cmm to serve the w,mmﬁ _:Hmﬂmmﬁm,orzm mogns\_m members, both and Committee performance plans and training, including
now and in the future, recognising that cur members’ needs and griorities are ever-changing. Alan Keir was appointed as a member leadershi for hiah- o )

of the Committee in July 2022, whilst Ma' Fyfield stepped down as a Committee member following Tracey Graham's appeintment as a GAdership programmes 2:.6 noﬁma_m_ individuas. _J<___ also
member in January 2023. My introducticn to the Governance Report on page 78 outlines the changes to Board and its committee oversee management’s work in promoting and progressing
composition made during the year, all of which have been averseen by this Committee. inclusion and diversity within the leadership pipeline.

This is the first year in which the Society ‘s required to disclose cer-ain diversity data relating to both its Board and executive
management and report on its performa-ice against three diversity targets set by the FCA in its Annual Report and Accounts. Thisg
information can be found cn page 96. The Scciety’s agenda on inc usion and diversity remains an area of particular focus for the How the Committee spent its time this year

Committee, with the addition of new inchision and wellbeing measures. Management presented regular updates on the progress ® Executive amoc.a:m_ leadersip,
made against the Society’s agreed inclus on, diversity and wellbeing measures to the Committee throughout the year. An area of . talent & sucession .
increasing focus for the Committee is the work being undertaken across the Society in respect of sccial mobility, which aims to ensure Boarc compasition & effectiveness
that all of our people have the opportunity to reach their full potential, regardless of their background or uphringing. During the year,
each of the Society's directors participated in a Society-wide socio-2conemic background data-gathering exercise, in support of this
workstream,

® Inclusion & diversity

m ndividual accountability regimes

As part of its remit, the Committee provides oversight of the Society’s governance framework on behalf of the Board te ensure that it
remains effective and aligned with best practice. The Committee is satisfied that the current governance framework has continued to
operate effectively and efficiently througf out the year,

® Governance and requlatory
requirements

® Other (including meating
administration)

Kevin Parry Chairman - Nomination and Governance Committee

1o
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inclusion, diversity & wellbeing

The Committee oversees the development and
implementation of the Society's inclusion, diversity and
wellbeing (ID&W) strategy and objectives. In June 2022,
the Saciety’s agreed diversity measures were updated to
include inclusion and wellbeing measuras for the 2022/23
financial year. The Society's ambition is o build an
inclusive culture where everyone can thive and for the
diversity of our Society to reflect the diversity of the
communities we serve.

Throughout the year, the Committee received updates
an the significant work undertaken to embed ID&W
throughout the organisation and make progress in
achieving the Society’s ID&W ambitions This included:
¢ Undertaking an independent review of progress
in ID&W matters and a supporting benchmarking
exercise to identify areas of key focus;

« Introducing new inclusion and well seing
measures which aim to reduce the gap in
experience between the majority and under-
represented groups within the Socizty;

+ Upskilling our pecple managers and leaders to
develop high-performing and diverse teams who
have the ability to challenge ‘group think” in order
to achieve Nationwide's strategic o2jectives; and

+ Ensuring leadership accountability “or the delivery
of the ID&W agenda.

Good progress has been made in the la<t year;
however, the Society's diversity outcomes are not yet
where we want them to be and ID&W wll remain a
critical focus for the Committee. More irformation on
the Society’s ID&W strateqgy, measures end progress
made can be found on pages 50 to 51.

The Board is committed to ensuring that it has a
membership which is diverse and reflec:s the
communities that it represents. it aims to achieve this
by ensuring there is diversity of ethnicitv, age, gender,
disability and sexual orientaticn, as well as socio-
economic, educationzl and professional backgrounds,
within the Board’s membership.

12

Existing efforts will be built on and considered in the
development of a diverse pipeline for Board succession.
Selecting the best candidate is paramount and all
appointments are based on merit and objective criteria with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. This
benefits the effectiveness of the Board by creating diversity of
thought and breadth of perspective among our directors.

This is the first year in which the Scciety is required to
disclose certain diversity dala relating to both its Board and
executive management within the Annual Report and
Accounts, including performance against three diversity
targets that have been set by the FCA. This information, as
well as detail relating to the approach taken in the collation
of this diversity data, can be found on page 96.

The Board’s gender and ethnic:ty targets in respect of
individuals at senior levels within the Society have been set to
go beyond those prescribed by the FCA through alignment
with the Society’s gender (50%) and ethnicity (12%) targets.
Whilst recognising that short-term chaltenges may exist
owing to the size of the Board during pericds of change,
these targets seek to strengthen the Board's commitment to
ensuring diversity at senior levels within the Seciety.

As part of this commitment, the Committee continues to
review the development of the pipeline of both ethnically
diverse and female executive management within the Society
and, as a signatory to the Women in Finance Charter, the
Society is committed to supporting the progression of
women into senior roles, In addition, the Society is a
signatory of the Race at Work Charter, which involves &
Board-level commitment to zerc tolerance of harassment
and bullying, particularly racial.

To increase our focus on disabitity inclusion, the Society is a
member of the Valuable 500, a globa! collective of 500 chief
executive officers and their companies which uses the power
of business to ensure that disability is discussed at Board
level and make business more inclusive of those living with a
disability. Signatories are required tc put disability inclusion
an their leadership agenda and to publish a firm pledge for
action.

Nomination and Governance Committee repcrt
(continued}

To support the work being undertaken across the Scciety in
respect of social mobility, the Society has become 2 partner
of the Pregress Together Partnership, which aims to
promote socio-economic diversity at senior levels by enabling
all people working within the UK financial services sector to
achieve their full potential, regardless of their background or
upbringing. During the year, each of the Society’s directors
participated in a Scciety-wide socio-econamic background
data-gathering exercise, in support of this warkstream.

The Board's Diversity Statement is set out in the Board
Composition and Succession Policy which can be found
on the Society’s website: nationwide.co.uk

Board composition and effectiveness

As part of its remit, the Committee is required to assist
the Society Chairman in subjecting the compaosition of
the Board and its committees to regular review. The
purpose of these reviews is to identify the current and
fikely future needs of the Board and to lead the
appointments process for nominations to the Board.
This includes ensuring that the Society has the right
mix of knowledge, skills and behaviours on the Board
for it to be effective in delivering its responsibilities to
provide oversight and governance of the Society and to
safeguard the interests of its members.

In determining the Board's needs, the Committee
considers a range of factors including the diversity of
the Board in its widest sense, the Society's strateqy,
current and future challenges and opportunities facing
the Society and the need to balance continuity and
knowledge of the Society with progressive changes to
the membership of the Board and its committees. The
recruitment precess for directors is designed to ensure
that the Board possesses a diverse range of skills and
appropriate objectivity.

It also involves detailed referencing and other checks to
establish the candidate’s credentials, including
suitability, fitness and propriety. Regulatory approval is
required for certain Board roles.
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Selection process for new non-executive directors
during 2022/23

Following a review of the composition cf the Board and
the planned retirement of Mai Fyfield at the 2023 AGM,
the Committee identified a potential ga2 on the Board
and the need for an independent non-executive director
with a deep understanding and practical experience of
remuneration practices. As such, the Committee
oversaw and recommended to the Board the
appointment of Tracey Graham as independent non-
executive director and Chair of the Rerruneration
Committee.

The Committee engaged Karn Ferry, an independent
executive search firm, to assist with the search. Korn
Ferry was independent other than in th= context of
having provided search services for previous
appointment processes. The Committee, supported by
Korn Ferry, prepared a candidate specification based on
objective criteria, setting cut the knowledge, skills,
experience and attributes required. From the candidate
specification, a longl st of potential candidates was
drawn up from which a shortlist was compiled.
Following interview with three shortlisted candidates,
conducted by the Society Chairman and Scciety
Secretary, two preferred candidates energed for the
role. A panel of three independent non-executive
directors was convened, which included the Senicr
independent Director, to conduct second-round
interviews. Following due and careful consideration, and

taking into account the current needs of the Board, Tracey
Graham, on a unanimous decision, succeeded as the sole
preferred candidate for the rele.

The Committee agreed that Tracey's appeintment tuifils
the need o further strengthen the Board with a non-
executive director with skills and experienca and
succeeded Mai Fyfield as Remuneration Committee Chair
in January 2023,

Board performance review

The Code requires the Chairman to lead an annual Board
review. In 2022 the review was conducted by the Society’s
Secretariat with the assistance of Lintstock Limited, as
part of the three-year Board and committee effectiveness
review process, agreed in 2021. The Committee oversaw
the work undertaken by Secretariat and Lintstock Limited,
which looked at the overall effectiveness of the Board and
its committees and provided an objective assessment of
the strengths, capabilities, effectiveness and dynamics of
the Board. More information on the effectiveness review
can be found on pages 97 to 98.

Corporate governance

As part of its remit, the Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the Society's governance arrangements on
behalf of the Board. The Committee reviewed and

Nomination and Governance Committee report
{continued)

approved the Nationwide Governance Manual and
reviewed the corporate governance disclosures in the
2022 and 2023 Annual Report and Accounts.

Individual accountability regimes

The Senior Manager and Certification Regime (SM&CR)
was introduced by the Society's regulators to encourage
senior managers working within the financial services
industry to take greater responsibility for their actions.
SMR&CR aims to stop recurrence of poar behaviours which
could result in poor member outcomes. In addition, it
enables regulators to take action against individuals in
cases where significant wrongdoing has been identified.

The Committee continues to focus on regulatory
requirements to ascertain suitability, fitness and propriety
of relevant individuals and to ensure that SM&CR
responsibilities are allocated appropriately through the
Society's well-established mapping process.

Overall, the Society's processes and controls in relation to
both the accountability regimes anc the assessment of the
Financial Conduct Authority Conduct Rules breaches
continue to operate effectively.

13
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Report of the directors on
—.ma : : mﬂm.ﬂmo : For the year ended 4 April 2023

Dear fellow member,

| am pleased to share the Remuneration Committee’s report, and my first as Chair of the Committee. | would like to place on record my

sincere thanks to my predecessor, Mai Fyfield, for her service to the Committee and for her support in ensurir.g a smooth handover. | would
also fike to thank my fellow Committee members for their support and contribution to the work of the Committee threughout the year. This
report includes details of directors’ pay for the year ended 4 April 2023 and how the Seciety intends to implement the directors’ “Qur remuneration str tegy

remuneration policy for 2023/24. m:osm the monﬂmg,m _om_‘_..o_,_ﬁm: e

Over the last year, since the appointment of Debbie Crosbie as our first female Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Nationwice has delivered and reward m—uﬁﬂom_n: to the
strong financial performance and continued support for our customers, demonstrating resilience in a challenging environment. We Qmm<m_.< of our W_Cmt_.mz_” for a
emerged from the impact of the Covid-"8 pandemic to face unprecedented cost of living pressures affecting both customers and colleagues ’
alike. Since joining the Board, | have bezn impressed by our colleagues’ professionalism and commitment te deliver for customers, and | am modern mutual
pleased the Society has been able to suzport colleagues during this period.

The Committee has ensured pay oulcornes for 2022/23 are commensurate with the strength of the Society’s performance and the How the Committee spentits time in the year
contribution of cur colleagues during tre vear, and has aligned our remuneration framewark with our new strategy and purpose, The
Committee undertock a detailed review of the performance measJres that will apply to our variable pay arrangements in 2023/24, and
refreshed our reward proposition for th= wider workforce to ensure that it will support the delivery of our new strategy and enable the
Society to differentiate reward outcomes based on colleague performance and behaviours,

m Pay Strategy and apgroach
= Performance award outcomes

m Quersight of remuneration
across the Society

Our directors’ remuneration policy received strong support at the 2022 AGM (with §3.5% of votes 'FOR"), and | would like to thank s Regulztory raparting

members for their ongomg support. Fo-2022/23, | can confirm that we operated in line with the cpproved remuneration pelicy, a summary

of which is set out in this report. m Procedurat matters

Supporting our wider workforce m GGovernance

Our colleagues are integral to the Society as we strive to deliver the best customer outcomes and serve members’ interests, and we find
ourselves competing in an increasingly competitive labour marke: with a shortage of skilled talent. The Committee is conscious of the impact
inflationary pressures have had in creating financial challenges for many of our custemers and colleagues, and we were therefore supportive
of the decisions and actions the Society's leaders took during this difficult pericd. This included making a £1,200 cost of living payment during
the year to our lower earning employees and the base pay package agreed with the Nationwide Group Staff Union (NG3U) for 2023/24. Under
this package, over 99% of our colleagu=s, excluding those in most senior roles, received a 6.5% salary increase effective three months earlier
than normal, and also received a £500 one-off payment. The Society also introduced a skills and competency pay framework for some front-
line reles, which rewards colleagues for deepening and broadening their skills to better support customers. Overall, the total average value
delivered by the package for 2023/24 was around 11% of salary.
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The Society moved guickly to agree payment decisions to
ensure colleagues had certainty, and to support those who
needed it most. The Committee remains acutely aware of
inflationary chailenges and will continue to keep a watchful eye
on the external environment to ensure tat pay for our
colieagues remains appropriate.

More detail cn the types of financial and non-financial support
the Society provided during the year can be found on page 32.

Qur variabie pay arrangements

During the year, the Committee considered the design of the
Society's variable pay framework to ensure it remains fit for
purpose. The following sets out key changes that are being
made to ensure that the Society's variakle pay arrangements
(i} support the new strategy and purposz; (i} enable the
Society to recognise exceptional colleag Je performance and
customer service: and (iii) are aligned with market practice:

e The variable pay plan operated among all eligible
colleagues has heen reviewed. Going forward colieagues
will be rewarded only where they demonstrate both
meaningful delivery and strong behaviours. This will be
informed by two separate performance ratings, which the
Committee believes will support greater differentiation and
a high-performance culture.

e We have also simplified the structure of the annual
incentive, the Directors’ Annual Perfarmance Award, such
that the all-employee element and the element for the
most senior leaders have been consolidated inte a single
plan for 2023/24 onwards: the AnnLai Performance Pay
{APP) plan. Whilst the structure of the awards has been
consclidated, a proportion of APP awards (up to 70%) for
the mast senior population will continue to be based on the
same Society perfermance measures as wider colleagues,
ensuring clear alignment and focus across the Society in
delivering for our customers.

« We have renamed the Directors’ Long-term Performance
Award as the Long-Term Performance Pay (LTPP} plan.
Further details on the performance measures for the first
LTPP awards to be made are set out on page 124.

o During the year, the Committee reviewed the approach to
the use of the Society's core capital deferred shares (CCDS)
for remuneration purposes. As has been the case for a
number of years, a portion of variable pay awards for
employees who are deemed to fall within scope of
requlatory requirements 1s converted into & notional
number of CCDS units and linked to the value of CCDS over
the applicable deferral period, in accordance with the
regulations.

o Whilst notional CCDS units will continue to be used going
forward, two modifications are being made to ensure that
awards made to these individuals provide appropriate
alignment to the credit quality of Nationwide and to align
with market practice, namely adjusting the CCDS price
used to remove the impact of long-term interest rates and
adjusting the nurnber of noticnal CCDS units awarded to
reflect the absence of CCDS distributions over the deferral
period.

Performance and pay outcomes for 2022/23

Our results for the year show the Seciety has delivered strong
financial performance, our strongest on record, while
continuing to provide brilliant customer service and maintain a
thriving membership.

For 2022/23, APP ocutcomes for all eligible colleagues were
determined by reference to the same Society measures, with
an additional controls measure for senior leaders. For our
senior leaders, variable pay also reflects their individual
contribution, measuring not just what they have delivered
through their individual objectives but also how they have
delivered them.

Report of the directors on remuneration
{continued)

In considering the APP Seciety measure outcomes for the year,
the Committee considered the Soaciety’s robust performance
against prevailing market and economic headwinds, We
remain first amongst our peer group for customer satisfaction’,
and we have grown the number of committed members. We
have also focused on controlling costs in a high-inflation
envircnment.

We are encrmously proud of, and grateful to, our colleagues for
how they have delivered for members during a challenging
year. The cutcome against the APP Society measure scorecard,
adjusted as appropriate to reflect decisions taken i the vear
{covered fater in the report on pages 120 to 123), resulted in a
target pay-out. Reflecting the strong financial performance
delivered in the year, and colleagues’ contribution te this, the
Committee agreed with management's recommendation to
reward our colleagues over and above the scorecard outcome.
The Committee therefore approved an additional amount,
worth 1.5% of salary, to be delivered to all colleagues
participating in the all-employee plan, such that the overall
outcome was slightly above the target level.

The Committee also determined the APP outcomes for the
executive directors, taking account of Society performance and
2ach individual’s contribution. The Committee agreed a target
outcome for the Society measures under the plan for the CFQ
and Chief Financial Officer (CFQ). Details of the measures,
individual performance assessments and the overall APP
awards delivered to our executive directors are set out later in
this report.

1 ® Ipsos 2023, Financial Research Survey {FRS), for the 12 menths ending 31 March 2022 and 12 months ending 31 March 2023. Results based on a sample of around 47,000 aduits {aged 16+}. The survey contacts

around 51,000 adults (aged 16+} a year in tetal across Great Britain. interviews were over the phone and anline, taking inte account {and weighted to) the overall profile of the adult population. The results reflect the
percenrtage of extremely satisfied and very s:tisfied customers minus the percentage of customers who were extremely or very or fairly dissatisfied across those customers with a main current account, mortgage or

savings. Those in our p=er group are providers with more than 3.3% of the main current account market as of Aprit 2022 - Barclays, Halifax, HSBC, Lloyds Bank, NatWest, Santander and TSB.

115



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

m Strategic report Governance Risk report

Financial statements Other information u

The Committee approved the first awards to be granted under
the LTPP plan to be made to the CEQ and CFO. The LTPP will
reward sustainable long-term performance linked fo strategic
objectives and alignment with member interests over a three-
year period to April 2026. Given that thase are the first awards
to be made under the plan, the Commit-ee carefully considered
the appropriate measures, including reviewing market practice
and obtaining external independent ing Jt. To ensure awards
will incentivise and reward management for the delivery of
sustainable long-term performance, aligned with our new
strategy and purpose, the Commitiee acreed that the LTPP
scorecard would be weighted such that 40% is based on
financial goals, 20% on risk and compliznce, 20% on
Environmental, Social and Governance (=5G) goals, with the
remaining 20% based on delivering against transformation
objectives linked to the Society’s strateqic drivers. Further
details on the measures are set cut on page 124

Taking account of Society and individual performance during
2022/23, the Committee agreed to grant the executive
directors LTPP awards of 100% of base salary, which remain
subject to a three-year performance period.

Looking ahead to 2023/24

In the context of the base pay package agreed for the wider
workforce, the Committee approved basze salary increases of
6% for the executive directors, effective from 1 April 2023,
lower than the average award received by the wider workforce,

As noted above, 2023/24 APP awards far all eligible
employees, including executive directors, will be based on the
same Seciety gateways and performance measures, to ensure
everyone works together to deliver our ~ew strategy and
purpose. Details of these measures are et cut on page 18.
The maximum APP award for the execL ive directors continues
to be set at 100% of salary.

An assessment of the Society’s performance, and the individual
performance of the executive directors, will be made by the
Committee at the end of the year to determine whether further
awards will be made under the LTPP plan in respect of
2023724, with the maximum award being 100% of salary.
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During 2022/23, the Committee acknowledged the
Cansuitation Paper published by the Bank of England setting
out joint proposals frorm the Prudential Regulation Authority
(PRA) and Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) tc remaove the
variable to fixed pay cap regulations. The Committee will await
the finai policy position and keep the potential impact for
Nationwide under review.

Member voting on remuneration

This year there wiil be an advisery vote on our Annual Report
on Remuneration, and the details are set out for your
consideration on the following pages.

I hope you find the information in the report clear; if you have
any questions please contact me via the Society secretary,

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee, | would like to
thank members for their continued suppert and encourage you
to vote in favour of the resolution to approve our Annual Report
on Remuneration.

Tracey Graham Chair - Remuneration Committee

Report of the directors on remuneration
(continued)
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How the Committee works

The members of the Committee are all non-executive directors
of the Society. The composition of the Committee, and the
number of meetings altended in the yezr are set out on page
83. The Committee Feld six scheduled meetings and two ad-
hot meetings during the year.

Regular attendees of the Committee inc ude the Society
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief People Officer and the
Director of Performance & Reward. On &n annual basis the
Committee also invites the Chief Risk Officer and Chief Internal
Auditor to attend. In no case is any persan present when their
owWn remuneration is discussed.

Deloitte LLP, independent external cons.ltants, also attend
meetings. The Committee retained Deleitte during 2022/23
following a competitive tender process 1 2079. It reviews
annually all other services provided by Celoitte to ensure they
continue to be indepzndent and ohjective. Delpitte is a
founding member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and
voluntarily operates under the code of canduct in relation to

What the Comimittee did in the year

Pay strategy and aprroach

The Committee reviewed and approved the approach to
variable pay for 2023/24, to ensure it sLpports the new
strategy and purpose and enables the Saciety to recognise
exceptional colleague performance and customer service. The
Committes also reviewed the approach o the use of the
Seciety's CCDS for remuneration purposes and approved the
approach to performance measures for -he first LTPP awards
to be made to the exacutive directors, d>tails of which are set
out on page 124,

executive remuneration consulting in the UK. Deloitte's
advisory team has no connection with any individual director of
Nationwide. Their fees for advice provided to the Committee
during 2022/23 were £190,050 (excluding VAT), typically
charged on a time-and-materials basis. Deloitte aiso provided
tax, risk, internal audit and consulting services to the Society
during 2022/23.

The Chair of the Committee attended meetings with the PRA
and FCA.

The Committee is supported by the Board Risk and Audit
committees on risk-related matters, including performance
pay plan design, the assessment of specific performance
measures, and wider issues relating to risk and controls.
Further details can be found in the reports of those
committees on pages 100 to 109.

The Committee provides oversight and advice to the Board on
the matters listed in its terms of reference (available at

Performance award outcomes

The Committee approved the outcome of the annual incentive
arrangement for 2021/22.

The Committee reviewed its approach to risk adjustment,
strengthening the robust process for making decisions to
reduce variable pay where individuals are accountable for risk
events. The Committee made decisions on risk adjustmentin
April 2023, including for variable payments due in June 2023.

Oversight of remuneration across the Society

The Committee received updates on how remuneration is a
part of creating a heaithy culture in the workplace and
considered how remuneration policies are aligned with the
Society's purpose, strategy and values.

Report of the directors on remuneration
(continued)

nationwide.co.uk) and reports to the Board on those matters
after each meeting.

The effectiveness of the Committee is reviewed annually, along
with the Committee’s terms of reference and its activities over
the previous year, to confirm that these activities align with its
remit and purpose, and continue to reflect all applicable
governance codes, guidelines, legislation and best practice. In
2022, the effectiveness review was undertaken by Secretariat
with the assistance of Lintstock Limited, as part of the three-
year Board and committee effectiveness review process, which
was agreed in 2021. Feedback on the Committee's
perfermance and effectiveness was provided to both the
Committee and the Board. The results of the review indicate
that the Committee’s members are satisfied with the
performance and effectiveness of the Committee. The 2022
effectiveness review, including actions and next steps is
described on pages 97 to 98.

The Committee considered wider colleague analysis, including
pay decisions by diversity characteristic and the outputs of
internal survey dzta on pay and benefits. In making executive
pay dacisions, the Committee took account of remuneration
practices across the Society. In addition to information
received on Naticnwide’s wider workforce pay practices
throughout the year, the Board received an annual update
from the general secretary of the NGSU in November 2022 and
from the Employee Voice non-executive director, Tamara
Rajah, in March 2023. More information on Board engagement
with colleagues can be found on pages 31te 32.
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What the Committee did in the year (continued)

Regulatory reporting

The Committee reviewed and approved the Report of the
Directors on Remuneration for 2021/22. It alse reviewed and
approved all remuneration sukmissions made to the PRA and

FCA over the course of the year.

Procedural matters

Remuneration Codes.

The Committee agreed the base pay and variable pay
arrangements for all employees in scope of the PRA and FCA

The Committee is responsible for determining and agreeing
with the Board the remuneration strategy, how that strategy is
reflected in the remuneraticn policy, and approved pay reviews
for the Society Chairman, executive directors, and the
Executive Committee (ExCo) for 2023/24, taking into
consideration pay review decisions for the wider workforce.

Alignment between wider workforce and executive directors’ remuneration

Our reward framework is designed to attract, motivate and retain colleagues who are inspired to do their best for our customers every day, and to reward all colleagues fairly across the Society. The
framework for executive directors is alicned with the wider workfarce except for the LTPP plan. This difference ensures our executive directors have a significant proportion of their remuneration
linked to the Society’s longer-term prior ties and provides a clear ink with members’ interests and the achievement of our financial and strategic aims, including our sustainability commitments.

Ml colleagues

Base safary and pension

w

Our most senior population

-Term Performance Pay plan

Salaries are set to reflact the work colleaguzs do
and the contribution they make, informed by
external market benchmarking and the salary of
colleagues doing simi ar roles, We are & principal
partner of the Living Wage Foundation.

If our employees cont-ibute 4% of base salsry to
their pension, we will contribute 13% and match
any additional contributions up to a maxirrum
employer contribution of 16%. Executive divectors’
contributions are aligned to the wider workforce.

We offer a range of contractual benefits specific to
role and all colleagues have access te My Reward,
our flexible benefits and discounts scheme, to meet
persenal needs at varying stages of fife.

Subject to eligibility, benefits include 25 to 30 days
holiday, health care, death in service cover, an
electric vehicle scheme, parental and cther leave,
and retirement planning.

>§E_ Performance Pay plan

All of our colleagues who meet individual conduct
requirements are eligible to participate in the APP
plan, with consistent performance measures for all
participants, ensuring clear alignment and focus
acrnss the Society in delivering against our strategic
drivers and for our customers. Awards are generally
paid in cash. However, for more senior colleagues,
awards are paid in a mixture of cash and CCDS,
subject to relevant deferral criteria.

Cur most senior population, including executive
directors, are invited to participate in the LTPP
plan. It supports the delivery of sustainable
member value and the performarice measures are
aligned to the Society's longer-term priorities and
the achievement of our financial and strategic
aims, including our sustainability commitments

LTPP awards are deferred over tha long-term and
will only be paid subject to sustained satisfactory
Society and individual performance.

18




Annual Report & Accounts 2023 Report of the directors on remuneration

ﬂm:wﬁm@_,n report E Risk report Financial statements Other information u {continued)

Annual report on remuneration for 2022/23

This section provides information on how the directors’ remuneration policy, as approved by members at the 2022 AGM, was implemented during 2022/23. A summary of the policy can be found
on pages 132 to 134,

Base salary and pension

The effective base salary for C S Rhodes in the year was £690,428. D Croshie was appointed on a salary of £1,072,250 from her commencement as CEQ in June 2022. The pension allewances of our
executive directors are 16% of salary, which is the maximum benafit available fo the wider employee pepulation.

Annual Performance Pay (APP) “or 2022/23

APP for 2022/23 had two elements: an 3ll-empioyee element and an element for our most senior leaders, including executive directors. Both elements of APP were aligned with the attainment of
challenging strategic and finzncial measures drawn from the Soc ety’s Plan for 2022/23, as set out below. These measures ensured focus on delivering benefits to our members, and for 2022/23 the
element in which senior leaders particip ated included an additional controls measure. The senior element also incorporates an amount based on individual performance and behaviours.

Society performance Individual performance

Number of committed members
Customer service satisfaction rating
Total costs
Controls (senior leaders only)

Objectives reflecting each individual's contribution
towards the delivery of the Society’s Plan as well
as individual conduct and behaviours

The maximum potential APP award level for 2022/23 was 100% of base salary for both the CEG and CFO, with 26.4% of the overall award based on individual performance. An illustration of the
pay-out schedule of the executive directors' APP awards can be found on page 125. The Society has the ability to claw back APP awards for up to ten years after they were awarded in certain
circumstances.
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Qutcomes for APP 2022/23

Three ‘gateways’ must be passed before any payment is made under the plan. The three gateways are based c¢n measures of profit before tax, leverage ratio and conduct risk. These gateways were
passed in 2022/23. In determining executive directors’ APP cutcomes for 2022/23, the Committee assessed the Society's performance against the four measures set out below. The Committee
must also be satisfied that there are no s'gnificant conduct, risk, reputationa, financial, operational or other reasons why awards should not be made, taking into account input from the Board Risk
and Audit committees. D Croshie’s APP award reflects performance since her appointment in june 2022. Details on awards made te the former CEQ, J D Garner are set out on page 126.

(Audited) : Performance pay achieved /

; Maximum achievable
(% of salary paid in 2022/23)
S D Crosbie C S Rhodes

Measure Performance target range: threshold, target and maximum, and performance achieved

Number of i

committed members Qutcome for 2022/23: on target 13.0%/19.4% | 13.0%/19.4%

(note 1) 3.62m 3.75m 3.85m

Mu_\wom.mwmmﬁ__wmmﬁ__w: Qutcome for NONNSU mmﬂ@mﬁ 13.0%/19.4% 13.0% / 19.4%
T T+ 4%pis T+ 6%pts

MMH ,ﬂ_ﬁwm Outcome for 2022/23: on target : 13.0%/194% | 13.0%/19.4%
£2.112m £2,082m £2.052m

ﬁm%%ﬁwz_u,_\w Outcome for 2022/23: on farget = 103%/154% | 103%/15.4%
50% 100% 150%

Individual performance element {see further detail below) 26.4% / 26.4% 26.0% / 26.4%

Remuneration Committee discretionary overlay that applied for the all-employee element and risk assessment
The Committee carefully considered the outcomes for the executive directors to ensure they were a fair reflection of performance. As set out in the
Committee Chair's letter, reflecting the strong financial performance of the Society delivered in the year, an additicnal amount was approved under

the all-employee element of the plan for the wider workforce. This value was also delivered to the executive directors as participants in the ail- 15% (3:5%)
employee plan. The Committee also took into account a broad range of facters and, where deemed appropriate, applied @ downwards adjustment

to take into account risk factors arising d iring the year. The aggregate impact of the Committee's decisions for each indiviaual is shown.

Total performance pay achieved hasec on Society and individual performance T7.2% 71.8%
Out of a maximum opportunity {as a % of salary paid in 2022/23) of 100% 100%

Notes;

. Asreferenced inthe Committee Chair's lettar (see pages 114 to 16), whilst the actual committed members and FRS satisfaction outcomes for 2022/23 of 3.68m and Tst +3.8%pts respectively were lower than the original plan
targets for the vear, for the purposes of determining APP outcomes for all eligible employeas, including executive directors, the Remuneration Committee agreed target outcomes for these elements. This adjusted outcome
took into account strategic decisions taken Juring 2022/23 and the strength of the Society's overall performance for the year.

ii. ®© Ipsos 2023, Financial Research Survey (FRS), for the 12 months ending 31 March 2023. Results based on a sample of around 47,000 adults (aged 16+). The survey contacts around 51,000 adults (aged 16+) a year in total
across Great Britain. Interviews were over the phone and online, taking into account (and weighted to) the overall profile of the adult population. The results reflact the percentage of extremely satisfied and very satisfied
custormers minus the percentage of custorrers who were extremely or very or fairly dissatisfied across those customers with a main current account, mortgage or savings. Those in our peer group are provicers with more than
3.3% of the main current account market as of April 2022 - Barclays, Halifax, HSBC, Lioyds Bank, NatWest, Santander and TSB.

iii. The Commitiee agreed that the actual total costs outcome for 2022/23 of £2,323m sheuld be adjusted for the purposes of determining APP outcomes. The Committee considered the impact of the inflaticnary ervironment and
decisions approved Ly the Board during the year that impacted the Soriety's costs position, including actions to support colleagues such as cost of living payments, a higher than planned annual pay review award and cne-off
£500 payment in April 2023. The outcome for this element for the wider workforce, including executive directors, was therefore agreed at target,

iv. For the Controls measure, the Audit Comm ttee considered progress against our Process and Controls Improvement Programme (PCIP), taking into acceunt achievement against specific milestones as well as assurance activity.
The Chairs of the Audit Committee and Reruneration Committee applied a downwards adjustment to the recommended outcome of 105% for this measLre, representing the progress made to date. The Remuneration
Committee subsequently approved the adjL sted outcome of 100% for use in APP outcomes.
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Outcomes for APP 2022/23 (continued) _

For the element based on individual performance, performance was assessed against both the delivery of the Society's strategic scorecard as well as individual goals, conduct and behaviours. The
tables below provide an overview of the individual performance for 2022/23 achieved by the CEO and CFO based on their objectives. The performance scorecard contains a number of Environmental
Social and Governance {FSG) factors, inc: uding improving sustainability and our inclusion and diversity measures.

D Croshie’s individual objectives for 2022/23 , .

Objectives Performance
Deliver e Deliver the longer-term financial plan and 2022/23 performance » Record underlying profit for the Society and a record leverage ratio. Continued investment in members and colleagues
financial and scorecard; trading in line with plan and ensuring robust cost whilst managing cost growth and high inflation.
operational management and the zafe transition of the cost base to a sustainable » Robust trading performance in a highly competitive mortgage market, streng deposit net receipts and increase in
performance level. market share and growth in new current account openings.
» Develop arrangements for effective and efficient operational resilience » Step change in operational resilience and excellence following appointment of new Chief Operational Officer, in¢luding
and operational excellence. reform of change management process, strategic investment governance, Disaster Recovery testing, End of Service
Life remediation.
Strategy e ‘Work with the Board and ExCo to ensure that the Society has an o Strategy refreshed and agreed at Board Strategy Conference in October 2022,
arbitious and deliverz Jle strategy that identifies and realises key « Milestone delivery plans agreed over three herizon periods with progress updates nresented periodically to the Board.
opportunities for growth, builds a distinctive proposition for the Society o New purpose and Blueprint for a modern mutual developed and agreed in February/March 2023, for roll out to all
overall, and delivers value for members. employees from April 2023 onwards.
+ Develcp the Society's purpese and a cultural transformation aligned to & New culture dashboard in development to track progress in 2023/24, along with improvements in performance
the organisation’s mutual model and ambitions. manzgement and talent/manager development.
Robustrisk  « Adhere to applicable regulatory reguirements, frameworks and models ~ »  The Society's financial and credit position remains streng with all key financial risk metrics within trigger. However,
and control ard ensure that the Society remains within risk appetite and keeps pace the Board Risk Appetite profile remains elevated for operational and conduct risk.
with regulator expectations. + New programme maniagemant discipline introduced, with manthly Board and regufator updates.

* Ensure that the overall risk and control framework is efficient and
effective and underpinned by robust processes and clear accountabilities.

inspiring ¢ Organise the ExCo so that it is high-performing, has the right balance of  »  ExCo reorganised during 2022/23, including recruitment of five new members.
team and experience, and potential with members that role model strong « Organisational structure changed to transition from ‘Mission’ structure to clearer functions, accountabilities anc
leadership leadership behaviours and culture, and is fit for strategy execution. leadzrship.

performance o Ensure that the Society’s organisational structure is simple and effective  »  Consequential SMCR accountabilities adjusted and assigned appropriately.
ard that all SMCR acce untabilities are appropriately assigried.

Effective o Ensure that there is good engagement between ExCo and Board and that Shorter, clearer Board papers and agendas with more focused and relevant management information.
Board the Society’s overali governance arrangements are effective. » Board governance strengthened by moving IT risk to Board Risk Committee from standalone committee,

engagement » Executive governance improved through focus on streamlined decision making, reduction in risk forums following
review, and more robust ExCe mesting arrangements.

Thriving » Deliver increasing value for members with leading service and products ~ »  Member financial benefit highest since the methodelogy was introduced in 2016/17.

membership in personal financial s vices that meet member needs, and all Consumer »  First in FRS for core product satisfaction amongst our peer group with a fead of 3,8%pts? (slightly below target of a

Duty requirements, 4%pts lead).

+ The Society ranks 1st for both customer brand consideration and customer trust (although not statistically significant
on all measures}.

2 ® Ipsos 2023, Financial Research Survey (FR5), for the 12 months ending 31 March 2023. Results based on a sample of around 47,000 adults (aged 16+). The survey contacts around 51,000 adults (aged 16+) a year in total
across Great Britain. Interviews were over the phone and online, taking into account {and weighted to) the overall profile of the adult popuiation. The results reflect the percentage of extremely satisfied and very satisfied customers

minus the percentage of customers who were extremely or very or fairly dissatisfied across those customers with a main current account, mortgage or savings. Those in our peer group are providers with rmore than 3.3% of the
main current account market as of April 2022 - Barclays, Halifax, HSBC, Lloyds Bank, NatWest, Sartander and TS3.

121



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Report of the directors on remuneration

A Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements  Other information u {continued)

Qutcomes for APP 2022/23 (continued)

D Crosbie’s individual objectives for 2022/23 (continued)

Objectives

Improving » Ensure overall plans are developed and delivered to improve inclusion
inclusion, ac-oss the Society and progress towards its agreed diversity targets.
diversity and

wellbeing

Impactful e Develop and execute a programme to ensure strong and procuctive
stakeholder relationships with regt -ators, governments, the media and other key
engagement stakeholders and identify and realise opportunities to raise the profile of

the Society and the mutual model with key audiences.

C S Rhodes's individual objectives for 2022/23 . -

Objectives

Financial o Partner with functions across the Society to deliver a sustainable financial

Performance plan and 2022/23 perfarmance scorecard, ensuring a good balance
between proposition p-ofitability and value for members

Costand + Drive the reduction in the Society cost base in year and ensure plans are

Efficiency in place for future years.

« Deliver Finance functicn cost efficiency through simplification and
automation and by stoaping low value activities.

Capitaland e |dentify opportunities to generate low-cost funding that improves the
Liguidity Soziety’s financial strength.

+ Ensure appropriate stress testing and that the Society holds adequate
capital for severe but plausible stresses and that this inferms capital
efficient pricing, asset mix and issuance.

Control o Adhere to applicable regulatory requirements, framewocrks and models
environment and ensure that the Finance functicn, and Scciety overall, keeps pace
with the risk environment and regulator expectations.

* Enhance processes and controls, following up on audit issues and driving
organisaticnal momen-um through the process and control improvermnent
programme.
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Performance

Gender; women in senior roies improved, although marginally behind target.

Progress towards LGBTQ+, and disability targets improved over the year and are at or above target for all employees
and for senior employees.

The percentage of ethnically diverse employees dropped over the year and is below target for both all employees and
senior employees.

Women in five out of twelve ExCo roles.

Regular programme of engagement with all regulators, His Majesty's Treasury, Financial Ombudsman Service and
Lending Standards Board.

Member of UK Finance Major and Ringfenced Banks Strategic Advisory Committee and member of FCA Practitioner
Panel.

Performance

Record underlying profit for the Society and a strong leverage ratio. Continued investment in members and colleagues
whilst managing cost growth and high inflation.

Robust trading performance in a highly competitive mortgage market, strong deposit net receipts and an increase in
market share and growth in new current account openings.

Total operating costs increased, although remaining broadly flat since 2019/20. Increases attributable to higher
inflation, incremental spend on cost of living support for colleagues, higher depreciation, restructuring costs and
property impairments,

Delivered cost savings in Finance.,

Careful and considered capital and fiquidity planning through market turbulence and valatile interest and swap rates.
Strong balance sheet, with Tier 1 capital resources increasing and a strong leverage ratio.

The Seciety’s financiai and credit position remains strong with al} key financial risk metrics within trigger. However,
the Board Risk Appetite profile remains elevated for operational and conduct risk.
Led and conciuded programme for mapping and strengthening most important member facing contraols.
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Outcomes for APP 2022/23 (continued)

C S Rhodes's individual objectives for 2022/23 (continued)
Objectives
Strategy e York with the Board, ZEQ and ExCo to ensure that the Society’s strategy
delivers sustainable parformance and increasing value for members,
while emphasising th 2 Society’s distinctive position in UK financial
services.
» [evelop the Society's nurpose and a cultural transformation aligned to
the organisation’s mttual model and ambitions.
Team and e Implement our hybric way of working znd so teams can perform at their
Leadership best.
Performance o Develop colleague and leadership capability in Finance to enable high
performance and real se potential.
»  Fulfil all SMCR accour—abilities.

Inclusion, e Develop and impiement Finance action plan to deliver progress towards
diversity and meeting the Society's agreed inclusion, diversity and wellbeing targets.
wellbeing

Stakeholder & Maintain and enhance our external reputation and wide investor base
Engagement through high quality external reporting, requlatory compliance and
trusted investor relatiens.

Performance

Strategy refreshed and agreed at Board Strategy Conference in October 2022.

Milestone delivery plans agreed over three horizon periods with progress updates presented periodically to the
Board.

New purpose and Blueprint for a modern mutual developed and agreed in February/March 2023, for roll out tc all
employees from April 2023 onwards.

Ways of working continue to adapt with close monitoring and careful management of attendance at work locations
to maximise team efficiency.

Finance leadership and capability maximised through restructure,

All SMCR accountabilities met, including a number of interim respansibilities assumed by CFO to cover ExCo
vacancies.

Gender; wamen in senior roles improved, although marginally behind target.

Progress towards LGBTQ+, and disability targets improved over the year and are at or above target for al! emp'oyees
and for senicr employees,

The percentage of ethnically diverse employees dropped over the year and is below target for both all employees and
senior employees.

Regular meetings with investors, including formal presentations at half year and full year.

Programme of engagerrient with regulators and stakeholders, including oral evidence session with UK Pariiamant
Treasury Select Committee,
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Long-Term Performance Pay (LTPP) awards in respect of 2022/23

The first LTPP awards will be granted in June 2023.
LTPP awards are discretionary and are ¢ ranted subject to a pre-g-ant performance assessment over the year prior io grant based on;

+  Individual conduct and perfermance - must be satisfactory including an assessment of individual behaviours and conduct during the year;
»  Leverage ratio and statutorv profit before tax - both gateways must be assessed and passed in respect of the peried prior to grant.

After taking inte account performance cver 2022/23, the Committee agreed to grant D Crosbie and C S Rhodes LTPP awards of 100% of base salary. This included an assessment of both Society and
individual performance. The Committee is satisfied that the grant ng of awards is sustainable according to the financial position of the Society and justified on the basis of individual performance,
conduct and behaviours, | D Garner was not eligible to receive an award under the LTPP plan as he departed during the year.

Qver the course of 2022/23, the Committee has been focused on the selection and development of appropriate forward-locking performance measures for the LTPP awards. The Committee is
satisfied that the chosen performance measures are aligned to the Society's longer-term priorities and provide a clear link with members’ interests and the achievement of our financial and strategic
aims, including our sustainahility commitments. At the end of the three-year performance period the Committee will also satisfy itself that there are no significant conduct, risk, reputational,
financial, operational or other reasons v.hy the awards should not be released, taking into account input from the Board Risk and Audit committees.

The 2022/23 LTPP awards will be subject to a three-year performance period commencing 5 April 2023. Buring this period, performance will be assessed based on a scorecard comprising the
elements helow. Targets are deemed by the Committee to be commercially sensitive and will be disclesed, along with performance achieved, in the Annual Report and Accounts 2026,

2023/24 - 2025/26 LTPP scorecard . How the scorecard aligns te our strategic drivers
More rewarding  Simply brilliant Continuous Beacon for
Rationale for inclusion within the scorecard Weighting refationships service improvement mutual good
Return an eqguits employed Ensuring the Society's continued financial security for 20% v
Customer outcomes {note i) the benefit of its customers via efficient profit generation
(financial goals) Brofit before tax and sustainable balance sheet management over the 20% ¥
long term
FRS satisfactior Rewarding ‘best-in-class’ customer service 10% o
. Environmental, Social and Providing alignment with the Society's Scope Tand 2 10% N
Sustainability Governance (ES ) objectives emissions and diversity targets
Risk and compl ance Ensuring continued focus on the strength of the 20% v
Society’s contrel environment
Tratisformation: . mmm_@. of mea:ures aligned with vSsa_B m_._mqim:ﬁ with the Society's long-term 20% v o v v
e 45 .. strategic objectives strateqic priorities

Note:
i.  Return on eguity empioyed is defined as the return (profit after tax) as a percentage of the minimum amount of capital required to stay above Board Risk Appetite throughout a Bank of England defined stress test.
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How awards will be released to executive directors

The illustration belovs shows how APP and LTPP awards will typically be released to executive directors over the long term. Under the directors’ remuneration policy, across both elements a
minimum of 60% will be deferred for between three and seven years. To the extent the minimum level of deferral is not met via the LTPP award, a propertion of the APP award will be deferred.

For awards in respect of 2022723, the LTPP will be used to satisfy the minimum deferral reguirernents for D Croshie. For C S Rhodes a small proportion of his APP award will also be deferred for
between three and saven years.

In line with the direc-ors’ remuneration policy, subject to the achievement of the forward-looking perfermance measures, 60% of any award will be delivered in or linked to the market or fair value
of the Society's CCDS, with the balance oaid in cash. The CCDS element will be subject to a twelve-manth retention period. As set out in the Chair’s letter (see pages 114 to 116), following a review of
the Society's approach to the use of CCDS for remuneration purposes, two modifications are being made to ensure that awards provide appropriate alignment to the credit quality of Nationwide and
to align with market practice, namely adjusting the CCDS price used to remove the impact of long-term interest rates and adiusting the number of notional CCDS units awarded to reflect the
absence of CCDS distributions over the deferral pericd.

50%
(CCDS)
APP
Performance
period
50% (Cash)
20% (Cash)
C,
LTPP 20% (CCDS)
Pre-grant ) . 20% {CCDS)
performance LTPP 3-year Performance period 0%
period (CCDS)
20%
(Cash)
2022/23 2023/24 2024725  2025/26 2026727 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31
Performance Year Year] Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8
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Executive directors’ remuneration

Where indicated, the tables in the following secticns have been audited. These disclosures are included in compliance with the Building Societies Act 1986 and other mandatory reporting
requlations, as well as the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups {Acccunts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013, which the Society has voluntarily adopted. The table below
shaws the total remLneration for each executive director for the years ended 4 April 2023 and 4 April 2022.

Single total figure of remuneration for each executive director (Audited)
Totai pay package Replacement  Total pay package

excluding awards including
replacement replacement
awards awards
2023 Fixed remuneration Variable remuneration £000 £000 £'000
Salary Pension Travel and other Total Annual Total
allowance taxable benefits Performance Pay
, , (note i) (note ii)
Executive directors £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
D Crosbie {note iii) 889 142 32 1,063 687 687 1,750 1,705 3,455
C S Rhodes 690 110 4| 881 496 496 1,377 - 1,377
1D Garner (note iv) 159 B 25 4 188 103 103 . ~ 301 - N 301
Total 1,738 277 127 2,142 1,286 1,286 3,428 1,705 5,133
Total pay package Replacemant Total pay package
excluding awards including
replacement replacement
awards awards
2022 Fixed remuneration Variable remuneration £'000 £'000 £'000
Salary Pension  Travel and other Total Annual Total
allowance  taxable benefits Performance Pay
{note i) (note ii)
Executive directors £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
1D Garner 934 149 77 1,160 954 954 214 - 2114
€ S Rhodes 667 107 52 826 590 580 1,416 - 1416
Total 1,601 256 129 1,986 1,544 1544 3,530 - 3530

Netes:

i.  Travel and other taxable benefits are included as fixed remuneration fer the calculation of the vanable pay ratio in meeting our regulatory requirements. A full description of the taxable benefits is set out below.

ii. Amounts shown consist of the awards urder the APP plan; LTPP awards are subject to the achievement of performance conditions over the next three years and, to the extent the perfermance measures are met,
details will be included in the relevant directors’ remuneration report.

iii. D Crosbie succeaded J D Garner as CEC cn 2 June 2022. As announced in the Annual Report and Accounts 2022, the Committee agreed to compensate D Croshie for the forfeiture of variable cay awards from her
previous employment at TSB. In line with regulatory requirements, these replacement awards are not more generous in terms or amounts than she would otherwise have received.

iv. } D Garner stepped Jown as CEQ and from the Board on 1 June 2022; details of his remuneration reflect the period of time he served on the Board. Further details can be found on page 130.

In the single figure tzble above, ‘taxable benefits’ inciudes certain essential travel costs for directors, in connection with the perfarmance of their duties, including any tax due Lnder HMRC
regulations. Other benefits include med cal insurance, car allowance and security.
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Society Chairman and non-executive directors

The total fees paid to each non-executiva director are shown below.

Society and Group
fees
£'000
K A H Parry (Seciety Chairman) (note ii) 525
G Waersted (Senior Independent Directo~) (note iii) 131
R A Clifton {note iv) -
R M Fyfield (note v) 138
T Graham {note vi) 72
A Hitehcock 122
A M Keir (note vii) 144
D Klein 100
T Rajah 94
G Riley (note viii) ) 95
P G Rivett 155
D L Roberts (note ix) ‘ -
TJ W Tookey (note x} ‘ 9
Total 1,615

Pension payments to past nen-executive directors (note xi)

Notes:

2023
Travel and
other taxahle
benefits
(note i)
£000

6
9

NO W AN

10

55

Total fees
and taxable
benefits

£'000
531
140

140
76
131
154
102
94
105
156
a
1,670
231

Report of the directors on remuneration
(continued)

Society and Group
fees

£000
pall
106
3
128
96
8
80
99
125
344
136

1364

2022
Travel and
other taxable
benefits
(note i)
£'000
2
13
1
2

12

L8}

43

Total fees
and taxable
berefits

£000
213
119
32
130
108
8

83
99

3
125
346
I
1407
207

i.  Taxable benefits for non-executive directors relate to expenses incurred for travel in connection with their duties and attendance at Board and committee meetings. Where these expenses are deemed taxable, the
Society settles the tax on behalf of the non-executive directors and this is included in the amounts show=. Where a non-executive director is not UK domiciled their reimbursed cost of travel inte end out of the UK is

not a taxable benefit.

G Waersted was appointed Senior Independent Director effective 1 February 2022.
R A Clifton stepped down from the Board on 22 July 2021,

K A H Parry was appointed Society Chairman effective 1 February 2022. Prior to this date, he was the Senior Independent Director.

v. R M Fyfield stepped down as Chair of tt2 Remuneration Committee on 31 December 2022 but continued to be a member of the Board and the Committee.

. A M Keir joined the Board on 1 March 2022,

. G Riley joined the Board on 1 April 2022.

ix. DL Roberts stepped down from the Bozrd on 31 January 2022.
X TJW Tookey steppad down from the Beard on 14 July 2022

T Graham joined the Board on 28 September 2022 and was appointed Chair of the Remuneration Committee on 1 January 2023.

xXi. The Society stopped granting pension rights to non-executive directors who joined the Board after January 1990.
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Additiona! disclosures

CEO Remuneration for the past ten years

The table below shows details of the CEQ’s remuneration for the previous ten years.

Financial year Total remuneration Annual performance pay earned as % of maximum Medium term performance pay eamed as % of
, avallable maximum available (note i)

£'000 % , %

2022/23 - D Croshie 3,455 {note ii) T77.2 -
2022/23 - ) D Garner 301 (note iii) 42.6 -
2021/22 2114 67.2 -
2020/21 1,236 723 (note iv) .
2019/20 1,286 0.0 )
2018/19 2,372 751 B
201718 2,317 69.5 -
2016/17 3,386 (note v) 719 -
2015116 3,413 (note vi) 75.8 808
201415 3.397 74.4 84.5
2013114 2,571 833 749

Notes:

i, Medium term performance pay ceased at the end of 2015/16.

D Croshie commenced her role as CEQ o~ 2 June 2022, Her total rem uneration for 2022/23 includes the value of replacement awards on joining (£1,704,844). These awards do not form part of ongoing

remuneration, If this amount is excluded, the figure shown for 2022/23 would be £1,750,608.

1 D Garner stepped down as CEQ and fro— the Board on 1 june 2022.

Performance pay opportunity for 2020/2” was reduced by around two thirds.

v. 1D Garner commenced his role as CEO on 5 April 2016. His total remuneration for 2016/17 included the value of replacement awards on joining {£1,070,752). These awards did not form part of ongoing remuneration. If
this amount is excluded, the figure shown “or 2016/17 would be £2,315,047.

vi. The CEQ in2015/16 and all earlier financial years shown in the table above was G ] Beale. His total remuneration for 2015/16 and 2014/15 includes annua! performance pay awards as well as legacy payouts under the
directors’ previous medium term pay plan as a result of the transition pariod between plans.
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Comparison of annual change in directors’ pay with average employee

The following table shows the percentage change in remuneration (base salary, benefits and annual performance pay) of each of the directors for the iast three financial years compared with the
average for all sther employees. Certair numbers helow reflect part-year versus full-year comparisons, see foctnotes.

% change in remuneration between 2021/22 and 2022/23 % change in remuneration between 2020/21 and 2021/22 % change.in remuneration between 2019/20 and 2020/21

Salary/fees Benefits Annual Salary/fees Benefits Annual Salary/fees Benefits Annual
performance pay performance pay (note ii} performance pay
(note 1)
Executive directors
D Crosbie (note iii} - - - - - - - - -
C S Rhodes 3.4% 20.1% (15.9%) 2.0% 17.8% 208.9% 32% (32.5%) - (note v)
1D Garner {note iv) (83.0%) (82.9%) 193% 37.8% 2301% (14.5%) - (note v)
Non-executive directors (note vi)
K AH Parry (note vii} 148.8% 47.6% - 10.9%
G Waersted 23.6% 12.8% - 0%
A Hitchcock 27.7% . 0%} 21% - 0%
A M Keir (note viii) 1,700.0% T e - - -
D Klein {note ix) 25.0% C(333%) 1233.3% - . ;
G Riley (note x} - 233.3% - - - -
P § Rivett {note xi) 24.0% - 14.7% - 73.0% (100.0%)
R M Fyfield {xif) 7.8% 0.0% (1.5%) {33.3%) 9.2% (25.0%)
T Graham (note xiii} - - - - - -
H*,_\ U<< Tookey (note (71.3%) (60.0%) 15% . 0.0% (100.0%)
T Rajah (note xv} {5.1%) - 80.0% - - -
All employees (note xvi) , ) ‘
All employees 3.2% (0.7%) 2.9% 3.0% 14.1% 1431% 3.2% (53%) 41,9%
Notes:

i. The increase in annJal performance pay between 2020/21 and 2021/22 s reflective of the return to previous levels of opportunity fellowing a reduction to one third of opportunity in 2020/21.
ii. The reduction in beefits between 2019/20 and 2020/21 reflects reduced travel costs in the year as a result of a significant reduction in travel due to the pandemic.

D Crosbie joined the Board on 2 June 20Z2.

iv. The percentage increase in salary for ) D arner from 2020721 to 2021/22 reflects the voluntary temporary reduction in base salary for 2020/21 in the context of the pandemic.
v. The annual performance pay for ] D Garner and C S Rhodes for 2019/20 was £nil and therefore no percentage change is shown.

vi. The non-executive directors are not eligitle to participate in the annual performance pay plan.

vii. K A H Parry was appointed Chairman or ™ February 2022.

wiii, A M Keir joined the Board on 1 March 2022.

ix. D Klein joined the Board on 1 March 202

x. G Riley joined the Board on 1 April 2022,

xi. P G Rivett joined the Board on 1 Septemb2r 2019.

xil. R M Fyfield stepped down as Chair of the Remuneration Committee on 31 December 2022 but remained a member of the Board and the Committee.

xifl, T Graham joired the Board on 28 Septerrber 2022 and was appointed Chair of the Remuneration Committee on 1January 2023.

xiv. T J W Tookey stepped down from the Board on 14 July 2022,

xv. T Rajah joinad the Board on 15September 2020.

xvi. Data for all employees has been calculated on a full-time equivalent basis and reflects all employees on 1 March 2020, 1 March 2021, 1 March 2022 and 1 March 2023.
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The chart below shows the cost of remuneration for all
empioyees of the Society, compared wih retained earnings.

Remuneration tost for all employees

2022/23 2021/22

£m £m

Afl-employee remuneration 918 822
Retained earmings 1,478 1,066

Payroll costs represent 39.52% (2022: 36.79%) of total
administrative exper ses. Nationwide's profit after tax for the
year was £1,664 millian, of which £186 million was paid as
distributions and the remaining £1,478 million is held as
retained earnings.

Payments for loss of office / Payments to past
directors

10 Garner stepped down from the Board as CEO on1lune
2022, As set out in the 2022 Annual Reart on Remuneration,
he remained an employee of the Societv until 12 December
20722, the end of his “welve-month notice period. For this
period, he received total payments of £588,120, which
included salary (£491,934), benefits (£17,477) and pension
(£78,709).

In addition. as set out in tast year’s report, | D Garner was
eligible to receive a part-year APP award in respect of services
as CEO during 2022/23. His APP award was based on the
same Society performance measures as the other executive
directors, as set out on page 120, aswelas individual
performarnce.

For the proportion of the award based cn the Sotiety's
performance (70% o the award), recognising the length of 1 D
Garner's tenure during the year, and therefore contributicn to
the Society's performrance over this period, the Committee
approved an cutcome of 54.1% of saiary (paid to 1lune 2022)
for the Society element. The Committee did not approve the
application of discretion in relation to the total costs measure
for J D Garner.

130

Other ioﬁmmoo

For the proportion of the award based on individual
performance (30% of the award), the Committee considered
i D Garner's performance against individual objectives for the
portion of the year served, including his contribution to
ensuring an orderly handover. Taking this inio account, the
Committee approved an outcome of 14% of salary (paid to 1
June 2022) for the individual performance element.

In determining J D Garner’s APP outcome for the year, the
Committee also applied a downwards risk adjustment of 5% to
the value of the combined Scciety and individual elements of
the award to take into account a range of risk factors including
pace of execution,

Taking all of the abave elements tagether, the Committee
approved an overall APP award of 64.7% of salary (paid to 1
June 2022) for ) D Garner,

1 D Garner was not eligible to receive an award under the LTPP
for 2022/23 as he departed during the year.

Pay gap reporting

The Society is fully committed to promoting a diverse and
inclusive workplace. The gender pay gap measures the
difference in earnings between women and men across alt
roles. Qur latest report was published in March 2023 and can
he found at nationwide.co.uk, together with an update of
pregress or our inciusion and diversity ambition, and Women
in Finance Charter commitments. We have also again
voluntarily published our ethnicity pay gap, comparing the pay
of all employees who have identified as black, Asian and
minority ethnicity (ethnically diverse), with the pay for white
{non-ethnically diverse) employees across Nationwide.

As of 5 April 2022, our mean gender pay gap was 30%
{remaining the same as the previous year) and our mean
ethnicity pay gap was 7.4% (decreasing from 11% in the
previous year, primarily due to an increase in the number of
ethnically diverse employees recruited into technology).

Report of the directors on remuneration
(continued)

While we have imbalances in the distribution of women and
ethnically diverse colleagues, we will have pay gaps. We're
proud that colleagues choose to stay with the Society for along
time. so we know that making changes to our workforce mix
and pay gaps will take time. This is why it's imperative to
continue focusing on our diversity and inclusion measures and
priorities to create the changes we want to see in the long
term. Our LTPP scorecard for 2022/23 awards is directly finked
to these measures. Some of the other actions we have taken
include: introducing an interactive diversity and inclusion
dashboard to enable leaders to understand progress and
opportunities and also ta create targeted interventions to
identify and develop diverse talent, such as proactive
succession planning, external talent mapping and talent
acceleration programme.

Pay gaps are not the same as equal pay. We carry out regular
equal pay audits, checking the pay of peaple with different
characteristics (such as gender and ethnicity) doing the same
or similar rcles. Qur audits continue fo show that our pay
policies are operating fairly.
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CEQ pay ratio reporting

The table below compares the total remu eration of the CEO against the total remuneration of the median employes and those who sit at the 25t and 751 percentiles (lower and upper quartiles). This
reporting will build annually to cover a rolling ten-year period.

Year Method 25! percentile pay ratio Median pay ratio 75" percentile pay ratio
2022/23 Option A 71 56:1 351
2020/22 Option A 801 541 351
2020/21 Option A 511 381 24:1
2019/20 Option A 531 411 267
2018/19 Option A 99:1 77 48:1

The CEQ pay ratio for 2022/23 above excludes the one-off replacement awards granted tc D Crosbie. If these awards were included, the median CEG pay ratio would be 102:1.

The total remunergtion and salary values for the 251, median and 75t percentile employees for 2022/23 are:

25 percentile Mediah 75t percentile
Total remuneration £29,064 £36,653 £58,639
Salary £22232 £28,840 £46,225

Notes:

i. The calculation is based en Option A as set out in the regulations which is considered to be the most stat:stically accurate methodelogy.

i, Employee data incit des full time equivalent total remuneration for all UK employees as at 1 March 2023, For each employee, remuneration was caiculated based on all companents of pay including base pay,
performance pay for 2022/23, core bene” ts including medical insurance and car allowance, and pension payments.

For 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21, whilst most employees participated in a defined contribution scheme with a fixed maximum employer contribution, there were other pension arrangements in place for some
empioyees, including a defined benefit pension scheme which has bezn closed to new participants since 2007. Although it would have been possible to recognise a higher value under the defined benefit scheme, in
order to ensure accurate year on year comparative data, a fixed value equal to the maximum employer contributicn availzble ta the defined contribution scheme members was included for all defined benefit scheme
members. From 2021/22 there is only one defined contribution scheme available; therefore, the actual employer contribution value has been used for all employeas.

iv. The Committee has considered the pay data for the three individuals iZentified for 2022/23 and confirms that the ratios reasonably represent the Society's approach to pay and reward for employess taken as a whole.

Voting at AGM

Resolutions to approve the 2021/22 Report of the directors on remuneration and the current directors' remuneration policy were passed at the 2022 AGM. In each case votes were cast as foliows;

Report of the directors on remuneration Remuneration policy
Votes in favour 491,513 (94.23%) 487,138 (93.53%)
Votes against 30,089 (5.77%) 33,707 (6.47%)
Votes withheld 8,097 8,851
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Summary remuneration policy and implementation for 2023/24

The table below sets out a summary of our remuneration policy for executive and non-executive directors, as approved by members at the 2022 AGM, as well as its propoased implementation in
2023/24. The full text of the policy can be found in our Annuat Report and Accounts 2022 on the Society's website at nationwide.co.uk

Summary remuneration policy for executive directors

Element Operation and opportunity Implementation for 2023/24

Fixed pay '
Base salary Base salary is normaily reviewed on an annual basis. Any changes are normally effective from 1 | As set out in the Chair's letter, the Committee determined base
Provides base mm_m_...( that is market April. salaries for 2023/24 as follows:
competitive and reflec:s the size and s D Crosbie £1136,585
complexity of the role ¢ (S Rhodes £731,854
Benefits Benefits may melude a car allowance, access to drivers when requircd, healthcare and insurance | No change for 2023/24.
Provide a market competitive and cost- oenefits.
effective benefits package as part of fixed Other benefits may be provided to enable recruitment, retention or refocation.
remuneration
Pension Executive directors receive a cash ailowance in place of pension. Allowances are setasa No change for 2023/24.
Provides post-retirement benefits for percentage of base salary. The maximum cash allowance payable is set at a level aligned with the
participants in a cost-efficient manner maximum pension benefit available to the wider employee population, which is currently 16% of

base salary.

Annual Performance Pay (APP) plan Operation For awards made in respect of 2023/24, the target opportunity for D
{previously Directors” Annual Performance Following detailed consiceration by the Committee over the course of the year, the APP plan Crosbie and C 5 Rhodes will be 67% of base saiary, with a maximum
Award (DAPA)) (previously the DAPA) has been simplified such that there is only one element of the award from | CPPOrtunity of 100% of base salary.

Rewards achievement of stretching Society, | 2023/24 onwards (i.e., the all-employee element and the serior leader efement have been

team m_a individual targets for a single consolidated into a single award). Pert res:

financial year To ensure continued alignment across the Society, the award for all eligible colleagues wi

Awards made in respect of 2023/24 align to our new strategic drivers
and will be subject to four equally weighted performance measures, as
follows:

continue to be based on the same Society performance measures as our senior leaders. These
measures will make up 70% of the award for executive directors.

Alengside awards under ~he LTPP plan, the payment and deferral of APP awards are determined
at the time of award and in compliance with regulatory requiremenis {which currently require

that at least 60% of total variable remuneration in respect of any year is deferred for between A .
three and seven years). + Continuous improvement: Total costs

A proportion (which may be 100% for target performance) of APP is paid after the end of the + Beacon for mutual good: Heard good things about Natiorwide

performance period. Where performance is above target, the remaining proportion may be The above measures will account for 70% of the awards for our
deferred in line with reguiatory requirements. executive directors, with 30% of the award based on individual
perfermance {including conduct and behaviours).

¢ More rewarding relationships: Number of engaged customers
Simply brilliant service: Customer Experience Score

Awards are normally paid in cash with a minimum of 50% of both the upfront and deferred

elements delivered in or linked to the market or fair value of the Society's CCDS, or an Gateway measures based on profit before tax, leverage ratio and
appropriate alternative instrument, and subject to a twelve-month retention period. Participants | conduct risk will also apply.

will be entitled to the value of CCDS distributions {or equivalent) to the extent permitted by Targets under the APP plan are commercially sensitive and so will be
regulations. disclosed, aleng with performance achieved, in next year’s report.
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(continued)

Summary remuneration policy for executive directors

Element

Operation and opportunity

Implementation for 2023/24

Opportunity
The normal maximum APP opportunity for the executive directors is 100% of base salary.
Normally, 67% of base salary is payable for target performance, and at the threshold level of

performance 33.5% of the award opportunity will be paid. No portion of the award will be paid
where thresheld performance is not achieved.

Long-Term Performance Pay (LTPP) plan
(previously Directors’ Long-term Performan e
Award (DLPA})

To incentivise sustainable long-term
performance and alig1ment with member
interests

Awards are made anrually and only pay out
where challenging pe fermance measures
are met, normally measured over a three-y2ar
period

Operation

LTPP {(previously DLPA) awards are discretionary and normally granted subject to the
achievement of satisfactory performance over the year pricr to being granted (the initial
performance period).

Awards are normally subject to a forward-lcoking three-year performance period from the start
of the financial year in which the grant is made.

Payment of the awards will not start until after the end of this three-year performance period and
is subject to the achievement of performance conditions, The payment of awards will be spread
in compliance with regulatory requirements which currently apply, such that awards will pay out
in instalments between three and seven years following the date of the initial grant.

Awards are normally paid in cash with a minimum of 50% f any award detivered in or linked to
the market or fair value of the Society's CCDS, or an appropriate alternative instrument, and
subject to a twelve-month retention peried. Participants wiil be entitled to the value of CCDS
distributions {or equivaient) tc the extent permitted by requlations.

Opportunity

The normal maximum LTPP opportunity for the executive directors is 100% of base salary.
Normally, 67% of base salary is payable for target performance, and at the threshold level of
performance 33.5% of the award opportunity will be paid. No portion of the award will be paid
where threshold performance is not achieved.

Subject to the achievement of satisfactory Society and individual
performance aver the 2023/24 year, it is intended that LTPP awards
will be made at a maximum of 100% of salary.

Performance measures:

Forward-looking performance will be measured against a long-term
scorecard determined by the Committee ¢n an annual basis and set to
align with the long-term strategic objectives of the Society.

The measures for the 2022/23 LTPP awards (for the performance
period 2023/24 to 2025/26) can be found on page 124. Targets for
the 2022/23 LTPP awards are commercially sensitive and so will be
disclosed, along with performance achieved, in the Annuat Report and
Accounts 2026.

Details of the performance measures for the 2023/24 LTPP (for the
performance period 2024/25 to 2026/27) will be included in next
year's remuneration report.
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Report of the directors on remuneration

{continued)

Summary remuneration policy for non-executive directors

Provide a market competitive fee
level for the role at Nationwide

Non-executive director fees are normally reviewed and
approvad by the executive directors and the Society Chair on an
annual basis.

Any changes are typically effective from 1 April.

Non-executive direciors are paid a basic fee, with an additional
supplement paid for additional roles or respensibilities,
including in respect of the Senicr independent Direcler or
Employee Voice role, or for serving on or chairing a Board
commi-tee. Additional fees may be payable for additional time
comm ~ment in exceptional circumstances.

The Society Chair and non-executive directors do not take part
in any performance pay plans or in any pension arrangements.
Benefis may be provided if considered appropriate, including
reimbursement of any reasonable expenses (together with any
tax thereon where these are deemed to be taxable benefits).

Element Operation Implementation
Society Chair and non-executive | The Society Chair’s fee is normally reviewed and approved by | Amiplemertation for 2022/23
director fees the Remuneration Committee on an annual basis.

As signalled in last year’s report of the directors on remuneration, non-executive director fees were expected to be
reviewed in June 2022, outside of the usual timing of the annual review cycle. A review was undertaken in October
2022 znd the fees were adjusted with effect from 1 November 2022. The review ensured alignment with market

praclice amang comparable organisations and refiected the required time commitment for each role.

Implermentation for 2023/24

The annuai review of non-executive director fees for 2023/24 has been undertaken and fees adjusted with effect
from 1 April 2023. The review was in line with the salary increase awarded to the Chairman and executive
directors, to ensure that fees continued to align with the market, and also took account of inflationary pressures

and the expected workioad for the nen-executive directors,

Fees effective| Fees effactive| Fees effective
1 April 2023 1 November| 1 April 2022
£000 2022 £000
£000
Society Chairman 565.0 525.0 525.0
Basic fee for non-executive directors 90.0 85.0 70.0
Senior Independent Director 37.0 35.0 30.0
Member ¢ i i
Chair of the Board IT and Resillence
Committee i ) 250
Marmher of the Board 1T and Resilience
Committee i ) 10.0
Employee Voice 133 125 1.0

Discretion, risk adiustment and malus and clawback

In determining variable pay awards, the Committee has the ability to apply independent judgement to ensure that the outcome is a fair reflection of the performance of the Society and the individual
over the relevant period. In applying this judgement, the Committee has scope to consider any such factors it deems relevant.

The Committee takes into account perfc-mance against a broad set of financial and non-financial performance measures and considers performance on a risk-adjusted basis, evaluating progress
against defined measures within the cortext of our risk appetite, including conduct risk. This is a formal process, which also includes input and feedback from the Audit and Board Risk committees.
In this manner, the Committee has discrztion to reduce an executive director’s variable pay in relation to risk-related matters.

In certain circumstances, the Committee has the discretion to operate malus and clawback provisions under the APP and LTPP plans. Such circumstances may include, but are not limited to:
participation in, or responsibility for, conduct that results in significant losses; failure to meet appropriate standards of fitness and propriety, employee misbehaviour or material error; a2 material
downturn in financial performance; a material failure of risk management; as well as other circumstances required by regulatory obligations or deemed appropriate by the Committee. Clawback can
be applied for a period of seven years from the date of award. This may be extended to 10 years in the event of cngoing internal or regulatory investigation at the end of the seven-year period.
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Directors’ report for the year ended 4 Aprit 2023

Directors' report

Infermation for the ‘Content’ itemns listed in the table below can be found in the section of the Annual Report and Accounts as shown. These itemns are required to be included in the Directars' report
by the Building Societies Act 1986 and are incorporated into the Directors’ report by this cross referencing.

Content - - Section : - Pages

Business objectives and future plans ) Strategic report - ) 26-28

"Key performance indicators Strategic report 2325

Chief Executive’s review including perfcrmance updates Strategic report L 1222 o
Employee involvement, engagement, development, inclusion and diversity Strategic report o ) 3132 and 50-57
Viability staternent - o Strategic report ) 6£7-68 T
Environment, greenhouse gas emissions (GHG), energy consumption Strategic report T 6264

Directors’ remuneration h Governance - Report of the directors on remuneration 14734
Mortgage arrears ) Risk report ‘ 160-161

"Risk management Risk report 139742 :
Principal risks Risk report 143 )
Top and emerging risks Strategic report - Risk overview 65-66

Directors’ share opt ons ) Annual business statement 32 T
CRD IV country-by-country reporting Published online - www.nationwide.co.uk/about-us/how-we-are-run/results-and-accounts -

Distributicns on CCDS instruments Financial statements - note 31 309

“Business relationships ) Strategic report - Engaging with our stakeholders 29.35 )
Financial instruments " Financial statements - note 15 283286
Corporate Governance staternent Governance - Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 84

Board of directors

The names of the diractors of the Society who were in office at
the date of signing the financial statements, along with their
biographies, are set out on pages 79 to 82.

The changes in the year and up to the date of signing the
financial statements are as follows:

+ the appaintment of Debbie Crosbie [executive director) on
2 June 2022;

+ the appoiniment of Tracey Graham /ncn-executive
director) on 28 September 2022;

¢ the retirement from the Board of Joe Garner (executive
director) on 1June 2022; and

» the retirement from the Board of Tim Tookey {non-
executive director) on 14 July 2022.

None of the directors have any beneficial interest in equity
shares in, or debentures of, any connected undertaking of the
Society.

The Board has agreed that in accorcance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code, all the directors will stand for
election or re-election on an annual basis.

Political donations

The Society is politically neutral and does not support, or seek
to influence public support for, any political party nor make
donations, contributions or pay subscriptions to any party.
However, the Scciety will from time to time make payments to
third parties to participate in events crganised by them at
party conferences and which are related to matters of interest
to the Society and its members so as to communicate its
position and understand that of othars. These activities are not

1 The 1% is calculated based on average pre-tax p-afits over the previous three years.

intended or considered to be in the nature of party political
campaligning, activity or support.

Charitable donations

The Society paid £9.3 million (2022: £6.1 million) in charitab'e
denations in the year ended 4 Apri 2023. This includes
payments as part of our commitment of 1% of profits to
charitable causes?, as well as additienal payments made to
debt charities.
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Participation in the unclaimed assets scheme

The Society participates in the Government-backed uncfaimed
assets scheme, whe -eby savings accou1ts that have been
inactive for 15 years, and where the account holder cannot be
traced, are eligible to be transferred int> a central reclaim
fund. The central reclaim fund has the responsibility for
retaining sufficient monies to meet the costs of future reclaims
for any previously transferred dermant account balances, and
to transfer any surpls to the Big Lottery Fund for the benefit
of good causes which have a social or evironmental purpose.
0n 18 November 2022 the Society mad= a transfer of
£2,885,728 to the Raclaim Fund Limited, the administrators of
the unclaimed assets scheme. This folicws the previous
transfer the Society made in December 2021 (£5,191,806). The
total contributions from inception to Nevember 2022 are
£85,008,823.

Creditor payment policy

The Group’s policy is to agree the terms of payment with
suppliers at the start of trading, ensure that suppliers are
aware of the terms of payment, and pay in accordance with its
contractual and other legal obligations. The Group's policy is to
settle the supplier's invoice for the complete provision of goods
and services {unless there is an express provision for stage
payments), when in full conformity with the terms and
conditions of the purchase, within the agreed payment terms,
The Scciety’s creditor days, calculated based on year end
creditor balances and totai spend, were 7 days at 4 April 2023
(2022: 9 days).

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the preparation of the Annual Report and Accounts

The following statement, which should 2e read in conjunction
with the Independert auditer's report cn pages 220 to 233, is
made by the directos to explain their responsibiiities in
relation to the preparation of the Annuzl Report and Accounts,
the directors’ emolunents disclosures within the Repert of the
directors on remuneration, the Annual Husiness statement and
the Directors’ report.

The Group and Society financial statements included within the
Annual Report and Accounts are prepared in accordance with
international accounting standards in canformity with the
requirements of the Building Societies act 1986 and with
those parts of the BLilding Societies (Accounts anc Related
Provisions) Regulations 1988 (as amended) that are
applicable. International accounting standards which have
been adopted for use within the UK havz zlso been applied in
these financial statements. The Group financial statements are
also prepared in accordance with Interrational Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) adopted by the European Union.

The Group financial statements are prepared in the European

single electronic format in accordance with the reqguirements
as set out in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815
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with regard to regulatory technical standards on the
specification of a single electronic reporting format.

A copy of the Annual Report and Accounts can be found on
Nationwide Building Society’s website at nationwide.co.uk
(Results and accounts section). The directers are responsible
for the maintenance and integrity of statutory and audited
information on the website. Information published on the
internet is accessible in many countries with different legal
requirements. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Building Societies Act 1986 (the Act)

As required by regulations made under the Act, the directors
have prepared an Annual Report and Accounts which gives a
true and fair view of the income and expenditure of the Society
and the Group for the financia! year and of the state of the
affairs of the Society and the Group as at the end of the
financial year, and which provides details of directors’
emoluments in accordance with Part VIl of the Act and
requlations made under it. The Act states that the
requirements under international accounting standards
achieve a fair presentation,

Directors' report (continued)

New activities

There were no new activities in which the Society or any of its
subsidiaries engaged during the financial year of a different
nature from those in which the Society previously engaged.

Research and development

In the ordinary course of business, the Society regularly
develops new products and services.

In preparing the Annual Report and Accounts, the directors
have:

¢ Selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

s Made judgements and estimates that are reasonabie;

» Stated whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

+ Prepared the financial statements on the going concern
basis.

In addition to the Annual Report and Accounts, as required by
the Act, the directors have prepared an Annual business
statement and a Directors’ report, each containing prescribed
information relating to the business of the Society and its
connected undertakings.

UK Finance Code for Financial Reporting Disclosure

The Group has continued to adopt the UK Finance Code for
Financial Reperting Disclosure and its Annual Report and
Accounts 2023 has been prepared in compliance with its
principles.
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Going Concern

The Group's business activities and financial position, the
factors likely to affect its future development and performance,
its objectives ang pelicies in managing the financial risks to
which it is exposed, and its capital, funcing and fiquidity
positions are set out in the Financial review and the Risk
report.

The directors have assessed the Group's ability to continue as a
going concer, with referenice to current and anticipated
market conditions ircluding the ongoirg war in Ukraine and
increases in the cost of living. The Group's projections, stress
testing and scenario analysis show that the Group will be able
to operate at adeguate levels of both licuidity and capital for
the next 12 months, Furthermore, the Croup’s capital ratios
and its total capital resources are comfortably in excess of
Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) requirements,

The directors confirm they are satisfied hat the Group has
adeguate resources o continue in business for 3 period of at
least 12 months from the date of appreval of the consolidated
financial statements and that itis there®are appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in prepa-ing these accounts,

Fair, balanced and understandable

The directors are sat'sfied that the Annual Report and
Accaunts, taken as 3 whole, s fair, balarced and
tinderstandable, and provides the information necessary for
members and other stakeholders 10 asszss the Group's
position and perforrr ance, business mode! and strategy.
Details of the governance procedures that have been
embedded to support this can be found in the Audit
Committee report,

Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures {TCFD})

Established by the Firancial Stability Board in 2017, the TCFD
recommendations were designed to enable financial firms to
produce clear, comprehensive, high-quality disclosures on the
impacts of climate change. Further enharicements were made
in 2021, through issuance of guidance on climate-relateq
metrics, targets and -ransition olans. Nztionwide publishes itg
TCFD-aligned Climata-related Financial Disclosures annually,

Financial statements Other information

alongside its preliminary resuits. Nationwide alse provides
summary information consistent with the TCFD
recommendations in the Strategic Report within it Annyal
Report and Accounts disclosure, aligned to the reguirements
of the Companies Act.

Enhanced Disclosure Task Force (EDTF)

The EDTF, estahlished by the Financial Sta ty Board,
published its report ‘Enhaning the Risk Disciosures of Banks’
in October 2012, with an update in Novernber 2015 covering
IFRS 9 expected credit josses, The Taskforce on Disclosures
about Expected Credit Losses {DECL), jointly established by the
Financial Conduct Authority, Financial Reporting Council and
the Prudential Reguiation Authority, published its thirg report
in September 2022 EDTF ang DECL recommendations are
refiected in either the Annual Report and Accounts or Pillar 3
Disclosyres,

Directors’ statement pursuant to the disclosure guidance
and transparency rules

As required by the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority, the directors have
included a fair review of the business and a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group. The
directors confirm that, to the hest of each director's knowiedge
and belief;

*  The Chief Executive’s review and the Financial review
contained in the Strategic report include & fair review of
the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Society, In zddition, the Strategic
report contains a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties,

* Thefinancial statements, prepared in accordance with
international accounting standards which have been
adopted for use within the UK, give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabi ities, finan:ial position and profit of the
Group and Seciety.

Directors’ report [continued)

—_—_—

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of accounting records
and internal controf

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the Saciety a1d
its connected undertakings:

¢ Keep accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Society and the Groy p
and which enable them to ensure that the Annuga! Report
and Accounts comply with the Building Societies Act 1986,

¢ Take reasonable care to estabiish, maintain, document and
review such systems and controls as are appropriate to the
Society.

The directors have general responsibility for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for taking reasonabie steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors who held office at the cate of approval of this
report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the Group's auditors are
Unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken as 2 director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Group's auditors are aware of that information,

The auditors

A resolution to re-appoirt Ernst & Young LLP as externai
auditor will be Propased at the Annual General Meeting.

Kevin Parry

Seciety Chairman
18 May 2023
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Introduction

Effective risk management is critical to delivering sur new purpose: Banking - but fairer, rmore rewarding, and for the good of society, and ensures that we keep our customers’ money safe and
secure, Nationwide adopts a prudent approach ta risk management, taking oniy those risks which suppert our strategy and managing those risks rigorously through a consistent and robust
methodology. _

All business activities involve some deg-ee of risk. Nationwide's risk management processes ensure the risks that arise from its activities are appropriately managed by:

o identifying risks through a robust assessment of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Society, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency, or
liquidity, or increase the potential for customer harm;

» robust decision making, ensuring the right risks are taken, in a way that is considered and supports the strategy, maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct;

* ensuring the risks taken are understood, controlled, and managed appropriately; and

¢ maintaining an appropriate balance between delivering custcmer value and remaining a prudent and respensible lender,

Managing risk
Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERMF)

The Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERMF) sets out the approach to risk management. The framework is based on eight principal risk categories, establishing risk appetite, and
implementing risk management through the three lines of defence model. The ERMF is underpinned by processes, policies and standards that are specific to ingividual risk categories and focus on
the responsihilities of key executives and risk practitioners, The outputs of the ERMF are governed through the Society's risk committee structure.

The Board monitors the Society's risk management and internal control systems and carries out.an annual review of their effectiveness. Based on this year's review, the Society has an adequate risk
framework in piace and a broadly effective control environment. Their design has been and will continue to be enhanced, {e ensure they remain fit for purpese and refiects changes to the internal
and external risk profile, allowing tailored responses tc be developed where further maturity or improvernents are corisiderec appropriate. Te ensure the ERMF remains fit for purpose, the
strengthening of the operational and conduct risk and control environment, including our economic crime and anti-money laundering controls, will continue to be a focus in 2023/24 and beyord.

A pregramme has been completed to develop further the organisation’s understanding of the most preminent risks and controls within key customer-facing processes. In addition, there is an
ongging programme of work to support the management of ecoromic crime obligations. Taken tagether, this work has enabled Nationwide te refine and develop its approach to the identification
and management of risk, and to build understanding of how learnings can be applied more broadly across other key processes.

Activity to support the new FCA Consurner Duty has seen Nationwide introduce a Good Qutcomes Guide as part of the ERMF. A new requirement has also been included in the ERMF for all principal

risk categories to evidence how good outcomes are delivered, and how foreseeable harm to custemers is prevented when assessing risk. A programme of work is ongoing to ensure full
preparedness for the Consumer Duty prior to when it becomes efective in July 2023
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Risk report

A Strategic report

Risk Management at Nationwide is unde rpinned by a positive risk culture. Strong risk management enables the Society to achieve its strategic ambitions in a resilient, sustainable, and efficient way,
make better business decisions, achieve better outcomes, and prevent foreseeable harm to customers.

The ERMF consists of five core compenents: enablers and governance, appetite, policy, risk management and reporting. These ensure effective and consistent risk and control management is
delivered across the risk areas. Each corz component consists of supporting resources utilised in risk management process and controls, The structure of the ERMF is summarised below:

- Nationwide Strategy

Enablers &
governance

Appetite

Articylates hew much risk the Seciety
is prepared to tak= in the pursuit of its
ohiectives.

Respurces
«Board risk appetite
»Management nisk appetite
#Risk indicaters
¢ Control indicators

Policy

Sets out the objectives to be met by
relevant critical controls to ensure that
specific material risks are managed on

a day-to-day basi line with risk
appetite

Resources
#Risk policies
»Control policies
» Supporting standards

Risk management

Defines the standard processes, tools

and systems needed for the practical

operation of risk management across
the Society.

kesources
s Risk and control self-assessment

«Scenario analysis

» Stress testing

¢ Horizon scanning
eIncident management

140

Reporting

Ensures the appropriate monitoring,
aggregation, and escalation of relevant
risk, loss event and control information

1o the Board, risk committees, and
management to enable effective, risk-
based decision making and achieve
better cutcomes.

Resources
« Committee reporting
* Risk aggregation

Enablers and governance

Encourages positive behaviours of
colleagues, promoting a positive rigk
culture throughout cur commitzee
structure and three lines of defence
model. All of this is underpinned ty our
values, behaviours and ethics
influencing the decisions we meke
within the Society.

Rescurces
*Risk categorisation mode|

#Risk and incident impact matrix
*Risk heatmap

*People capahbility

«Risk culture
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Three lines of defence

Risk management activities are structur=d along a three lines of defence (3LaD) model. This approach has been tailored to reflect the Society's size, complexity, and business mode! and jed tc the
creation of the Chief Controls Office (CC2) in 2020. The introduction of the CCO has enhanced Nationwide’s risk management structure through centralised training, delivery of Society-wide centrol

testing and coordination of risk management programmes.

Other information U

Managing risk (continued)

Though everyone has a role to play in rizk managerment, the overall responsibilities and accountabilities are outlined through this 3LoD model, as follows:

First line: Risk and control ownership

First line: Chief Controls Office

3

operations, cwning and operating most
controls fo manage the Society's risk:
and meet requiatory requirements.

Responsibilities Accountabilities
Designing and running business » Setting business cbjectives

¢ Defining risk appetite
e |dentifying, owning and managing risks
¢ Implementing and maintaining regulatory compliance

» Adhering to the Society's minimum standards for risk
ﬁ management and associated policies

J '

Responsibilities Accountabilities

Providing centralised risk ® Control governance and reporting
management supportto e Coordination of regulatory requests
allow business leaders to
discharge their risk and
control accountab

* Planning and delivery of control testing

1 Second line: Oversight, support and challenge

Responsibilities
Overseeing, through suppart, challeng2 and the provision of

advice, the effectiveness of risk management by the first line.

Accountabilities

& Providing expert advice on business initiatives

+ Providing advice on the mmm::@ ot risk appetite

¢ Reporting aggregate enterprise level risks to the
Board

Conducting independent and risk-based assurance
interpreting material regulatory change

Setting the Society’s minimum standards for risk
management and associated policies

Third line: Assurance

Responsibilities
Providing assurance to the Board on the effectiveness of our
control environment.

Accountabilities

¢ Performing independent audits of the effectiveness
of first line risk management and second line
oversight, support and challenge

Taking a risk-based approach to the pregramme of audit
work

Preparing an annual opinion on the risk management
and controls framework across the Society to present to
the Audit Committee
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Risk committee structure

The Board is responsible for robustly assessing the principal risks facing Nationwide. To achieve this, the Board approves Nationwide's risk appetite and metrics following consideration by the Roard
Risk Committee (BRC) and receives regular reports and assessments of Nationwide’s risk and control processes and recommendations from BRC on matters spanning all risk categories, including
the appropriate level of risk appetite. Th= Board has delegated responsibility to BRC for approval of the ERMF,

The BRC and Audit Committee provide oversight and advice to the Board. It is important the correct committees review the relevant risk management information in a thorough and timely manner.
Key matters such as risk appetite breaches and associated actions are reported to the relevant management committee and appropriate matters are escalated to the Executive Risk Committee
(ERC) chaired by the Chief Risk Officer. “he ERC ensures a coordinated management approach across all risks and provides regular updates to the Board on areas where the Committee has
challenged management and key decisions.

During the year the Economic Crime Risk Committee has been implemented as part of the management committee structure to ensure the ongoing effectiveness of Nationwide’s economic crime
risk management. A review of the Group’s committee structure has resulted in the principal Board IT and Resilience Cormmittee being retired, with risk-related matters it previously considered heing
transferred to the BRC. The committee structure is detailed below:

Nationwide's Board

A A
Principal
Committees Board Risk Committee (BRC) Audit Committee
Oversees economic crime and current and potential Oversees financial reporting, internai and external audit,
future risk exposures, considers future risk strategy and and the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls
determines risk appetite. and risk management systems.
i L iy et ] . .
- Management..- .. - Executive Risk Committee (ERC)
no_ma#»nwmi o Determines and amends Nationwide's attitude to risk and
e sets thresholds for endorsement by the Board., Exercises
ensuring controls are adegiately designed and operating
effectively.

Credit Committee Assets and Liabilities Committee Conduct and Operational Risk Economic Crime Risk Committee Model Risk Committee
: Committee
Determines and amends the Society’s Determines the Society's approach to MB Monitors the Society's actual and future Determines and amends Nationwide's Promotes best practice for the Society's
attitude to credit risk and sets market, capital, pension, fiquidity, and operational, regulatery and conduct risk |:7] attitude to economic crime risk and sets || use of models. Reviews and challenges
thresholds for endo-sement by ERC. funding risk and sets threshelds for appetite and profile to ensure alignment thresholds for challenge and the use and management of models to
| eachrisk for endorsement by ERC. with its strateqy. Sets thresholds for | endorsement by ERC. manage risk. Sets thresholds for each
E each risk for endorsement by ERC. risk for endorsement by ERC,

e
il S

Fuowe vERaUE Y

T e e et bR X b B

142



Annug} Report & Accounts 2023

m Strategic report

Financial statements Other information J

Risk report

Governarce

Principal risks and uncertairties

The principal risks set out in the table b2low are the key risks relevant to the Society’s business model and achievement of its strategic objectives. Where under the control of Nationwide, these risks
have a defined risk appetite consisting cf statements supported by metrics, including rationale, limits and triggers. The principal risks are further sub-divided into more detailed categories of risk, for
which management risk appetite is set in the context of the Board's risk appetite. The relaticnship between principal risks and top and emerging risks is set out on page 65.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal Risk

Definition

wwx Committee

Further Detait

Credit risk

Liguidity and

|

The risk of loss as a result of a customer or counterparty failing to meet their financial obligations.

" Liquidity risk is the risk that Nationwide is Linable to meet its liabilities as they fall due and maintain
member and other stakeholder confidence. Funding risk is the risk that Nationwide is unable to maintain

|
4

Credit Committee

Page 144

funding risk diverse funding soLrces in wholesale and retail markets and manage retail funding risk that can arise from Page 182
excessive concentrations of higher risk deposits.
* The risk that Natior wide fails to maintain sufficient capital to absorb losses througheut a full economic
Capital risk cycle and sufficient to maintain the confidence of current and prospective investors, customers, the Board | Assets and Liabilities Committee Page 194
and regulators. . )
. The risk that the net value of, or net income arising from, the Society's assets and liabilities is impacted as
Iz_mq_a. risk a result of market price or rate changes. Page 200
L The risk that the va ue of the pension schemes’ assets will be insufficient to meet the estimated labilities,
Pension risk . . . 4 Page 208
| creating a pension Jeficit. , ‘
The risk that achievable volumes or margins decline relative to the cost base, affecting the sustainability of o
Business risk | the business and tre ability to deliver the strategy due to macro-economic, geopolitical, industry, , Executive Risk Committee Page 210
requlatory, compet tor or other external events. WH
Operational The risk of Society i npacts resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, conduct and compliance | Conduct and Operational Risk Committee
and conduct | mana t Ie and syst f ternal t E ic Cri i i Page 211
risk | gement, peogie and systems, or from external events. conemic Crime Risk Committes
The risk of an adverse outcome that occurs as a direct result of weaknesses or failures in the development,
Model risk implementation ar use of a model, The adverse consequences include financial loss, poor business or Model Risk Committee Page 216

strategic decision making, or damage to Nationwide’s reputation. :

123



Annual Report & Accounts 2023
A Strategic report Governarce Risk report Financiai statements Other information ) Credit risk - Overview

Credit risk - Overview
Credit risk is the risk of loss as a result of 2 customer or counterparty failing to meet their financial obligations. Credit risk encompasses:

« borrower/counterparty risk - the risk of loss arising from a borrower or counterparty failing to pay, or becoming increasingly likely not to pay the interest or principal on a loan, or on a financial
product, or for a service, an time;
» security/collateral risk - the risk of lcss arising from deteriorating security/cellateral quality;
« concentration risk - the risk o7 loss arising from insufficient diversification; and
o refinance risk - the risk of loss arising when a repayment of a loan or other financial product occurs latar than originally anticipated.

Nationwide manages credit risk for the foflowing portfolios:

Portfolio Definition

Residential mortgages Loans secured on residential property

Consumer banking Unsecured lending comprising current account overdrafts, personal loans and credit cards

Commercial lending Loans to registered social landlords, project finance ioans made under the Private Finance Initiative and commercial real estate lending
Treasury Treasury liquidity, derivatives and discreticnary investment portfolios

Management of credit risk

Nationwide lend in a responsile, affordable and sustainable way to ensure safeguarding of members and the financial strength of the Scciety throughout the credit cycle. To this end, the Board Risk
Committes sets the lavel of risk appetite it is willing to take in pursuit of the Society's strategy, which is articulated as Board risk appetite statements and underlying principles:

Safeguarding our customers and counterparties by lending responsibly

s Only lending to custemers or counte-parties who demenstrate that they can afford to borrow.
s Supporting customers buying mortgageable properties of wide-ranging types and gualities.
o Working with customers and counte-parties to recover their financial position should there be a delay, or risk of delay, in meeting their financial obligations.

Safeguarding the Society's financial performance, strength and reputation

e Managing asset quality so that losses through an economic cycle will not undermine profitability, financiaf strength and our standing with external stakeholders.
¢ Ensuring that nc material segment cf our lending exposes the Society to excessive loss.
* Preactively managing credit risk and compilying with regulation.

Nationwide operates with a commitment to responsible lending and a focus on championing geed conduct and fair outcomes. In this respect, the Society formulates appropriate credit criteria and
policies which are aimed at mitigating risk from individual transactions and ensuring that the Society’s credit risk exposure remains within risk appetite. Under a governed delegated mandate
structure from the Board Risk Committez, the Credit Committee, individual Material Risk Takers and underwriters holding personal lending mandates make credit decisions, based on a thoreugh
credit risk assessmert, to ensure that customers are able to meet their cbligations.

144



Annual Report & Accounts 2023
m Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements Other information u Credit risk - Overview (continued)

Credit risk is managad within the risk eppetite set by the Board. Performance against this appetite is measured across a range of metrics, each with an absolute limit, and this is reported to Credit
Committes on a monthly basis. Correcive action is taken when metrics move towards or beyond these limits to ensure performance remains or returns to within appetite within an appropriate
timescale.

Nationwide is committed to helping customers who may anticipate or find themselves experiencing a period of financial difficulty, offering a range of forbearance options tailored to their individual
circumstances. Accounts in arrears, or where the horrower is in financial difficulty, are managed by speciatist teams within Nationwide or referred to debt charities to ensure an optimal outcome for
our customers and the Society.

Forbearance

Forbearance accurs when concessions are made to the contractuzl terms of a loan when the customer is facing or about to face difficulties in meeting their financial commitments. A concession is
where the customer receives assistance, which could be a modification to the previous terms and conditions of a facility or a total or partial refinancing of debt, either mid-term or at maturity.
Requests for concessions are principally attributable to:

» temporary cash flow problems;
s breaches of financial covenants; or
¢ aninability to repay at contractual maturity.

Consistent with the European Banking authority reporting definitions, loans that mee: the regulatory forbearance exit criteria are not reported as forborne. The concession events used to classify
balances subject to farbearance for residential mortgages, consumer banking and commercial lending are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Impairment provisions

Impairment provisions on financial assezs are calculated on an expecied credit loss (ECL) basis for assets held at amortised cost and at fair value through ether comprehensive income (FVOCI). ECL
impairment provisions are based cn an assessment of the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD), discounted to give a net present value. Provision
calculations for retail portfolics are typically performed on a collective rather than individual loan basis. For collective assessments, whilst each loan will have an associated ECL calculation, the
calculation will be based on cohort level data for assets with shared credit risk characteristics (e.q. origination date, origination loan to value, term).

Impairment provisions are calculated using a three-stage approach depending on changes in credlit risk since original recognition of the assets:

¢ an asset which is not credit impaires! on initial recognition and has not subsequently experienced a significant increase in credit risk is categorised as being within stage 1, with a provision equal
to a 12-month ECL (losses arising or default events expected tc occur within 12 monthsy;

» where a loan’s creait risk increases significantly, it is moved to stage 2. The provision recognised is equal to the lifetime ECL (losses on default events expected to occur at any point during the
life of the asset);

» if aloan meets the definition of credit impaired, it is moved to stage 3 with a provision equal to its lifetime ECL.
For loans and advances held at amortised cost, the stage distribution and the provision coverage ratios are shown in this report for each individual portfolio. The provision coverage ratic is

calculated by dividing the provisions by -he gross balances for each main iending pertfolio. Loans remain on the batance sheet, net of associated provisions, until they are repaid or deemed no
longer recoverable, when such loans are written off.
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Governance and oversight of impairment provisions

The models used in the calculation of impairment provisions are governed in accordance with the Society's Model Risk Framework as described in the Model risk section of this report. PD, EAD and
LGD models are suibject to regular monitoring and back testing and are reviewed annually. Where necessary, adjustments are approved for risks not captured in model outputs, for example where
insufficient historic data exists. The eccnomic scenarios used in the calculation of impairment provisions and associated probabiiity weightings are proposed by our Chief Economist. Details of these
economic assumpticns and material acjustments are included in note 10 to the finanicial statements.

Governance and ove-sight of econemic assumptions, weightings applied to economic scenarios and all key judgaments relating to impairment provisions are through a formal monthly meeting
including the Chief Financial Officer, Crief Risk Officer and Chief Credit Cfficer. Impairment provisions are regularly reported to the Audit Committee, which reviews and challenges the key
judgements and estimates made by matagement.

Performance overview
The UK economy has experienced a period of uncertainty, with rising energy prices driving an increase in the cost of living and contributing to a high inflationary environment throughout the year.
Additionally, increases to the Bank rate nave increased the cost of borrowing and put further pressure on househoid affordability. Provisiens have increased to £765 million (2022: £746 million)

which includes a modelled adjustment totalling £177 million (2022: £159 million] to reflect an increase to the probability of default to account for the combined risks of rising inflation, increasing
interest rates and credit indicators which are judged to be temporary, such as reduced levels of arrears,

Despite this, observed credit quality and performance have remained broadly stable. Performance has benefited from the impact of gevernment energy suppert schemes, with residential mortgages
and consumer banking arrears remaining at a low level relative to recent years. Help and support continues to be provided for members whe are struggling as a result of increases in their cost of
living, with concessions granted based an consideration of their individual circumstances.

The combined pressure of high inflation and rising interest rates has also led to a reduction in housing market activity, with a reduction in house prices of 3.1% in the year to March 2023,
Outlook

Continued pressure on persona! finances is expected, with the leve! of government energy support reducing and inflation forecasted to return to the Bank of England 2% target in the medium rather
than short term. The Group’s base case economic scenario assumes that house prices will fall by 4.5% during 2023.
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Nationwide's maximum exposure to credit risk at 4 April 2023 was £279 billion (2022: £284 billion).

Credit risk — Overview (continued)

Credit risk largely arises from loans and advances to customers, which account for 79% (2022: 78%) of Nationwide's totaf credit risk exposure. Within this, the exposure relates primarily to

residential mortgages, which account for 95% {2022: 95%) of totzl loans and advances to customers and comprise high quality assets with historically low occurrences of arrears and

possessions.

in addition to lcans and advances to customers, Nationwide is exposed to credit risk on all other financial assets. For all financial assets recognised on the balance sheet, the maximum exposure t>
credit risk represents the balance shee: carrying value after allowance for impairment, plus off-balance sheet commitments. For off-balance sheet commitments, the maximum exposure is the
maximum amount that Nationwide would have to pay if the commitments were to be called upon. For lcan commitments and other credit-related commitments that are irrevocable over the life of

the respective facilities, the maximum exposure is the full amount of the committed facilities.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Gross

2023 Impairment Carrying Commitments Maximum % of total
balances provisions value (note i} credit risk credit risk
exposure exposure
(Audited) fm fm £m £m £fm %
Amortised cost loans and advances to customers:
Residential mortgages 201,615 (280) 201,335 8,952 210,287 75
Consumer banking 4,408 (469) 3,939 28 3,967 2
Commercial and cther iending 4,994 (16) 4,978 1,353 6,331 2
Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk (note ii) 430 - 430 - 430 -
21,447 (765) 210,682 10,333 221,015 75
FVTPL loans and advances to customers:
Residential mortgages (note iii) 47 - 47 - 47 .
Commercial ‘ ‘ 53 . 53 - 53 -
e 100 - 100 - 100 -
Other items:
Cash 25,635 - .- 25,635 - 25,635 9
Loans and advances to banks and similar institutions 2,860 - 2,860 " 2,860 1
Investment securities - FYOCI 27,562 - 27,562 - 27,562 10
Investment securities - Amortised cost 40 - 40 - 40 -
Investment securities - FVTPL 13 - 13 . 13 -
Derivative financial instruments 6,923 - 6,923 - 6,923 3
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk {note ii) (5,011) - (5,011) - {5,011) 2
58,022 - 58,022 - 58,022 n
Total 269,569 (765) 268,804 10,333 279,137 100
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Maximum exposure to credit risk

2022 Gross Impairment Carrying Commitments Maximum % of total
nalances provisions value {note i) credit risk credit risk
exposure exposure
{Audited)} £m fm fm fm fm %
Amortised cost loans and advances to customers:
Residential mortgages 198,056 {187) 197 869 13,807 21,676 74
Consumer banking 4,638 (529) 4,109 35 4144 2
Commercial and otfer lending 5,453 (30) 5,423 1,415 6,838 pi
Fair value adjustment for micro hedged -isk (noteii) o B 549 - 549 .
- . o 208,696 (746) 207,950 15,257 223207 78
FVTPL loans and advances to customers
Residential mortgages (note iii) 64 - 64 - 64 B
Commercial 52 - 52 - 52 B
16 - 16 - 16 .
Other items:
Cash 30,221 - 30,221 - 30,221 1
Loans and advances to banks and simila- institutions 3,052 - 3,052 - 3,052 1
Investment securities - FVOCI 25,349 - 25,349 - 25,349 9
Investment securities — Amortised cost 18 - 18 - 118 .
Investment securities — FVTPL 7 - 7 1 18 -
Derivative financial i1struments 4,723 - 4723 - 4723 2
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk {note ii} (2,443} - (2,443) - (2,443} )
T 61,037 T - 61,037 1 , 2
Total T 269,849 (746) 269103 15,258 284,361 100

Notes:

i. Inaddition to the amounts shown above Naticnwide has revocable commitments of £10,444 millien (2022: £10,622 mittion) in respect of credit card and overdraft facilities. These commitments represent
agreements to lend in the future, subjec to certain considerations. Sach commitments are cancellable by Nationwide, subject to notice requirements, and given their nature are not expected to be drawn down to the
fulltevel of exposura. ,

ii. The fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk and the fair value adiustment for micro hedged risk (which relates to the commercial lending portfolio) represent hedge accounting adjustments.

. FVTPL residential mortgages inctude equity reiease and shared equity loans.

Commitments

Irrevocable undrawn commitments to 'end are within the scope cf provision requirements. The commitments in the table above consist of overpayment reserves and separately identifiable
irrevocable commitments for the pipelir e of residential mortgages, personal loans, commercial loans and investment securities. These commitments are not recognised on the balance sheet; the
associated provision of £0.2 million (2022: £0.4 million) is included within provisions for liabilities and charges.

Revacable commitmants relating to ove-drafts and credit cards are included in the calculation of impairment provisions, with the allowance for future drawdowns included in the estimate of the
exposure at default.
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Credit risk - Residential mortgages

Summary

Naticnwide's residential mortgages comprise prime, buy to let and legacy loans. Prime residential mortgages are mainly Nationwice-branded advances made through intermediary channels and
the branch network. Since 2008 buy to let mortgages have only been originated under The Mortgage Works (UK) ple (TMW) brand. Legacy mortgages are smaller portfolios in run-off,

Arrears rates on the residential mortgaye portfolios remain low. Jowever, higher inflation and rising interest rates are placing greater pressure on household finances, increasing the potential for
future arrears.

There have been signs of a slowdown ir activity in the housing market over the year with a reduction in house prices driving an increase in the average LTV of the residential portfolios to 55% (2022:
52%). Further infarmation is included cn page 157.

Residential mortgage gross balances

2023 2022

(Audited) £m % fm %
Prime 157,51 78 154,363 78
Buy to let and legacy:

Buy to let {note i) 42,704 21 42,004 21
_ Legacy (note ii) R 1400 00 1 ~ 1678 1

44,104 22 43,693 2

Amortised cost loans and advances to customers 201,615 100 198,056 100
FVTPL loans and acvances to customers 47 64
Total residential mortgages 201,662 198,120

Notes:

. Buy to let mortgages include £41,805 m llion (2022: £40,879 million) originated under the TMW brand, with ather brands now closed to new originations,

i
ii. Legacy includes sel*-certified, near prime and sub-prime lending, all of which were discontinued in 2009.
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Impairment charge for the year
Impairment charge/(release) and wrize-offs for the year
2023 2022
(Audited) fm £m
Prime " (19)
Buy to let and legacy 83 (109)
Total impairment charge/(release) 94 (128)
% %
Impairment charge/(release) as a % ¢f average gross balance 0.05 {0.07)
£m fm
Gross write-offs 5 5

Balance sheet provisions have increased to £280 million {2022: £187 million). This includes a modelled adjustment totalling £77 million (2022: £13 million) to reflect an increase to the probability of
default to account for the combined risks of rising inflation, increasing interest rates and credit indicators which are judged to be temporary, such as reduced levels of arrears. The impairment
charge for the year raflects the increase in this adjustment, primarily due to expectations that higher mortgage interest rates will reduce borrower affordability. Further information is included in
note 10 to the financial statements. The impairment charge also reflects the impact of increased expected credit losses in the severe downside economic scenario, also as a result of higher interest
rate assumptions. Tre prior year impairment release reflected & decrease in provisions during a year where the economic outlook had improved,

The following table shows residential martgage lending balances carried at amortised cost, the stage allocation of the loans, impairment provisions and the resulting provision coverage ratios.

Residential mortgages staging urm_<uw

2023 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Stage 2 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
total Up to date 1-30DPD >30 DPD {note ii)
(note i) (note i)
{Audited) £m £m £fm . Em £m £m £m £m
Gross balances
Prime 138,670 18,200 17,134 81 255 641 - 157,511
Buy to let and legacy 26,211 17,345 16,875 294 176 425 123 44104
Total 164,881 35,545 34,009 1,105 4311 1,066 123 201,615
Provisions
Prime 10 48 39 5 4; 26 - 84
Buy to let and legacy 13 143 - 127 8 8 41 %)} 196
Total 23 191 166 .13 12. 67 U] 280
Provisions as a % of total balance % % % % % % % %
Prime 0.01 0.26 0.23 0.60 1.51 4.04 - 0.05
Buy to let and legacy 0.05 0.83 0.75 2.85 4,70 9.76 - 0.44
Total 0.01 0.54 0.49 1.20 281 6.30 - 0.14
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Credit risk - Residential mortgages (continued)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
total Up to date 1-30 DPD >30 DPD {note ii)
(ncte i) (note i)

(Audited) £m fm £m fm £m, £m £m £m
Gross balances W

Prime 146,786 6,782 6,057 535 190 795 - 154,363

Buy to let and iecacy 33,462 9,667 9,333 229 105 429 135 43,693
Total 180,248 16,449 15,390 764 295 1224 135 198,055
Provisions

Prime 6 41 20 12 9 26 - 73

Buy to let and legacy o 16 64 51 6 7 36 {2) 114
Total g 22 105 7 18 16 62 @) 87
Provisions as a % of total halance % % , % % % 7 % % o

Prime - 0.61 034 233 448 329 - 0.05

Buy to let and legacy 0.05 0.67 0.55 2.67 6.96 8.42 - 026
Total 0.01 0.64 0.46 243 537 5.09 - 0.09

Notes:

i.  Days past due (DPC) is a measure of arrears status.

ii. POCIloans are thoss which were credit i npaired on purchase or acquisition. The POCI loans shown in the table above were recognised on the balance sheet when the Derbyshire Building Society was acquired in
December 2008. These balances, which are mainly interest-cnly, were 90 days or more in arrears when they were acquired and so have been classified as credit impaired on acquisition. The gross balance for POC! 7s
shown net of the lifetime ECL on transition to IFRS 9 of £5 million {2022: £5 million).

Total residential mortgage provisions hzve increased to £280 mil ion (2022: £187 million), with £82 million of this increase relating to buy to let and legacy mortgages. This provision increase is
fargely the result of a detericration in th2 economic cutleok and increases to the provisions held for affordability risks in relation to rising inflation and higher interest rates.

Stage 2 loans total £35.5 biilion (2022: £16.4 biliion), which includes £16.6 billion (2022: £4.6 billion) of loans where the PD has been uplifted to recognise the increased risk of default in a period of
economic uncertainty. The total stage 2 increase is largely due to increasing affordability risks because of higher mortgage interest rates, in addition to the implementation of models which are
more responsive to t1e risks in the economic scenarios.

Credit performance continues to be sircng. Stage 3 loans in the residential mortgage portfolio equate to 0.5% (2022: 0.6%) of the total residential mortgage exposure. Of the tetal £1,066 million
(2022: £1,224 millior) stage 3 loans, £532 million (2022: £552 m llion) is in respect of loans which are mere than 90 days past due, with the remainder being impaired due to other indicators of
unlikeliness to pay such as forbearance or the bankruptcy of the torrower. For loans subject to forbearance, accounts are transferred from stage 3 to stages 1 or 2 anly after being up to date and

meeting contractual obligations for a peried of 12 months; £179 million (2022: £346 million) of the stage 3 balances in forbearance are in this probation period.
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Credit risk - Residential mortgages (ccntinued)

The table below summarises the maverients between stages in the Group's residential mortgages heid at amortised cost. The movements within the tabie are an aggregation of monthly

movements over the year.

Reconciliation of movements in gross residential mortgage balances and impairment provisions
Non-credit impaired

Credit impaired (note i}

Subject to 12-month ECL Subject to lifetime ECL Subject to lifetime ECL Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 and POCI

Gross balances Provisions Gross balances Provisions Gross balances Provisions Gross balances Provisions
(Audited) fm fm fm £m fm £fm £m £m
AL 5 April 2022 180,248 22 16,449 105 1,359 60 198,056 187
Stage transfers: ,
Transfers from stage 1to stage 2 {64,316) (15} 64,316 15 - - - -
Transfers to stage 3 (190) - (n4) {30) 904 30 - -
Transfers from stage 2 to stage 1 41,91 169 {(A1,57) (169) - - - -
Transfers from stage 3 267 P4 449 15 {76) an - -
Net remeasurement of ECL arising from -ransfer of stage {162) 239 (5) 72
Net movement arising from transfer cf stage {22,268} (6) 22,080 70 188 B “ 72
New assets griginated cr purchased 33,067 3 - - - - 33,067 3
Net impact of further lending and repayrents (8,858) (2) (660) (3) (38) - (9,556) {5)
Changes in risk parameters in relation to credit quality - 9 - 35 - 20 - 64
Other items impacting income statemen: charge/(release) ) ) N ) ) @) i 4)
(including recoveries)
Redemptions (17,308) (3) (2,324) (16) (295) 1N (19,927) (36}
Income statement charge for the year 94
Decrease due to write-offs - - - - (25) (5) (25) (5)
Other provision movements - - - - . 4 i 4
4 April 2023 164,881 23 35,545 191 1,189 66 201,615 280
Net carrying amount 164,858 35,354 1,123 201,335

Note:

i.  Gross balances of credit impaired loans include £123 million (2022: £135 million) of POCI loans, which are presented net of lifetime ECL on transition to IFRS 9 of £5 million (2022: £5 million).

Further infarmation on movements in tctal gross loans and advances to customers and impairment provisions, including the methodology applied in preparing the table, is included in note 14 tc the

financial statements.

152



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

( Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements

Other information U

Reason for residential mortgages being reported in stage 2 (note i)

Credit risk - Residential mortgages {continued)

2023 Prime Buy to let and legacy Total
Provisions Provisions Provisions
Gross -, Gross . Gross
Provisions  asa % of Provisions. asa % of Provisions asa % of
balances balance balances . balance balances balance
£m £m % £m fm % + fm £m %
Quantitative criteria: | ,
Payment status (creater than 30 DPD) 255 4 151/ 176 8 470 431 12 2.81
Increase in PD since origination {less than 30 DPD) ._,N.wmw 44 0.25- 15,952 105 0.66 3. 149 0.44
Qualitative criteria: _
Forbearance (less than 30 DPD) 137 - 0.17; 5 - 0.1 142 - 0.02
Interest only - significant risk of inabil -y to refinance at maturity (less than 30 DPD) - - 1,203 30 2.46 1,203 30 2.46
Other gualitative criteria 39 - 0.02 . 9 - 192 48 - 0.23
Total stage 2 gross balances - 18,200 48 026 17,345 143 0.83 35,545 191 0.54.
Reason for residential mortgages being reported in stage 2 (note i)
2022 Prime Buy to let and legacy Total
Provisions Provisions Provisions
Gross - Gross - Gross .
Provisions as a % of Provisicns asa % of Provisions asa%of
balances balance palances balance balances batance
£m £m % £m fm % fm £m %
Quantitative criteria: ,
Payment status (creater than 30 DPD) 190 9 449 105 7 6.96 295 16 5.37
Increase in PD sinze origination (less than 30 DPD) 6,398 32 0.51 7,623 27 0.35 14,021 59 0.42
Qualitative criteria:
Forbearance {less than 30 DPD} 151 v 0.01 5 - 0.05 156 - 0.05
Interest only - significant risk of inabilivy to refinance at maturity (less than 30 DPD) - - 1,926 30 1.58 1,926 30 158
Other gualitative criteria 43 - 0.40 8 - 0.44 51 - on
Total stage ,Mmsmm balances T 6,782 N 061 9,667 64 067 16,449 105 0.64

Note:

i.  Where loans satisfy more than one of the criteria for determining a significant increase in credit risk, the corresponding gross balance has been assigned in the order in which the categories are presented above
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Loans which are reported within stage 2 are those which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since origination, determined through both quantitative and qualitative indicators, as
shown in the table below,

Criteria Detail

Quantitative The primary guantitative indicators are the outputs of internal credit risk assessments. ror residential mortgage exposures, PDs are derived using models, which use external
information such as that from credit reference agencies, as well as internal information such as known instances of arrears or other financial difficulty. Current and historical data
relating to the exposure are combined with forward-laoking macroeconomic infarmation te determine the likelihood of default. 12-month and lifetime PDs are calculated for each loan.

The 12-month and lifetime PDs are compared to pre-determined benchmarks at each reporting date to ascertain whether a relative or absolute increase in credit risk has occurred, The
indicators for a significant increase in credit risk are:

» Absolute meastres:
- The 12-month PD exceeds the benchmark T2-month PD that is indicative, at the assessment date, of an account being in arrears.
- The residual lifetime PD exceeds the benchmark residual lifetime PD, set at inception, which represents the maximum credit risk that would have been accepted at that point.

s Relative measure:
- The residual lifetime PD has increased by at least 75 basis peints and has at least doubled.

Qualitative Qualitative indicators include the increased risk associated with interest only loans which may not be able to refinance at maturity.
Also included are forbearance events where full repayment of principal and interest is still anticipated, on a discounted basis.

Backstop In addition to the primary criteria for stage allocation described above, accounts that are mare than 30 days past due are alsc transferred to stage 2.

At 4 April 2023, stace 2 balances were £35,545 million (2022: £16,449 million). Of these, only 1% (2022: 2%} are in arrears by 30 days or mere, with the majority of balances in stage 2 due to an
increase in PD since origination. This category includes £16.6 billion (2022: £4.6 billion) of loans where the modelled PD has been uplifted to recognise the increased risk of default in a period of
economic uncertainty, including the impact of higher interest rates on borrower affordability. The impact of this uplift in PD has resulted in these loans breaching existing guantitative PD thresholds.

Stage 2 leans Include all loans greater than 30 days past due (DPD), including those where the original reason for being classified as stage 2 was other than arrears over 30 DPD. The total value of
loans in stage 2 due solely to payment status is less than 0.1% (2022: <0.1%) of total stage 2 balances.
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Credit quality

The residential mortgages portfolio comprises many small lcans which are broadly homogencus, have low volatility of credit risk outcomes and are geographically diversified. The table below shows
the loan balances and provisicns for residential mortgages held at amortised cost, by PD range. The PD distnibutions shown are based on 12-month IFRS 9 PDs at the reperting date.

Loan balance and provisions by PD

2023 Gross balances (note i) Provisions
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Provision
(Audited) and POC! and POCI coverage
PD Range £m . £fm £m i £m £m £m £m £m %
0.00to<0.15% 126,387 5,620 48 132,055 4 19 - 23 0.02
015t0<0.25% 20,845 5133 17 25,995 9 19 - 28 0N
0.25 to < 0.50% 12,556 6,566 29 19,151 5 26 - 1] 0.16
0501t0<0.75% 3,020 3,581 19 7,020 1 16 - 17, 0.24
0.75t0 < 2.50% 1,937 8,180 62 10,179 2 39 - 1. 0.40
2.50t0 <10.00% 120 3,663 7 3,860 1 31 1 33 0.86
10.00 to < 100% 16 2,402 11 2,559 1 41 4 46 176
100% {defauit) - - 796 796 - - 61 61! 7.61
Total 164,881 35,545 1,189 201,615° 23 9 66 280° 0.14
Loan balance and pravisions by PD
2022 Gross balances {note i) Provisions
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Provision
(Audited) and POCI and PGCI coverage
PD Range £m fm £fm £m £m fm fm fm %
0.00 to < 0.15% 150,439 4594 124 155,157 H n - 2 0.01
015t0 < 0.25% 13,639 1,863 35 15,537 3 4 - 7 0.05
0.25 to < 0.50% 9,507 2,381 52 1,940 3 g - 12 0.0
050t0<0.75% 2,852 743 31 3,626 1 4 - 5 015
0.7510 < 2.50% 3,637 2,292 ge 6,018 3 16 - 19 032
2.50t0 <10.00% 173 2,067 108 2378 1 18 1 20 0.84
10.00 to <100% 1 2479 125 2,605 - 43 3 46 174
100% (default) - - 795 795 - - 56 56 7.04
Total 180,248 16,449 1,359 198,056 2 105 60 187 0.09
Note:

i. Includes POCI loans of £123 million {2022 £135 million).

At 4 April 2023, 96% (2022: 97%) of th= portfolio had a PD of less than 2.5%, reflecting the high quality of the residential mortgage portfolios.

155



Annual Report & Accounts 2023

m Strategic report Governar ce Risk report Financial statements Other information U Credit risk - Residential mortgages (continued)
Distribution of new business by borrower type (by value)
Distribution of new business by borrower type (by value) (note i)
2023 2022
% %
Prime:
First time buyers 29 29
Home movers 29 30
Remortgages 24 20
Other ] 1
Total prime 83 80
Buy to let;
Buy to let new purchases 7 8
Buy to let remorigages 10 12
Total buy to let 17 20
Total new business T |moo 100
Note:

i. All new business maasures exclude furtrer advances and product switches.
The proportion of prime new lending from remortgages has increased to 24% (2022: 20%), reflecting a slower house purchase market alongside some remortgage activity fikely to have been

brought forward due to the expected fuzure path of interest rates. Buy to let lending reduced as a propertior; of all new business to 17% (2022: 20%) as the volume of both house purchases and
remortgages in the buy to let market reduced due to rising interest rates.
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Credit risk - Residential mortgages {continued)

Loan to value (LTV) is calculated by weizhting the borrower level LTV by the individual loan balance to arrive at an average LTV. This approach is considered to reflect most appropriately the

exposure at risk.

LTV distribution of new business (by vaiue) (note i)

0% to 60%
60% to 75%
75% 10 80%
80% to 85%
85% to 90%
90% to 95%
Over 95%
Total

Notes:
i

new FVTPL advances during the year,

House prices, measured through the Netionwide House Price Index, have reduced over the past 12 menths by 3.1% (2022: increase of 14.3%). This has caused Group average stock LTV to increase

to 55% (2022: 52%)

2023

%
28
35

9
13
12

3

100

The LTV of new business excludes furthe- advances and product switches.
. The average LTV of loan stock includes bath amortised cost and FVTPL balances. There have been no

2022

Average LTV of new business {by value) (note i)

Prime
Buy to let
Group

Average LTV of loan stock (by value) (note ii
Prime

Buy to let and legacy
Group

2023
%

70
66
69

2023
%
54
56
35

2022
%

67
70

2022
%
51
54
52
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Geographical concentration by stage

The following table shows residential marigages, excluding FYTPL balances, by LTV and region across stages 1and 2 (non credit impaired) and stage 3 (credit impaired). The LTV is calculated using
the latest indexed valuation based on the Nationwide House Price index.

Residential mortgage gross balances by LTV and region

2023

Greater Central South East  South West Scotland Wales Northern Total Provision
London England England England England Ireland Coverage
(Audited) £m fm £m fm fm £m fm £m £m %
Stage 1and 2 loans ,
Fully collateralised |
LTV ratio:
Up to 50% 25,295 14,722 1,214 9,433 7,969 3,944 2,512 1,074 76,163 0.03
50% to 60% 1,743 7,396 6,162 4,572 3,882 2127 1,338 4 37,641 0.08
60% to 70% 12,937 7,878 6,956 5,108 4,142 2,478 1,299 504 41,302, 0.13
70% to 80% 1141 4,977 4,601 3,406 2,239 1,875 791 345 29,645 0.21
80% t0 90% 3,704 2,072 2,132 1,368 952 766 418 206 11,618 0.18
90% to 100% 866 718 817 -1 351 330 175 .. 86 3,894, 0.26
65,956 37,763 31,882 24,438 19,535 11,520 6,533 2,636 200,263 | 0.10
Not fully collateralised _
Over 100% LTV 7 23 1 . 20 21 36 5 30 163 6.90
Collateral value 6 22 20 20 20 32 5 28 153
Negative equity 1 1 1 - 1 4 - 2 10|
Total stage 1and 2 loans 65,963 37,786 31,903 24,458 19,556 11,556 6,538 2,666 200,426 o.M
Stage 3 and POCI leans
Fully collateralised
LTV ratic;
Upto 50% 225 59 77 59 50 24 18 n 563 1.95
50% to 60% 82 51 48 29 25 12 n 3 261 3.30
60% to 70% 48 36 46 18 15 12 7 5 187, 5.47
70% to 80% 29 18 29 12 4 1 3 4 1o 1.53
80% to 90% 9 3 12 2 1 5 1 3 36 2239
90% t0100% o 3 1 - 1 1 - 3 14 31.00
396 208 217 120 9 65 40 29 1,17 4.67
Not fully collateralised
Over 100% LTV 1 1 5 1 - 2 - 8 18 71.68
Collateral value 1 1 3 1 - 2 - 7 15
Negative equily - - 2 - - - - 1 3
Total stage 3 and POC| loans 397 209 222 96 67 40 37 1,189 5.53
Total residential mortgages 66,360 37,995 32,125 19,652 1,623 6,578 2,703 201,615 0.14
Total geographical concentrations 33% 19% 16% 10% 6% 3% 1% 100%
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Residential mortgage gross balances by LTV and region

2022 Greater
London
(Audited) fm

Stage 1and 2 loans
Fully collateralised

LTV ratia:
Up to 50% 28,062
50% te 60% 12,499
60% to 70% 12,739
70% to 80% 10,195
80% to 90% 1,534
90% to 100% 44
65,073
Nat fully collateralised
Over 100% LTV 5
Colflateral value 4
Negative equity 1
Total stage 1and 2 loans 65,078
Stage 3 and POC! lozns
Fully collateralised
LiVratio. .
Uptod0% 286
- 50%to60% 88
60%1to70% 49
 70%1080% @ 38
 80%to 90% 3
90% to 100% - ) -
’ 464
Not fully collateralised
Over 100% LTV 1
Collateral value 1
Negative equity -
Total stage 3 and POC! loans 465
Total residential mortgages 65,543
Total geographical concentrations 33%

Risk report

Financial statements

Other information

Central
England

fm

15,543
7,740
7,959
4,627

952
54
36,875

3
2
1

36,878

n8
54
42
15

230

230

37108

19%

Northern
Engiand
fm

12,035
6,631
7272
3,84
1,029

67

30,875

'9
8
1

30,884

95
53
27
10

242

—

245
31129
16%

South East
England

fm

10,334
4,887
5,246
2,972

546
25
24,010

24,01

81

3
10

147

148
24,159
12%

South West
England
fm

8,257
4,074
4,230
2,67
419
24
19,171

19,174

109
19,283
10%

Scotland

£m

4,483
2417
2,756
1546
339
52
1,583

13
12

1,606

Jvosomnel

1,684

6%

Credit risk - Residential mortgages (continued)

Wales Northern
Ireland

fm fm
2,682 1,136
1,430 449
1,373 518
634 379
200 163
18 43
6,337 2,688
- 41

- 38

- 3
6,337 2,729
22 12

n 4

8 6

2 4

- 4

- 3

43 33

- 8

- 7

- 1

43 41
6,380 2,770
3% 1%

Total Pravision
Coverage
fm %
82,532 0.02
40,127 0.05
42,093 0.08
26,361 0
5,182 020
327 139
196,622 0.05
75 9.27

67

8
196,697 0.06
695 132
291 2.89
217 510
m 9.80
24 26.61
. 7 50.19
1,345 3.7
14 8471

12

2
1359 4.45
198,056 0.09

100%
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Over the year, the geographical distributien of residential mortgages across the UK has remained stable. The highest concentration for both prime and buy to let portfolios is in Greater London,
with proportions broadly stable at 29% and 46% (2022: 30% and 46%) respectively.

In addition to balances held at amortised cost shown in the table abave, £47 million (2022: £64 million) of residential mortgages are held at FVTPL. These have an average LTV of 35% (2022: 33%).
The largest gecgraphical concentration within the FVTPL balances is aiso in Greater London, at 61% (2022: 57%) of total FVTPL balances.

Arrears and possessions

Residential mortgage lending contintes to have a low risk profile as demonstrated by the low leve! of arrears compared to the indusiry average.

Number of cases more than 3 months in arrears as % of total beok (note i) Number of properties in possession as % of total book
2023 2022 2023 2022
% % Number of % Number of o
Brime 0.29 0.30 properties °  properties o
Buy tc iet and legacy 0.44 0.50 Prime nz7 0.01 53 0.00
Total 0.32 0.34 Buy to let and legacy 129 0.04 106 0.03
T Total 246 0.02 158 0.01
UK Finance (UKF) industry average (note ii) 0.71 0.77
UKF industry average (note if) 0.02 0.01

Notes:

i. The methodology fer calculating mortgage arrears is based on the UKF definition of arrears, where
months in arrears i< determined by divid ng the arrears balance outstanding by the latest monthly
contractual paymert.

ii. The UKF data shown for 2023 is as at December 2022 and the 2022 data is as at March 2022.

The propartion of cases more than 3 menths in arrears has decreased during the year to 0.32% (2022: 0.34%). Arrears leveis are expecied to increase as a result of the rising cost of living, including
higher mortgage payments, but to remein low relative to the industry average.

The number of nreperties in possession has increased te 246 (2022: 159) as activity that was temporarily suspended during the pandemic has recemmenced. The possession of a borrower's
property is only undertaken where all re3sonable attempts to resolve the situation have been unsuccessful.

160



Annual Report & Accounts 2023
m Strategic report

Residential mortgages by payment siatus

Governarce Risk report Financial statements

Other information U

The following table shows the payment status of all residential mortgages.

Residential mortgages gross balances by payment status

(Audited}

Not past due

Past due 0 to 1 month

Past due 110 3 months

Past due 3 to 6 months

Past due 6 t0 12 months

Past due over 12 meonths
Possessions

Total residential mortgages

The balance of cases past due by more than 3 months has remained broadly stable at £600 million (2022: £596 million}.

Prime

fm
155,849
1,044
310

155

m

76

13
157,558

2023
Buy to let and
legacy
£m
43,270
376
213
108
65
50
22
44,104

Total

fm
199,119
1,420
523
263

176

126

35
201,662

%
98.7
0.7

03

0.1
0.1

01

100

Prime

£m
152,932
920
240
122

99

109

5
154,427

Credit risk - Residential mortgages (continued)

2022
Buy to let and
legacy
£m
43,000
305
127
78
74
95
14
43,693

Totai

fm
195,932
1,225
367
200

173

204

19
198,120

o
72

98.9
0.6
0.z
0.1
0.1
0.1

100

As at 4 April 2023, the mortgage portfo ios include 1,329 (2022:1,924) mortgage accounts, including those in possession, where payments were more than 12 months in arrears. The total principal

outstanding in these cases was £147 mi licn (2022: £215 million), and the total value of arrears was £26 million (2022: £30 million).
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Interest only mortgages

At 4 April 2023, interest only balances of £6,812 million {2022: £7,824 million) account for 4% (2022: 5%) of prime residential mortgages. Nationwide re-entered the prime market for interest only
lending under a newly established cred t policy in April 2020, however, 85% of current interest only mortgage balances relate to historical accounts which were originally advanced as interest only
mortgages or where a subsequent charge in terms to an interest only basis was agreed. Maturities on interest only mortgages are managed closely, with regular engagement with borrowers to
ensure the loan is redeemed or to agree a strategy for repayment.

Of the buy to et and legacy portfolio, £20,126 million (2022: £39,591 million) relates to interest only balances, representing 91% (2022: 91%) of balances. Buy to let remains open to new interest
only lending under standard terms.

There is a risk that a proportion of interest only mortgages will nct be redeemed at their contractual maturity date, because a berrower does not have 2 means of capital repayment ar has been
unable to refinance the loan. interest or ly loans which are judged to have a significantly increased risk of inability to refinance at maturity are transferred to stage 2. The ability of a borrower to
refinance is calculated using current lerding criteria which consider LTV and affordability assessments. The impact of recognising this risk is to increase provisions by £45 million

(2022: £46 million).

interest only mortgages (gross balance) - term to maturity (note i)

Term expired  Due within one Due after one Due after two  Due after more Total % of
(still open) year year and before years and before  than five years book
two years five years

2023 £m £m fm fm £fm fm %
Prime 69 209 261 1,023 5,250 6,812 43

w:< ﬁoﬁﬂm:a _m@mQ_ o 190 195 ) 269 ._.NN@ wﬂ_ﬂhw ~ &O.._Nm 91.
Total 259 404 530 2,752 42,993 46,938 23.3
2022 £m fm fm £m £m f£m %
Prime ) 81 263 307 1,167 6,006 7.824 a1
Buy to let and legacy 207 256 276 1,607 37,251 39,591 90.6
Total 282 £19 583 2,774 43,257 47,415 239

Note:
i. Balances subject to forbearance with agraed term extensions are presented based on the iatest agreed contractual term.

Interest only loans that are term expirec (still open) are not considered to be past due where contractual interest payments continie to be met, pending renegctiation of the facility. These loans are,
however, treated as credit impaired and categorised as stage 3 balances from three months after the maturity date.
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Forbearance

Nationwide is committed to supporting borrowers facing financial difficulty by working with them o find a solution through proactive arrears management and forbearance.

The Group applies the European Banking Authority (EBA) definition of forbearance.

The following concession events are inc uded within the forbearance reporting for residential mortgages:

Past term interest only concessions

Nationwide works with borrowers who are unable to repay the capital at term expiry of their interest only mortgage. Where a borrower is unable to renegotiate the facility within six months of
maturity, but no legal enforcement is pt rsued, the account is considered forborne. Should another concession event such as a term extension occur within the six month period, this is also ciassed
as forbearance.

interest only concessions

Where a temporary i1terest only concession is granted the loans de not accrue arrears for the period of the concession and these lcans are categorised as impaired.

Capitalisation

When a borrower emerges from financial difficulty, provided they have made at least six full monthly instalments, they are offered the option to capitalise arrears. This results in the account being
repaired and the loans are categorised s not impaired provided contractual repayments are maintained.

Capitalisation - temporary suspension of payments following notification of death of a borrower

On netification of dezth, we offer a 12-month capitalisation concession to allow time for the estate to redeem the account. The loan does not accrue arrears for the period of the concession although
interest wil! continue to be added. Accounts subject to this concession will be classed as forborne if the full contractual payment is not received.

Term extensions (within term)

Customers in financial difficulty may be sllowed to extend the terrn of their mortgage. On a capital repayment mortgage this will reduce their manthly commitment; interest onfy borrowers will
benefit by having a lenger period to repay the capital at maturity.

Permanent interest only conversions

In the past, some borrowers in finzncial difficulty were granted a permanent interest only conversion, normally reducing their monthly commitment. This facility was withdrawn in March 2012; it
remains available for buy to let lending i1 line with Naticnwide's new business credit policy.
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The table below provides detaiis of residential mortgages held at amortised cost subject to forbearance. Accounts that are granted forbearance are transferred to either stage 2 or stage 3. Accounts
are transferred back to stage 1or 2 only after being up to date and meeting contractual obligatiens for a period of 12 months.

Gross balances subject to forbearance (note i) o
2023 2022

Prime Buy to lat and Total Prime  Buyto let and Tetal

legacy legacy
fm fm £m fm fm fm
Past term interest only (note if) 101 149 250 113 14 254
Interest only concessions 503 25 528 639 32 671
Capitalisation 85 22 107 88 30 18
Capitalisation - notification of death of borrower 75 105 180 81 93 174
Term extensions {within term) | 18 59 32 16 48
Permanent interest only conversions 1 29 30 2 32 34
Total forbearance o goe 348 1,154 955 344 1299
Of which stage 2 289 74 363 204 73 27
Of which stage 3 383 253 636 565 240 805
% % o Qo, % % %
Total forbearance as a % of total gross balances 05 0.8 0.6 06 0.8 07
. ‘ £m £m ) £fm fm im £m
Impairment provisions on forborne loans n 20 k1] 2 18 30

Notes:

Where more than one concession event has occurred, balances are reported under the latest event.

Includes interest only mortgages where z customer is unable to renegotiate the facility within six months of maturity and no legal enfercement is pursued. Shouid a concession event such as a term extension occur
within the six-month period, this will alsc be classed as forbearance.

The average LTV for forborne acceunts is 47% (2022: 46%). In additicn to the amortised cost balances above, £4 million of FVTPL balances {2022: £4 miliion) are also forborne.
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Credit risk - Consumer banking

The consumer banking portfolic compr ses balances on unsecured retail banking products: overdrawn current accounts, personal loans and credit cards. Over the year, total balances across these

portfolios have reduced to £4,408 million (2022: £4,638 million) driven by reduced new business and a continued pay down of the existing book on personal loans.

Arrears levels have increased slightly diring the year but remain low. High levels of inflation and rising interest rates will put pressure on household budgets, stretching affordability for some
borrowers. As a result, arrears levels are expected to increase over the short to medium term.

Consumer banking gross balances

(Audited)

Overdrawn current zccounts
Personal loans

Credit cards

Total consumer banking

All consumer banking loans are classified and measured at amortised cost.

Impairment charge/(release) and wrile-offs for the year

(Audited)

Overdrawn current accounts
Personal ioans

Credit cards )

Total impairment charge

Impairment charge as a % of average gross balance

Gross write-offs

2023
fm %
310 7
2,574 58
1,524 35
4,408 100
2023 2022
£m £m
9 23
28 4
. ® &6
““““““ .=
% %
0.68 2.04
£fm £m
97 83

2022
fm
286
2,864
1,488
4,638

%

62
32
100

The lower impairment charge for the year ended 4 April 2023 reflects a release of provisions, which reduced to £469 million (2022: £529 million). Provisions include a modelled uplift to the
probahility of default to reflect economie uncertainty. This adjustment increases provisions by £100 mil'ion (2022: £146 miliion), and reduced over the year due to a refinement to the estimated

impact of affordability risks.
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The following table shows consumer banking balances by stage, with the cerresponding impairment provisions and resulting provision coverage ratios.

Other information U Credit risk - Consumer banking (continued)

Consumer banking product and staging analysis

2023 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

(Audited) fm £m fm £m £m im £m fm
Gross balances |

Overdrawn current accounts 160 N 59 310 12 131 34 286

Personal loans 1,378 1,063 133 2,574 1,735 989 140 2,864

Credit cards 845 591 88 1,524 790 600 98 1,488
Total ] 2,383 1,745 280 4,408 2,646 1,720 pyp) 4,638
Provisions

Overdrawn current accounts 5 2 38 64 4 36 31 7

Perscnal loans 9 54 n7 180 n 60 124 195

Credit cards 11 136 78 225 10 165 28 263
Total ‘ ) 25 m 233 469 25 261 243 529
Provisions as a % of total balance % % % % % % % %

Overdrawn current accounts 3.10 22.90 64.80 20.57 _ 334 2733 90.86 24,63

Personal loans 0.67 5.09 87.66 7.00' 0.62 6.09 88.50 6.80

Credit cards 125 2296 88.85 1473 133 2751 B9.78 17.69
Total 1.04 12.07 83.25 10.63 0.95 15.18 89.25 .40

Balance sheet provisions of £469 millioa (2022: £529 million) include a modelled adjustment of £10C million (2022: £146 million} to reflect an increase to the probability of default to account for he
combined risks of rising inflation, increesing interest rates and credit indicators which are judged to be temporary, such as reduced levels of arrears. This has resulted in £585 million (2022: £700
million) of balances being maved to stage 2. Further information is included in note 10.

Credit performance continues to be strcng, with the proportion of total balances in stage 3 increasing slightly to 6.4% (2022: 5.9%). £25 million of overdrawn current account balances are includad
in stage 3 due to these borrowers being granted a six-month 0% interest concession to support them with increased costs of living. Consumer banking stage 3 gross balances and provisions include
charged off balances. These are accoun:s which are closed to future transactions and are held on the balance sheat for an extended period (up to 36 months) whilst recovery activities take place.
Excluding these charged off balances and related provisions, provisions amoeunt to 6.9% (2022: 7.6%) of gross balances.
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The table below summarises the movements in the Group’s consumer banking balances held at amortised cost. The movements within the table are an aggregation of monthly movements over the

year.

Recontiliation of movements in gross consumer banking balances and impairment provisions
Non-credit impaired

(Audited)
At 5 Aprii 2022

Stage transfers:

Transfers from stage 1to stage 2

Transfers to stage 3

Transfers from stage 2 to stage 1

Transfers from stage 3

Net remeasurement of ECL arising from ‘ransfer of stage
Net movement aris ng from transfer «f stage

New assets originated or purchased

Net impact of further lending and repayrents
Changes in risk para neters in relation to credit quality
Other items impacting income statemen: charge/{release)
(including recoveries)

Redemptions

Income statement ctarge for the year

Decrease due to writz-offs

Other provision movements

4 April 2023

Net carrying amount

Further information on movements in tctal gross loans and advances to customers and impairment provisions, including the methodology applied in preparing the table, is included in note 14 to tae

financial statements,

Subject to 12-month ECL
Stage 1

Gross balances
£m

2,646

(2,879
(12}
2,347
3

(533)
1,344
(739)

(335)

2,383

Subject to lifetime ECL

»

Stage 2
Provisions Gross balances Provisions
£m £m fm
25 1720 261
(38) 2,87 38
(n (151) (92)
206 (2,347) (206)
2 32 15
(174) ) 209:
(5) 405 (36)
33 - -
(23) (167) (35)
4 - 29
M (219) (8
5 1745 2N
2,358 1,534

Credit risk - Consumer banking (continued)

Credit impaired
Subject to lifetime ECL

Stage 3

Gross balances
£fm
272

163
amw

128

ﬁcw

3)
(97

280

Total

Provisions Gross balances

fm
243

(97).
6
233
47

£m
4,638

1344
(920)

(557)
(97)

4,408

Provisions
fm
529

33

(73)
48

(6)
(10)
EY
(97)
.8
469
3,939
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Credit risk - Consumer banking (continued)

Reason for consumer banking balances being reported in stage 2

2023 Overdrawn current accounts Personal loans Credit cards Total
Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions
wm_“m_“.”w Provisiens as a % of cm_M_“MMM Provisions asa % of wm_MhMM” Provisions asa % of b _m_.omm Provisions  as a % of
halance balance balance alances balance
fm £m % fm £m % fm fm % £m £m %
Quantitative criteria:
Payment status (greater than 30 DPD” {note i) 2 2 98 n 6 52 4 4 84 17 12 65
Increase in PD since origination (less than 30 DPD) 81 18 22 1,049 48 5 576 130 23 1,706 196 12
Qualitative criteria:
Forbearance (less than 30 DPD) {note ii) - - 7 1 - 10 - - 19 1 - 13
Qther gualitative criteria (less than 3C DPD) 8 1 10 2 - 4 T 2 18 21 3 13
Total stage 2 gross balances N 21 23 1,063 54 5 591 136 23 1,745 n 12
Reason for consumer banking balances b2ing reported in stage 2
2027 Overdrawn current accounts Personal loans Credit cards Total
Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions
b _mhom Provisions  asa % of cm_m_“MMM Provisions  asa % of b _mhoﬂ Provisions  asz % of b _m_,om Provisions  asa % af
alances balance balance dlances balance alances balance
fm fm % fm m % fm £m % fm fm %
Quantitative criteria:
Payment status (creater than 30 DPD} {ncte i} 3 2 78 7 5 69 4 4 84 14 N 76
Increase in PD since origination (less taan 30 DPD) 120 33 7 978 55 6 582 159 27 1,680 247 15
Qualitative criteria:
Forbearance (less than 30 DPD) (note i} - - 19 1 - n - - 27 1 - 15
Cther gualitative criteria (less than 30 DPD) 8 1 N 3 - 3 14 2 7 25 3 13
Total stage 2 gross balances 131 36 27 989 60 6 600 165 28 1720 267 15

Notes:
i. This category includes all loans greater than 30 DPD, including those whose criginal reascen for being classified as stage 2 was not arrears over 30 DPD.
ii. Stage 2 forbearance relates to cases where full repayment of principal and interest is still anticipated.

Balances repcrted within stage 2 represent loans which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since crigination. The significant increase is determined through hoth quantitative and
qualitative indicators, Of the £1,745 millisn {2022: £1,720 million) stage 2 balances, only 1% (2022: 1%) are in arrears by 30 days or more, with the majority of balances in stage 2 due to an increase
in PD since origination. This category includes £585 million (2022: £700 million) of loans wnere the modelled PD has been uplifted to recognise the increased risk of default in a high inflation and
interest rate environment. The impact of this uplift in PD has resulted in these loans breaching existing quantitative PD thresholds.
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The table below outfines the main crite fa used to determine whether a significant increase in credit risk since originaticn has occurred,

Criteria
Quantitative

Qualitative

Backstop

Detail

The primary quantitative indicators are the outputs of internal credit risk assessments. For consumer banking exposures, PDs are derived using models, which use external informat on
such as that from credit reference agencies, as well as internal information such as known instances of arrears or other financial difficulty. Current and historical data relating to the
exposure are combined with forward-looking macreeconomic information to determine the likelihood of default. 12-manth and lifetime PDs are calculated for each ican.

The 12-month and li'etime PDs are compered t2 pre-determined benchmarks at each reporting date to ascertain whether a relative or absolute increase in credit risk has occurred. The
indicaters for a sign ficant increase in credit risk are:

o Absolute measures;

- The 12-mont PD exceeds the benchmark 12-month PD that is indicative, at the assessment date, of an account being in arrears.
- The residual ‘ifetime PD exceeds the be1chmark residual lifetime PD, set at inception, which represents the maximum credit risk that would have been accepted at that point,

» Relative measur=:
- Theresidual ifetime PD has increased by at least 75 basis points and has at least doubled.

Qualitative criteria include both forbearance evants and, within the credit card portfolio, recognition of the risk related to borrowers in persistent debt.

1n addition to the pr mary criteria for stage allozation described above, accounts that are more than 30 days past due are also transferred to stage 2.
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Credit quality
Nationwide adopts robust credit managzment policies and processes designed to recognise and manage the risks arising from the portfolio.

The fellowing table shows gross balances and provisions for constimer banking balances held at amortised cost, by PD range. The PD distrioutions shown are based on a 12-month IFRS 9 PDs at the
reporting date.

Consumer banking gross balances and provisions by PD

2023 Gross balances Provisions Provision
(Audited) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total coverage
PD range fm - fm £m £m £ £m fm £m %
0.00 to <0.15% 644 7 - 651 2 - - 2 0.30
0.15to < 0.25% 338 28 - 364 1 1 - 2 0.48
0.25t0 < 0.50% 397 136 - 533 2 2 - 4 0.77
0.50t0 < 0.75% 225 157 - 382 1 3 - 4 1.13
0.75t0<2.50% 482 554 3 1,039 6 21 - 27 2,60
2.50t0 <10.00% 270 552 13 835 10 69 2 a1 9.70
10,00 to < 100% 27 313 9 349 3 15 4 122 34.79
100% (default) - ) - 255 255 - - 227 227 89.38
Total 2,383 1,745 280 4,408 25 n 233 469 10.63
Consumer banking g-oss balances and provisions by PD

2022 Gross balances Provisions Provision
(Audited) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total coverage
PD range £m fm £m fm fm fm £m fm %
0.00 to <0.15% 747 7 - 754 2 - - 2 0.25
0.15to < 0.25% 386 36 - 422 1 1 - 2 0.44
0.25t0 < 0.50% 546 136 - 682 2 3 - 5 075
0.50to < 0.75% 255 164 - 419 2 4 - 6 133
0.75 to < 2.50% 450 507 1 958 6 24 - 30 379
25010 <10.00% 238 537 2 7 9 80 - 89 .50
10.00 to < 100% 24 333 ) 363 3 149 2 154 42,66
100% (default) ‘ - - 263 263 - - 241 241 91.29
Total 2,646 1,720 272 4,638 25 261 243 529 1.40

The credit quality of the consumer banking portfolic has remained strong. 86% {2022; 87%) of the portfolio has a PD of less than 10%.
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Consumer banking balances by payment due status
Credit risk in the consumer banking portfolios is primarily monitored and reported based on arrears status which is set out below.

Consumer banking gross baiances by payment due status

2023 2022
Overdrawn Personal Credit Total Overdrawn Persanal Credit Total
current loans cards current loans cards
accounts accounts
{Audited) £m fm £fm £m % £m fm £m fm %
Not past due 265 2,386 1,423 4,074 92.4 240 2,681 1,377 4298 927
Past due C to 1 month 8 49 14 il 1.6 il 35 14 60 13
Past due 1to 3 montns 4 15 8 27 0.6 4 m 8 23 05
Past due 3 to 6 months 5 n 6 22 0.5 4 16 6 26 0.6
Past due 6 to 12 months 4 1 1 16 0.4 3 8 1 12 02
Past due over 12 months 2 1 - 13 0.3 3 S - 12 02
Charged off {note 1) 22 91 72 185 42 21 104 82 207 45
Total 310 2,574 1,524 4,408 100.0 286 2,864 1,488 4638 100.0

Note:
i, Charged off balances relate to accounts which are closed to future transactions and are held on the balance sheet for an extended period {up tc 36 months, depending on the product) whilst recovery procedures take
place.

Of total balances exc uding charged off balances, £149 million (2022: £133 million) are subject to arrears, representing 3.5% (2022: 3.0%) of these balances. Arrears levels are expected to increase
further due to the affordability pressures which borrowers may face, due to high inflation and increasing interest rates.

Forbearance

Nationwide is comem tted to supporting zustomers facing financial difficulty by working with them to find a solution through proactive arrears management and forbearance.
The Group applies the European Banking Autherity definition of forbearance.

The following concession events are included within the forbearance reporting for consumer banking:

Payment concession

This concession consists of reduced monthly payments over an agreed period and may be offered to customers with an overdraft or credit card. For credit cards subject to such a concession, arrears
do not increase provided the payments are made.
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interest suppressed payment arrangement

This temperary interest payment concession results in reduced monthly payments and may be offered to customers with an overdraft, credit card or personal loan. Interest payments and fees are
suppressed during the pericd of the concession and arrears do not increase. Cases subject to this concession are classified as impaired.

Balances re-aged/re-written
As customers repay their debt in line w th the terms of their new arrangement, their accounts are re-aged, bringing them into an up-to-date and performing position, For personal loans we will
re-write the loan to extend the term and thus maintain a reduced monthiy payment. For credit cards we re-age the account and set the payment status to 'up-to-date’, at which point the customer

is treated in the same way as any other performing account.

The tabie below provides details of consumer banking balances subject to forbearance. Accounts that are currently subject to a concession are all assessed as either stage 2, or stage 3 (credit
impaired) where full repayment of principal and interest is no longer anticipated.

During the year, total balances subject to forbearance have increased to £79 million (2022: £60 million). This increase is largely the resuft of £25 million (2022: £nil) of overdrawn current accounts
being granted a six-manth 0% interest rate concession to support borrowers with increased costs of living. This has been included in the interest suppressed payment concession line in the table
below.

Gross balances subject to forbearance (note i)

2023 2022
Overdrawn Personal Credit Total Overdrawn Personal Credit Total
current loans cards current loans cards

accounts accounts
£m fm £m £m £m fm fm £m
Payrment concession 4 - 1 5 4 - 1 5
Interest suppressed payment concessior 28 33 9 70 4 36 n 51
Balance re-aged/re-written - 2 2 4 - 2 2 4
Total forbearance (note ii 32 35 12 79 8 38 14 60
Of which stage 2 3 3 3 9 3 6 4 13
Of which stage 3 29 3 9 69 3 30 10 45
‘ % % % % % % % %
Total forbearance as a % of total gross balances 10.3 1.4 0.8 1.8 28 13 0.8 13
£m £m £m £m fm £m £m fm
Impairment provisions on forborne loans 12 28 8 48 6 28 9 43

Notes:

I. Where more than o01e concession event 1as occurred, balances are reported under the latest event.

Il. For loans subject to concession events, accounts are transferred back to stage 1 or 2 only after being up to date and meeting contractual cbligations for a period of 12 months,
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Summary

Credit risk - Commercial

The commercial portfolic comprises loans which have been provided to meet the funding requirements of registered social landlords, project finance initiatives and commercial real estate investors.
The project finance and commercial rez estate portfolios are closed to new business and are in run-off. Total balances have therefore continued to reduce. Overall credit quality has remained stable.

Commercial gross balances

2023 2022
(Audited) £m fm
Registered social fandlords {note i} 4,131 4329
Project finance (note ii) 537 611
Commercial real estate (CRE) 326 513
Commercial balances at amortised cost 4,594 5,453
Fair value adjustment for micro hedged risk {note {ii) 430 549
Commercial balances - FVTPL (note iv) 53 52
Total 5,477 6,054

Notes:
i. Loans to registered social landlords are secured on residential property.

ii. Loans advanced in relation to project finance are secured on cash flows from government or local authority backed contracts under the Private Finance Initiative.

iit. Micro hedged risk relates to loans hedgzd cn an individual basis.

iv. FVTPL includes CRE balances of £51 million (2022: £50 million) and registered sccial landlord balances of £2 million (2022: £2 million).

fmpairment charge and write-offs for the year

2023
(Audited) ~ fm
Total impairment charge 1
Gross write-offs 15

Commercial provision charges and writz-offs remafn low and primarily reflect updates to a small number of individually assessed exposures.

2022
im

12
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The following table shows commercial talances carried at amortised cost on the balance sheet, with the stage zllocation of the exposures, impairment provisions and resulting provision coverage

ratios.

Commercial product and staging analysis

(Audited)

Gross balances
Registered social landlords
Project finance
CRE

Total

Provisions
Registered social landlords
Project finance
CRE

Total

Provisions as a % of total balance
Registered sccial landlords
Project finance
CRE

Total

2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
fm fm fm fm
4,061 70 - 4131
459 78 - 537
274 19 33 326
T 167 33 4,994
1 - - 1
- 8 - 8
1 - 6 7
2 8 6 16
% % % % |
0.01 0.26 - 0.02|
0.02 10.65 - 1.57|
0.19 1.31 18.94 2131
0.02 5.26 18.94 0.32;

Stage 1
£m

4,292
552
393

5237

%
0.01
0.02
0.5
0.02

2022
Stage 2
fm

37
54
65

156

13
1
14

%
0.16
23.40
122
8.62

Stage 3
fm

55
50

2
13
15

%

46.69
23.41

2535

Total
fm

4329
BN
513
5453

1
15
14
30

%
0.01
246
2.80
0.55

QOver the year, the performance of the commercial pertfolic has remained stable, with 96% (2022: 96%) of balances in stage 1. Of the £167 million (2022: £156 million) stage 2 loans, which

represent 3.3% (2022: 2.9%) of total belances, £nil (2022: £7 million) were in arrears by 30 days or more.

Loans in the project ‘inance portfolio benefit from long-term cash flows, which typically emanate from the provision of assets such as schools, hospitals, police stations, government buildings and
roads, procured undar the Private Finarce Initiative (PFI). The stage 2 balance reflects a small number of borrowers affected by issues relating to underlying assets.

Repayment of loans has resulted in the -eduction in stage 2 CRE loan balances. Write-offs and a reduction in asset values for remaining impaired loans has resulted in an overall decrease to CRE
stage 3 provisions to £6 million (2022: £13 million).

174



Annuzl Report & Accounts 2023

m Strategic report Governance Risk report Financial statements Other information v Credit risk - Commercial {continued)

Credit quality

Nationwide applies robust credit management policies and processes te identify and manage the risks arising from the portfolio.

The CRE portfolio continues to be sprezd across the retail, office, residential investment, industrial and leisure sectors. Where a CRE loan is secured on assets crossing different sectors, the sector
allocation is based upon the value of the underlying assets in each secter. For the CRE portfolio the largest exposure is to the residential sector, which represents 39% (2022: 40%) of total CRE

balances, with a weighted average LTV of 35% (2022: 34%). Exposure to office assets has reduced to 21% (2022: 23%) of total CRE balances, with a weighted average LTV of 64% (2022: 58%).

The LTV distribution of CRE balances has remained stable with 91% (2022: 91%) of the portfolio having an LTV of 75% or less, and 47% (2022: 61%) of the portfolio having an LTV of 50% or less.

CRE balances with arrears have reduced to £18 million (2022: £44 million). Of these, £10 million {2022: £24 mi

n) have arrears greater than 3 months and relate to loans that are in recovery or
are being actively managed.

The following table shows the CRE portiolio by risk grade and the provision coverage for each category. The table includes balances held at amertised cost only.

CRE gross halances by risk grade and provision coverage

2023 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Provision Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Provision

coverage coverage

(Audited) . £m fm £m £m % fm fm £m fm %
Strong 171 - - mn 0.0 258 5 - 263 0.0
Good 97 1 - 98 0.3 107 18 - 125 0.2
Satisfactory 6 2 - 8 2.8 26 16 - 42 0.8
Weak - 16 ] 17 1.5 2 26 1 29 26
Impaired o - - 2 2 191 - - 54 54 237
Total 274 19 33 326 21 393 65 55 513 28

The risk grades in the table above are tased upon the IRB superviscry slotting approach fer specialised lending exposures. Expesures are classified into categories depending on the underlying
credit risk, with the assessment based 1.pon financial strength, property characteristics, strength of sponscr and any other forms of security. The credit quality of the CRE portfolio has remained
stable with 85% (2022: 84%) of the portfolio balances rated as strong, gocd or satisfactory.

Risk grades for the project finance port'olic use the same slotting approach as for CRE lending, with 85% {2022: 90%) of the exposure rated strong or good.

The registered social landlerd portfolio s risk rated using an internal PD rating model, with the major drivers being financial strength, evaluations of the borrower's oversight and management, and
their type and size. The distribution of exposures is weighted towards the stronger risk ratings and agzinst a backdrop of zero defauits in the portfolio, the credit quality remains high, with an
average 12-month PD of 0.04% (2022: 1.03%) across the pertfolio.
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Forbearance

Nationwide is comrritted to supporting borrowers facing financial difficulty by working with them to find a solution through proactive arrears management and forbearance.

Forbearance is recorded and reported zt borrower level and applies to alt commercial lending, inciuding impaired exposures and borrowers subject to enforcement and recovery action. The Group
applies the European Banking Authority definition of forbearance.

The table below provides details of commercial loans that are currently subject to forbearance by concession event.

Gross balances subject to forbearance (note i)

2023 2022
fm £m

Modifications:
Payment concession 79 125
Extension at mat.rity 16 37
Breach of covenant 21 14
Security amendment - 2
Refinance ‘ o - 7
Total 16 85
Total impairment grovision on forborne loans 14 27

Note:

i. Loans where more than one concession event has occurred are reported under the latest event,

Total forborne balanzes (excluding FVTPLY have reduced to £116 million {2022: £185 million), comprising CRE of £50 millien (2022; £116 million) and project finance of £66 million
(2022: £69 million), following a reduction in CRE balances through redemption or write off,

In addition, there are £36 million {2022 £36 million) of FYTPL ccmmercial lending balances which are forberne that relate to a single exposure.
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Summary

The treasury wo&ozo is held nzamzz “or higuigity Bm:wmmama and, in the €A% of derivatives, for market risk management. As at 4 April 3023 treasury assels avammama 932% (2022 23.3%) of
total assets- There are No eXPOSUres to emerging markets, hedae funds or credit default SWaps- The classification of treasury asset balances is set out helaw.

.—.qmma_.émmm»;amsnmm el S e .
2023 2022
cp:&ﬁm& Q_mmm.a._nmn..o: £m £m
Cash Arnortised cost 75,635 30220
Loans and advances to panks and simila” institutions Arnortised cost 2,860 3,052
yrwvestrment securities {rote ) Feoct 271562 75,349
Ivestment securities (note 1) FTPL 13 17
jnvestment secusities ) pnortised cost A 13
Liguidity and investment portfolid 56,110 58.757
Derivative astruments (note i) L - VTPL 6923 . -~ 4783
Treasury assets §3,033 53,480
Motes:

i. |rvestment gecurities at Pvog include £44 millian (2022 £46 rittio ¥ and investment gecurities at PyTPL include £13 rratliar (02 £17 reniion) which relate to {rvestments not included within the Group's ligquidity
portfolio. These ipvestrments primarily & ateto irivestments made in Fintech cornpanies which are being held for strategic pPUrposes.

i, Derivatives are classified 85 agsets where thelr fair value I5 pasitive and liabilities where their faic value is negative. As at 4 hpnd 2023, derivative {iabilities were 1 524 million (022 £1428 mi jon).

Cash held in the treasury portfolio fras cecreased 10 £25.6 billion 2022 £30.2 pillion) ang reflects the early Sn&_jmi of £4.5 piltion of the Bank of Englands Term Funding Scheme with adgitional
ipcentives for SMES (TFSM B} {rvestrnert activity rernains focuset On ragh quality tiguid assets, including assels eligibie for central bank pperations. Fived rate irwestment cacurities are fully
cwapped 10 floating rate receipts for the duration of the nolding. The increase 10 investment cecurities i the yeat of £2 2 willion is targebly attributable 10 increased holdings of @o%BBmE and
mcua:maoza ponds. The £AQ miliion O ipvestrent gecurities classified a8 amortised costare residential mortgage packed gecurities (RMBS), which are expected 10 nave paid down futly by

Decembel 2024, Derivatives 8¢ ysed to mﬁo:os.ﬁmf hedge fingncial visks inperent in COre lending and funding activities, and are not used for frading of mﬂmngmﬂam PUTpPOSES.
Managing treasury credit risks

Credit risk viithin the {reasury ﬂo&o_,a arises from fhe instrume s held and transacted hy the Treasury function for ovmﬂmﬂozwr liguidity and investment PUrposes. in additian, counterparty credit
risk arises frorm the usé of gerivatives {c reduce exposure L0 arkel fsks, these are only sransacted with s._@j__fmﬁa oam:‘amgoam and are S:m*.mazmmn under market tandard aoncam%mﬂ._os. Tre
Treasury Credit Risk function manages all aspects of credit risk in accordance with Nationwides risk governance framewarks, under the supervision of the Credit Comumnittee.

A monthly review s yndertaken of the curtent and mxnmgmg omnoﬂam:nm of treasury acsets that determines mxnmﬂma credit 10ss (ECL) Eosmw% ﬂmg:.:mam:m.?mﬂm were N0 M.ch.:am% \osses ot
the year ended 4 ppril 2023 (2022 £ni ). For financial assets held at amortised costorat Fyog), all EXDOSUTES within the table below are classified a5 stace 1. reflecting the strong and stable credit
quality of treasury assels.

_acm._«am__n Easm._o:m on treasury assels ,,
2023 2072

{aross palances provisions Gross halances Provisions
Q._.E.xm& ) fm fm £m £m
Loans and advances {0 panks and similat institutions 2,860 - 3,052 -

Lt eppunities - evoll 27,562 . - 75,349 -
I T 40 - 18 -

112



Annual Report & Accounts 2023
qm:mﬂmm_o report

Liquidity and investment portfolio

Governarcce Risk report Financial statements

Cther information U

Credit risk - Treasury assets {continued)

The liquidity and investment portfolio o™ £56,110 million (2022: £58,757 million) comprises liquid assets and other securities as set out below.

Liquidity and investment portfolio by credit rating (note i)

2023 AAA AA A Other UK us Europe Japan Other
(Audited) fm % % Y% % % % % %, o
Liquid assets:

Cash and reserves at central banks 25,635 - 99 1 - 99 - 1 - R
Government bonds (1ote ii) 20,130 £y 54 15 - 37 24 14 12 13
Supranational bonds 2,838 46 54 - - - - - . 100
Covered bonds 2,843 100 - - - 46 - 16 - 38
Residential mortgage backed securities {(RMBS) 618 100 - - . 69 - N - -
Other asset backed securities 197 100 - - - 94 - 6 . -
Liquid assets total o B 52,261 22 72 6 - 67 9 7 5 12
Other securities (note iii):

RMBS FVOCI 885 100 - - - 100 - - - R
RMBS amortised cost 40 100 - - - 100 - - - -
Other investments (note iv) 64 - 11 - 89 89 " 1 - -
Other securities total 989 93 1 - 6 99 - 1 - .
Loans and advances t¢ banks and similai institutions 2,860 - 85 14 1 82 13 5 - -
Total 56,110 22 T 7 - 68 9 7 4 12
%M - £m, % % % % % % % % %
Liquid assets: “

Cash and reserves at central banks 30,221 - 99 1 - 100 - - - .
Government bonds (note ii) 19,578 30 55 i5 - 33 23 22 13 9
Supranational bonds 1,318 58 47 - - - - R R 100
Covered bonds 2,630 99 1 - - 48 - 19 - 33
Residential mortgage backed securities (RMBS) 584 100 - - - 71 - 29 - .
Other asset backed securities 289, 1O - - - 89 - m - .
Liguid assets total 54,621 18 75 6 - 71 8 9 5 7
Other securities {note .

RMBS FvOCl 889" 100 - - - 100 - - - ;
RMBS amertised cost ng . 100 - - - 100 - - - -
Other investments (rote iv) 77 - 18 - 82 82 - 18 - -
Other securities totai 1,084 93 1 - & 99 - 1 - -
Loans and advances to banks and similar institutions 3,052, - 77 21 2 83 il 5 - 1
Total 58,757, 19 75 6 - 72 8 9 4 7

i. Ratings used are oktained from Standard & Pocr's (S&P), Mocdy's or Fitch. Fer loans and advances to banks and similar institutions, internal ratings are used.
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Balances classified as government bends inciude government guaranteed, agency and government sponscred bonds.
Includes RMBS (UK buy to let and UK nor-confarming) not eligible for the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR),
iv. Includes investment securities held at FyTPL of £13 million (2022: £17 million).
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The following table summarises the exposure (shown at the balance sheet carrying value) to institutions outside the UK.

Country exposures {note i)
2023

Credit risk ~ Treasury assets (continued)

Loans and advances

Government Mortgage backed Covered Supranational to banks and Other

Bonds (note ii) securities bonds bonds similar institutions assets Total
(Audited) £m £m fm fm £fm fm £m
Austria 418 - - - - - 418
Belgium 360 - - - . - 360
Denmark 105 - 9 - - - 114
Finland 355 - 23 - - - 378
France 939 - 139 - 60 7 1,145
Germany 274 - 57 - 72 12 415
Ireland - - - - - - _
Netherlands 306 191 . - - - 497
Norway - - 128 - - - 128
Sweden 1 - 107 - - . 118
Total Eurape 2,768 191 463 - 132 19 3,573
Australia 43 - 153 . - - 196
Canada 2,506 - 852 - 6 - 3,364
Japan 2,383 - - - - - 2,383
Singapore - - 76 - - - 76
USA 4,959 - - - 384 - 5,343
Supranational entities {note iii) - - - 2,838 - - 2,838
Total 12,659 191 1,544 2,838 522 19 17,773
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Country exposures {continued)

Country exposures (note 1)

2022 Loans and advances
Government Mortgage backed Covered  Supranational bonds to banks and Other

Bonds (note ii) securities bonds similar institutions assets Total
(Audited) fm £m fm fm fm fm fm
Austria 373 - - - - - 373
Belgium 57 - - - - - 571
Denmark LI - 10 - - - 125
Finland 535 - 23 - - - 558
France 1,533 - 143 - 23 14 1713
Germany 656 - 57 - 129 33 875
Ireland 130 - - - - - 130
Netherlands 440 170 - - - . 610
Norway - - 150 - - - 150
Sweden - - 108 - - - 108
Total Europe 4,353 170 497 - 152 47 5213
Australia - - 133 - 18 - 151
Canada 1830 - 6% - 18 I 2,504
Japan o 2500 - - - - o - 2,500
Singapore - - 70 - - - 70
USA 4,389 - - - 326 - 4,715
Supranational entities {rote iii - - - 1318 - - 1,318
Total 13,073 . 170 . 1,350 1318 514 47 16,472

Notes:

Nationwide has no exposure to credit risk arising from Russian or Ukrainian assets as it does not invest iri liquid assets or other securities issued by Russian or Ukrainian entities.
Balances classified as government bonds include government guaranteed, agency and government spensored bonds.

Exposures to Supranational entities are made up of bonds issued by highly rated multilateral development banks (MDBs) and international crganisations {10s).
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Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are used to manage exposure to market risks, and not for trading or speculative purposes, although the application of accounting rules can create volatility in the income statement in a
given financial year. The fair value of derivative assets as at 4 April 2023 was £6.9 billion (2022: £4.7 billion) and the fair value of derivative liabilities was £1.5 billion (2022: £1.4 billion).

Nationwide, as a direct member of a central counterparty (CCP), has central clearing capability which it uses to clear standardised derivatives. Where derivatives are not cleared at a CCP they are
transacted under the Internationzl Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreement. A Credit Support Annex (CSA) is always executed in conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement.
Under the terms of a CSA collateral is passed between parties to mitigate the market-contingent counterparty risk inherent in the outstanding positions. CSAs are two-way agreements where both
parties post collateral dependent on the exposure of the derivative. Collateral is paid or received on a reqular basis (typically daily) to mitigate the mark-to-market exposures. Market standard CSA
coliateral allows GBP, EUR and USD cash, and in some cases extends to high grade sovereign debt securities; both cash and securities can be held as collateral by the Society.

Nationwide's CSA documentation for derivatives grants legal rights of set-off for transactions with the same counterparty. Accerdingly, the credit risk associated with such positions is reduced to the
extent that negative mark-to-market valJes offset positive mark-to-market values in the calculation of credit risk within each netting agreement.

Under the terms of CSA netting agreemznts, outstanding transactions with the same counterparty can be offset and settted on a net basis following a default, or another predetermined event. Under
these arrangements, netting benefits of £1.3 billien (2022: £1.3 billion) were available and £5.6 billion (2022: £3.5 billion) of collateral was held.

This table shows the exposure to counterparty credit risk for derivative contracts after netting benefits and collateral.

Derivative credit exposure

2023 2022
Counterparty credit quality AA A BBE Total AA A BBB Total
(Audited) Em £m fm fm £fm fm fm fm
Derivative assets as per balance sheet 636 6,287 - 6,923 541 4777 5 4723
Netting benefits (182) (1,104) - (1,286) (212) (1,050) M (1.263)
Net current credit exposure 454 5,183 - 5,637 329 3127 4 3,460
Collateral (cash) (451) {5,183) - (5,634} (329) (3,127) 4 (3,460)
Net derivative credit exposure 3 - - 3 - - - -

Outlook

The treasury portfolio will continue to be held primarily for liquidity management and to hedge market risks taken in the normal course of business.
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Liguidity and funding risk
Summary

Liquidity risk is the risk that Nationwide is unable to meet its liabilities as they fall due and maintain member and external stakehclder confidence. Funding risk is the risk that Nationwide is unable
to maintain diverse funding sources in wholesale and retail markets and manage excessive concentrations of funding types.

Liquidity and funding risks are managec within a comprehensive risk framework which includes policies, strategy, limit setting and monitoring, stress testing and robust governance controls. This
framework ensures that Nationwide ma ntains stabte and diverse funding sources and a sufficient holding of high-quality liquid assets such that there is no significant risk that liabilities cannct be
met as they fall due.

Nationwide’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), which ensures that sufficient high-quality liquid assets are held to survive a short-term severe but plausible liquidity stress, averaged 180%

over the 12 months ended 4 April 2023 .2022:183%). Nationwide continues to manage its liquidity against internal risk appetite which is more prudent than regulatory requirements, and under the
mast severe internal 30 calendar day stress test, the average ratic of the liquid asset buffer to stressed net outflows over the 12 menths ended 4 April 2023 equated to 155% (2022: 159%).

The position against the longer-term furding metric, the Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR}, is also monitored. Nationwide's average NSFR for the four quarters ended 4 April 2023 was 147%
(2022:146%), well in excess of the 100% minimum reguirement.

Funding risk
Funding strategy

Nationwide's funding strateqy is to remain predominantly retail funded, as set out below.

Funding profile

Assets 2023 2022 Members' interests, equity and liabilities 2023 2022
(note i) £bn fbn £bn fhr
Retail mortgages 2014 187.9 Retail funding 1871 178.0
Treasury assets {incl.ding liquidity portfclic) 56.1 58.8 Wholesale funding 579 67.3
Commercial lending 55 6.0 Other liabilities 31 30
Consumer lending ‘ 3.9 4.1 Capital and reserves (note ii) 233 241
Other assets B 5.0 56

Total .9 272.4 Total N9 272.4
Notes:

i, Figures in the above table are stated net of impairment provisions where applicable.
ii. Includes all subordinated liabilities and sLbscribed capital.

At 4 April 2023, Nationwide’s loan to deoosit ratio, which represents loans and advances to customers divided by the total of shares and other deposits, was 109.6% (2022: 113.6%). Included wittin
shares and other deposits, which are reported in the retail and wholesale funding categories above, is £29 billion of deposits (4 April 2022: £26 billian) that exceed the £85,000 per customer Financial
Services Compensation Scheme {FSCS) | mit.
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The whelesale funding portfolio comprices a range of secured and unsecured instruments to ensure that a stable and diversified funding base is maintained across a range of instruments,
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Liquidity and funding risk (continued)

currencies, maturities, and investor types. Part of Naticnwide's wholesale funding strategy is to remain active in core markets and currencies. A funding risk limit framework also ensures that a

prudent funding mix and maturity concentration profile is maintained and limits the level of encumbrance to ensure enough centingent funding capacity is retained in the event of a stress.
Whoiesale funding has decreased by £9 4 billion to £57.9 billion during the year. The decrease is primarily due to a reduction in balances relating to repurchase (repo) agreements and a £4.5 billion
reduction in holdings from the Bank of England’s Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for SMEs {(TFSME), which is partially offset by a £2.1 billion net increase in secured and unsecured
funding issuances during the period. Th= wholesale funding ratio (on-balance sheet wholesale funding as a proportion of total funding liabilities) at 4 April 2023 was 25.0% (2022: 28.8%).

The table below sets out Nationwide's whalesale funding by currency.

Wholesale funding by currency

Repos

Deposits

Certificates of deposit

Covered bonds

Medium term notes

Securitisations

Term Funding Scheme with additional in-entives for SMEs (TFSME)
Other (note i}

Total

Note:

i

Other consists of fair value adjustments to debt securities in issue for micro hedged risks.

GBP
£bn
14
1.0
1.0
6.0
11
23
17.2

40.0

EUR
fbn
0.1

7.2
48

.1
1.0

2023
usb Other Total
£bhn fbn £bn
0.6 - 2.1
- - 1.0
- - 1.0
- 1.2 14.4
3.9 13 1.1
0.2 - 2.5
- - 17.2
(0.2) (0.1) 1.4)
45 24 57.9

% of
total

19

25
19

29
)
100

GBP
£bn
472
8.8

54
18
26
217

445

EUR
£bn
29
01

6.4
3.8

(0.2)
13.0

2022
usD
£bn

4.0

0.7
38
04

a;w
8.8

Other
fbn

0.4
06

Total
£bn
T
8.9

129
10.0
3.0
207
(0.3)
673

% of
total
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The table below sets out Nationwide's residual maturity of whelesale funding, en a contractuai maturity basis.

Cther information U

Wholesale funding .. residual maturity

2023 Not more than Over one Over three QJver six
one month month but not months but not months but not
more than more than more than
three months six months one year
£bn £bn £bn £bn
Repos 2.1 - - -
Deposits 7.6 1.6 1.4 0.3
Certificates of deposit 1.0 - - -
Covered bonds 0.8 0.1 . 1.6
Medium term notes 0.7 - - 14
Securitisations 0.7 - 0.2 02
TFSME - - - -
Other (note i} ) - - ‘ “ o
Total ‘ 12.9 17 16 35
Of which secured 3.6 0.1 0.2 1.8
Of which unsecured 93 16 14 1T
% of total 223 29 2.8 6.0
Wholesale funding - residual maturity
2022 Not more than Over one Over three Over six
ohe month  month but not  menths but net  months but not
mare than more than more than
three months six months ane year
£hn fhn fbn fbn
Repos 11 - - -
Deposits 5.8 11 20 -
Certificates of deposit - - - -
Covered bonds - - 1.0 17
Medium term notes 0.2 0.6 - 13
Securitisations 04 - 02 05
TFSME - - - -
Other {note i) ‘ - - B - B -
Total - 17.5 7 32 35
Of which secured ns - 12 2.2
Of which unsecured 6.0 7 2.0 13
% of total 260 25 48 52
Note:

i.  Other consists of fair value adjustments to debt securities in issue for micro hedged risks.

Liquidity and funding risk (continued)

Subtotal less
than one year

£bn
21
10.9
1.0
25
21
11

-

14.0
34.0

Subtotal less
than one year

£hn
mni
8.9
27
2]
11

259
14.9
n.0
38.5

187
5.7

Over one
year but not
more than
two years
£bn

0.1
11
0.8
03

Over one
year but not
more than
two years
£bn

Over two years

£bn

10.8
8.2
1.1
53
(1.3)
24.1
16.4

17

41.6

Over two years

£bn

79
6.0
0.6

N7

(0.3)
359
30.1

58
533

Total

£bn
2.1
1.0
1.0
14.4
.1
25
172
(1.4)
57.9
35.4
225
100

Total

fbn
11
8.9

12.9
10.0
30
217
(0.3)

486
187
100.0

At 4 April 2023, cash, government bends and supranational bonds included in the fiquid asset buffer represented 229% (2022; 153%) of wholesale funding maturing in less than one year, assuming

no rolflovers.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity strategy
The Society's risk appetite, as set by the Board, defines the size and mix of the liquid asset buffer, and is translated into a set of liquidity risk limits. Sufficient liquid assets, both in terms of amount

and guality, are held to meet dally cash flow needs as well as simulated stressed requirements driven by the Society's risk appetite and regulatory assessments. This includes prudent management
of the currency mix of liguid assets to e1sure there is no undue refiance on currencies not consistent with the profile of stressed outflows,

Liguid assets are heid and managed centrally by the Treasury function. A high-quality liquidity portfolio is maintained, predominantly comprising reserves held at central banks and highly-rated debt
securities issued by a restricted range cf governments, central banks and suptanationals.

Nationwide also holds a portfolio of high-guality, central bank-eligible covered bonds, residentia! mortgage backed securities (RMBS) and asset-backed securities. Other securities are held that are
not eligible for central bank operations aut can be monetised through repo agreements with third parties or through sale,

Nationwide undertakes securities financing transactions in the form of repo agreements. This demonstrates the liquid nature of the assets held in its liquid asset buffer as well as satisfying
regulatory requirements. Cash is berrowed in return for pledging assets as collateral and because settlement is on a simultaneous "delivery versus payment’ basis, the main credit risk arises from
intra-day changes in the value of the co lateral. This is largely mitigated by Nationwide’s collateral management processes.

Repo market capacity is regularly assessed and tested to ensure there is sufficient capacity te monetise the liquid asset buffer rapidly i a stress.

For contingency purposes, Nationwide pre-positions unencumbered mortgage assets at the Bank of England which can be used in the Bank of England’s liquidity operations if market liquidity is
severely disrupted.

Nationwide has met its most recent investment target of holding £1.5 killion of Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) assets and will maintain a minimum helding of £1.5 billion for 2023/24.
The investment criteria for ESG assets ramains restricted to bonds issued by multilateral development banks and green issuances from selected governments.
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Liquid assets

The table beiow sets cut the sterling ecuivalent fair value of the liquidity pertfolio, by issuing currency. It includes off-balance sheet liquidity, such as securities received through reverse repo
agreements, and excludes securities encumbered through repo agreements and for ather purposes.

Liquid assets .
2023 2022
GBP  EUR  USD IPY ?mﬁmww Total GBP FUR USD IPY swﬁﬂ Total
£bn fbn £bn f£bn  £bn £bn fbon £bn £hn £bn fhn £bn
Cash and reserves at central banks 255 - 0.1 - - 25.6 30.0 02 - - . 30.2
Government bonds (note ii) 5.9 32 5.3 13 1.1 16.8 22 20 0.9 2.0 0.9 8.0
Supranational bonds 0.1 2.2 0.5 - - 2.8 01 08 0.4 - - 13
Covered bonds 1.1 1.6 0.1 - - 2.8 09 1.6 01 - - 26
Residential mortgagz backed securities (RMBS) (note iii) 1.3 0.2 - - - 1.5 0.1 01 - - - 02
Asset-backed securities and other securities . 0.2 - - - - 0.2 02 . - - . 02
Total 34.1 7.2 6.0 1.3 1.1 497 335 47 14 2.0 09 425
Notes:

. Other currencies primarily consist of Canadian dollars.
i. Balances classified as government bonds include government guaranteed, agency and government sponsored bonds.
. Balances include al' RMBS held by the Szciety which can be monetised through sale or repo.

i
_

The table above primarily comprises LCR eligible high-quality liquid assets which averaged £53.3 billion for the 12 months ended 4 April 2023 (2022: £52.8 billion). Further details can be found in
the Group’s annual Pillar 3 disclosure 2023 at nationwide.co.uk
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Liquidity and funding risk {continued)

The table below segments the carrying Jalue cf financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the final contractual maturity date (residual maturity):

Residual maturity (note i}

2023 Due less than Due between Due between Due between Due between Due between Due between
one month one and three and six and nine and one and two and
(note ii) three months  six months nine months twelve months two years five years
£m fm £m £m £m fm £m
Financial assets ’
Cash 25,635 - - - - - -
Loans and advances to banks and similar institutions 1,887 - - - - - -
Investment securities 81 151 Lyl 68 402 mn 8,880
Derivative financial instruments 7 1 59 44 243 450 3,904
Fair value adjustmert for portfolio hedged risk (16) (31) (297) (26) (314) (1,118) (2,829)
Loans and advances to customers 2,784 1,31 2127 2,053 2,076 7,957 23,489
Total financial assets 30,448 1492 1930 2139 2,407 8,061
Financial liabilities
Shares 149,642 2,153 6,955 8,292 6,473 10,116 2,581
Deposits from banks and similar institutians 7,882 13 1 - - 11,890 5,270
Of which repo 2,075 - - - - . .
Of which TFSME - & - - - 11,890 5,270
Other deposits 1,806 1,559 1,374 224 103 116 9
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk - 1 1 - - - -
Secured funding - ABS and covered honds 1,501 41 264 233 1,592 1,328 5,930
Senior unsecurad funding 1,685 12 53 200 1,126 805 5,757
Derivative financial instruments 56 - 2 1 24 134 405
Subordinated liabilities 8 2 K] 14 - 795 3,225
Subscribed capital {rote iii) 1 , - 1 - - - -
Total financial liabilities 162,581 ' 3,781 8,682 8,964 9,318 25,184 23,1777
Off-batance sheet commitments (note iv} 10,333 - - - - - -
Net liquidity difference . (142,466) __(2,289)  (6,752) (6,825) (6,911) - {17,123) 10,267
Cumulative liquidity difference (142,466)  (144,755) . (151,507} (158,332) (165,243) (182,366) (172,099)

i —

Due after

more than
five years
fm

973
17,220
2,145
(380)
168,925

33,444 188,883

Total

fm

25,635
2,860
27,615
6,923
(5,01)
210,782
268,804

187,143
25,056
2,075
17,166
5,191

2
16,031
11,595
1,524
6,755
173
253,470
10,333
5,001
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Residual maturity {(note i)
2022

Financial assets

Cash

Loans and advances tc banks and simila- institutions
Investment securities

Derivative financial i 1struments

Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk
Loans and advances tc customers

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Shares

Deposits fram banks and similar institutions
Of which repo

Of which TFSME

Other deposits

Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk
Secured funding - A3S and covered bends
Senior unsecured fuding

Derivative financial instruments
Subordinated liabilit es

Subscribed capital (note iii)

Total financial liabilities o
Off-balance sheet commitments (note iv.
Net liquidity difference

Cumulative liquidity difference

Notes:

Risk report

Financial statements

Other information v

Due less than
cne month

{(note ii
£m

30,22
2,031
61

90

4
2,808
35215

157,455
14,712
11,064

2Mm
1
387
239
52
792
1

175,750

15,258
(155,793)
(155,793)

Due between
one and
three months
fm

17
19

1532
1,676

4,082

(2,406)
(158,199)

Due between

three and
six months
im

68

(134)
2183
2122

7,238

1923

1,247
21

23

31

1

10,486
(8,364)
(166,563)

Due between

six and
nine months
fm

50

18
(108)
2188
2,248

1,725
N

29

1,079
40

1

3

2,888

(640)
(167,203)

Due between
nine and
twelve months
fm

279
43
(93)
2,140
2,369

1,880

28

1
1,061
1262
15

4247
(1,878)
(169.081)

Liguidity and funding risk {continued)

Due between
one and

fwo years
£m

784
255
(824)
8,489
8,704

3,607
1,885
35
765

Nn,584

ﬁ.mm&
(171,961)

Due between Due after Total
two and more than
five years five years
fm fm £m
- - 30221
- 1,021 3,052
7.419 16,806 25,484
2,609 1,484 4723
(1,140) {156) (2,443}
24,163 164,563 208,065
33,051 183,718 269,103
A
1,015 987 177,967
21,700 -
21,700 -]
4 1 5208
A T
3,225 5,201} 15,833
4257 15371 9,795
367 930; 1423
2,637 4,022 8,257
- 185! 187
33206 12,862, 255,105
- -1
(155} 170,856 |
(172.18) (1,260} ! -

. The analysis excludes certain financial assets and liabilities refating to accruals, trade receivables, trade payables and settlemant balances which are generally short-term in nature and lease liabilities. Further

information cn lease liabi

ies is shown in note 28 to the financial stztements.
Due less than ene ronth includes amounts repayable on demand.
. The principal amount for undated subsc ‘ibed capital is included within the due after more than five years column.

iv. Off-balance sheet commitments include amounts payable on demand for undrawn loan commitrnents, customer overpayments on residential mortgages where the borrower can draw down the amount overpaid, and

commitments to acquire financial assets.

In practice, custome~ behaviours mean that liab

ies are often retained for longer than their contractual maturities and assets are repaid earlier. This gives rise to funding mismatches on the

balance sheet, The balance sheet structure and risks are managed and moenitored by Nationwide's Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCQ). Judgement and past behavioural performance of each

asset and liability class are used to forecast likely cash flcw requirements.
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Liquidity and funding risk (con*inuzd)

The tables below provide an analysis of gross contractual cash flows, The totals differ from the analysis of residual maturity as they include estimated future interest payments, calcuiated using
balances outstanding at the balance shaet date, contractual maturities, and appropriate forward-looking interest rates.

Amounts are allocated 1o the relevant rraturity band based on the timing of individual contractual cash flows.

Gross contractual cash flows
2023

(Audited)

Shares

Deposits from banks and similar institutions
Other ceposits

Secured funding - A3S and covered bonds
Senior unsecured funding

Subordinated liabilit es

Subscribed capital {note ii)

Total non-derivative financial liabilities

Derivative financial lighilities:
Gross settled derivative outflows
Gross settled derivative inflows
Gross settled derivatives - net flows
Net settled derivetive liabilities
Total derivative financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Off-balance sheet commitments (note iii}

Total financial lial es including off-balance sheet
commitments

Due less than Due between Due between Due between

Due between Due between Due between

one month one and three and six and nine and one and
(note i) three months  six months  nine months twelve two years
months
£m £m fm fm fm fm
149,642 2,430 7,194 8,468 6,587 10,335
7,882 195 183 182 182 12,437
1,806 1,573 1,380 226 104 7
1,516 56 346 322 1,777 1,741
1,688 17 109 210 1,252 1,064
9 - 94 59 90 1,040
1 - 4 o 4 n
162,544 4m 9,310 9,468 9,996 26745
(1,477) (106) (267) (232) (404) (3,634)
1,439 89 244 205 381 3,555
(38) (7 (23) (27) (23) 79
(237 (370) (917 (918) (932 (3,039)
(275) (387) {940) (945) (955) (318
162,269 3,884 8,370 8,523 9,041 23,627
10,333 - - - - .
172,602 3,884 8,370 8,523 9,041 23,627

Due after Total
twe and more than
five years five years
fm £m £m
2,749 931 188,336
5,280 - 26,341
9 . 5,215
6,748 6,568 19,074
6,496 2,261 13,097
3,957 3,072 8,321
- 35 1 237
25274 13,013 260,621
(8,336) (10,934} {25,390}
8,154 10,422 24,489
(182) (512) {901)
_(4207) (3842 (14,462)
(4.389) (4,354) (15,363)
20,885 8,659 245,258
‘ - - 10,333
20,885 8,659 255,591
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Gross contractual cash flows

2022 Due less than  Due between  Due between Due between Due between Due between  Due between Due after Total
one month one and three and six and nine and one and two and more than
(notei} three months six months  ning months  twelve months two years five years five years

(Audited) fm £m + Em fm £m £m £m £fm fm
Shares 187,455 2,422 7,261 1,744 1,897 5,320 1,086 987 178,172
Depasits from banks and similar institutions 14,712 43 4 52 41 163 21,804 - 36,856
Other deposits 2M 1,099 1923 29 28 7 4 - 5211
Secured funding - ABS and covered bonds 388 35 1,284 118 1,156 3,845 3,626 5765 17,217
Senior unsecured funding 240 559 48 49 1,328 2,078 4,665 1652 10,619
Subordinated liabilities 796 1 104 29 101 990 3,235 4570 9,826
Subscribed capital (note ii) 1 - 4 1 4 N 33 192 246
Total nan-derivative “inancial liakilities 175,703 4,159 10,665 3022 4,555 12,424 34,453 13,186 258,147
Derivative financial liabilities:

Gross settled derivative cutflows {4,828) (49 (377) (97) (1,685) (1,690) {6,410} {8,823) (23,959

Gross settled derivative inflows 4795 30 ) 316 54 1634 1552 6,057 8,640 23,078

Gross settled derivatives - net flows (33) (19) (67 43 (51 (138) (353) (183) (881)

Net settled derivative liabilities (23) (70} (139) (219) (225) (1,497 {2,634) (1,728) (6,535)
Total derivative firancial liabilities ~ (56) (89) {200) {262) (276) (1,635) (2,987 (1,91 (7,416)
Total financial liabilit es 175,647 4,070 - 10,465 2,760 4279 10,789 31,466 1,255 250,731
Off-balance sheet commitments (note iii} 15,258 - - - - - - - 15,258

Total financial liabilit es including off-bale nce sheet
commitments 192,905 4070 10,465 2,760 4,279 10,789 31,466 1,255 265,989
Notes:

i, Due less than one month includes amounts repayable on demand.

The principal ameunt for undated subscr bed capital is included with'n the due more than five vears column.

Off-balance sheet commitments include amounts payable on demanc for undrawn loan commitments, zustomer overpayments on residential mortgages where the borrower is able to draw down the amount
overpaid and commitments to acquire financial assets.

Asset encumbrance

Encumbrance arises where assets are pedged as collateral against secured funding and other collateralised obligations and therefore cannot be used for other purposes. The majority of asset
encumbrance arises from the use of prime mortgage pools to collateralise the Covered Bond and securitisation programmes (further information is included in note 14 to the financial statements)
and from participaticn in the Bank of England's TFSME.

Certain unencumbered assets are readily available to secure fund ng or meet collateral requirements. These include prime mortgages and cash and securities held in the ligquid asset buffer, Other
unencumbered assets, such as non-prime mortgages, are capabie of being encumbered with a degree of further management action. Assets which do not fall into either of these categories are
classified as not being capable of being 2ncumbered.
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An analysis of Natiorwide's encumbered and unencumbered cn-balance sheet assets is set aut below. This disclosure is not intended to identify assets that would be available in the event of a
resolution ar bankruptcy.

Asset encumbrance
2023 Assets encumbered as a result of transactions with- Other assets (comprising assets encumbered at the Total
counterparties other than central banks central bank and unencumbered assets)
Assets not positioned
at the central bank
-
L]
T x m ° oy ® m
" w £S5 & a £, 0
5 2 5 S 23£38 EF weE -
=8 o~ e 8 E o a se s o
5 & S ® 25a3 ] m wa 253
g3 FE=] ol = o= T oo -
m G m 5 5 % 868% S5Es 582 S E
m B w g £ 5 Hgus 358 £e¢s 5 £
< o < n [=1 = % 4 [ =g (=3 -] [ BT
£m £m £m fm £m fm fm fm
Cash 522 637 - 1,159 - 23,972 - 504
Loans and advances to banks and similar institutions - - 589 589 1,944 - - 327
Investment securities {note i) - - 4,508 4,508 - 23,050 . 57
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - 6,923
Loans and advances to customers 20,254 8,705 - 28,959 66,591 61,924 53,308 -
Non-financial assets - - - - - - - 3,089
Fair value adjusiment for portfolic hedged risk - - - - - - - (5,011}
Total 20,776 9,342 5,097 35,25 68,535 108,946 53,308 5,889
2022 £m £m £m fm £m £m fm £m im| im
Cash 412 708 - 1120 - - 28,726 - 375 29,101 30,221
Loans and advances to banks and similar institutions - - 513 513 1,860 - - 679 2539 3082
Investment securities (note 1) - - 12,345 12345 - 11,698 - 1,441 13,139 25,484
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - 4,723 4723 4723
Loans and advances to customers 20,790 10,644 - 30,834 72,187 51,333 53,72 - 177,232 208,066
Non-financial assets - - - - - - - 3.251 3251 3,251
Fair value adjustment for portfelic hedged risk - - - - - - - (2,443) {2,443)! (2,443}
Total 20,602 1n,352 12,858 44,812 74,047 91,757 53,712 8,026 227,542 | 272,354
Notes:

i. Encumbered investrent securities primarily relate to repe transactions and collzteral pledged for derivatives.

ii. Included within loans and advances to customers are newly originated prime mortgages which require a period of time to elapse before they are eligible to use in existing secured funding programmes or at the central
Um:r.
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Managing liquidity and funding risk
Nationwide’s management of liquidity znd funding risks alms to ensure that there are sufficient liquid assets at ali times, both as to amount and guality, to:

s cover cash flow mismatches and fluztuations in funding;
e retain public confidence; and
e meet financial obligations as they fa | due, even during episodes of stress.

This is achieved throagh the management and stress testing of business cash flows, and through the transiation of Board risk appetite intc appropriate risk limits. This ensures a prudent funding
mix and maturity profile, sufficient levels of high-quality liquid assets, and appropriate encumbrance levels are maintained.

The liquidity and funding risk framewor ¢ is reviewed by the Board as part of the annual Internal Liguidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP). ALCO is responsible for managing the balance
sheet structure, including the Funding Plan, and its risks. This includes setting and monitering more granular limits within Board limits. A consolidated cash flow forecast is maintained and
reviewed weekly to suppart ALCO in menitoring key risk metrics.

A Liquidity Contingency Plan (LCP), whizh is part of the wider recovery plan framewaork, is maintained which describes early warning triggers for indicating an emerging liquidity or funding stress as
well as escalation procedures and a range of actions that could be taker in response to ensure sufficient liguidity is raintained. The LCP is tested annuatly to ensure it remains robust. Nationwide's
Recovery Plan describes potential actigr s that could be utilised in a more extreme stress.

Liquidity stress testing

To mitigate liquidity and funding risks g2nerated by its business ectivities, Nationwide aims to maintain a liquid asset buffer of at least 100% of the anticipated outflows seen under internal stress
test scenarios and the regutatory-prescribed LCR.

Potential contractual and behavioural st-ess outflows are assessed across a range of liguidity risk drivers over 30 calendar days, with the key assumptions shown below. An assessment over three
months is also performed against whick LCP capacity is assessed. Internal stress assumptions are reviewed regularly with changes approved by ALCO and approved annually by the Board as part of
the ILAAP.

Liquidity risk driver Modelling assumptions used
Retail funding Significant unexpected outflows are experienced with no new deposits received.
Wholesale funding Following a credit rating downgrade:

s zero roll-over of maturing long-term wholesale funding;
»  zeroroll-over of maturing short-term funding received from financial counterparties and partial roll-over from non-financial counterparties; ard
s no new wholesale funding received.
Off-balance sheet Contractual outflows occur in relation to secured funding pregrammes due to credit rating downgrades.
l.ending commitments continue to be met.
Collateral outflows arise due to adverse movernents in market rates.
Expected inflows from mortgages or retail and commercial loans are recognised,
intra-day Liquidity is needed to pre-fund cutgoing payments.

Liquid assets Asset values are reduced in recognition of the stressed conditions assumed.
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Under the most seve-e internal 30 calerdar day stress test {a combined market-wide and Nationwide-specific stress scenario), the average ratio of the liquid asset buffer ta stressed net outflows
over the 12 months ended 4 April 2023 2quated to 155% (2022:159%)).

External credit ratings

The Group’s long-term and short-term credit ratings are shown in the table below. The long-term rating for both Standard & Poor’s (S&P) and Moody's is the senior preferred rating. The long-term
rating for Fitch is the senior non-preferrad rating.

Credit ratings P
Senior Short-term Senior Tier 2 Date of last rating Outlook
preferred _ non-preferred action / confirmation
Standard & Poor’s At A-1 BBB+ BBB lanuary 2023 Stable
Moady's Al P-1 A3 Baal March 2023 Stable
Fitch A+ “ F1 A BBB+ January 2023 Stable

The table below sets aut the amount of additional collateral Nationwide would need to provide in the event of a one and two notch downgrade by external credit rating agencies.

Collateral sensitivity

Cumulative adjustment for Cumulative adjustment for

a one notch downgrade a two notch downgrade

£bn £bn

2023 - 0.6
2022 - 1.7

The contractualiy reguired cash outilow would not necessarily match the actual cash outflow as a result of management actions that could be taken to reduce the impact of the downgrades.
Outlook

Nationwide continues to hold a diversif ed high-quality liquid asset buffer which will evolve in lire with Nationwide’s liquidity requirements. Nationwide's funding plans include the refinancing of
TFSME through a continued presence in wholesale funding markets.
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Capital risk

Capital risk is the risk that Nationwide fails to maintain sufficient capital to absorb losses throughout a full ecanomic cycle and sufficient to maintain the confidence of current and prospective
investors, customers, the Board and reguiators. Capital is held to protect customers, cover inherent risks, provide a buffer for stress events and support the business strategy. In assessing the
adequacy of capital rasources, risk appetite is considered in the context of the material risks to which Nationwide is exposed and the appropriate strategies required to manage those risks.

Managing capital risk

The Board is responsible for setting risk appetite with respect to capital risk, which is articulated through its risk appetite statements, and it defines minimum levels of capital, including leverage,
thzt it is willing to cperate with. These ere translated into specific risk metrics, which are monitored by the Board Risk Committee (BRC), the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCOY and other
internal management reviews.

The capital structure is managed to ens.re that the minimum regulatery requirements and the expectations of other key stakeholders continue o be met. As part of the risk appetite framework,
strong capital ratios are targeted refativ= to both regulatory requirements and major banking peers. Any planned changes to the balance sheet, potential regulatory developments and other factors
{such as trading outlook, movements in the fair value through other comprehensive income reserve and defined benefit pension deficit) are all considered.

The capital strategy is to manage capital ratios through retained earnings, supplemented by external capital where appropriate. With general reserves forming the majority of capital resources,
profitability is an important factor when considering the ability to meet capital requirements. A return on capital framework is in place, based upon an allocation of overall capital requirements,
which forms part of the Saciety's Board “isk appetite metrics as well as its performance monitoring activity for individual product segments. In recent years, Nationwide’s ability to supplement
retained earnings through the issuance of Common Equity Tier T(CET1), Additienal Tier 1 {AT1} and Tier 2 capital instruments has been demonstrated. Over the past year, in line with Nationwide’s
capital management practises, opportuities have been taken to reduce excess capital resources through liabilities and equity management exercises, including a Tier 2 buyback of £0.7 billion i1
June 2022 and a CCDS buyback of £0.1 zillion in February 2023,

Capital is held to meet Pillar 1 requiremnents for credit, counterparty credit and operational risks. In addition, the PRA requirés firms to hold capital to meet Pillar 2A requirements, which form ar
Individual Capital Requirement (ICR). This is a point in time estimate, set by the PRA on an annual basis, based on the submission of the results of the annual Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP). This pracess confirms the amount of capital required to be held to meet risks partly covered by Pillar 1 such as credit concentration and cperational risk, and risks not covered by
Pillar 1 such as pension and interest rate risk. The combination of Pillar 1 and Pillar 2A requirements form Nationwide’s Total Capital Reguirement (TCR).

Nationwide’s latest Fillar 2A ICR and TCR were received in February 2023. The ICR is £2.2 billion, of which at least £1.3 billion must be met by CET1 capital. Nationwide's ICR was equivalent to 4.5%
of risk weighted assets (RWAs) at 4 April 2023 (2022: 5.4% of RWA). This largely reflects the low average risk weight, given that approximately 82% (2022: 82%) of total assets, exciuding central
bank reserves, are in the form of secured residential mortgages. The Pilfar 2A ICR is set {0 a percentage of RWAs, having previously been set to a nominal amount during the year ended 4 April 2022
in response to the economic impacts of ~he Covid-19 pandemic.

To protect against the risk of consuming Pillar 1and Pillar 2A requirements (thereby breaching TCR), firms are subject to regulatory capital buffers which are set out in UK Capital Requirements
Directive V (UK CRD V). The PRA may s¢ an additional firm-specific PRA buffer based upon sapervisory judgement informed by the results of the Bank of England's stress testing scenarios. This
assessment considers the impacts on a firm’s capital requirements and resources and other factors including leverage, systemic impartance and any weaknesses in firms’ risk management and
governance procedu-es. The ICAAP alsc considers appropriate internal capital buffers to ensure that the impact of a severe but plausible stress can be absorbed.

Regular stress tests are undertaken, covaring Nationwide and its subsidiaries, to enhance the understanding of potentiai vulnerabilities and how management actions might be deployed in the event
of stressed conditions developing. These stress tests project capital resources and requirements over a multi-year period, during severe but plausible scenarios that cover a range of macro-econamic
or market-wide stresses, and idiosyncratic scenarios that test particular risks to Nationwide’s business model. Stress test resulis are reported to the Board Risk Committee.

Nationwide aims 1o be in a position to maintain strong capital and leverage ratios in the event of a severe but plausible econamic or idiosyncratic stress, Embedded in the risk appetite framework is
an expectation to meintain CET1 and levarage ratios in excess of regulatory minima under stressed conditions.
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Capital position

The capital disclosuras included in this report are in iine with UX Capital Requirernents Directive V (UK CRD V) and on an end point basis with IFRS 9 transitional arrangements applied. In addition,

the disclosures are 01 a consolidated Group basis, including ali subsidiary entities, Lnless otherwise stated.

Capital ratios and requirements g

2023 2022
Capital ratios % %
CET1 ratio 26.5 241
Total Tier 1 ratio 29.1 26.6
Total requiatory capizal ratio 327 N8
Leverage ratio 6.0 5.4
Capital requirements £m fm
Risk weighted assets (RWAs) 51,731 51,823
Leverage exposure 249,299 255,407

Risk-based capital ratios remain in excess of regulatery requirements with the CET1 ratio at 26.5% (2022: 24.1%), above Nationwide's CET1 capital requirement of 11.5%. The CET1 capital
requirement in¢cludes a 7.0% minimum Pillar 1and Pillar 2 requirement and the UK CRD V combined buffer requirements of 4.5% of RWAs.

The CET1 ratio increesed to 26.5% (2022: 24.1%) as a result of an increase in CET1 capital of £1.3 billion, in conjunction with a reduction in RWAs of £0.1 billion. The CET1 capital resources increase
was driven by £1.7 billion profit after tax. partially offset by £0.2 billion of capital distributions, a £0.1 billion CETT deduction following the repurchase of CCDS in February 2023, and a £0.1 billion
reduction in the fair value through other comprehensive income reserve. RWAs reduced, with an increase in residential mortgage lending being more than offset by a reduction in off-balance sheet
commitments.

UK CRD V requires firms to calculate a leverage ratio, which is non-risk based, to supplement risk-based capital requirements. Nationwide’s leverage ratio is 6.0% {2022: 5.4%), with Tier 1 capital
increasing by £1.3 billion as  result of the CET1 capital mavements outlined above. In addition, there was a decrease in feverage expasure of £6.1 billion driven by the same movements as described
above for RWAs.

The leverage ratic renains in excess of ationwide's leverage capital requirement of 4.0%, which comprises a minimum Tier 1 capital requirement of 3.25% and buffer requirements of 0.75%. The
buffer requirements include a 0.4% UK countercyclical leverage ratio buffer in-force from 13 December 2022, which will increase to 0.7% in July 2023,

Leverage requirements continue to be Mationwide’s binding Tier 1 capital constraint, as the combination of minimum and regulatory buffer requirements are in excess of the risk-based equivalent.
The risk of excessive leverage is managed through regular monitering and reperting of the leverage ratio, whick forms part of risk appetite.

Further details on the leverage exposure can be found in the Group’s annual Pillar 3 Disclosure 2023 at nationwide.co.uk
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The table below shows how the compor ents of members’ interests and equity contribute to total requlatory capital and does not include non-qualifying instruments.

Total regulatory capital

2023 2022
(Audited) fm £m
General reserve 14,184 12,753
Core capital deferred shares {CCDS) (not= i) 1,334 1334
Revaluation reserve 38 46
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) reserve (i4) 89
Cash flow hedge anc other hedging rese-ves 129 142
Regulatory adjustments and deductions:
FVOC!| reserve temporary relief (note i) - ﬁj
Cash flow hedge and other hedging r2serves (note i) (129) (142},
Direct holdings of CET1 instruments {1ote i) {101) -
Foreseeable distributions (note iv) (67) !
Prudent valuation adjustrment (note v (119) {80):
Own credit and debit valuaticn adjustments (note vi) 2N (12).
Intangible assets (note vii) (839) (884).
Goodwill (note vii) (12) (12):
Defired-benefit pension fund asset (rote vii) (614) {654):
Excess of regulatory expected losses over impairment provisions (note viii) {45) (48)
IFRS 9 transitional arrangements (noze ix) 15 31
Insufficient coverage for non-performing exposures (note x) - -
Tetal regulatery adjustments and decuctions {1,938) {1.893)
CET1 capital 13,733 12,47
Other equity instruments {Additional Tie " 1) 1,336 1336
Total Tier 1 capital 15,069 13,807
Dated subordinated debt (note xi} 1,835 2,643
Excess of impairment provisions over regulatery expected losses {note viii) 14 37
IFRS € transitional arrangements (note 1x) (10} (21)
Tier 2 capital 1839 2,659
Total regulatory capital 16,908 16,466

Netes:

i. The CCDS amecunt does not include the £101 million deduction for the Group's repurchase exercise completed in February 2023. This is presented separately as a regulatory adjustment in line with UK CRR article 42.

Further information is included in note =1 te the financial statements,

A temporary adjustment to mitigate the impact of volatility in central government debt on capitat ratios, in line with the Covid-19 barking package. This temporary relief was no longer app

icable from 1 January 2023,

iil. In accordance with UK CRR article 33, institutions do not inciude the fair value reserves related to gains or losses on cash flow and other hedges of financial instruments that are not valued at fair value,
iv. Foreseeable distributions in respect of CZDS and AT1 securities are deducted frern CET1 capital under UK CRD V rules.

v. A prudent valuation adjustment (PVA) is applied in respect of fair val ted instruments as required under regulatory capital rules.
vi. Own credit and debit valuation adjustments are applied to remove balance sheet gains or losses of fair valued liabilities and derivatives that result from changes in own credit standing and risk, as per UK CRD V rules.

vii. Intangible, goodwill and defined benefit nension fund assets are deducted from capital resources after netting associated deferred tax liabilities.

vii.Where capital expected loss exceeds accounting provisions, the excess balance is removed from CET1 capital, gross of tax. In contrast, where provisions exceed capital expected loss, the excess amount is added to
Tier 2 capital, gross of tax. This calcu’ation is not performed for equity exposures, in line with Article 159 of UK CRR. The expected loss amounts for equity exposures are deducted from CET1 capital, gross of tax.
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Notes (continued):

ix. The IFRS 9 transitional adjustments to cepital resources apply scaled relief until 4 April 2023 due to the impact of the intreduction of IFRS 9; the period for these adjustrents was extended by the PRA for a further
two years due to anticipated increases in expected credit losses as a result of the Covid-18 pandemic. Further detail is provided in the Group's annual Pillar 3 disclosure 2023 at nationwide.co.uk

x. Where relevant provisions do not sufficie 1tly cover non-performing expesures, the shortfall is deduicted from CET1 capital, in line with Article 47c of the UK CRR.

xi. Subordinated debt includes fair value adfustments relating to changes in market interest rates, adjustments for unamortised premiums and discounts that are included in the consolidated balance sheet, and any
amortisation of the zapital value of Tier Z instruments required by regulatory rules for instruments with fewer than five years to maturity.

As part of the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive, the Bank of England, in its capacity as the UK resolution authority, has published its policy for setting the minimum requirement far own funds
and eligible liabilities (MREL). From 1January 2023, Nationwide's requirement is 1o hold twice the minimum capital requirements (6.5% cf leverage exposure), plus the applicable capital
reguirement buffers, which amount to {.7% of leverage exposure. This equals a total loss-absorbing requirement of 7.2%.

At 4 April 2023, total MREL rescurces were 8.8% (2022: 8.4%) of leverage exposure, in excess of the less-absorbing requirement of 7.2% described above.

Risk weighted assets

The table below shovss the breakdown cf risk weighted assets (RWAs) by risk type and business activity. Market risk has been set to zero as permitted by the UK CRR, as the exposure is below the
threshold of 2% of ewn funds.

Risk weighted assets
2023 2022
Credit risk Operational Total risk Credit risk Operational Total risk
(note i) risk (note ii) weighted assets {note i) risk {note i} weighted assets
fm fm fm £m £m £m
Retail mortgages 34,609 2,991 37,600 34,935 3,054 37,989
Retail unsecured lending 5,145 1,14 6,259 4,694 1,045 5739
Commercial loans 1,883 60 1,943 2,272 o8 2,370
Treasury 1,559 290 1,849 1,865 4008 2,274
Counterparty credit risk (note iii) 989 - 989 1,052 - 1,052
Other (note iv) . %ns 1376 3,091 1,798 601 2,399
Total 45,900 5,831 51,731 46,616 5207 51,823
Notes:

i.  This column includes credit risk exposures, securitisations, counterparty credit risk exposures and exposures below the threshalds for deduction that are subject to a 250% risk weight,
ii. RWAs have been allxcated according to the business lines within the standardised approach to onerationai risk, as per article 317 of UK CRR.

Counterparty credit risk relates to derivative financial instruments, securities financing transactions {rept'rchase agreements) and exposures to central counterparties.

iv. Other relates to equity, fixed, intangible =oftware and other assets.

RWAs reduced by £0.1 billien, partialty cue to a £0.3 biltion decrease in retail mortgage credit risk RWAs. This was driven by a reduction in off-balance sheet commitments linked to a decrease in
applications, which more than offset the impact of an increase in net mortgage lending. Commercial loan credit risk RWAs also reduced, primarily due to a decrease in the size of the commercial
loan portfolio. Retail unsecured lending Zredit risk RWAs increased due to a six-month 0% interest rate cone2ssion provided to a number of overdrawn current accounts, to support borrowers
through cost of living pressures. Operational risk RWAs increased due to rising average income in the previous three financial years.
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I line with the prior year, a model adjustment continues to be included within RWAS to ensure outcomes are consistent with the revised IRB regulations in force from 1 January 2022. The impact of
this is a £21.4 billion (2022: £21.8 billion) increase in risk weighted assets, predominantly in relation to retail mortgages. In line with other industry participants, Nationwide continues to engage with
the PRA regarding approval and implementation timings.

More detailed analys's of RWAs is includad in the Group’s annual illar 3 Disclosure 2023 at natienwide.co.uk

IRB model risk

The performance and accuracy of IRB madels is critical to the calculation of credit risk capital requirements. The effectiveness of the models is achieved through clear allocation and segregation of
roles and respensibil ties covering model ownership, approval and gevernance, ongoing model monitoring, review and independent validation. Further information can be found in the

‘Use of the IRB Approach to credit risk” section of the Group's annual Pillar 3 Disclosure at nationwide.co.uk

Outlook - regulatory developments

Key areas of requlatory change are set c 4t below. Nationwide will remain engaged in the development of the regulatory approach to ensure it is prepared for any resulting change.

The Basel Committee published its final eforms to the Basel Il framework in December 2017, now denotec by the PRA as Basel 3.1. The amendments include changes to the standardised
approaches for credit and operational risks, including the intreduction of an RWA standardised output floor to restrict the use of interral models. On 30 November 2022, the Bank of England issucd
CP16/22 ‘Implementation of the Basel 3.1 standards’. The consultation paper, although materially similar to the original Basel reforms, includes interpretations and some divergences.

The reforms may lead to an increase in Mationwide’s RWAs relative to the current position, mainly due to the application of the standardised RWA output floor. The expected implementation date is
1 January 2025, with a phased introduction of the standardised RWA cutput floor until fully implemented by 2030. Based on Nationwide’s latest interpretation of the draft rules, there will not be a
material day-one impact on Nationwide's CET1 ratia.

Nationwide’s CET1 ratio would reduce te a low-to-mid 20% range compared to the 26.5% reported at 4 April 2023, if the 2030 fully implemented standardised RWA output floor was overlaid.
However, final impacts are uncertain as hey are subject te future balance sheet size and mix and the rules are currently at the consultation stage.

0On 13 December 2022 the FPC confirmed its intention to increase the UK countercyclical capital buffer (CCyB) rate to 2% from 5 July 2023. This will lead to an increase in Nationwide's risk-based
capital requirernents Nationwide’s leve-age requirements will also increase as the countercyclicai leverage ratio buffer is calculated as approximately 35% of the risk-based CCyB rate. Capital
surpluses will reduce as a result of these changes; however, they will remain comfortably above Board risk appetite based on current forecasts.
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Market risk

Summary

Market risk is the risk that the net value of, or net income arising from, assets and liabilities is impacted as a result of changes in market prices or rates, specifically interest rates or currency rates.
Nationwide has limited appetite for market risk and does not have a trading book. Market risk is closely manitered and managed to ensure the level of risk remains within appetite. Market risks are
not taken unless they are essential to ccre business activities and they provide stability of earnings, minimise costs or enable operational efficiency.

The principal market risks that affect Nz-ionwide are listed below together with the types of risk reporting measures used:

Market risk Definition - . ) I o " Reporting measure

exposure . .

Interest rate risk The impact of market movements in interest rates, whick affects interest rate margin realised from lending and borrowing Value sensitivity / Value at risk / Net inferest
activities, Volatility in short-term interest rates can also impact net income contribution from rate insensitive liabilities. income sensitivity / Economic value of equity

sensitivity

Basis risk The impact on earnings of relative changes in short-term interest rate benchmarks, for example between Bank rate and Sterling  Earnings sensitivity
Overnight index Average (Sonia).

Swap spread risk The impact on tre market value of treasury investments arising from changes in the spread between bond yields and swap rates.  Value at risk

Inflation risk The impact on tre market value of treasury investments arising from changes in inflation swap rates and published inflation Value sensitivity
indices.

Currency risk The impact on earnings and market value of treasury positions due to changes in exchange rates. Value sensitivity / Value at risk

Product optionrisk  The impact from changes to hedging which may be required when customer behaviour deviates from expectations, principally Value at risk / Economic value of equity
resulting from ezrly repayment of fixed rate loans. sensitivity

Structural interest The impact of market movements in interest rates, which affect the income arising from those balance sheet items that have Duration / Value at risk / Net interest income

rate risk stable balances, an interest rate that is fixed, are non-interest bearing or insensitive to changes in market rates and have no sensitivity

defined maturity date. This includes the asymmetric risk which arises in very iow or nagative interest rate scenarios, mainly due
to the different levels at which variable product rates can reach a minimum level.

Nationwide has a capital requirement fc- each of the above market risks. In addition, stress analysis is used to evaluate the impact of mare extreme, but plausible events.
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Summary (continued)

The principal market risks, linked to Nat onwide’s balance sheet assets, liabilities, capital and reserves, are listed in the table below, irrespective of materiality.

Market risk linkage to the balance sheet - ‘ - T
Market risk

mmww Interest rate Basis risk Swap spread  Currency risk Inflation risk  Product option  Structural risk
) ) o } o _.m."..._n __.mm_n, e ] risk
Assets
Cash 25.6 v v v
Loans and advarices te banks and similar institutions 29 v v v v
Investment securities 27.6 v v v v v
Derivative financial instruments 6.9 v v v v v v
Loans and advances to customers 210.8 v v v v v
QOther assets (note i) (1.9) v v v
Total assets . 271.9
Liabilities
Shares (customer daoosits) 187.1 v v v v
Deposits from banks and similar institutions 25.1 v v v
Other deposits 5.2 v 4 v v
Debt securities in iss e 27.6 v v v
Derivative financial instruments 15 v v v v v v
Subordinated liab 6.8 v v v
Other liab 7Y v v
Total liab ) 2550
,ﬁu_.o_"m__amawmqm. i v

Note:

i Other assets include the fair value adjustment for portfalio hedged risk of £(5,011) million (2022: £{Z,443) million). Other assets also include the net defined benefit asset of the Natiomwide Pension Fund, being the
surplus of plan assets in excess of plan oaligations. The Nationwide Pension Fund is subject to pens on risk, which includes exposure to market risk factors such as interest rate risk, inflation risk, and equity risk (fren
changes to share prices). Pension risk is managed separately from the market risk arising from Nationwide’s core business. Further details are included in the Pension risk section of this report.
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Global market conditions

Over the past year there has been heigh:ened market volatility, fuelled by the war in Ukraire, lockdown in China, UK political instability and rising inflation. The Consumer Prices Index, an an
annualised basis, rose from 9.0% in April 2022 to 11.1% by October, before reducing slightly to 10.1% at the end of March 2023. The increase in inflation has been driven by rising energy costs as an
indirect impact of the war in Ukraine and supply side constraints in the first half of the year. The Bank of England has responded by increasing the Bank rate on eight separate occasions from 0.75%
to 4.25% over the corse of this year. Despite this, there is evidence that inflation is becoming entrenched within the economy, with average pay increasing by 6.6%, on an annualised basis, in
March 2023, Nationwide has some infla-ion exposure (to UK, EU and US inflation indices) from investment securities; however, inflation risk is managed within tight limits and the financial impact
from recent increases in inflation globally has therefore been limited. Since the year end, the Bank rate has increased further to 4.5%.

Whilst the trend of higher inflation and i~terest rates was a world-wide phenomenon over the past year, volatility within the UK has been exacerbated by political instability. Fiscal policy
announcements on 23 September 2022 triggered a lack of confidence in the UK economic outlook, causing the Sterling - US dollar exchange rate te fall to 1.04 and 10-year UK gilt yields to spike at
4.8%. Following the subsequent reverszl of these palicies and improved political stability, Sterling increased to 1.25 against the US dollar and UK gilt yields stabilised by the end of the year.

The failure of Silicon Valley Bank, Signat.re Bank and Credit Suisse during March 2023, and First Republic Bank in Aprit 2023, raised concerns regarding the financial stability of the global banking
sector. The immediate risk of widespread contagion across the banking sector has been contained by central banks; however, the longer-term outiook remains uncertain,

Whilst economic conditicns within the LK have an impact on the Group, market risk is managed prudently. This is demonstrated by the Society's very low level of exposure to interest rate risk as
outiined below,

Requlation

USD Libor will be published for the final time on 30 June 2023 and Nationwide is in the process of transitioning 2 small number of legacy derivative positions referencing USD Libor to risk-free rates
ahead of this date. These derivative posizions largely offset, leaving an immaterial residual exposure for the Society.

The small number of legacy commercial loans referencing synthetic Libor? at the start of the year have all now transitioned over to Sonia.

Market risk appetite, measurement and management .

Nationwide’s market risk exposure arises in the banking book; it does not have a trading baok. Mast of the exposure to market risk arises from fixed rate mortgages or savings and changes in the
market valug of the liguidity portfolic. Trere is a limited amount of currency risk on nen-Sterling financial assets and liabilities held,

The Board is responsible for setting mar<et risk appetite and the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing Nationwide's market risk profile within this defined risk
appetite. Market risk is managed within & comprehensive risk framework which includes policies, limit setting and monitoring, stress testing and robust governance controls. This includes setting
and menitoring more granular limits within Board limits with relevant market risk metrics reported monthly to ALCO, The analytical technigues used to measure market risk, and details of
exposures during the year, are outlined selow.

1 Synthetic Libor is an acopted methodology st pulated by the FCA for calculating a Libor benchmark to assist with the transition to Sonia for “tough legacy’ Libor contracts.
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Value and earning sensitivities

Sensitivity analysis is used to assess the zhange in value of the net exposure to defined parallel and non-parallel shifts in interest rates. For example, a cne basis point {0.01%) shift is measured using
PVO. This analysis is perfermed daily by currency. Earning sensitivity metrics are used to measure and quantify exposure to interest rate risks, including basis risk. These technigues assess the
impact on earnings when rate shocks ar= applied to the rates paid on liabilities and to the rates earned on assets.

Mationwide also measures interest rate <isk through Net Interest Income (NI} and Economic Vaiue of Equity (EVE) measures, under a range of shock scenarios which include behavioural
assumptions for retail products as intere st rates change. These measures are assessed based on the standand shocks prescribed, as well as against internally generated shock scenarios.

¢ NIl sensitivities assess the impact to earnings in different interest rate shocks over a one-year period. Sensitivities are calculated based on a static balance sheet, where all assets and liabilities
maturing within the year are reinvesed in like-for-like products. The sensitivity also includes the impact arising from off-balance sheet exposures.

e EVE sensitivities measure the chang= in value of interest rate sensitive items, both on and off-balance sheet, under a range of interest rate shocks. Sensitivities are calculated on a run-off balance
sheet basis.

Both NIl and EVE sensitivities are measL -ed regularly, with risk limits set against the various shocks.
Value at Risk (VaR)

VaR is a technigue that estimates the maximum potential losses that could occur from risk positions beczuse of future moverments in market rates and prices, over a specifizd time horizon, to a
given leve! of statistical confidence. VaR is based on historic market behaviour and uses a series of recorded market rates and prices to derive plausible future scenarios. This considers inter-
relationships between different markets and rates.

The VaR model incorporates risk factors based on historic interest rate and currency movements using a ten-year historical data series. A two-week horizon and a 99% convidence level is used in
day-to-day VaR moni-oring. VaR is used to monitor interest rate, swap spread, currency and product option risks and is not used to model income. Exposures against limits are reviewed daily by
management, Actual outcemes are mor tored on an ongoing basis by management to test the validity of the assumptions and factors used in the VaR calculation.

Although VaR is a valsable risk measure it needs to be viewed in the context of the following limi*ations which may mean that exposures could be higher than modelled:

e The use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take account of changes in value that might occur beyond this level of confidence;

« VaR models often under-predict the likelihood of extreme events and cver-predict the benefits of offsetting positions in those extreme events;

» The VaR model uses historical data t predict future events. Extreme mariket moves outside of those used to calibrate the model will deliver exceptions. In periods where valatility is increasing,
the model is likelv to under-predict market risks and in periods where volatility is decreasing it is likely to over-predict market risks; and

» Historical data may not adequately predict circumstances arising from government interventions and stimuius packages, which increase the difficulty of evaluating risks.
The Society validates the VaR model on 2 monthly basis by back-testing the calculated VaR against a hypothetical profit and toss, which reflects the profit and loss that would have been realised if

positions were held constant over a two-week period. An exception is recognised where a loss over a ten working-day period exceeds the VaR calculated by the model. The number of exceptions
over a 12 month period is used o assess the performance of the VaR model, which in turn helps to decide whether it requires recalibration.
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In additicn, the model is subject to an annual review process to ensure it remains appropriate for risk reporting. The types of risks not capturad in VaR include:

» Market liquidity risk - this has a limited impact because, whilst Nationwide recuires an appropriate level of market liquidity to manage market risk, it does not have a high ongoing dependency
on liquidity for market risk purpcses as it does not operate a trading book;

s Interest rate movements that can inrpact valuation adjustments, including credit, debit and funding valuation adjustments (CVA/DVA/FVA). These are not captured in the VaR or sensitivity
analysis but are negligible.

In addition, stressed YaR is used to estirate the potential loss arising from unfavourable market movements in a stressed environment. It is calculated in the same way as standard VaR, calibrated
with a 99% confidence level and on a two-week basis, but uses market data from a two-year period of significant financial stress.

Interest rate risk

Nationwide's main market risk is interest rate risk. Market moverments in interest rates affect the interest rate margin realised from lending and borrowing activities. To red ice the impact of such
movements, hedging activities are unde-taken by Nationwide’s Treasury function. For example, interest rate risks generated by lending to and receivirg deposits from customers are offset against
each other internally where possible. Tha remaining net exposure is managed using derivatives, within parameters set by ALCO. In addition to cur primary lending and borrowing activities, income
volatility arising from certain rate insensitive products (including reserves and CCDS) are structurally hedged. Nationwide's interest rate risk is measured using a combination of value-based
assessments and earnings sensitivity ascessments.

The table below high ights Nationwide’s limited exposure to interest rate risk, shown against a range of value-based assessments. The risk exposure is calculated each day and summarised over the
financiai year:

Interest rate risk

2023 2022
Average High Low Average High Low
£m £m fm fm fm fm
VaR (99%/10-day) (audited) 0.6 14 0.1 32 10.6 0.5
Sensitivity analysis (PVOT1) (audited) 0.0 01 0.0 0.1 02 (0.0)

The interest rate sensi s in the table above do not include retail product behavioural changes, which are captured by other measures.

During December 2021 Nationwide's GEP Libor contracts were transitioned to Sonia ahead of Libor cessation on 1January 2022. The interest rate VaR metric during this period was heightened
because offsetting contracts were not al vays transitioned at the same time, leaving a temporary but significant Sonia Libor basis risk in the position.
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Net interest Income sensitivity (NIT)

The sensitivities presented below measure the extent to which Naticnwide’s pre-tax earnings are exposed o changes in interest rales over a one-year period based on instantaneous parallel rises
and falls in interest rates, with the shifts applied to the prevailing interest rates at the reporting date.

The sensitivities are prepared based on a static balance sheet, with all assets and liabilities maturing within the year replaced with like-for-like products, and changes in interest rates being fully
passed through to variabie rate retail praducts, unless a 0% floor is reached when rates fall. No managément actions are included in the sensitivities.

The purpose of these sensitivities is to assess Nationwide's exposure to interest rate risk and therefore the sensitivities should not be considered as a guide to future earnings performance, with
actual future earnings influenced by the extent to which changes in interest rates are passed through to product pricing, the timing of maturing assets and liabilities and changes to the balance
sheet mix. In practice, earnings changes from actual interest rate movemnents will differ from those shown below because interest rate changes may not be passed through in full to those assets and

liabilities that do not have a contractual link to Bank rate.
Potential (adverse)/favourable impact on annual pre-tax future earnings
(Audited) 2023 2022
fm £m
+100 basis points shift (30) {note i)
+25 basis points shift (6) 5
-25 basis points shift {5) (76}
-100 basis points shift (32) (note i)
Note:

i. +/-100 basis point shifts were not repor-ed at 4 April 2022 but have been presented at 4 April 2023 to better reflect the prevailing interest rate environment,

The low levels of NIl sensitivity reflect Nationwide’s prudent management of interest rate risk. The sensitivities also reftect that changes in rates are fully passed through in these scenarios, and
product margins are held static. The im 3act of take-up risk in the mortgage pipeline is included within the sensitivities, which contributes to the small negative sensitivities in the +25 and +100
basis point shifts.

Economic Value of Equity (EVE)

Nationwide also measures interest rate -isk through EVE sensitivity which identifies the change in value of interest rate sensitive items, both on and off-balance sheet, under a range of interest rate
shocks prescribed by the PRA. This mezsure includes behavioural assumptions using a run-off balance sheet basis. EVE is managed against internal and regulatory risk limits and is monitored by
ALCO.

Further detaits on EVE can be found in the Group’s annual Pillar 3 Disclesure for 2023 at nationwide.co.uk
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Basis risk

Basis risk arises where variable rate assets and liabilities re-price with reference to differing shart-term interest rate benchmarks. The primary interest rates that Nationwide is exposed 1o are the
Bank rate and Sonia. If the difference between these interest rates changes over time, this may impact earnings.

Assets and liabilities are offset when their reference rate, or ‘basis’ type, is matched. Exposure to the net mismatch is mitigated, where required, by transacting basis swaps to ensure Nationwide
rermains within internally agreed risk limits.

Swap spread risk

A liguidity portfolio is held to manage Nationwide's liquidity risk. The assets in this portfolio are predominantly fixed rate sovereign debt securities. Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the interest
rate risk associated with these assets. However, there remains a residual risk associated with the possible movement in the spread between sovereign debt yields and swap rates. This swap spread
risk reflects the fact that the market valt e of the liquidity portfolic assets can change due to movements in bond yields and the swaps due to movements in swap rates, In economic terms, this risk is
only realised if a bond is sold and the swap is cancelled ahead of maturity.

Swap spread risk is monitored using a Fistorical VaR metric and the risk is controlied via internal limits linked to capital requirements. Exposures are menitored daily and are reported monthly to
ALCO,

Inflation risk

The risk arising from Nationwide’s inflation-linked investments ara mitigated through the use of inflation swaps and the residual expoasure monitored through IEOT metrics, which measure the
change in present value of future cashflows from a one basis poirt parallel shift in inflation swap rates. Inflation risk is captured within our swap spread VaR risk measurement.

Currency risk

Currency exposure is managed through natural offsetting on the balance sheet, with derivatives used to maintain the net exposures within limits. ALCO sets and monitors limits on the net currency
exposure. The table below sets out the | mited extent of the residual exposure to currency risk:

Currency risk .
2023 2022
Average High Low Average High Low
{Audited) £m fm fm fm fm fm
VaR (99%/10-day) 0.1 0.7 0.0 0.0 01 0.0

Product option risk
Market risk alsc arises when customers exercise options contained within fixed rate preducts which can require changes to hedging. The key product risks are prepayment risk (early redemption or

under- or over-payment of fixed rate martgages), access risk (early withdrawal of fixed rate savings), and take-up risk (higher or lower completions of fixed rate mortgages than expected). These risk
exposures are guantified under a range of stress scenarios using models that predict customer behaviour in response to changes in interest rates. The potential impacts are then closely monitored.
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Structural interest rate risk
Nationwide has structural hedging programmes in place to stabilise earnings as interest rates change. Structural hedging is transacted to manage the interest rate risk from balance sheet items

that have stable balances, an interest rae that is fixed or non-interest bearing and have no defined maturity date. The most material hedging programmes are in place to manage liabilities,
including reserves and customer deposizs.

Without hedging, the returns earned or these balances are subject to the volatility of short-term interest rates. The structural hedging programme smooths the volatility in net interest margin
arising from changez in interest rates. Tae structural hedges convert the retumn, through a rolling hedge, into a more stable medium-term return.

Structural hedging is managed to 2 target duration. A two-and-a-half-year target duration is applied to eligible reserves and customer deposit balances. Nationwide's approach to financial planning
assumes that structural hedging will be maintained in line with the target duration, with risk limits in place to mitigate deviation from the target duration.

In addition to the structural hedging prcgrammes, Nationwide also undertakes other balance sheet hedging to mitigate the asymmetric risk which arises in very low or negative interest rate
scenarios, mainly due te the different levels at which variable product rates can reach a minimum floor leve!,

Cutlook

Nationwide will continue to have a limit2d appetite for market risk, which will only be taken if essential to core business activities and provides stability of earnings, minimises costs or enables
operational efficiency.
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Pension risk

Summary

Pension risk is defined as the risk that the value of the pension schemes’ assets will be insufficient to meet the estimated liabilities, creating a pension deficit. Pension risk could negatively impact
Nationwide's capital position and might result in increased cash funding obligations to the pension schemes.

Naticnwide has funding obligations to & number of defined benefit pension schemes, the largest of which is the Nationwide Pension Fund (the Fund) which represents over 99% of the Society’s
pension obligations. The Fund has approximately 29,000 participants (Fund members), the majcrity of whom are deferred members (former and current employee members, not yet retired). The
Fund closed to new entrants in 2007 ar J closed to future accrual on 37 March 2021. Further detail is set out below and in note 30 to the financial statements.

In accordance with LK legislation, the assefs of the Fund are held in 2 legally separate trust from Nationwide's assets and are administered by a board of trustees (the Trustee) which has fiduciary

responsibilities to Fund members.

Mationwide has a specialist pension risk management team respcnsible for regular analysis, insight and monitoring, which help monitor financial risk to the Group from the Fund. This includes risk
appetite articulation and regular reporti1g to governance committees. The team mazintains effective engagement with the Trustee in order to manage the long-term impact on Nationwide’s capital
and financial position. This is supported by Nationwide's representation at the Trustee’s lnvestment and Funding Committee and investment working groups, and the sharing of management
information between Nationwide and the Trustee in order to consider specific risk management initiatives.

Pension risk is embe ded into Nationwide's Enterprise Risk Management Framework and stress t2sting processes. Nationwide monitors the potential capital deterioration from the retirement
benefit position that might occur in a 1-in-200-year stress test. Nationwide considers all pension regulation and legislation change which may impact Nationwide's obligations to the Fund.

Risk factors

Volatility in investment returns from the assets and the value of the liabilities both affect the Fund’s net deficit or surpius position. The ey risk factors which impact this po
These factors can have a positive or negative effect on the position.

on are set out below.

Asset performance

The Fund's liabilities are calculated usir 3 a discount rate set with reference to high quality bend yields. This creates a risk that the Fund’s assets perform worse than those bond yields, resulting in
the Fund’s net position being volatile or worsening.

The Fund holds a propertion of return-seeking assets, including private equity, infrastructure, preperty and credit investments. Return-seeking assets are expected to outperform liabilities in the
long-term, but they zre riskier and volat e in the short to medium-term. Investments in return-seeking assets are monitored by both the Trustee and Nationwide to ensure they remain appropriate
given the Fund’s long-term objectives. Further details are set out in note 30 1o the financial statements.

Liabilities

There is a risk that tre Fund's liabilities ncrease to a level which is not supperted by asset performance, whether through discount rate changes, increases in long-term inflaticn expectations, or
increases in the life expectancy (longevizy) of Fund members.
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Actuarial assumptions

There is a risk that a change in the methodology used to derive key actuarial assumptions (for example, the discount rate or longevity assumptions) results in a step change in the assessment of the
liabilities and therefcre in the net surplus or deficit, potentially impacting Nationwide's capital and/or deficit funding requirements. The ultimate cost of providing pension benefits over the life of the
Fund will depend on actual future events, rather than assumpticns made.

Changes in the year

As the Fund is closed to future accrual, there were no employer contributions made in respect of future benefit accrual during the year. There were also no employer deficit contributions into the
Fund for the year ended 4 April 2023 and none are scheduled for the year ending 4 April 2024.

During the year, Nationwide and the Tristee agreed to a new Schedule of Contributions following the finalisation of the Fund's 31 March 2022 Triennial Valuation. As the Triennial Valuation
indicated a funding surplus, a recovery plan requiring employer ceficit contributions was not needed. The effective date of the Fund's next Triennial Valuation is 31 March 2025. Employer deficit
contributions of £1 million were made in respect of the Group's defined benefit scheme in its Nationwide (Isle of Man) Limited subsidiary.

The retirement benefit position on the balance sheet as at 4 April 2023 is a £946 millien (2022: £1,008 million) surplus within assets as set out below:

Changes in the present value of net d=fined benefit asset

2023 2022

, £m fm

AL S5 April 1,008 172
Pension charge (4) (5)
Net interest credit 26 4
Actuarial remeasurement (85) 836
Employer contributions {(including deficit contributions) 1 1
At 4 April 946 1,008

The movement in the retirement henefit obligatien is driven by a decrease in asset values, which was partially offset by a decrease in pension liabilities. The significant increase in interest rates over
the period has had a broadly neutral inrpact, with a reduction in liabilities, due to higher disceunt rates, being broadly offset by the changes in the value of scheme assets. Actual inflation over the
year being higher than expected increased pension liahilities; this was partially offset by updates to the demographic assumpticns.

The actuarial remeasurement quantifies the impact on the net obligation from updating financial assumptions (e.q. discount rate and long-term inflation), demographic assumptions (e.q. longavity),
and the return on th2 Fund’s assets being greater or less than exoected. Further details can be found in note 30 {o the financial staterents.

Outlook

Cver the long term, the Trustee intends to reduce further the Furd’s risk factors, and Nationwide actively engages with the Trustee to ensure broad alignment on investment objectives and
implementation. Potential risk manage ment initiatives include, at are not limited to, adjusting the asset allocation (reducing the allocation to return-seeking assets and increasing the allocation to
liability matching assets), iongevity hedging and implementing darivative and other hedging strategies.
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Business risk
Summary

Nationwide defines business risk as the -isk that achievable volumes or margins decline relative to the cost base, affecting the sustainability of the business and its ability to deliver the strategy, due
to macro-economic, geopolitical, indust 'y, competitor, regulatory or other external events. This risk is actively managed to ensure the Society provides value to, and can meet the needs of, current
and future members, with a focus on long-term sustainability rather than short-term benefit. Nationwide ensures that it can generate sustainable profits by focusing on recurrent sources of income
that provide value commensurate with risk appetite. This risk is monitored as part of ongoing business performance reparting to, and through regular discussion of business model risks by, senior
management and the Board.

Nationwide's business model is reliant cn generating net interest margin - primarily the difference between the interest rates paid to savers and those received from mortgage holders. During 2022
and continuing intc 2023, high inflation has led to a monetary policy response by the Bank of England, with Bank rate rising from 0.1% to 4.5% in May 2023, Whilst ongoing competition from
incumbent banks and digitally-focused new entrants remained strong, rising interest rates have enabled the Society to ease some pressure on margin. However, a rise in the cost of living has
influenced consumer behaviour and inflationary growth continues to impact on the cost of operating the Society. To mitigate the impact on the Society's financial performance there is an ongoing
focus on operational excellence which p-omotes enhanced efficiency and productivity. Furthermere, continual revisws of member propositions maintain the Society’s competitive position in the core
mortgage and savings markets in which it operates.

Managing business risk

Business risks are identified as part of the Society’s strategy and f nancial planning processes and through regular horizon scanning exercises. This activity highlights potential areas of strategic
development and areas requiring furthe~ assessment through a range of sensitivities to the Society’s Financiai Plan. Ongeing monitoring ensures the strategy and associated execution plans
continue to evolve to address business rodel risks hy considering changes in the external environment, including technology innovation, consumer behaviour, requlation, and market conditions.

These risks are assessed against Board Risk Appetite to ensure the right balance between distributing value through propositions, investing in the business, and maintaining financial strength.
Business risk is managed and mitigated through a range of measures which include:

» Financial forecasting - As part of t1e financial planning process, income and costs are forecast over a five-year period with an updated forecast reviewed reqgularly by management, taking into
consideration the key risks and sens tivities.

» Monitoring of financial and business performance - The various components of financial performance are monitored menthly against internal forecasts and key indicators across a variety of
committees and fora, which consider potential risks and possible mitigating actions. In addition, business areas monitor the demand for products and services to ensure we continue to provide
propositions that customers want and need, and which provide value to the Society.

* Stress testing and sensitivity analysis - Business risk is regularly stress tested as part of internal management reporting such as via upside and downside scenarios to the Financial Plan, the
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process, and reverse stress tests. In addition, the Prudential Regulatory Authority’s Annual Concurrent Stress testing scenarics provide a test of the
business mode! and the risks it is exao0sed to. As an output from these activities, potential actions are identifiec that can be taken if risks crystallise. To effectively manage more extreme events a
Recovery Plan is maintained, in line with regulatory guidance, that contains a range of indicatars which are regularly monitored, and a list of strategic actions that could be taken, if necessary, to
protect the Society in the event of severe stress. '

QOutlook

Business risks are clcsely linked to the top and emerging risks outlined in the Risk overview (on pages 65 to 66). The Bank of England expects econcemic output to be broadly flat in the first half of
2023 and rise modestly thereafter. Nonetheless, sustained pressure from an increased cost of living continues to impact both customers and the Society’s business risk, as consumers adapt to
macro-economic factors influencing the UK economy. Ongoing elevated geopolitical tensions create additional uncertainty and may exacerbate business risk. Business risk will be impacted by
competition within the mortgage and szvings markets, which is expected to remain strong. To mitigate the business risk associated with these uncertain macro-economic and market conditions it
is important the Society delivers its key strategic priorities.
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Operational and conduct risk

Summary

Operational and conduct risk is defined as the risk of impacts resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, conduct and compliance management, people and systems, or from external
events. These are managed through proportionate controls designed to identify and prevent failures that could affect customers, colleagues or the Society. How the control environment coerates is
covered in more detail in the Managing risk section on pages 139 to 142.

Nationwide recognises the need for cortinuous improvement in the understanding of the oparatinnal and conduct risks it is exposed to and the associated control environment it relies on to
mitigate these risks. A programme has been completed to further develop the organisation’s understanding of the most prominent risks and controls within key customer-facing processes. In
addition, there is an ongoing programme of work to suppoert the management of economic crime obligations. Taken together, this work has enabled Nationwide to refine and develap its approach
to the identification and management ¢f risk, and to build understanding of how learnings can be applied more broadly across other key processes. It will also help to improve customer experiences
and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of the pracesses and controls operated, and improve ongoing regu'atery compliance. 1t is critical Nationwide remains safe and secure and does the right
thing for its customers, with a risk and control culture embedded within the broader Society culture.

Over the last vear, there has been continued focus on achieving the high standards expected by customers and reguiators in the management of operational and conduct risk across the key areas
detailed below,

Information and technology management

Operational resilienca remains key to the Society’s strategy and the reguiatory environment. Customers, understandably, expect services to be available when they want to use them, with a demand
for an ‘always on’ capability. Focus remains on keeping services resilient and available through engoing investment in IT infrastructure. Investment has been prioritised in upgrading legacy
infrastructure, so services are delivered using the latest technology and also in retaining the necessary engoing support from specialist third party [T suppliers. A significant volume of critical
infrastructure upgrades have been completed in the year to meet customer needs and adapt to the increased demand for online services.

Resilience remains a significant area of requiatory focus, with financial services providers expected to have a thorough understanding of the impacts of service disruptions on their customers and to
reduce these impacts cver time. This inZludes identifying, unders-anding and continually ass2ssing the Important Business Services (IBS), defining acceptable levels of disruption to these services
and ensuring these zre not exceeded. haticnwide's catalogue of impact tolerances, which define the maximum telerable level of disruption te important services, are subject to ongoing validation
against regulatory and customer expectations. The Society continues to test and exercise its incident management and disaster recovery respanses to known threats by running scenarios, live
incident simulations and structured recavery walkthroughs. In response to recent regulatory policies, the detailed mapping of the IBS to identify vulnerabilities continues to develop.

System change carries risk and whilst s gnificant effort has been made to mitigate this risk, including improving the stability of critical payment infrastructure, on occasions customers have
experienced disruption to services. There is further work to do in this area to ensure the potential for any future disruption is minimised.

Data
Nationwide is committed to protecting the personal data under its control. To ensure this is achieved, three key contre! frameworks have been implemented which span data privacy, governance

and security. lnvestment in data architecture and technology continues, allowing strategic sclutions to be implemented and enabling the Society to store, manage and protect personal data more
effectively in an evolving digital environment. Progress continues to be made on data quality and data processes to improve customer experience and reduce the likelihood of a data breach,
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The rapid growth of digitisation and demand for a better customer experience leads to greater volumes of data to control and more complex challenges in ensuring that data is used ethically and
appropriately, including in relation to emerging developments in artificial intelligence. This requires an evolving set of skills both to operate and maintain systems and ensure a rigorous focus on
customer outcomes and vulnerability. Te data governance frameweork, and the implementation of a new data governance system in the latter half of 2022 have improved confidence in, and
understanding of, the business data underpinning key business dacisions.

Cyber security

As iT systems are managed and new technology is delivered for the future, the impact a successful cyber-attack could have on a customer’s ability to manage their finances remains a critical area of
focus. Significant effort is put into cyber risk management capabilities, with ongoing investment in the avoidance, detection and prevention of attacks and continued testing of responses should an
attack ke successful.

Cloud services continue to be adopted znd we continue to invest in the associated technologies and working practices to ensure these new services are secure. When adopting these services,
Nationwide ensures they are introduced with an acceptable level of risk through the operation of existing, and where required, new security controls. To manage the wider supply chain risk, third
parties are required to follow a risk assessment process with proportionate security measures put in place which are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Applying lessons learmed is critical to managing cyber risk effectively. Testing Nationwide's multi-layered approach to the protection of information is undertaken on an ongoing basis, including the
use of techniques and procedures practiced by individuals and organisations that attempt to conduct malicious activity. This provides the Society with canfidence in its controls and allows 3 better
understanding of how ta prevent future attacks, ensuring technical controls are constantly developed, resource is repositioned, and funding is allocated appropriately.

Nationwide continues to work closely with the National Cyber Security Centre, other government bodies and peers in financial services and other industries. This enables Nationwide to remain
informed about both the potentiz! threzts and responses, while sharing best practice in combatting cyber-crime. Continued collaboration with these bodies ensures an effective security stance
against current threats, as well as emergent threats in a dynamic cyber landscape, is maintained.

Supply chain

Nationwide continues to use a network of third parties to provide both core and non-core services, such as T infrastructure and support, and customer-facing services. When outsourcing activities
to third parties, Nationwide retains resconsibility for all services and the associated risks.

Regulatory expectations continue to eve ve in relation to third party risk management. The requirements of Supervisory Statement $52/21, which came in force on 31 March 2022, continue to be

embedded. This includes proportionate risk management according te the criticality of the third party service and having controls to support the resilience of the Society, such as increased facus on
exit management, regular ongoing perfarmance monitoring and robust contractual provisions.

The Bank of England has published a discussion paper to gather industry views on the potential ways to manage the systemic risks posed hy critical third parties. This recognises the increasing
reliance within financial services on cerlain third parties, and how this impacts the supervisory authorities’ objectives of protecting the UK's financial stability, market integrity and consumer
protection. Further communication arcund next steps is expected in 2023.
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Colleagues / employment practices

Our pecple are fundamental to the success of Nationwide, and attracting and retaining people with in-demand skilis and capabilities continues to be a key area of focus. A highly competitive
external labour market, upward pressure on pay in light of significant increases in inflation, and the rise of fiexible working across the industry, present both opportunities and risks to the attraction
and retention of diverse talent. Focus remains on improving diversity across all levels of the workforce, ensuring it is a place where colleagues know they can be themselves and thrive at work.

The cost of living pressures impact not cnly customers, but also calleagues. The organisation is committed to supporting them with a wide range of resources put in place to help with financial and
emotionai wellbeing, which has included making a cost of living payment to eligible colleagues in 2022. The situation continues to be monitored closely to ensure colleagues remain supported
through these challenging times.

The COVID-19 pandemic has changed the way of working, with many colleagues working from home over the last thiee years. As hybrid working becomes the norm across many businesses, there is
still an important role for office workspzee as a means of enabling people to come together to share ideas and solutions. The evolving ways of working continue to have an impact on a number of the
Society's top people risks, such as emplayee sentiment, managing performance and productivity. These remain key considerations as the Society continues to develop its hybrid working approach.

Nationwide’s refreshed strategy will continue to target increasing the skills and capabilities of the workforce, creating a more efficient organisation and enabling the Society to meet the changing
needs of its customers, whilst ensuring all aspects of diversity remain front of mind. As we develop the organisation for the future, we will manage the impacts of change carefully, and our wellbeing
and inclusion strategy will ensure focus on supporting colleagues through transformation and organisational change.

Economic crime

Nationwide, as a UK-wide financial services firm, is exposed to economic crime risks across all its business lines. Criminal activity to which Nationwide is exposed includes money laundering,
terrorist financing, bribery and corrupticn, sanctions and tax evasion, and fraud, both external and internal. The Society may be adversely affected if its customers, employees or third parties engage
in criminal activity, or if the Society’s preducts or services are used to facilitate economic crime. Furthermore, the Society may incur significant remediaticn costs to rectify issues, reimburse losses
incurred by customers, and address regulatory censure and pena ties, Management's censideration of such matters and any associated contingent liabilities or provisions is discussed further in
notes 27 and 29 to the financial statements. The Society takes its abligations and responsibilities to reduce the risk of it being used to further econemic crime seriously. Accordingly, it operates a
framework of controls, which is supported by a suite of policies, control standards and procedures.

The management of economic crime re-ains a key area of focus, with a combination of evolving tegal and regulatory requirements, and changing criminal methods shaping the nature of the
threats it faces. The Economic Crime Risk Committee, chaired by the Director of Retail Products, is the core governance committee for economic crime. It oversees economic crime risk
management, operational performance and transformation mattzrs, including decision making, and escalates matters to the Executive Risk Committee and Board Risk Committee, as appropriate.

Cost of living and customers in financial difficulty

The increased cost of tiving and more volatile interest rate environment pose challenges for the management of conauct risk as mere customers are expected to face financial difficulty. In this
context, Nationwide remains committed to ensuring good customer cutcomes and to meeting the expectations of regulators in relation to the fair treatment of customers. In addition to ensuring
that colleagues are made available to efzctively support any custemers experiencing financial difiiculty, Nationwide has taken a series of steps to support those customers who may be facing cost of
living challenges, including a freephene suppart helpline, cost of | ving training for front line advisors and financial health checks for customers. Supporting vulnerabie customers remains a priority

for the Society. Nationwide's strategic focus is on embedding consideration of the additional needs of vulnerable consumers into its culture, making it the responsibiiity of all colleagues whose work
impacts its customers.
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Good customer outcomes and the Consumer Duty

Nationwide is committed to ensuring tre right customer outcomes are achieved in all circumstances. The Society will continue to provide safe, secure and fair vaiue products and services whick
meet the needs of customers, will contirue to provide clear communications which enable customers to make the right decisions at the right time, and will continue to provide effective support to
allow customers to realise the benefits of their products.

The Financial Conduct Authority {FCA} has finalised its Consumer Duty which, when implemented in July 2023, will require 2 higher standard of consumer care beyond the current sat of principles
and rules. Firms must be more proactive in the delivery of fair outcomes, and there will be a greater level of regulatory scrutiny of firms’ approaches to delivering such outcomes. In this context,
there is a heightened risk across the financial services industry of regulatory sanctions arising from failures in relation to the fair treatment of customers, A programme of work is ongoing across the
Society to ensure full preparedness for the Consumer Duty prior t when it becomes effective.

Other key requlatory developments

There continues to be a high volume of complex regulatory chance impacting the financial services industry, and Nationwide will respend tc these changes while actively engaging with its
regulators.

In December 2022 the Government puklished its ‘Edinburgh Referms', a package of measures designed to update a wide range of financial services regulation. Where appropriate, Nationwide is
engaging with these proposals. Nationwide is also actively engaged in the wider ongoing develeprnent of the UK's Future Regulatory Framework, which will determine how regulatory rulemaking
powers will be distributed following the JK's exit from the Eurepean Union, and the mechanisms for improving accountability and scrutiny of those exercising those powers.

As expected, the PRA has published a cansultation paper on the implementation of the rernaining elements of the Basel Il framework, with implementation currently scheduled to begin in 2025
(delayed from 2023). Further detail on the expected impact for Nationwide is provided in the ‘Capital risk’ section.

In line with Supervisory Statement $53/19 ‘Enhancing banks’ and insurers' approaches to managing the financial risks from climate change’, the PRA is now actively supervising firms’ approaches to

managing climate-relzted financial risks. Detail on Nationwide’s progress in embedding climate-refated risk to meet $53/19 requirements can be found in the ‘Climate-related Financial Disclosures
overview’ section and in the standalone 'Climate-related Financial Disclesures 2023,
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Operational and conduct risk experience

Operational and conduct risk events wh ch have occurred are monitored and reported on to better understand those exposures and drive sustainable mitigation to prevent recurrence. For the
purposes of this report, events include cnly those where a financial loss arises from an incident. Events are recorded against internally defined risk categories, in addition to reporting them against.
the categories defined by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in Basel Il, which allows comparison of risk experience with our main banking peers.

Operational risk events by Basel risk category, % of total events by value (note i) Operational risk events by Basel risk category, % of total events by number {note i)
2023 2022 (note Ii) 2023 2022 (note i)
% % % o
Clients, products and business practices 45 289 Clients, products and business practices 0.3 11
External fraud 4.7 248 External fraud 951 909
Execution, delivery and process management 53.6 459 Exerution, delivery and process management 4) 7.0
Internal fraud 0.1 - Internal fraud 0.2 01
Business disruption and system failure . ) Business disruption and system failure - -
Darmage tc physical assets . } Damage to physical assets 0.1 01
Employment practices and workplace sa’ety 0.1 0.4 Employment practices and workplace safety 0.2 08
Total ‘ 1000 100.0 Total 100.0 100.0

Notes:

i. Risk avents with aggregated gross losses of £5,000 and over {excluding monies recovered); multiple losses relating to the same event are counted once.
ii, Comparatives have Jeen restated to inclLde additional historic data where more information has been received.

Operational lesses arising from external fraud risk events continue to increase year-on-year, with a rise in both the percentage of events by value and volume when compared against 2022, The
increased volume of avents has been dr ven by Authorised Push Payment scams. The increase in value is the result of payment providers now bearing a greater proportion of the total losses
incurred, and additicnal provisions set eside relating to fraud-related remediation projects. The Society continues to monitor and respond, including working closely with regulatory bodies and the
Society's banking peers, to collaberatively drive improvements in fraud prevention, education and reporting of fair outcomes.

The value of losses against the ‘Clients, products and business practices' category decreased in 2023, primarily driven by a reduction of PPl-related lcsses.

Whilst the volume of losses against the “Execution, delivery and process management’ category have decreased this year, the total value of these losses has increased. These losses are largely
attributed to key remr ediation projects.
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Qutlook

Nationwide’s operational and conduct rsk outlook is impacted by the environment it operates in and ifs strategy. The drivers of operational and conduct risk are expected to remain broadly
consistent, with the main themes being-

¢ the impact of the rising cost of living on customers;

« the continuing evoiution of ecenom c crime, through fraud, scams and other criminal activity,

« the challenging labour market impacting the ability to attract and retain people with ir-demand skills and capabilities;
s the delivery of craanisational chang2;

» the volume and complexity of requlztory developments impacting the financial services industry;

» [T resilience and the continued increase in the sophistication f cyber security threats and external fraud;

s the change activity from de-risking and simplification of Naticnwide’s |T infrastructure;

» continued reliance on strategic thirc party partners, including increased adoption of cleud-based selutions; and

» the understandirg and managemert of the operational risks associated with climate change.

The Society continues to invest to maintain and develop appropriate controls in all these areas to ensure residual risk exposures are managed within appetite,

Model risk

Summary

Maodel risk is the risk of an adverse outcome as a direct result of weaknesses or failures in the development, implementation or use of a model. A mode! is defined as 'a simplification of a business
system using assumptions and mathematical concepts to help describe, predict or forecast’. There is an inherent risk associated with models because, by their very nature, they are imperfect and
incomplete representations that rely on assumptions and theoret cal methodologies and use historic data which may not represent future cutcomes.

Models are refied on to support a broad range of business and ris< management activities across the Society. Key examples include the use of model outputs in the credit approval process, capital
and liquidity assessments, stress testing, loss provisioning, financial planning and pricing strategies. Models which apply advanced machine learning technigues to other risk types such as climzte
change and economic crime are also us2d. Model errers can arise when models are implemented incorrectly or misused, for instance when applied to uses that they were not designed for, or where
there is a failure to usdate key assumptions when required. Model errors and uncertainty are the primary sources of model risk which, if crystallised, could result in poor lending decisions, holding
inappropriate levals of capital, liguidity or provisions or incurring a financial loss.

Model risk remains Feightened due to inflationary and cost of living pressures, interest rate rises and market volatility experienced during 2022/23. These facters have adversely impacted the
performance of seme models and placed greater reliance on the use of medel adjustments to capture the risks and uncertainty arising from the effects of the economic environment.

Managing model risk

Model risk is managed at an enterprise tevel through the Madel R sk Framework and within a defined risk appetite set by the Board. The framework prescribes Society-wide requirements includ ng
roles and responsibil ties, governance, independent oversight, risk appetite, monitoring and independent assurance.
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The framework is supported by mode! risk policies and standards covering documentation, develnpment, implementation, validation, change processes and monitoring. This ensures that models are
of sufficient guality to support effective business decisions and meet regulatory requirements.

Responsibility for ovarsight of model risk is delegated from the Executive Risk Committee to the Model Risk Oversight Committee (MROC). MROC assesses whether models are fit for purpose and
monitors model risk exposure an a Soc ety-wide aggregated basis.

Model risk appetite is expressed through assessments of the moest material models. This considers the percentage of models that have been independently assessed as meeting internal standards.
Issues are escalated o the Executive Risk Commitiee when necessary, or where a breach of risk appetite has occurred.

The change in economic conditions experienced during 2022/23 means that historical data on which sorme models were built and calibrated has becorme less representative of the prevailing
environment, increasing the need for nrodel adjustments. As the economic uncertainty continues, model adjustments will remain a key area of focus within the Group’s model risk management
process. An enhanced framework for mode! adjustments has been implemented to ensure they are robustly governed, applied and monitored, with a particular focus on segments and exposures
that are more susce atiole to interest razes and inflation.

Work is underway tc deliver new capital models that comply with the IRB Roadmap regulations which came inte effect on 1lanuary 2022. Delivery of these new models is in line with the PRA
timetable. Temporary adjustments are urrently made to risk weighted assets, ensuring the Group’s czpital requirements reflect the expected outcomes of the revised RB rules. Further information
on capital impacts is detailed in the Capital risk section on page 194.

Responsibilities under the three lines of defence

Each model is required to have a mode owner who is responsible for ensuring that their model complies with the requirements of the framework. Responsibility for approving the use of material
models resides with first fine risk comrr ittees, such as the Asset and Liability Committee and Credit Committee. The roje of these committees is to review, approve and monitor all material aspects
of the medels within their remit,

The second line cversight of model risk is performed by the Model Risk Oversight function which provides independent validation, verification, setting of model standards, reporting of the model risk
profile and maintenance of the Society’s model inventory. The scope of independent validation includes a review of model inputs, design and outputs. This is further broken down into detailed
dimensions covering areas such as date, methodology, performance, use and documentation. The outcome of the validation is a report which includes a model risk score, key risks, model
capabilities, conditicns for use, limitaticns, validation findings and a recommendation as to whether models are fit for purpose.

While all material models are reviewed and re-approved for continued use each year, the val dation frequency and level of challenge applied by Model Risk Oversight is tailered to the materiality and
complexity of each model. Once validated and implemented, models are subject to regular monitoring. A central model inventory is used te maintain data on models and validation issues raised by
Model Risk Oversigh: are tracked through to resolution. An annual modei universe assessment is used to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the model inventory.

Nationwide's Internal Audit function, the third line of defence, considers model risk to be an area of focus and the Model Risk Framework is subject to review through a cyclical programme of audits

that assess the appropriateness of its design and overall effectiveness, and may assess how specific models used in Nationwide comgly with it. The findings of the audit reviews are reported to Audit
Committee, senior management and appropriate siakeholders.
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Developments in the year

In June 2022, the Prudential Regulztior Authority {PRA) published a consultation paper, ‘Model Risk Management Principles for banks'. The proposals contain five principles and expectations which
the PRA considers key to establishing an effective madel risk mar agement framework. Work is underway to respond effectively to the resulting Supervisory Statement which is expected to be
published in 2023 with an implementation date of 12 menths later.

In November 2022, the PRA published a consultation paper ‘Implementation of the Basel 3.1 standards’ setting out preposed rule changes and expectations for implementation of the relevant Basel
I standards. The changes are designed to improve the measurerient of risk in capital models, standardise approaches and reduce excessive variability in the calculation of risk weights. The key
amendments include revisiens to the standardised approaches for credit and operational risks and a risk weight output floor for Pillar 1RWAs. The Society conducted a detailed review of the
proposed regulation and engaged with UK Finance to provide an industry level response. Further information on capital impacts are detailed in the Capital risk section on page 194.

Over the past year models used to quancify key risks have been enhanced and improvements in the management of model risk continue to be made, including:

» Continuing the evoluticn of the scope of model risk reparting and education provided to the Board and senior management, thereby supporting better-informed decision making and ensuring
that management remain aware of developments in model risk, mode! limitations, uncertainty and risks emerging from changes in the external and internal envirenment: and
» Progressing the development, validztion and governance of capital models to comply with the regulzatory IRB roadmap.

QOutlook

Significant levels of requlatory change continue to be a key factor driving model development, validation and risk management activity. In common with the rest of the industry, changes required to
capital medels following new regulations will create a temperary increase in the risk relating to these models during the period of transition. The prolonged use and refiance on mode! adjustments
results in increased governance, complexity and compliance risks. Development of the retail capital models to meet new IRB Roadmap regulatory requirements continues as we engage with the
PRA regarding approval and implementation timings.

The model risk management principles proposed by the PRA in their June 2022 consultation paper are expected to creale a significant step change in the Seciety’s scope of model risk management
activity going forward. Arrangements are underway to implement the final proposals when published in a Supervisory Staterment.

Economic uncertainty in the form of hig inflation and higher interest rates introduces risks of changing member behaviours and some models operating outside of their development data

boundaries. This is li<ely to affect models that were designed and implemented in a low inflation and low interest environment. In response to this, Nationwide continues to moniter the external
situation, considering how representative it is of current and future risk environments; it has alse adapted afferdability models and is undertaking stressed inflationary scenaric analysis.
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Independent auditor’s report -+ -
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

s the Group financial statements and the Society's financial statements (the “financial statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the Society’s affairs as at 4 April 2023
and of the Group’s and the Society’s income and expenditure for the year then ended;

e thefinancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adepted International Accounting Standards; and as regards the Group financial statements, International Financial
Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union; and

e thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Building Societies Act 1986.

We have audited the financial statements. included within the Annual Report and Accounts 2023 (the "Annual Report”) of Nationwide Building Society (the “Society”) and its subsidiaries {the
“Group”) for the year ended 4 April 2023 which comprise:

Group Society

¢ (Consolidated balance sheet as at 4 April 2023 «  Balance sheet as at 4 April 2023

+  Consolidated income statement for the year then ended «  Income statement for the yaer then ended

+  (onsolidated statzment of comprehensive income for the year then ended; s Statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended

s  Consolidated stat=ment of movements in members’ interests and equity forthe | e Statement of movements in members’ interests and equity for the year then
year then ended ended

+  Consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended o  (Cash flow statement for the year then ended

*  Related notes 1 t¢ 39 to the financial «tatements, including a surmary of »  Related notes 1to 39 to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies significant accounting policies

¢ Information identified as ‘audited’ in the Report of the directors on
remuneration; and

s |nformation identified as ‘audited’ in the Risk report

The financial reporting framework that hzs been applied in their praparation is applicable law and UK adopted International Accounting Standards and, as regards the Group financial statements,
International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the Eurcpean Union,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our aucit in accordance wizh International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("1SAs (UKX") and applicabiz law. Qur responsihilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's respensibilities for the audit of t1e financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis for our
opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Society in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our zudit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financiat Reporting
Council’s (“FRC's”™) Ethical Standard as apolied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Society and we remain independent of the Group and the Society in conducting the audit.
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Conclusions relating to going concern

The directors have voluntarily complied with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and Listing Rule 9.8.6(R)(3)(a) of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and provided a viability and
going concern statement, required for companies with a premium listing on the London Stack Exchange.

In auditing the financ al statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of
the directors’ assessment of the Group and Society’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included the following:

e We obtained management's going concern assessment for the Group, including forecasts for the going concern period covering 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements
by the Board, and compared historical budgeied financial information with actual results to form a view of the refiability of the forecasting process.

. We understood and evaluated the reasonableness of these forecasts, which included using EY financial modelling specialists to help assess the assumptions used to develop forecasted results
using relevant peer and sector comparatives, to challenge the reasonableness of the Bank rate assumptions and resultant impact on net interest margin, operating costs, custormer deposit
growth and o assess the refinancing risk of wholesale funding maturing in the 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements by the Board.

o We used economic specialists in assessing the macroeconomic assumptions in the forecast through benchmarking to institutional and HM Treasury consensus forecasts and Bank of England
fan charts.

o We reviewed the resuits of adverse scenarios modelled by management to incorporate unexpected changes to forecasted liquidity and capital positions of the Group, as well as its reverse stress
testing exercise, to identify whether they indicated significant issues that might impact the Group's or Society's ability to continue as a going concern.

+  We also understood the directors’ considerations of the current uncertain geopolitical and ecenomic cutlook and climate change, including both financial risks and impacts on operational
resilience.

*  Weread and evaluated the adequacy of the disclesures included in the Annual Report in relation to going concern and considered whether there were other events subsequent to the balance
sheet date which could have a bearing on the going concern conclusion.

Based on the work we have parformed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and
Society’s ability to continue as a going cencern aver the twelve manths from the date the financial statements are approved far issue.

In relation to the Groua and Society’s reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nathing material to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’
statement in the financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities ard the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are Jescribed in the relevant sections of this repart. However, because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group's or Seciety’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Qverview of our audit approach

Audit scope s ‘Ne performed an audit of the complete financial infermation of two entities within the Nationwide Greup and audit procedures on specific balances for a
turther six entities.

s The entities where we perfermed audit precedures over complete financial infermation or over specific balances accounted for 100% of the Group’s profit
before tax measure used o caiculate materiality, 100% of revenue, and 98% of totai assets.

Key audit matters » Measurement of IFRS 9 expected credit losses

¢ Recoverability of capitalised software costs

s Risk of fraud in revenue recognition retating to effective interest rate (“EIR™) accounting
e Measurement of the net defined benefit pension asset

¢ T general controls

Materiality e Jverall Group and Society materiality was set at £50 million, which represents 2.2% and 2.0% of profit before tax

An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluatian of materiality and our allocation of perfermance materiality determine our audit scope for each entity within the Group, Taken together, this enables Ls o
form an opinion on the consolidated finaicial statements. We take into account size and risk profile when assessing the level of work to be performed far each entity,

In assessing the risk of material misstaterent to the Group financial statements, and to ensure we had adequate guantitative coverage of significant accounts in the financial statements, we selected
eight entities, which represent the princizal entities within the Gro p. Of the eight entities selected, we performed an audit of the complete financial information of two entities (“full scope entities™)
which were selected based on their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining six entities (“specific scope entities™), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within each entity tha:
we considered had the potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profite. All audit work
performed was undertaken by the Group audit team.

Qur risk assessment gave consideration to relevant external and internal factors, including geopolitical and economic risks, climate change, regulatory developments, and the strategy of the Seciey.

Climate change

There has been increasing interest from <takeholders as to how clirmate change will impact the Group and Society. Managerment of the Group and Society has determined that the most significant
future impacts from cl mate change on thzir operations will be from physical and transition risks. These are explained on pages 53 to 64 in the Climate related Financial Disclosures section in the
Strategic Report, which form part of the "Dther information,” rathe - than the audited financial statements. Our procedures on these disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering whether they
are materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated.

Note 2 "Judgements in applying accounting policies and critical accounting estimates’ on page 253 discloses how climate risks have been considered in the preparation of the financial statements.
For the year ended 4 April 2023, management has considered the mpact of climate-related risks en its financial position and performance. While the effects of climate change represent a source of
uncertainty, management dees not consicer there to be a material mpact on its judgements and estimates from physical and transition risks of climate change in the shart to medium term.

Our audit effort in considering the impact of climate change on the financial statements was focused on evaluating management’s assessment of the impact of climate risk (physical and transitior),
their climate commitmrents, the effects of material climate risks disclosed on pages 53 to 64, and the significant jJudgements and estimates disclosed in note 2 and whether these have been
appropriately reflected in the financial statements, following the recuirements of UK adopted irternational Accounting Standards. As part of this evaluation, we performed our own risk assessment,

222



Annual Report & Accounts 2023 Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Financial statements  JEROIGTIEINTaREIcIeN u Nationwide Building Society {continuec)

m Strategic report Governance Risk report

supported by our EY climate change specialists, to determine the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements from climate change which needed ta be considered in our audit ang
assess whether the effects of potential climate risks have been appropriately reflected by management in reaching their judgements in relation to the measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

We specifically considered management's assessment of the impact on expected credit losses (ECL), which gives consideration to the climate stress testing performed in 2022. We have described
details of our procedures and findings related to ECL in the key audit matter below. We also chalienged the directors’ considerations of climate change in their going concern assessment and
associated disclosure.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionat judgement, were of most significance in cur audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement ( whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included thosz which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Measurement of IFRS 9 expected credit losses _
Group and Society: Refer to the Audit Comrvittee report {page 100); Accounting policies (page 240); and note 10 of the consolidated financial staterments (page 263)

Key audit matter Our response to the key audit matter
IFRS 9 expected credit losses: £765 million Control testing:
(2022: £746 miliion) We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of controls acress the pracesses relevant to ECL, including the controls around approval of

key judgements and development of the estimate. These controls included:
The degree of subjectivity in the assumpticns o Review of staging effectiveness,

and estimates used by management {0 Measue |y pModel governance controls, including moni-oring and model validation,
IFRS 9 £CL is high and remains elevated as a

- S o {ontrols over the completeness and accuracy of data feeding into ECL provisions,
result of significant uncertainty in the o . ) . )
Imacroecanomic envirenment. »  (Governance of statistical models used tn develop the MES and their associated probability weights, and
¢ The governance and review of MES, post-mode! adjustments, and individual provisions.
The uncertainty in the macro-economic .
environment resulting from the increased cost of | In evaluating the controls, we obtained evidence of the governance process that is followed to review, challenge and approve all key assumptions
living, geopolitical tensions and climate change | underpinning the IFRS 9 ECL provisicns, and we involved EY risk modelling specialists where needed to assess the effective operation of
increase the subjectivity of the estimate. management’s controls.

The risk of material misstatement within Overalf stang-back assessment:

measurement and timing of IFRS 9 ECL We performed a stand-back assessment of the ECL provisions and coverage at an overall level and by stage to determine if changes were reasonable
manifests itself across ~he following five areas: and internally consistent by considering the overall credit quality of the Society's partfolios, their risk profile, and the impacts of the cost of living
pressures, geopelitical tensions and climate change. We parformed peer benchmarking where available to assess overall staging and provision
Staging: coverage levels. We alsc assessed the adequacy cof the disclosures made in the financial statements in comparison to peers, inciuding the

The gualitative and guantitative criteria applied | approprizteness of the assumpticns and sensitivities disclosed.

by management may r.ot completely and
accurately identify a significant increase in credit | Staging:

risk or credit impairment on a timely basis. We reviewed the Group's accounting policies and tested how they were applied in allocating a financial asset tc stage 1, 2 or 3, to ensure they
remained compliant with the requirements of IFRS 9. This included peer benchmarking to assess staging triggers and staging levels.
Modelling:
Models that calculate the ECLs, including We assessed the appropriateness of the staging criteria and their fogical application through the modelled environment, and then independently
prebability of default (“PD"), loss given default | recalculated staging results for the entire retail portfolio by recreating 1he staging model code and recreating the resuits in our own environment,
(“LGD") and exposure at default (“EAD™) models, | We also performed sensitivity analysis to consider the significance of potential impacts on staging (i} as a result of cchorts of borrowers coming to

may not appropriately apply accounting the end of their fixed term contracts, thereby moving to higher interest rates; and (i) as a result of collectively downgrading exposures to industries
interpretations, modell ng assumpticns, or data; | and geographic regions at greater risk of climate change impacts. We also tested the staging of the commercial portfolic on a sample basis to
or may not be appropriately implemented. ensure the completeness and accuracy of loans classified in respective stages.
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Measurement of IFRS 9 expected credit losses
Group and Society: Refer to the Audit Comi tttee report (page 100); Accountting policies (page 240): and note 10 of the consolidated financial statements (page 263)

Multiple Economic Scenarios {“"MES"): Medelling: ,

ECts may be inaccurat= because the range of We invelved EY model risk specialists to lead the qualitative and quantitative risk assessment of the models, and to perform a combination of madel
scenarics considered and the probability methodology reviews, maodel implementation testing, model reperformance testing, model assumptions testing and model sensitivity analyses,
weightings applied to them are not sufficient or | based on the risk designated to each model.

appropriate to capture all relevant facters
required, including the expected impacts of the | We tested the completeness and accuracy of data fields that drive ECL provisions through a combination of controls and substantive testing. Key
rising cost of living, geopclitical tensions and controls we tested included reconciliation and validation of data quality scorecards ("DQS5™). We substantively tested the accuracy of data

imate change; or because the MES may not be | underpinning the ECL provisions by testing lineage from the ECL models back to source systems for each critical data item, and a sample of non-
incorporated into the estimation of PD, LGC, and | critical data items, and testing the completeness and accuracy of loan data lineage from source systems into the ECL models,

EAD appropriately.

MES:

In-Model and Post Model Adjustments (“PMAs”); | With suppart of our EY economic specialists, we censidered both the appropriateness of the scenaric weightings and the underlying

in-model and post-mocel adjustments could be | macreeconomic variables, with specific focus on the impacts of the cost of fiving pressures, geopolitical tensions and climate change. In addition,
inappropriate, incomplate, or in the case of in- | we evaluated management’s approach in using statistical models to inform their judgement in determining the scenarios and their proba
model adjustments, incorrectly incorporated weightings.

inte the PD, LGD, and EAD medels. This risk is

elevated with the incorporaticn of new We carried out comparison to consensus forecasts ang other independently derived assumptions. We also engaged our Economists and Medelling
significant PMAs to refl=ct macro-economic teams to assess the reasonableness of the non-linearity in the scenarios and perform sensitivities on the weights and macroeconomic variables to
uncertainties, ensure they were reasonable. We also independently tested the appropriate application of the MES data within the models.

Individualfy impaired assets: in-Model and PMAs:

Individual impairment may not be identifiec on a | We involved modelling specialists to assess whather the inventory of adjustments was complete considering the evolution of external factors, and
timely basis, or the provisions recognised may | whether each adjustment included was appropriate. In performing the model methodology reviews for a sample of models, we considered whether
be incorrectly measured considering the impact | there were shortcomings that could require further adjustment. We reviewed risk registers, governance meeting materials and performed

of geopolitical tensions on exit strategies, independent cohort analysis to ensure the completeness of management acjustments. Additionally we have performed a benchmarking exercise by
collateral valuation and time to collect, comparing the suite of mode! adjustments recegnised by management to those seen in the industry and concluded that they were complete.

We also evaluated the application of each adjustment and independently recalculated all material PMAs, the outputs of which we reconciled to the
reported balances.

Individually impaired assets:
We assessed the completeness and reasonableness of impairment recorded for individually assessed loans by selecting a sample to recalculate the

expected credit loss. As part of this recalculaticn, we independentiy estimated the impact on ECLs of applying multiple scenarios that impact
collateral values estimated by management,

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
Based on the work we performed, we were satisfied that IFRS 9 expected credit losses were reasonably stated.

» Qur stand-back assescment cof the overall provision balance, in light of the current economic envirenment, threugh peer benchmarking and analysis of key indicators, such as coverage ratios, did
not indicate the provisicn recorded as at year end was unreascnable

« Independent model testing showed that IFRS 9 ECL models performed as expected with some immaterial differences and ware aligned to the requirements of the standard, and that the externai
data, internal data and assumption data feeding into the IFRS 9 ECL models are complete and accurate.

» Economic assumptions and probability we'ghtings assigned te the multiple economic scenarios used within the models were concluded to be reascnable.

» Staging criteria were appropriate and the results of staging reperformance indicated their zpplication was complete and accurate.

« independent replication of PMA calculations confirmed they had been accurately recorded, and we were satisfied that they were complete and appropriate.

« Individual provisions recorded for the stage 3 commercial portfolio were in line with the industry-specific risks highlighted by our EY Real Estate specialists.
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Recoverability of capitalised software costs
Group and Society: Refer to the Audit Committee report (page 100); Accounting policies (page 240); and note 25 of the noac_a_mau financial statements (page 298)
Key audit matter Our response to the key audit matter

Intangible assets; £862 million (2022; £9°3 million) We tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls over the Group's asset capitalisation,
impairment, and amortisation processes.
The Group cavitalises significant software and IT costs which are subsequently amertised
over their useful economic lives. Management undertakes bi-annual impairment assessments | We assessed the appropriateness of capitalised costs for a sample of asset additions during the year,
to determine whether the capitalised costs should be written down to lower recoverable including both externally and internalty generated costs, and assets in use as well as work in progress.
amounts. We identified the following risks associated with capitalised software costs: We did this by obtaining evidence to challenge whether the asset will lead to future ecanomic benefit,
This included assessment of cloud computing arrangements and software as a service to verify
s Project costs capitalised for newly created software could be inappropriate if economic | appropriate capitalisation and accounting treatment.

benefits to the Group have not been established and therefore do not meet the

capitalisation criteria, or the amount capitalised is incorrect. We assessed the reasonableness of the amortisation charge by testing and validating the underlying
»  Amounts recordzd for amortisation rely on judgements made in determining useful calculations and performing substantive analytical review.

economic lives of capitalised software and periodic impairment assessments . o

undertaken by management. There is therefore a risk that management override of We reviewed management’s assessment of impairments at both the individual project level and the

controls could result in a material misstatement to amortisatior. cash generating unit (CGU) level. For project asset impairments, we understood the rationale for

impairment, recalculated impairment charges independently, and challenged the completeness of
impairments recorded.

We corroborated the reascnableness of useful economic lives by performing a stand back analysis to
the Group’s broader [T strategy, understanding pipeline proiects and whether current assets would be
replaced and/er become obsolete in the future.

We involved EY business valuztion medelling specialists to assess the assumptions used by the Society
in the prespective financial information and forecasts used for their CGU impairment assessment. We
considered whether the impacts of future plans were sufficiently reflected in the forecast used,
including changes to the technology strategy, likely future use of assets, impact of commitments
including climate-related commitments made by the Scciety, and assessment of the impact of
geopolitical tensions and cost of living pressures.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
We are satisfied that the Society’s account ng pelicies and their applization for capitalisaticn of new software assets and determination of related impairments are in compliance with the accounting
standards, 1AS 38 and IAS 36, and we concluded that newly capitalised assets, impairments and amortisation in the current period are materially appropriate.
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Risk of fraud in revenue recognition relating to effective interest rate ("EIR”) accounting]

Group and Society: Refer to the Audit Committee report (page 100); Accounting policies (page 240); and note 3 of the consolidated financial statements (page 254)

Key audit matter

Our response to the key audit matter

EIR adjustment to loans and advances: £58 million (2022: £85 million)

Management judgement is required in ini-ially recognising financial instruments under the
EIR method, and assumptions made by management will also impact subsequent
amortisation of EIR adjustrments. This leads to a heightened risk that management override
of controls could result in a material misstatement of the financial statements.

We assessed two elements of the EIR calculation as most critical and requiring increased
audit focus:

The period over which to defer upfront fees and costs, which is determined by reference
to analysis of historical customer behaviours; and

The extent te which early redemption charges ("ERCs”) and variable interest expected
to be collected in the future should be recognised as revenue/assets now.,

We understood and tested the design and effectiveness of the Group’s controls over automated
revenue recognition, including key reconciliations and processes to ensure complete and accurate
capture of fees, interest charges, customer payments and balances, but folloewed a substantive
approach to testing the EIR models and related balances.

We tested the data extracted from systems to be used in the EIR models, including histerical data used
to analyse customer behaviours.

We reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting policy and the types of fees and expenses being
deferred and amortised. For those fees and expenses that were deferred, we assessed the
reasoriableness of the period over which they were being amortised by assessing the behavicural loan
lives with reference to historical behaviour and challenging the basis on which assumptions have been
made as to future customer behaviours, including additional considerations related to the current, and
forward-looking, ecoromic environment, in particular the outlook for future interesi rates.

We involved EY specialists in reviewing the functionality of the model, ensuring the consistency of the
calculations with the accounting pelicy. We also involved EY specialists in reviewing the code used to
extract historical data from the mortgage systems, to verify that the data used in the EIR models is
complete and accurate.

We benchmarked key assumptions used within the EIR calculation to equivalent assumptions made by
peers and performed sensitivity analyses over key assumptions and judgements. We extended our
analysis to reflect increased uncertainty and potential irregularities in purchase and switching activity
attributable to changes in Bank rate and the inflationary environment.

We also reviewed the accuracy of the amortisation model, tested its inputs, and recalculated a sample
of the amortisation profiles used to amortise the fees and expenses.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

materially in compliance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

We concluded that the fees and costs being deferred are reasonable and complete; the average lives used in the EIR model are reasonable; the extent of ERC fees recognised upfront is reasonable;
and the data populating the EIR model is complete and accurate. We concluded that the resulting EIR adjustments made to revenue fall within our independent range of outcomes, and were
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Measurement of the net defined benefit pension asset
Group and Society: Refer to the Audit Committee report (page 100); Accounting policies (page 240); and note 30 of the Consolidated financial statements (page 304)
Key audit matter Our response to the key audit matter

Retirement benefit asset: £946 million (2222 £1,008 million) We involved EY actuarial specialists tc evaluate the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the defined
benefit pension abligation by comparing the assumptions to ranges we independently developed

The Society has a net defined benefit pension asset which represents the fair value of pension | based on market cbservable indices and the knowledge of our actuarial specialists.

plan assets less the present value of definad benefit obligaticns after applying the asset

ceiling test as reguired by IFRIC 14. We assessed the impact on the defined benefit pension obligaticn of changes in financial,
demographic and longevity assumptions over the year and the continued effects of geopolitical
The net defined benefit pension asset is sensitive to changes in key judgements and tensions and economic outlock, including market volatility. We then assessed whether these

estimates. Management uses specialists t2 inform some of the key judgements and estimates | assumptions were supported by objective external evidence and rationales.
that we consider to be of higher risk and which form part of this key audit matter, including:
s Assumptions - Actuarial assumtions and inputs, including discount rate, inflation, | We tested the reasonableness of the fair valuation of plan assets by independently repricing 100% of

and longevity, which are used to determine the valuaticn of the defined benefit the quoted bonds and equities, a sample of the derivative financial instruments and a sample of the

pension obligation; and properties held by the pension fund. For complex and illiquid investments held, for example, unquoted
o Valuations - Pricing inputs and zalibrations for illiquid or complex valuations of infrastructure, private equity, and private debt instruments, we involved our valuation specialists to
certain investments held by the pension scheme. assess the appropriateness of management's valuation methodology. In performing this work, our

specialists considered whether there was a material impact on the valuation of illiquid investments
which do not have readily determinable market value,

We performed sectoral and geographical analysis to assess the potential impact of climate change risk
and geopolitical tensions on the illiquid assets te inform our sampling of the assets during the testing
of the valuation of the illiquid assets,

We assessed whether the pension scheme has adequate funding and liquidity to cover the mark to
market voiatiiity leading to collateral calls from the Liability Driven Investment held by the pension
schemea,

We considered the appropriateness of the Society’s recognition of a pension asset in accordance with
IFRIC i4. Specifically, we assessed whether the Society was entitled to an unconditional right of refund.
We assessed this by reference to the terms of the pension agreement and confirmed that the Society
did have such a right.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in the financial statements, including the
appropriateness of the assumptions and sensitivities disclosed.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based on the procedu-es performed and tie evidence obtained, we found the key actuarial assumpticns used in the valuation of the defined benefit pension obligation to be within 2 reasonable
range and no material differences were identified during our independent valuation of the pension assets. We were also satisfied that the net defined benefit pension asset was recognisable in
accordance with the terms of IFRIC 14 afte- applying the asset ceiling test.
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IT general controls

Group and Society: Refer to the Audit Committee report (page 100)

Key audit matter Our response to the key audit matter

The Society is highly dependent on technalogy due to the significant number of transactions | We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of IT general controls over the applications,

that are processed daily. Given the levels of automation in place our audit focused on operating systems and databases that are relevant to financial reporting. This includes testing change
ensuring that the Society has appropriate levels of IT general controls. management, segregation of duties and data transfer controls,

IT general controls are required to ensure that data transfers between applications operate | We tested User access by assessing the controls in place for in-scope applications, in particular testing
as expected; and that changes are authorised and tested. Access management controls the user access provisioring, de-provisioning, privileged access and periodic recertification of users'
reduce the risk of unauthorised access to applications and data. . access.

The Society also has z dependency, in some areas of the audit, on th rd parties and related | Where control deficiencies were identified, we performed T substantive procedures or alternative
business teams managing associzted IT controls. audit procedures to mitigate any residual risk.

Scme of the in-scope systems are outsourced to third party service providers. For these systems, we
te sted IT general controls through either direct testing or evaluation of the relevant Service
Orgar:sation Controls (“50C") reports {where available). This included assessing the timing of the
reporting, the controls tested by the service auditor and whether they address relevant IT risks. We
also tested required complementary user entity controls performed by management. Where a S0C
report was not available we performed substantive testing to address risks to financial reparting.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
We are satisfied that IT controls impacting financial reporting are designed and cperating effectively.,
Improvements were made around user ertitlement review executior: and change controls. The overall number of control deficiencies tdentified has reduced in these areas.

Where control except ons were noted, we have either relied on mitigating controls or perfermed IT substantive procedures to ensure that the control exceptions identified did not impact our
approach to the finanzial statement audit.

In the prior year, our auditor’s report included a key audit matter in refation to certain customar redress arovisioning, We did not consider this o be a key audit matier in the current year as the
materiality of the specific customer redress provision has decreased significantly. Further, in the current year we have included the new key audit matter in relation to IT general controls due to
increased proportion of audit effort required for testing IT general controls as a propertion of total audit effort.
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Qur application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of ideiitified misstatements on the audit and in forming cur audit opinion.
Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatemnent that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements.
Materiafity provides a basis for determinir g the nature and extenit of our audit procedures.

Having considered guantitative and qualitative factors and consultation with those charged with governance:
We determined materiality for the Group to be £50 million (2022: £50 million), which is 2.2% (2022: 5%} of the Greup’s profit before tax.
We determined materiality for the Society to be £50 million (2022: £50 million), which is 2.0% {2022: 5%) of the Society's profit before tax.

We assessed profit before tax to be an appropriate basis for materiality given the users of the financial statements, including the Society's members and regulators, focus on pre-tax profit in
assessing the Society’s performance.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an amount fo reduce o an appropriately low leve! the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds materiality.

0On the basis of our risk assessments, tog2ther with our assessment of the Group’s overall contror environment, our judgement was that performance materiality was 75% {2022: 50%) for the Group
and for the Saciety of ur planning materiality, namely £37.5 million (2022: £25 million). We have increased the percentage of performance materiality from the prior year based on our experience
of misstatements and consistent effectiveness of the control environment.

Audit work for underlying entities for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts is undertaken based on a percentage of total performance materiality. The
performance materiality set for each enti-y is based on the relative scale and risk of the entity to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that entity. In the current
year, the performance materiality allocated to entities was £37.5 million.

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identified misstaiements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee tha: we would repert to tham all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £2.5 million (2022: £2.5 millian) for the Group and Society, which is set at 5% of
planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in cur view, warranted reperting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the guantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant gualitative considerations in forming our opinion.
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Other information

The other information comprises the infcrmation included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements as defined above and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible
for the otner information contained with n the Annual Report, which includes reporting based on the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure (“TCFD") recommendations. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover te other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cobtained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Building Societies Act 1986

In our opinion:

s The Annual business statement anc the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Building Societies Act 1986;
e Theinformation given in the Directcrs’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
e The information given in the Annua; business statement (other than the information upon which we are not required to report) gives a true representation of the matters in respect of which it

is given,
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing ta report in respect of the following matters where the Building Societies Act 1986 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

*  Proper accounting records have not been kept by the Society; or
s The Group’s or Society’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
» We have not received all the informztion and explanations and access to documents we require for our audit.
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Other voluntary reporting matters

Corporate governance statement

We have reviewed the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Group and Society's voluntary
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review by “he Listing Rules.

Based on the work urdertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate Governance Statement are materially consistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtaired during the audit:

e  Thedirectors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material uncertainties identified set out on page 137;
+  The directors’ explanatian as to its assessment of the Saciety’s prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period is apprepriate set out on page 67;

s The directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 137,

s  The Board's corfirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on page 65;

s The section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and intemal control systems set out on page 99; and

o The section describing the work of the Audit Committee set out on page 102.

Report of the directors on remuneration

The Society voluntarily prepares a Report of the directors on remuneration in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The directers have requested that we audit the part of the
Report of the directors on remuneration specified by the Companies Act 2006 to be audited as if the Society were a quoted company.

In cur opinion, the pa-t of the Report of the directors on remuneration to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Responsibilities of d'rectors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set ot on page 136, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are respansible for assessing the Group anc Scciety's ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless tre directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Society or to cease operations, or have no realistic aiternative but to do sa.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audi: of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable essurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material

misstatemeant when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud cr error and are considered matarial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users takan on the basis of tnese financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irreqularities, includir g fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We des:gn procedures in line with our respansibilities, outlined below, to detect irregularities, inciuding
fraud. The risk of nat detecting a materizl misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the Society and management.

Qur approach was as follows.

—  Weobtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and determined that the mast significant were the requlations, licence conditions and
supervisory requirements of the Prudentiaf Regulation Authority ("PRA") and the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA”). We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the
preparation of the financial statements such as UK adopted International Accounting Standards and the Building Societies Act 1986.

- Weunderstood how the Group is corplying with these legal and regulatory frameworks by making enguiries of management, internal audit, and those responsible for legal and compliance matters.
We also reviewed correspondence between the Group and UK ragulatory bodies; reviewed minutes of the Board and Board Risk Committee; and gained an understanding of the Group’s approach to
governance, demanstrated by the Beard's approval of the Group's governance framework and the Board's review of the Group’s operational risk framework and internal control processes,

—  Weassessed the susceptibility of the Group’s financial statements to material misstatement. including how fraud might eccur by considering the controls that the Group has established to address
risks identified by the entity, or that ctherwise seek to prevent, deter or detect fraud. We mzde enquiries of management and internal audit and held a fraud-focused discussicn with EY forensic
specialists and mambers of the Board to supplement our assessment of how fraud might occur. We alse considered performance and incentive plan targets and their potential to influence
management to manage earnings or influence the perceptions of investors and stakeholders. Our procedures to address the risks identified also included incorporation of unpredictability into the
nature, timing and/or extent of our testing, challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, and testing year-end adjustments and cther
targeted journal entries.

—  Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and regulaticns. Qur procedures involved inquiries of infernal and external legal counsel,
executive management and internal audit, and reviewing the key policies, reperts on the legal and regulatory frameworks and internal whistleblowing logs. With involvement of the relevant
specialists, we also conductec a revies of correspondence with and notices from the regulators, including the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”), and gaining an understanding of any regulatory
investigations being undertaken. We 2lso evaluated the appropriateness of the contingent fiability disclosures made in note 29 to the financial statements.

—  The Group operatas in the banking industry which is a highly regulated environment. As such te Senior Statutory Auditor considered the experience and expertise of the engagement team to ensure
that the team hac the appropriate co mpetence and capabilities, which included the use of specialists where appropriate.

Afurther description of our responsibiliti=s for the audit of the financial staternents is located on the Financial Reporting Ceuncil's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's redart.
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Other matters we are required to address

e We were appointed by the Society at the Annual General Meeting in July 2019 and engaged on 2 August 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 4 April 2020 and
subseguent financial periods.

e The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Society and we remain independent of the Group and the Society in conducting the
audit.

e The audit opinion is consistent with the additicnal report to the Audit Committee.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Society's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 78 of the Building Societies Act 1986. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

Society's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Society and the Society's members as a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

" nik T ,Aos;w vl

lavier Faiz (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdem

18 May 2023
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Income statements

Group Society

2023 2022 2023 2022
{note i}
Notes £m Em £m fm

Interest receivable and similar incorme/{expense):
Calculated using the effective interest rate method 3 8,776 4,501 8,180 4,10
Other 3 49 I 49 10
Total interest receivable and similar incorme 3 8,825 4,512 8,229 4Mm
Interest expense and similar charges 4 (4,327) (950) (4,238) {1,086)
Net interest income 4,498 3,562 3,991 3,025
Fee and commission income 5 432 475 427 4n
Fee and commission expense 5 (311) (218) (304) (218)
Income from investments 33 - - 652 2
Other operating income 6 54 48 133 04
Losses from derivatives and hedge accounting 7 (4) (7 (12} (6)
Total income 4,669 3,860 4,887 3,378
Administrative expenses 8 (2,323) (2,234) (2,319) (2,231
Impairment {charge)/release on loans and advances to custemers 10 (126) 77 (44) (80)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 27 9 (56) ] (56)
Profit before tax 2,229 1,597 2,533 1,01
Taxation il {565) (345) (496) (246)
Profit after tax 1,664 1252 2,037 765

Note:

i. Society comparatives have been restated to conform tc the current yezr presentation, to present dividends from subsidiaries separately within Income from investments.

The notes on pages 240 to 317 form part of these financial statements.
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Other information U

Group Society
2023 2022 2023 2022
Notes fm fm fm fm
Profit after tax 1,664 1252 2,037 765
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
1tems that will not be reclassified to th2 income statement
Retirement benefit okligations:
Remeasurement o net retirement bensfit asset 30 m (85) 836 {84) 835
Taxation n 29 (293) 29 (292) |
{56) 543 (55) 543
Revaluation reserve: -
Revaluation of property 2, 7 2 W_
Taxaticn T M (2) m. . 2):
1 5 1 5
Fair value through otrer comprehensive ircome reserve:
Revaluation {losses)/gains on equity inctruments at fair value throLgh (3) 10 )] 3
other comprehensive income
Taxation n o 1 (2) - 2
(2) 8 ] (6)
(57) 556 (55) 542
Items that may subsequently be reclass fied to the income statement
Cash flow hedge reserve:
Hedging net gains arising during the year m 40 27 50 22,
Amount transferred to income statemet : (50) {(42) (39) 10
Taxation n m 2 4 (6) Ag
(8) (11} 5 24
Other hedging reserve: o
Hedging net gains arising during the ysar 16 8 16 12
Amount transferred to income statement (23) 4) (23} (3)
Taxation n 3 M 3 o m
(4 8
Fair value through othar comprehensive inzome reserve: e
Revaluation (losses)/gains on debt instruments at fair value through { .
other comprehensive income ! (66) 12 (66) E !
Amount transferred to incorne statement M 74y (48) (74) (48)
Taxation no 39 8 39 8,
(107) {(28) {101) (27)
Dther comprehensive (expense)income (170) 520 (1s5) 547
Total naa_u_.m:msmﬂm._:nmam - 1,494 ) n 1,882 1,312

The notes on pages 240 to 317 form part of these financial statements.

Statements of comprehensive income
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Balance sheets
At 4 April 2023
Group Society
2023 2022 2023 2022
Notes £m £m £m fm
Assets
Cash 25,635 30221 25,635 30,221
Loans and advances to banks and similar institutions 2,860 3,052 2,854 3,033
Investment securities 13 27,615 25,484 27,570 25,439
Derivative financial instruments 15 6,923 4723 7,554 4,759
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk (5,011) (2,443) (5.011) (2.443)
Loans and advances to customers 14 210,782 208,066 166,696 164,342
Investments in Group undertakings 33 - - 41,056 40,326
intangible assets 25 862 93 850 901
Property, plant and equipment 26 744 880 745 880
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 302 252 637 433
Deferred tax 1 119 58 108 47
Current tax assets 15 33 13 43
Other assets 101 106 76 83
Retirement benefit asset 30 946 1,008 947 1,008
Total assets e 271,893 272354 269,730 269,072
‘Liabilities T
Shares 187,143 177,967 187,143 177,967
Deposits from banks and similar institutions 6 25,056 36,425 25,054 36,308
Other deposits 17 5,191 5,208 5,617 5,801
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged r sk 2 1 2 1l
Debt securities in issue 18 27,626 25,629 25,993 22,776
Derivative financial instruments 15 1,524 1,428 1,718 1,742
Other liabilities 695 668 2,854 3147
Provisions for fiabilities and charges 77 82 153 82 183
Accruals and deferred income 334 299 328 293
Subordinated liab 19 6,755 8,250 6,755 8,250
Subscribed capital 20 173 187 173 187
Deferred tax . | 406 430 333 354
Total liabilities 254,987 256,655 256,052 256,089
‘Members’ interests and equity T h )
Core capital deferred shares 3 1,233 1,334 1,233 1,334
Other equity instrumerts 32 1,336 1,336 1,336 1336
General reserve 14,184 12,753 11,051 9,246
Revaluation reserve 38 46 38 46
Cash flow hedge reserve 176 184 33 28
Gther hedging reserve (47 (43) 14 18
Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve {14) 89 (27) 75
Total members’ interests and equity 16,906 15,699 13,678 12,083
Total members’ interests, equity and liab lities 271,893 272,354 269,730 269,072

The notes on pages 240 to 317 form part of these financial statements.
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Approved by the Beard of directors on 18 May 2023,

K A H Parry Chairman
D Croshie Chief Executive Officer
C S Rhodes Chief Financial Officer
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Group statement of movements in members’ interests and equity

For the year ended 4 April 2023 ,

Group statement of movements in members’

interests and equity

Core capital Other equity General Revaluation Cash flow Other FvOCi Total
deferred instruments reserve reserve hedge hedging reserve
shares reserve reserve

fm £m fm £fm £m £m fm fm

AL5 April 2022 1,334 1,336 12,753 . 46 184 {43) 89 15,699
Profit for the year - - 1,664 - - - - 1,664
Net remeasurements of retirement benef t obligations | - - (56) - - - - (56)
Net revaluation of property | - - - 1 - - - 1
Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve “ - - - - (8) - - (8)
Net movement in other hedging reserve [ - - - - - 4 - @
Net movement in FVOC| reserve ' - - - - - - (103) {103) 7

Total comprehensive income - - 1,608 1 (8) 4 (103) 1,494

Reserve transfer - - 9 (9 - - - -

Repurchase of core capital deferred shares (101) - - - - - - (101)

Distribution to the hclders of core capital deferred shares - - (108) - - - - {108)

Distribution to the hclders of Additional Tier 1 capital - - (78) - - - - (78)

At 4 April 2023 1,233 1,336 14,184 38 176 (47) (4) 16,906

For the year ended 4 April 2022
Core capital ~ Other equity General  Revaluation Cash flow Other ROCI Total
deferred  instruments reserve reserve hedge hedging reserve
shares reserve reserve

£m £m fm fm fm fm fm £m

At 5 April 2021 1,334 1336 11,140 44 195 (46) 10 14,113
Profit for the year _ - - 1,252 - - - - 1,252
Net remeasurements of retirement benef - obligations - - 543 - - - - 543!
Net revaluation of preperty | - - - 5 - - - 5
Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve | - - - - m - - my,
Met movement in othar hedging reserve - - - - - 3 - 3!
Net mevement in FVOC reserve i - - - - - - {20 20

Total comprehensive ncome ] - - 1,795 5 {1 3 {20} 1772
Reserve transfer - - 4 (3) - - {n -

Distribution to the he ders of core capital deferred shares - - (108} - - - - {108)

Distribution to the heiders of Additional Tier 1 capital - - (78) - - - - (78)

At 4 April 2022 1334 1336 12,753 46 184 {43) 89 15,699

The notes on pages 240 to 317 form part of these financial staternents.
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Society statement of movement in members’ interests and equity

For the year ended 4 April 2023

Society statement of movements in members’

interests and equity

Core capital Other equity General Revaluation Cash flow Other FvOCI Total
deferred  instruments reserve reserve hedge hedging reserve
shares reserve reserve

fm fm £m £m fm fm Em £fm

At 5 April 2022 _ 1334 1335 9,246 46 28 18 75 12,083
Profit for the year - . 2,037 . - - - 2,037]
Net remeasurements of retirement benef t obligations _ - - (55) - - - - (55)!
Net revaluation of property _ - - - 1 - - - 1 4
Net movement in cach flow hedge reserve _ - - - - 5 - - 5|
Net movermnent in otter hedging reserve _ - - - - - @ - 4 "
Net movement in FVOC] reserve | - - - - - - (102) (102)

Total comprehensive income - - 1,982 1 5 {4) (102) 1,882

Reserve transfer - - 9 (9) - - - -
Repurchase of core capital deferred shares (101) - - - - - - (101)

Distribution to the hclders of core capital deferred shares - - (108} - - - - (108)

Distributicn to the hclders of Additional Tier 1 capital - - {78) - - - - (78)

At 4 April 2023 1,233 1,336 11,051 38 33 14 (2h 13,678

For the year ended 4 Aprit 2022
Core capital  Other equity General Revaluation Cash flow Other FVCCI Total
deferred  instruments reserve reserve hedge hedging reserve
shares reserye reserve

£m fm fm £m £m £m fm fm

At 5 April 2027 1,334 1,336 8,122 44 4 10 107 10,957

Profit for the year - - 765 - - - - 765
Net remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations - - 543 - - - - 5431
Net revaluation of prcperty _ - - - 5 - - - 5 |

Net movement in casa flow hedge reserve - - - - 24 - . 24

Net movement in oth2r hedging reserve - - - - - 8 - 8

Net movement in FVOC| reserve ) - - - - - - (33 (33)

Total comprehensive income - - 1308 5 24 8 (33) 1312

Reserve transfer - - 2 3 - - 1 -

Distribution to the ho ders of core capital deferred shares - - {108) - - - - (108)

Cistribution to the ho ders of Additional Tier 1 capital - - 78) - - - - 78)

At 4 April 2022 1,334 1,336 9,746 46 28 18 75 12,083

The notes on pages 240 to 317 form part of these financial statements.
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Other information u

Cash flow stazements

Group Society
2023 2022 2023 2022
Notes £fm £m £m £m
Cash flows (used in)/generated from cperating activities
Profit before tax 2,229 1,597 2,533 1,0M
Adjustments for:
Non-cash items included in profit before tax 36 839 524 773 640
Changes in operazing assets and liabi.ities 36 (2,965) 12,029 (3,272) 12,413
Taxation (558) (378) (485} (272)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated frcm operating activities (455) 13,772 (451) 13,792
Cash flows used in i1vesting activities
Purchase of investment securities (14,039) {8,677} (14,038) (8,668)
Investrent in subsidiary share capital - - N (20
Sale and maturity of investment securities 12,097 7.877 12,086 7.877
Purchase of property, plani and equipment (63} (68) {63) (68)
Sale of property, plan- and eguipment il 20 21 20
Purchase of intangiblz assets ) (283} (210} (283) (210)
Net cash flows used in investing activilies (2,267} (1,058) (2,268) (1,070)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities
Distributions paid to the holders of core c3pital deferred shares (108} (108) (108) (108)
Repurchase of core capital deferred shares (101) - (o1 . -
Distributions paid to the holders of Additional Tier 1 capital (78) (78) (78) (78)
Issuance of subordinated liab 646 773 646 773
Redemption of subordinated liabilities (2,197) - (2,197) -
Interest paid on subordinated liahilities (260) {(130) (260) (130}
Redemption of subscribed capital - (38) - (38)
Interest paid on subscribed capital (6) (3) (6) 3
Repayment of lease liabilities (33) 7 (33) (27
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from firancing activities (2,137) 389 (2,137} 389
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (t0) 16 - 6
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4869) 1319 (4856) 1317
Cash and cash equiva ents at start of year 30,824 17,705 30,805 17,678
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36 25,955 30,824 25,949 30,805

The notes on pages 240 to 317 form part ¢f these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. Statement of accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Group and Society financial statements are prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Building Societies Act 1986
and with these parts of the Building Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions} Regulations
1998 (as amended) that are applicable. International accounting standards which have been
adopted for use within the UK have also been applied in these financial statements.

The Group financial statements are also prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) adopted by the Eurcpean Union.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
by the revaluation of i wvestment properties, branches and non-specialised buildings, financial
assets measured at fa r value through otter comprehensive income (FYOCI), and derivatives
and certain cther financial assets and liakilities measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL).

A summary of the Group's accounting pe icies, which have been consistently applied, is set
out below. There have been ne changes arising from adoption of new and revised 1FRSs, as
explained below.

Further information about judgements ir applying accounting policies and critical accounting
estimates is provided in note 2.
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Notes to the financial statemenis

Going concern

The Group’s husiness activities and financial position, the factors likely to affect its future
development and parformance, its objectives and policies in managing the financial risks to
which it is exposed, and its capital, funding and liquidity positions are set cut in the Financial
review and the Risk report.

The directors have assessed the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, with reference
to current and anticipated market conditions including the impact of climate-related matters.
The directors confirm they are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for a pericd of not less than 12 months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements and that it is therefore appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis.

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs

A number of amendments and improvements to accounting standards have been issued by
the international Accounting Standards Board (IASB) with an effective date of 1 January 2022.
Those relevant to these financial statements include minor amendments to IFRS S ‘Financial
Instruments’ and the Conceptual Framework. The adoption of these amendments had no
significant impact on the Group.
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

In calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, early redemption penalty charges)
and anticipated custcmer behavicur but does not consider future credit josses. The
calculation includes all fees received and paid and costs incurred that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and zll other premiums ar discounts above or
below market rates.

Interest income is calculated by applying the EiR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impaired financial ascets. For credit imp=ired financial assets the interest income is
calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit impaired financial assets
{i.e. net of the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). Where loans are credit impaired
on origination, or when purchased from ihird parties, the carrying amount at initial
recognition is net of the lifetime ECL at that date. For these assets the EIR reflects the ECLs in
determining the future cash flows expected 1o be received from the financial asset.

Interest receivable and similar income/{expense) calculated using the effective interest rate
methed also includes interest on financial assets classified as fair value through other
comprehensive incorre, and on derivatives in gualifying hedge relztionships.

Interest income not calculated using the effective interest rate method, including interest on
financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss and derivatives not in qualifying
hedge relationships, is presented as other interest receivable and similar income/(expense;.

Fees and commissions

Fee and commission income and expense comprises fees that are ot an integral part of the
EIR. Fees and commissions relating to current accounts, savings accounts, mortgages and
credit cards are either;

» transaction-based and therefore recognised when the perfermance obligation related to
the transaction is fulfilled, ar

» related to the provision of services over a period of time and therefore recognised on a
systematic basis over the life of the acreement as services are provided.

The transaction prices and provision of services are defined within the product terms and
conditions.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Trail commission relating to investments under administraticn, general insurance and
protection products sold on behalf of third parties may include variable consideration. Whers
this is the case the trail commission is recognised either on the accruals basis over the pericd
to which the commission relates or, if the uncertainties are more significant, once the
uncertainties are resolved.

Fee and commission income is generally earned from short-term contracts with payment
terms that do not include a significant financing component.

Segmental reporting

The Executive Committee (ExCo) is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the business and is therefore identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The Group has determined that it has one reportable segment as the ExCo reviews
performance and makes decisions based on the Group as whole, No segmental analysis is
reguirec on geographical lines as substantially all of the Group’s activities are in the United
Kingdom. As a result, no segmental disclosure is provided.

Leases

At inception, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. This assessment
involves exercising judgement as to whether the contract conveys the right to control the use
of ar identified asset, and the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
this asset, for a period of time. The leases held by the Group as a lessee consist primarily of
property contracts for branches and office buildings.

The Group recognises a right-of-use (RoU) asset and a lease liability at the commencement of
the lease, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of less than 12
months) and leases of low value assets. Payments for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets are generally recegnised in the income statement on a straight-line basis.
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the payments aver the jease
term, with the rate used to discount the payments reflecting the rate implicit in the lease or, if
this is not readily determinable, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease term
includes the non-cancellable period of the lease, together with an assessment of any
extension or termination cptions which are reasonably certain to be exercised. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to refiect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured (with a correspending adjustment to the RoU asset) when there is a
change in future lease payments due to a modification of lease terms, changes to an index or
rate, or a reassessment of options.

The RoU asset is initizlly measured based on the value of the corresponding lease liability,
plus any initial direct costs and any lease payments made at or before the commencement,
less any incentives received. The Rol asset is subsequently measured at cost less
depreciation and any accumulated impairment. Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. The Group applies IAS 36 ‘Impairment of
Assets’ to determine whether a RoU asset is impaired, as described in the property, plant and
equipment zccounting policy. RoU assets are included in the ‘Property, plant and equipment’
balance sheet line item and the lease [iabilities are included in the ‘Other fiabilities’ line item.

All leases of owned properties where the Group is lessor are classified as operating leases, as
substantially all risks 2nd rewards of ewrership have been retained. When the Group is an
intermediate lesser, it accounts for the haad lease and the sublease as twao separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a “inance or cperating lease by reference to the RoU
asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Amounts due from lessees uncer finance leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Group’s net investmert in the leases and finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return.

intangible assets

intangible assets held by the Group consist primarily of externally acquired and internally
developed computer software which is held at cost less accumulated amortisaticn and
impairment. In accordance with IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, software development costs are
capitalised if it is probable that the asset zreated will generate future economic benefits and
those benefits can be controlled by the Group. Costs incurred to establish technological
feasibility or to maintain existing levels of performance are recognised as an expense.

Other information U

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Web development costs are capitalised where the expenditure is incurred on developing an
income generating website.

Where applicable, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in the construction of
qualifying assets are capitalised.

Computer software intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives which generally range between 3 and 10 years. Amartisation
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Estimated useful [ives are
reviewed annually and adjusted, if appropriate, in the light of technological developments,
usage and other relevant factors.

Intangible assets, including computer software, are reviewed for indicators of impairment at
each repoerting date and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount is not recoverable the
asset is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount. The estimated
recoverabie amount is based on value in use calculations where there is no basis for making a
reliable estimate of fair value less costs of disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
Freehold and long leaseheld properties comprise mainly branches and office buildings.

Branches and non-specialised buildings are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair value,
determined by market-based evidence at the date of the valuation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment. Valuations are completed annually as
at 4 April, or more frequently if required, by external, independent and qualified surveyors
who have recent experience in the location and type of preperties. Valuations are performed
in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation
Standards and are generally performed on a vacant possession hasis, using a comparative
method of valuation with reference to sales prices and observable market rents for s
properties in similar locations,

Increases in the valuations of branches and non-specialised buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income except where they reverse decreases for the same asset previously
recognised in the income statement, in which case the increase in the vaiuation is recognised
in the income statement. Decreases in valuations are recognised in the income statement
except where they reverse amounts previously credited to other comprehensive income for
the same asset, in which case the decrease in valuation is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

The Group halds a small number of investment properties comprising properties held for
rental. These properties may include boty owned properties and leased properties for which
the RoU asset is heid for rental under an operating sublease. Investment properties are stated
at fair value, determined by market-based evidence at the date of the valuation. Valuations of
owned properties are completed annuall; as at 4 April, or more frequently if required, by
external, independent and gualified survayors. The fair value of an investment property which
is a Rol asset reflects the expected cash flows to be received under its sublease. Changes in
fair value are included in the income statzment. Depreciation is not charged on investment
properties.

Other property, plant and eguipment, including specialised administration buildings are
included at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Histerical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attriautabie to the acquisition of the items, major
alterations and refurbishments.

Whers applicable, directly attributable bc rrowing costs incurred in the construction of
qualifying assets are capitalised.

Land is not depreciated. The depreciation of other assets commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use and is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost or valuation over the following estimated useful lives:

Branches and non-specialised buildings 60 years
Specialised administration buildings up to 60 years
Plant and machinery 51015 years
Equipment, fixtures, fittings and vehicles 3 to 10 years

Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually and adjusted, if appropriate,
in light of technclogical developments, usage and other relevant factors.

Assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date and whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate tha: the carrying amount may not be recaverable.
Where the carrying amount is not recoverable the asset is written down immediately to the
estimated recoverable amount. The estimrated recoverable amount is based on value in use
calculations where there is no basis for making a reliable estimate of fair value less costs of
disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are included in other operating income in the income
staterment.
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Taxation

Current tax payable on profits is recognised as an expense in the period in which profits arise.
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from,
or paid to, the taxaticn authorities. Accounting for taxation involves estimation and
judgement in relation to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation. Management evaluates where uncertain taxation positions exist and
recognises provisions where appropriate to reflect the best estimate of the probable outcome.,

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabitities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised,
or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of tax losses
available for carry forward are recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised.

Defe red tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and

i es relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are charged or credited in the income statement except to the
extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a
different period, outside the income statement (for example, in other comprehensive income
ar directly in equity). In this case, the tax appears in the same statement as the transaction
that gave rise to it. An exception to this principle refates to the tax consequences of the
Group's distributions on ather equity instruments. Although such distributions are recognised
directly in equity, the tax consequences are credited to the income statement, where the
profit being distributed originally arose.
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1. Statement of accounting golicies {continued)
Employee benefits
(a) Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension
arrangements.

Defined benefit pensian arrangements

A defined benefit pla- is one that defines the benefit an employee will receive on retirement,
depending on such factors as age, lengt- of service and salary.

The net defined benefit asset or liahility -epresents the present va ue of defined benefit
obligations reduced by the fair value of plan assets, after applying the asset ceiling test, where
a net defined benefit surplus is limited to the present value of ava:lable refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plan. Refunds of a surplus are not considered to be
available if the right to a surplus depends on the accurrence or nen-occurrence of one or
more uncertain futur= events nat wholly within an entity's control. The rights of third parties,
such as trustees, are considered in assessing the extent to which 3 surplus can be recognised.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The p-esent value of the Jefined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash flows derived frem yields of high-guality corporate
bonds that have terms to maturity apprcximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial remeasurerents arise from exoerience adjustments (the effects of differences
between previous actuarial assumptions and what has actuzlly cccurred) and changes in
forward-looking actuarial assumptions. actuarial remeasurernents are recognised in full, in
the year they occur, in other comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognised immeciately in the income statement.
Defined contribution pension arrangemerts
A defined contribution arrangement is o1e into which the Group and the employee pay fixed

contributions, without any further obligation to pay additional contributions. Payments to
defined contributicn schemes are charged to the income statement as they fall due.

Other information v

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(b} Other post-retirement obligations

The Group provides post-retirement healthcare to a small number of former employees. The
Group recognises this obligation and the actuarial remeasurement in a similar manner te the
defined benefit pension plans.

(¢) Other long-term employee benefits

The cost of bonuses and other long-term employee benefits payable 12 months or more after
the end of the year in which they are earned is accrued over the pericd from the start of the
performance year untit all relevant criteria have been met.

{d) Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, including wages and salaries, social security costs
anc healthcare for current employees, is recognised in the year of service.

Provisions

A provision Is recegnised where there is a present cbligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the obligation will be settled, and it can be reliably estimated. This includes
management’s best estimate of amounts payable for customer redress.

The Group has an obligation to contribute to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme
(FSCS) to enable the FSCS to meet compensation claims from, in particular, retail depesitors
of failed banks. A provision is recognised, to the extent that it can be reliably estimated, when
the levy is legally enforceable, in line with IFRIC 21 ‘Levies'. The amount provided is based on
information received from the FSCS and the Group's historic share of industry protected
deposits.

Financial assets

Financial assets comprise cash, loans and advances to banks and similar institutions,
investment securities, derivative financial instruments and loans and advances to customers.
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)
Recognition and derecognition

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Purchases and sales of financial assets
are accounted for at trade date. Financi3l assets acquired through a business combination or
portfolio acquisition are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or where the assets have
been transferred and substantially all th= risks and rewards of owership have been
transferred.

The fair value of a financial instrument cn initial recognition is normally the transaction price
(plus directly attributable transaction cests fer financial assets which are not subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss). On initial recognition, it is presumed that the
transaction price is the fair value uniess there is observable information available in an active
market to the contrary. Any difference batween the fair value at iritial recognition and the
transaction price is recognised immediztely s a gain or loss in the income statement where
the fair value is based on a quoted price in an active market or a valuation using only
observable market data. In all other cases, any gain or loss is defe red and recognised over
the life of the transaction, or until valuat on inputs become cbservable.

Modification of contrectual terms

An instrument that is renegotiated is de-ecognised if the existing agreement is canceiled and
a new agreement is made on substantially different terms (such as renegotiations of
commercial loans). Rasidential mortgag 2s reaching the end of a fixed interest deal period are
deemed repricing events, rather than a modification of contractual terms, as the change in
interest rate at the end of the fixed rate >eriod was envisaged in the original mortgage
contract.

Where an instrument is renegotiated and not derecognised, the change is considered a
modification of contractual terms. Wherz this arises, the gross carrying amount of the lean is
recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows,
discounted at the lcan's original effective interest rate. Any gain o~ loss on recalculation is
recognised immediately in the income s:atement.

Classification and meastrement
The classification and subsequent measurement of financizal assets is based on an assessment

of the Group’s business models for manz ging the assets and their contractual cash flow
characteristics. Financial assets are clascified intc the following th-ee categories:

Other infermation U

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

{(a) Amortised cost

Financial assets held to collect contractual cash flows and where contractual terms comprise
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) are classified as amortised cost. This cateqory
of financial assets includes cash, loans and advances to banks and similar institutions, the
majority of the Group's residential and commercial mortgage loans, all unsecured lending,
and certain investment securities within a ‘hold to collect” business model.

Financial assets within this category are recognised an either the receipt of cash or deposit of
funds into one of the Group's bank accounts (for cash and Ioans and advances to banks and
similar institutions), when the funds are advanced to borrowers (for residential, commercia!
and unsecured lending) or on the trade date for purchases of investment securities. After

initial recognition, the assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate

method, less provisions for expected credit losses.

{b) Fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments heid in a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and seiling financial assets, and where contractual terms comprise
solefy payments of principal and interest (SPP!), are classified and measured at FVOC!. This
categary of financial assets includes most of the Group’s investment securities which are held
to manage liguidity requirements.

Financial assets within this category are recognised on trade date. The assets are measured
at fair value using, in the majority of cases, market prices or, where there is no active market,
prices obtained from market participants. In sourcing valuaticns, the Group makes use of a
consensus pricing service, in line with standard industry practice. In cases where market
prices or prices from market participants are not available, discounted cash flow models are
used.

interest on FVOCI debt instruments is recognised in interest receivable and similar income in
the income statement, using the effective interest rate method. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in value are recognised in other comprehensive income. Provisions for
expected credit losses and foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in the income
statement. Cumulative gains or losses arising on sale of FVOC| debt instruments are
recognised in the income statement within other operating income/(expense), net of any
credit or foreign exchange gains or losses already recognised.
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1. Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Upon initial recognition, the Group may elect to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as FVOC| when they meet t1e definition of equity under 1AS 32 ‘Financial
Instruments: Prasentation” and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on
an instrument-by instrument basis. Gairs and losses on these equity instruments are never
recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in profit or loss as other operating income unless
deemed to represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Equity instruments at
FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

{c) Fair value througn profit or loss

All other financial assets are measured ¢t FVTPL. Financial assets within this category
primarily include derivative instruments and a small number of residential and commercial
loans and investmen: securities with contractual cash flow characteristics which de not meet
the SPPI criteria. The contractual terms or these cash flows include contingent or leverage
features, or returns kased on movemen s in underiying collateral values such as house prices.

Fair values are basec on observable market data, valuations cbtained from third parties or,
where these are not available, internal rodels. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of these instruments and on dispcsal are recegnised in the income siatement within
other operating income.

Hedge accounting is not applied to assets classified as FYTPL; however, hedging may be
applied for economic purposes. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives eccnomically hedging FVTPL financial assets are also included within other
operating income.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 expected credit loss (ECL) requirements comprise
all financial debt instruments measurad at either amortised cost or FVOCI. These include
cash, loans and advances to banks and similar institutions, and the majority of investment
securities and loans and advances to custemers. Alsc within scope are irrevocable undrawn
commitments to lend and intra-group lending {the latter being eliminated on consolidation in
the Group accounts).

The ECL represents the present value of expected cash shortfalls following the default of a
financial instrument, including any und:awn commitment. A cash shortfall is the difference
between the cash flows that are due in accor